
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

CABINET 
__________________________________ 

 
Wednesday, 5 December 2012 at 5.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

AGENDA – SECTION ONE 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

Committee Room, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
 
 

Members: 
 

 

Mayor Lutfur Rahman – (Mayor) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed  – (Deputy Mayor) 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed – (Cabinet Member for Regeneration) 
Councillor Shahed Ali – (Cabinet Member for Environment) 
Councillor Abdul Asad – (Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury – (Cabinet Member for Resources) 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque – (Cabinet Member for Jobs and Skills) 
Councillor Rabina Khan – (Cabinet Member for Housing) 
Councillor Rania Khan – (Cabinet Member for Culture) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman – (Cabinet Member for Children's Services) 
 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
Matthew Mannion, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk  



  

 
"If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available fire exit, to which a Fire Warden will direct you.  Please do not use the lifts. 
Please do not deviate to collect personal belongings or vehicles parked in the complex.  
If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you to a safe area.  On 
leaving the building, please proceed directly to the Fire Assembly Point situated by the 
lake on Saffron Avenue.  No person must re-enter the building until instructed that it is 
safe to do so by the Senior Fire Marshall.  The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do 
so, otherwise it will stand adjourned." 



 

 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

CABINET  
 

WEDNESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2012 

 
5.30 p.m. 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting Members from 

voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See 
attached note from the Chief Executive. 

 
 

 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

  

 The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 7 November 
2012 to be circulated for information. Minutes to follow. 
 

  

4. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations or petitions. 
 

  

5. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

  

5 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to 
Unrestricted Business to be considered   

 

  

 To receive any advice of key issues or questions in relation 
to the unrestricted business to be considered, arising from 
the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 4 December 2012. 
 
 

  

5 .2 Any Unrestricted Decisions "Called in" by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee   

 

  

 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the 
Constitution). 
 
Nil items. 
 
 

  



 
 

 UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

6. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 

  

6 .1 Tenancy Strategy   
 

5 - 58 All Wards 

6 .2 Olympic Impact Planning Review   
 

59 - 76 All Wards 

6 .3 Saturation Policy - Brick Lane   
 

77 - 114 Spitalfields 
& 

Banglatown; 
Weavers; 

Whitechapel 

7. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 

  

7 .1 Establishing a Local Health Watch   
 

115 - 130 All Wards 

8. A SAFE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

8 .1 Reviewing the impact of the Children's Centres 
restructure - report of the scrutiny working group   

 

131 - 164 All Wards 

9. A HEALTHY AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

9 .1 Food Law Enforcement Plan 2012/13   
 

165 - 216 All Wards 

10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 

  

10 .1 In House Temporary Resourcing Report (to follow)   
 

 All Wards 

10 .2 Strategic Performance, General Fund Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2012/13 Q2   

 

217 - 322 All Wards 

11. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

12. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

12 .1 Exercise of Corporate Directors' Discretions   
 

323 - 328 All Wards 

  

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda, the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act, 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act, 1985, the Press and 
Public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government, Act 1972”. 
 
 



 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (PINK) 
The Exempt / Confidential (Pink) Committee papers in the Agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally sensitive and should not be 
divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, 
please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 

 
 

 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

14. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 

  

 The Exempt/Confidential minutes of the Cabinet meeting 
held on 7 November 2012 to be circulated for information. 
Minutes to follow. 
 

  

15. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

  

15 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to 
Exempt / Confidential Business to be considered.   

 

  

15 .2 Any Exempt / Confidential Decisions "Called in" by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee   

 

  

 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the 
Constitution). 
 
Nil items. 
 
 

  

 EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

16. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

17. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items.   

18. A SAFE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

19. A HEALTHY AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

20. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

21. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  



 
 

22. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

 Nil items.   



 
 

 
SCRUTINY PROCESS 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on Tuesday 8 January 2013 may 
scrutinise provisional decisions made in respect of any of the reports attached, if it is 
“called in” by five or more Councillors except where the decision involves a 
recommendation to full Council. 
 
The deadline for “Call-in” is: Friday 14 December 2012  (5.00 p.m.) 
 
Councillors wishing to “call-in” a provisional decision, or members of the public wishing to 
submit a deputation request, should contact: John Williams 
 Service Head Democratic Services: 
 020 7364 4205 

 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 
When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

Isabella Freeman, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services), 020 7364 4801; or 
John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 

Date: 
 
05/12/12 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 
 
 

Report No: 
 
49/123 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director of Development and 
Renewal – Aman Dalvi 
 
Originating officer Martin Ling 
 

Title:  
 
Tenancy Strategy 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 

Lead Member 
 

Cllr Rabina Khan – Cabinet Member for Housing  

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Great Place to Live 

Strategic Priority 
 

Improving and maintaining the quality of housing 
and the local neighbourhood 

 

1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets is required to produce a tenancy 
strategy as set out in the Localism Act which gained Royal Assent in 
November 2011. The tenancy strategy has to be published by January 2013. 

If the Council does not agree its tenancy strategy by this date, it will be in 
breach of the legislation and will not be in a position to influence Registered 
Providers or expect them to have due regard to its preferred options on 
tenancies. 

Section 150 of the Localism Act covers tenancy strategies and states in 
subsection (1) that: 

 
 (1)A local housing authority in England must prepare and publish a strategy 
(a “tenancy strategy”) setting out the matters to which the registered providers 
of social housing for its district are to have regard in formulating policies 
relating to—  

(a) the kinds of tenancies they grant,  

(b) the circumstances in which they will grant a tenancy of a particular kind,  

(c) where they grant tenancies for a term certain, the lengths of the terms, and  

(d) the circumstances in which they will grant a further tenancy on the coming 
to an end of an existing tenancy.  

1.2 Before adopting a tenancy strategy, the Council is required to consult with 
every private Registered Provider of social housing in Tower Hamlets and 
must give them a reasonable opportunity to comment on its proposals.  The 
Council must also consult the Mayor of London and such other persons as the 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 5



 

 

Secretary of State may by regulations subscribe.  At the time of writing, the 
Secretary of State had not made any such regulations.  

1.3 Through the existing allocations system, Councils and Registered Providers 
generally enter into lifetime tenancies with new tenants. The Government will 
now allow all social landlords the flexibility to offer shorter term tenancies if 
they decide that it will enable them to make better use of their housing stock 
and assist those people with the most pressing need more effectively.    

1.4 The Council is required to set out its own policy on tenancies and give 
direction to all the Registered Providers who own and manage homes in the 
borough. Registered Providers are expected to have ‘due regard’ to the 
tenancy strategy but the Council has no specific powers and limited options if 
it decided to actively enforce its tenancy strategy upon its partners. 

1.5 The tenancy strategy will not affect existing tenants whose tenancy agreement 
rights will be fully protected. 

1.6 The Cabinet approved a draft tenancy strategy on the 5th September 2012 
and the statutory consultation with the Mayor of London and Registered 
Providers ran from Monday 17th September to Friday 2nd November. In 
addition a public consultation process, also agreed by Cabinet took place over 
the same period. Details of responses to the consultation are set out below 
and in appendix 3. 

          DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
          The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

I. Approve the final tenancy strategy attached at appendix 1 
 
 
2.0       REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
2.1 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce a tenancy strategy 

as set out in the Localism Act which gained Royal Assent in November 2011. 
 
3.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
3.1 The Council has no alternative options to producing a tenancy strategy as it is 

a statutory requirement.  
 
3.2 The Council could adopt a strategy in different terms from that proposed.  The 

strategy in appendix 1 is recommended for reasons set out in the report.  
  
4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 An issues and options paper was considered by Cabinet on the 5th September 
2012. The paper set out the full details of the issues for the Cabinet to 
consider. Before the development of the initial draft there had been substantial 
consultation with Registered Providers and their views had been incorporated 
into the paper. The Mayor had previously indicated that he is in favour of 

Page 6



 

 

retaining lifetime homes for secure tenants of the Council except in 
exceptional circumstances where it is clear that the particular property being 
let will not be suitable for the tenant beyond the short term.  

5.0 Tower Hamlets Homes 
 
5.1 The Council’s ALMO, Tower Hamlets Homes, currently enters into lifetime 

tenancies with all tenants. Cabinet previously indicated that they wanted to 
retain lifetime tenancies for Tower Hamlets Homes in order to maintain 
sustainable communities and enable tenants to have the comfort of being able 
to enjoy a secure lifetime tenancy. This policy will assist in achieving the twin 
objectives of making best use of the stock and contributing to maintaining 
sustainable communities.  

 
5.2  Cabinet agreed that they are in favour of the discretionary use of fixed term 

tenancies in certain circumstances by Tower Hamlets Homes.  Since the 
production of the draft tenancy strategy this area has been discussed more 
fully with Tower Hamlets Homes staff. It was suggested that the only 
circumstances where the clause could be used, would be in order to alleviate 
a situation where a tenant has a terminal illness and requires a property on 
shorter term basis with additional care. Fixed term tenancies would only be 
used in those situations where it is clear that the property will only be required 
in the short term. 

 
5.3 In addition, the process for reviewing the tenancy that is being advised to 

Registered Providers will be adopted by Tower Hamlets Homes. 
Arrangements for emergency rehousing and decanting for regeneration 
schemes are covered by other arrangements and fixed term tenancies will not 
be used in these situations. 
 

6.0 Direction to Registered Providers 
 

6.1 The Council is required to give direction to Registered Providers on how it 
expects their tenancy policies to operate in the borough. As set previously to 
Cabinet on the 5th September, a number of Registered Providers in the 
Borough had already progressed policies which will include letting some 
properties on assured shorthold tenancies on a fixed term basis and this 
situation has not changed. Cabinet agreed that whilst they were in favour of 
lifetime tenancies it was recognised that many Registered Providers will want 
to make use the new flexibilities in order to more effectively manage their 
stock. In setting the tenancy strategy for Tower Hamlets, the Cabinet agreed 
to set out to Registered Providers who do make use of the flexibility, a set of 
conditions to ensure that the needs of vulnerable groups are met. Registered 
Providers will be expected to have due regard to these conditions. 

 
These conditions are set out in the tenancy strategy and can be summarised 
as follows: 
 

6.2 Tenancies: 
 
The following categories of households will be offered lifetime tenancies: 
 

Page 7



 

 

Person over 60 years of age 
People with a long term disability 
All transferring secure tenants of homes managed by Tower Hamlets Homes 
and tenants whose homes were transferred under the Housing Choice and 
other stock transfer programmes and as required under the Localism Act. 
 
Fixed term tenancies of 10 years or more should be offered to the following 
categories of households: 
 
Households containing one or more children under 10 years old. 
 

6.3 Review of Tenancies: 
 
Terms of a review process to be set out starting a minimum of 9 months 
before end of tenancy and including the advice and assistance that will be 
given to tenants who are not granted further tenancies. 
 

7.0     National Affordable Homes Programme  
 
7.1      Alongside the Localism Act, the Government has introduced a framework for 

delivering new affordable housing. The Mayor of London now has a duty to 
set out policies that address regional housing challenges as well as local 
ones, and he is now directly responsible for the London Affordable Homes 
Programme (AHP).  

 
7.2     The Mayor of London’s Office has agreed a new Affordable Homes 

programme to deliver new housing over the Comprehensive Spending Review 
period, ending in 2015. As part of the revised grant arrangements, Registered 
Providers will be able to charge affordable rents, up to 80% of local market 
levels on both new properties together with a proportion of re-let properties 
through a contractual agreement with the GLA.  

 
7.3     The Council has carried out research and developed guidance on what it 

considers to be an acceptable level for affordable rents. The table below 
provides an indication of what acceptable affordable rent levels are likely to be 
for the borough as a whole. This has been informed by the research carried 
out by POD (2011) which takes account of local socio-economic 
circumstances. In practice, each scheme will need to apply rent levels which 
reflect the particular local housing market of that area and the needs of the 
borough. These rent levels will need to be agreed with the Council as part of 
the development management process and kept under review. 

 

1 bed 65% 

2 bed 55% 

3 bed 50% 

4 bed 50% 

 
7.4 The Council will support proposals which include affordable rent 

homes only where the provision of social rent homes has been maximised, 
specifically for larger family homes. This approach enables the housing needs 

Page 8



 

 

of the borough to be met, as identified in the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment.  
 

7.5 In negotiating rent levels across the borough, the Council will need to consider 
the impact of welfare reforms on household affordability and in particular the 
introduction of the Universal Credit cap in 2013. When applicants apply for 
rehousing they will therefore have a range of rent levels as well as different 
types of tenancies to consider when deciding which properties to bid for.  

 

7.6 The full details of the Council’s policy on affordable rents is set out in the 
Managing Development Plan document. The submission version of the 
Managing Development – Development Plan Document (MD DPD) as well as 
supporting documents and representations were submitted to the Secretary of 
State on May 18, 2012.  Following this, the Planning Inspectorate, on behalf of 
the Secretary of State has undertaken an independent Examination in Public 
.The Examination took place in September 2012 and the Inspector is 
expected to report back at the end of November 2012. 

7.7 In their comments on the draft tenancy strategy, the Greater London Authority 
(GLA) stated that  

 ‘The GLA expects that London boroughs will maximise the delivery of 
affordable housing through their planning and housing policies and does not 
accept that this can be achieved by setting specific rent caps in local planning 
policies or tenancy strategies. The Mayor has clarified this position through 
consulting on Supplementary Planning Guidance devolving from his London 
Plan and a minor Alteration to the Plan’ 
 

7.8 In order  to give a clear indication as to what the Council views is on 
affordable rents in the borough, the direction on rents and affordable homes 
will be included in the tenancy strategy. This guidance would apply to homes 
built through section 106 planning gain or potentially through Council funding 
which sits outside the Affordable Housing programme.  
 

8.0 Consultation 
 

8.1 Statutory requirements 
 

Before adopting a tenancy strategy, the Council is required to consult with 
every private Registered Provider of social housing in Tower Hamlets and 
must give them a reasonable opportunity to comment on its proposals.  The 
Council must also consult the Mayor of London and such other persons as the 
Secretary of State may by regulations subscribe.  At the time of writing, the 
Secretary of State had not yet made any such regulations. 

8.2 Mayor of London 
 

The GLA on behalf of the Mayor of London wrote to the Council setting out his 
comments on the draft tenancy strategy on 9th October 2012. 
 
The Mayor of London has stated that he is broadly supportive of the 
government’s reforms to the social housing system. A number of policies in 

Page 9



 

 

his draft revised London Housing Strategy encourage boroughs and 
Registered Providers to make full use of their new flexibilities in order to better 
reflect the situation on the ground and their local priorities. 
 

8.3 General assessment of draft tenancy strategy 
 

In responding to consultations, the GLA on behalf of the Mayor makes an 
assessment of draft tenancy strategies based on five key themes. The Mayor 
of London’s comments and the Council’s proposed response to each 
comment is set out below: 

 
Increasing the supply of affordable housing 

 
Mayor of London’s comments: ‘The 2012-15 Affordable Housing 
Programme (AHP) will deliver 55,000 new affordable homes, with 36% of the 
new Affordable Rent homes being family sized. In order to meet their 
contractual commitments, and to deliver the much needed new homes, 
registered providers need more flexibility to manage their existing and new 
stock, and they need some consistency across the many local housing 
authorities in which they operate. This is a key theme in the Mayor’s draft 
revised London Housing Strategy. 
 
Tower Hamlets supports the continued use of life time tenancies in most 
cases, but also acknowledges that Registered Providers may wish to use 
fixed term tenancies. We are satisfied that the approach set out in your draft 
tenancy strategy does give Registered Providers the flexibility they need in 
order to meet their contractual commitments, although we would like to see a 
more explicit acknowledgement of the link between Registered Providers’ 
ability to grant fixed term tenancies and the affordable housing programme’. 

 
Council response: The tenancy strategy has been enhanced to recognise 
the link between fixed term tenancies and the affordable housing programme 
set out in the second paragraph in section 2.3 of the attached tenancy 
strategy.  
 
Promoting mixed and balanced communities 

 
Mayor of London’s comments: We would like to underline the Mayor’s 
commitment to prioritising people who make an active and positive 
contribution to their community – e.g. through employment or volunteering – 
and who may also face barriers to accessing suitable housing in other 
tenures. It might be appropriate to take this into account when determining 
whether a tenancy is renewed or not, as well as the factors already set out in 
the tenancy strategy. 
 
Council response: The Council has inserted a clause in section 4 .5 
recommending that Registered Providers take into account individual 
households employment or voluntary sector contributions when reviewing 
tenancies. 
 
Tackling need - A 
 

Page 10



 

 

Mayor of London’s comments: in section 2.1, the draft strategy states that 
in ‘limited circumstances’ fixed term tenancies will be used and that ‘the 
tenancy strategy will seek to define… all possible circumstances when THH 
will be able to grant a fixed term tenancy’. Ideally these circumstances would 
be stated in the draft tenancy strategy. In its current form, there is not enough 
detail in the draft strategy to enable us to determine whether those in need will 
have adequate protections. 
 
Council response: As set out at 5.2, the Council has agreed with Tower 
Hamlets Homes, the circumstances in which it will issue fixed term tenancies.  
 
Tackling need - B 
 
The Mayor believes that boroughs and social landlords should be working to 
reduce levels of under occupation in the social rented sector, which, if 
achieved, will directly benefit those households who are in need of larger 
accommodation. It may be worth considering how wider use of fixed term 
tenancies in Tower Hamlets could help to achieve this aim. 
 
Council response: the Council is in the process of agreeing an under 
occupation plan but does not intend to use fixed term tenancies as a specific 
tool to reduce under occupation through Tower Hamlets Homes. 
 
Enhancing mobility and choice The Mayor is supportive of any measures 
that seek to reduce as far as possible the potential barriers facing existing 
tenants who may need or want to move to a different home. This is particularly 
important given the recent launch of the Mayor’s new pan-London mobility 
scheme, Housing Moves, which Tower Hamlets is soon to join. We therefore 
welcome the ‘transferring secure tenants’ statement, but this could be more 
explicit about the mobility schemes that Tower Hamlets participates in. 
 
Council response 
 
This comment is noted and the two schemes that the Council participates in, 
Housing Moves and the Seaside and Country Homes scheme for the over 
60’s age group have been referred to in the tenancy strategy. 
 
A copy of the letter from the Mayor’s office is attached at appendix 2 
 

8.4 Registered Providers 
 

Registered Providers have been fully involved in the development of 
proposals through the following avenues: 

 

• Regular reports to the Tower Hamlets Housing Forum and selection of 2 
representatives to sit on the Tenancy Strategy Project Board 

 

• Letter to all Registered Providers in the Borough setting out Council’s 
approach and requesting information on Registered Providers emerging 
policies 

 

Page 11



 

 

• Half day seminar to discuss the tenancy strategy issues in detail with a report 
back on the emerging Registered Providers policies 
 
All Registered Providers were sent a copy of the draft tenancy strategy at the 
same time as the Mayor of London and were given six weeks to respond. 
 
Nine Registered Providers have responded to the statutory consultation by the 
closing date and none have raised any specific objections or made any 
specific comments which would have led to an alteration to the draft strategy. 
A summary of their comments is set out in Appendix 3. In addition a 
presentation was given to the Tower Hamlets Housing Forum in September 
2012 which set out the Council’s draft tenancy strategy. The Registered 
Providers present welcomed the Council’s direction and agreed to take part in 
the on-going monitoring and review of the tenancy strategy. 

 
8.5 Resident consultation 
 

Cabinet agreed that a ‘light touch’ consultation would run concurrently with the 
statutory consultation. Following an article in East End Life, comments were 
invited through a website survey, at residents meetings, through an invitation 
to all tenants associations to comment on the draft and a series of focus 
groups with residents on the housing register. Overall the responses indicated 
broad support for the Council’s approach but highlighted the need to ensure 
that the tenancy strategy is kept under review. 
 
The responses can be summarised as follows: 

 
8.6 Residents Scrutiny Panel  
 
 A presentation was given to the Residents Scrutiny Panel on Tuesday 25th 

September. The meeting was in broad agreement with the Council’s draft 
tenancy strategy.  

 
8.7 Tenants and Residents Federation 
 
 The Federation supported the Council’s preference for lifetime tenancies and 

raised concerns about the level of consultation that Registered Providers were 
carrying out with their residents. It was also suggested that the Council should 
be firmer with Registered Providers who do not retain lifetime tenancies. 

 
8.8 Tenants and Residents Associations 
 
 To date, one Tenants and Residents  Association has formally responded to 

the consultation and they supported the Council’s position on lifetime 
tenancies and in its direction to Registered Providers. 

 
8.9 Focus Groups 
 
 Four focus groups were held across the Borough during September and 

October 2012 with nearly 60 households taking part in discussions about the 
draft tenancy strategy. The households were drawn from a range of people 
who were currently on the common housing register. Tenants from Registered 

Page 12



 

 

Providers also attended two of the sessions. The attendees were 
representative of the broad demography of the borough covering a range of 
age groups, ethnic backgrounds and household sizes. 

 
 The conversations were wide ranging and in addition to specific discussion 

about the tenancy strategy, participants raised a number of concerns about 
meeting the housing shortage, rent levels, condition in temporary 
accommodation, housing quality and housing management issues. 

 
 General view - With regard to the tenancy strategy there was clear support 

for the continuation of lifetime tenancies. Attendees recognised the idea 
behind using fixed term tenancies to tackle issues such overcrowding and 
making better use of adapted properties but were generally of the view that a 
lifetime tenancy was important to enable people to have stability and 
contribute to the local community. 

  
Anti-social behaviour - This was the one area where a number of 
participants felt strongly that fixed term tenancies could be used – in most 
meetings there was real feeling that anti-social tenants were rehoused and 
that it was difficult to change their behaviour. Consideration was given to 
including a clause in the tenancy strategy that would enable Tower Hamlets 
Homes and encourage Registered Providers to consider using fixed term 
tenancies for households with a history of anti-social behaviour. However the 
numbers of households affected is very small and all landlords are able to use 
both probationary tenancies and other management tools to tackle anti-social 
behaviour, so this approach is not recommended. 
 

8.10 Website survey 
 
 A short survey was carried out through the Council website and  18 residents 

responded. In general the respondents were in broad agreement with the 
direction to retain lifetime tenancies.  

 
8.11  A fuller report on the consultation is attached at Appendix 3. 

 
9.0 Review /Communication 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the tenancy strategy is kept under review through 

Tower Hamlets Housing Forum to ensure that impact of policy adopted by the 
Council and its partners can be fully understood and that action can be taken 
if the policy has any negative effects on the Council’s lettings policy. 

  
10.0   COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1 This report seeks approval to adopt, following the statutory consultation 

process, the Council’s proposed tenancy strategy that has been prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act. The strategy will affect 
all Registered Providers of Social Housing within the Borough, and will include 
the council owned properties managed by Tower Hamlets Homes. 

10.2 Although indications are that most of the main providers in the borough are 
likely to continue with the current lifetime tenancy allocation, the Localism Act 

Page 13



 

 

includes the option to award fixed term tenancies for periods of five years and 
above. The incorporation of a fixed term tenancy model can enable better use 
and occupation of the dwelling stock in order to reflect tenants’ needs in some 
circumstances. However if adopted, the process must be carefully managed 
to ensure that pressures are not increased on the homelessness service and 
consequently Council budgets if tenants leave social housing at the end of 
their fixed term tenancy period. 

10.3 If adopted, the costs of administering a fixed term tenancy model will be borne 
by each Registered Provider, which in relation to the THH managed stock will 
be absorbed within HRA budgets. The costs of preparation and any on-going 
and subsequent consultation on the tenancy strategy have been met from 
within existing revenue resources.   

11. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
(LEGAL SERVICES) 

 
11.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced a new category of tenancy for social 

housing, known as flexible tenancies.  This was done by inserting new 
provisions into the Housing Act 1985.  Flexible tenancies are tenancies for a 
fixed term, rather than being lifetime tenancies like the secure tenancies 
presently offered by the Council.  Sections 107A to 107E of the Housing Act 
1985 specify the steps the Council would need to take in order to grant and 
terminate flexible tenancies. 

11.2 The Council is required by section 150 of the Localism Act 2011 to prepare 
and publish a tenancy strategy by 14 January 2013.  The tenancy strategy 
must set out the matters that registered providers of social housing in Tower 
Hamlets are to have regard to when formulating policies relating to: 

(a) the kinds of tenancies they grant; 

(b) the circumstances in which they will grant a tenancy of a particular 
kind; 

(c) the length of term, if a tenancy is granted for a term certain; and 

(d) the circumstances in which a further tenancy will be granted on the 
coming to an end of an existing tenancy. 

11.3 The requirement that registered providers of social housing have regard to the 
strategy does not mean that they would have to follow it.  There may be 
reasonable grounds on which a registered provider could choose to take a 
different approach. 

11.4 The Council must have regard to the tenancy strategy in exercising its 
housing management functions, which would mean that Tower Hamlets 
Homes Ltd would also need to have regard to the tenancy strategy when 
managing the Council’s housing stock. 

11.5 When preparing its strategy, the Council must have regard to its current 
allocations scheme under section 166A of the Housing Act 1006 (the Lettings 
Policy), its current homelessness strategy under section 1 of the 

Page 14



 

 

Homelessness Act 2002 and the London housing strategy under section 333A 
of the Greater London Authority Act 1999. 

11.6 Before adopting a tenancy strategy, the Council is required to consult with 
every private registered provider of social housing in Tower Hamlets and must 
give them a reasonable opportunity to comment on its proposals.  The Council 
must also consult the Mayor of London and such other persons as the 
Secretary of State may by regulations subscribe.  At the time of writing, the 
Secretary of State had not yet made any such regulations. 

11.7 Before adopting a tenancy strategy, the Council must have due regard to the 
need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  An 
equality analysis has been prepared, which is set out in Appendix 4 to the 
report and contains information relevant to consideration of the matters 
required by the Council’s public sector equality duty.  

12.0   ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
12.1 A full Equality Assessment has been carried out on the tenancy strategy and 

is attached at Appendix 4. Within the tenancy strategy the different types of 
tenancies lengths can have both negative and positive impacts on different 
groups. Because of the nature of the legislation, and flexibility for Registered 
Providers in how they operate their tenancy policies, this is unavoidable. The 
introduction of a tenancy strategy will not in itself impact on the overall levels 
of poverty in the Borough.  

13.0    SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
13.1   There are no specific sustainable action for a greener environment 

implications.  
 
14.0      RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
14.1    There are no risk management implications in the final version of the tenancy 

strategy 
 
15.0     CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1  There are no specific crime and disorder reduction implications. 
 
16.0      EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
16.1 There are no efficiency implications in the final tenancy strategy. 
 

Page 15



 

 

17.0    APPENDICES 
 
17.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Tenancy Strategy 
 Appendix 2 – Letter from the GLA in response to the statutory consultation 
 Appendix 3 – Report on Consultation 
 Appendix 4 – Equality Impact Assessment 

 
 

 
 

 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
A bundle of non-exempt representations 
received from Registered Providers and 
other respondents to the consultation. 
 
 

Martin Ling 
Development and Renewal 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
Mulberry Place,  
5 Clove Crescent 
London, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 0469 

 

 

 
  

Page 16



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 1 

Draft Tower Hamlets Tenancy Strategy 
 
Tower Hamlets’ Tenancy Strategy seeks to ensure that the Council and 
Registered Housing Providers work effectively in partnership to meet the 
Council’s strategic housing priorities.  
 
The strategy is set out under four headings which are the high-level matters to 
which Registered Providers must have due regard to under the Localism Act 
in formulating their tenancy policies  
 

1. The kinds of tenancies they grant, 
2. The circumstances in which they will grant a tenancy of a particular 

kind, 
3. Where they grant a tenancy of a certain term, the lengths of the term, 

and,  
4. The circumstances in which they will grant a further tenancy on the 

coming to an end of an existing fixed-term tenancy.  
 
In addition, the tenancy strategy sets out advice in three further areas: 
 

5. The expectations the Council has in term of advice and support to 
tenants where a further  tenancy is not granted  

6. The Council’s policy on affordable rents  
7. Monitoring and review of the tenancy strategy. 

 
1. The kinds of tenancies granted by Registered Providers in Tower 

Hamlets 
 
1.1 Tower Hamlets Homes 
 

 It will be standard practice that social rented homes in Tower Hamlets 
let by the Council’s Arms Length Management Organisation, Tower 
Hamlets Homes should continue to be let on lifetime secure tenancies 
except where it is clear that a property will only be required by a tenant 
in the short term (see 2.1 below). All new Tower Hamlets Homes 
tenancies will continue to be subject to the one-year probationary 
period under the Council’s probationary tenancy scheme.  
 

1.2 Other Registered Providers 
 
 The Council’s preference is for other Registered Providers including 

those set up under the Council’s Housing Choice and previous stock 
transfers programme and regional/national partners to offer lifetime 
assured tenancies. 

 
1.3 Other types of tenancies 
 

Introductory or starter tenancies: Registered Providers can also use 
introductory or starter tenancies (in combination with either lifetime or 
where adopted, fixed-term tenancies) as part of their own agreed 

Page 17



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 2 

tenancy policies and in accordance with government guidance and 
regulations.   

  
1.4 Short-term accommodation: This tenancy strategy does not apply to 

tenancy / license arrangements for specific housing used as short-term 
accommodation is used to meet supported housing needs, and 
temporary accommodation provided to homeless applicants.    

 
2.0 The circumstances in which Registered Providers offer different 

types of tenancy  
 
2.1 Tower Hamlets Homes 
 

The Council will make provision for the discretionary use of fixed term 
tenancies in the circumstances set out below by Tower Hamlets 
Homes. These will only be used in cases where it is clear that the 
property will only be required in the short term and where a lifetime 
tenancy would not be appropriate. In these cases, a flexible or fixed 
term tenancy will be used. The express terms of the tenancy will be set 
out in the notice that must be served on the tenant, informing them that 
the tenancy is to be fixed term.  The terms should mirror those of a 
secure tenancy except where the legislation states otherwise e.g. 
succession rights.  What should be granted is a form of secure tenancy 
but one that is limited in time. Any use of such tenancies will be 
expected to be subject to approval and monitoring by senior 
management. 
 
The only circumstances where the clause could be used would be in 
order to alleviate a situation where a tenant has a terminal illness and 
requires a property on shorter term basis with additional care. 
 
When deciding whether to end fixed term tenancies in these 
circumstances Tower Hamlets Homes will be required to ensure that 
the following best practice be applied: 

 

• that clear advice and information is given at the outset of a 
fixed-term tenancy on the process for granting a new one; 

• what criteria is used when deciding whether a further tenancy 
should be granted at the end of a fixed-term, and  

• when considering the actions to be taken where it is decided not 
to grant a further tenancy, to ensure that tenants affected are 
able to secure suitable alternative accommodation.  

 
Tower Hamlets Homeswill: 

  

• Contact all tenants at least nine months before the end of their 
fixed term tenancies and give them notice of their intended 
review 

Page 18



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 3 

• In line with Section 107D of the Localism Act  give tenant  six 
months’ notice of their intention not to grant a new tenancy at 
the end of a fixed-term, 

• at the point of giving notice or earlier, discuss alternative 
housing options with the tenant,  

• put in place a bespoke individual plan for advising and/or 
assisting the tenant to secure suitable alternative housing,  

• give clear details to the tenant about how to appeal against a 
decision not to grant a new tenancy. 

 

2.2 Other Registered Providers 
 
 The Council recognises that Registered Providers may wish to 

introduce fixed-term tenancies in some circumstances in order to 
manage their own stock efficiently and in line with local priorities and to 
assist in the delivery of the Mayor of London’s affordable housing 
programme. 

 
 Where this is the case, we ask that each Registered Provider provide 

the Council with a copy of its policy, setting out the type of fixed-term 
tenancies it will use and for the length of the term. We expect 
Registered Providers to have due regard to the conditions for use of 
fixed term tenancies set out below. We will expect Registered 
Providers to participate in a review of the strategy and the impact on 
lettings patterns in the borough. 

 
3.0 The length of tenancy terms 
 
3.1 In those cases where Registered Providers offer fixed-term tenancies, 

the term should be for a minimum length of five years. However, 
decisions on the length of tenancy should take particular account of the 
longer term needs of the following groups who should be given either 
lifetime or longer term tenancies. 

 

• People with long-term illness or disability 
 
Tenants with long-term illness or disabilities who have been rehoused 
with either adaptations or specific local support packages should be 
given lifetime tenancies. 

 

• Households with children 
 
Households where children under the age of 10 years of age are very 
unlikely to require rehousing to a smaller property within 5 years of 
being rehoused.  Registered Providers should consider granting a fixed 
term tenancy of at least 10 or possibly 15 years in these circumstances 
to enable parents to make a commitment to local education and 
community services. 

 

• Older People 

Page 19



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 4 

 
Older people without dependents who are rehoused into a home which 
is ordinarily expected to meet their needs for the rest of their life should 
be offered lifetime tenancies. 
 

• Transferring secure tenants 
 
Secure tenants who transfer in order to meet their housing needs 
should always be offered a lifetime tenancy as required under the 
Localism Act. Transfers could include those facilitated through the 
Housing Moves and the Seaside and Country Homes schemes for the 
over 60’s age group. 
 

4.0 The circumstances in which a further tenancy will be granted 
 
4.1 The Council’s expectation is that a new tenancy would be normally be 

granted at the end of a fixed-term to the property they already live in 
unless the tenant’s circumstances have changed in line with the 
Registered Provider’s own tenancy policy.  

 
4.2 A further tenancy should always be offered where the household 

circumstances in terms of size of the property required and housing 
need of the tenants have not changed. 

 
4.3 The Council does not support the ending of fixed term tenancies where 

the tenant is not in breach of their tenancy agreement. In those 
situations where a fixed term tenancy is to be terminated and the 
property recovered, this should only be achieved through obtaining a 
court order, having first given the tenant the opportunity to have the 
decision to terminate the tenancy reviewed. 

 
4.4 The Council does not support using income criteria by Registered 

Providers. In deciding whether a further tenancy will be granted. The 
Council is of the view that tenants should be encouraged to seek 
employment and improve their financial circumstances. 

 
Where a Registered Provider uses income criteria to inform a decision 
on whether to grant a further tenancy, clear and unambiguous criteria 
should be applied. It should be noted that those tenants who are 
rehoused through the Tower Hamlets Common Housing Register are 
not subject to an income check, so when renewing fixed term 
tenancies, Registered Providers will not have a base income level from 
the start of the tenancy to compare with if they do apply an income cap 
as part of any policy. 
 

4.5 Where there has been a change in circumstances which could give 
consideration to a tenancy not being renewed, the Registered Provider 
should also take into accountindividual households employment or 
voluntary sector contributions.If such contributions or benefits would be 
undermined by a tenancy not being renewed, the Registered Provider 

Page 20



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 5 

should give due consideration to extending the fixed term of the 
tenancy.   

 
4.6 Where a further tenancy is granted, the Council expects the Registered 

Provider to continue with the rent formula agreed at the time of the 
original letting and to not rebase the rent formula in line with the 
housing market (see 6.4below). 

  
5.0 Advice and support to tenants where a further tenancy is not 

granted 
 
5.1 Registered Providers should work with the council to ensure that the 

following best practice be applied: 
 

• that clear advice and information is given at the outset of a 
fixed-term tenancy on the process for granting a new one; 

• what criteria is used when deciding whether a further tenancy 
should be granted at the end of a fixed-term, and  

• when considering the actions to be taken where it is decided not 
to grant a further tenancy, to ensure that tenants affected are 
able to secure suitable alternative accommodation.  

 
5.2 Our expectation is that Registered Providers will in line with the 

requirements of the Localism Act: 
  

• Contact all tenants at least nine months before the end of their 
fixed term tenancies and give them notice of their intended 
review 

• In line with Section 107D of the Localism Act  give tenant  six 
months’ notice of their intention not to grant a new tenancy at 
the end of a fixed-term, 

• at the point of giving notice or earlier, discuss alternative 
housing options with the tenant,  

• put in place a bespoke individual plan for advising and/or 
assisting the tenant to secure suitable alternative housing,  

• give clear details to the tenant about how to appeal against a 
decision not to grant a new tenancy. 

 
5.3 The Council would expect the tenant to be assisted in their rehousing 

either into an appropriate property in their own housing stock or into the 
private sector through either renting, shared ownership or outright 
ownership where the tenant can afford to make this choice.  

 
5.4 The Council expects the rehousing to take place without any burden on 

the Council and for the property to be let to a household whose need 
can be met effectively. 

 
5.5 Where a decision is taken not to grant a new tenancy at the end of a 

fixed term this should not result in the risk of a former tenant potentially 
being treated as statutorily homeless It is particularly important that 

Page 21



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 6 

families with children do not become homeless as the result of such a 
decision, to avoid disruptive changes to their lives and the possible 
making of a homeless application.  

 
6.0 Affordable Rent  
 
6.1 Alongside the Localism Act, the Government has introduced a 

framework for delivering new affordable housing. The GLA has agreed 
a new Affordable Homes Programme to deliver new housing over the 
Comprehensive Spending Review period, ending in 2015. As part of 
the revised grant arrangements, Registered Providers will be able to 
charge affordable rents, up to 80% of local market levels on both new 
properties together with a proportion of re-let properties through a 
contractual agreement with the GLA.  

 
6.2 The Council has carried out research and developed guidance on what 

it considers an acceptable level for affordable rents. The table below 
provides an indication of what acceptable affordable rent levels are 
likely to be for the borough as a whole. This has been informed by the 
research carried out by POD (2011) and updated in 2012 which takes 
account of local socio-economic circumstances. In practice, each 
scheme will need to apply rent levelswhich reflect the particular local 
housing market of that area and the needs of the borough. These rent 
levels will need to be agreed with the Council as part of the 
development management process. 

 

1 bed 65% 

2 bed 55% 

3 bed 50% 

4 bed 50% 

 

6.3 The Council will support new housing development proposals, which 
include affordable renthomes only where the provision of social rent 
homes has been maximised, specifically for larger family homes. This 
approach enables the housing needs of the borough to be met - as 
identified in the Strategic Housing Market Assessment. These 
indicative rent levels will be kept under review to ensure they are 
affordable and relevant. 

 

6.4 In addition, once the property has been let it is subject to the national 
formula on rent increases for the lifetime of that tenancy. However, 
once a tenancy ends and the property is to be relet, the rent can be 
‘rebased’ at the market rent at the point where the tenancy is renewed. 
Where a Registered Provider agrees to renew a fixed term tenancy the 
Council will expect the Registered Provider not to re-base rents at the 
end of their first fixed term tenancy, but instead commit to the social 
rent-setting formula in place at the time of the original letting. 

 
7.0 Monitoring and review of the tenancy strategy 
 

Page 22



Tower Hamlets FinalTenancy Strategy 05/12/2012 

 7 

7.1 The Council will monitor the impact of the Tenancy Strategy on lettings 
behaviour and patterns through the Tower Hamlets Housing Forum. If 
the Tenancy strategy is considered to be having a negative impact in 
meeting the Council’s strategic priorities it will be subject to a formal 
review under the terms set out in section 150 of the Localism Act.  

 
8.0 Availability of Registered Providers tenancy strategies 
 
8.1 The  Council will seek to publish the tenancy strategiesof all Registered 

Providers operating in Tower Hamlets will be available on Tower 
Hamlets Council web pages 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 Housing and Land City Hall 
 The Queen’s Walk 
 London SE1 2AA 
 Switchboard: 020 7983 4000 
 Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 Web:  www.london.gov.uk   

 
 

Telephone: 020 7983 4000 Email: mayor@london.gov.uk 

 
 
 
Draft tenancy strategy – Mayor of London consultation response 
 
The Localism Act introduced a new duty on local housing authorities to produce tenancy 
strategies. In adopting or making modifications to tenancy strategies, section 151 of the 
Act requires that all London borough councils consult with the Mayor of London and have 
regard to the London Housing Strategy. This letter contains the Greater London Authority 
(GLA) response, on behalf of the Mayor of London, to a consultation on a draft Tenancy 
Strategy by Tower Hamlets Council. 
 
Background 
 
1. Tenancy strategies are a way for local housing authorities to shape how housing 

providers in their area make use of the flexibilities granted to them by other parts 
of the Localism Act. This includes the power to set fixed term tenancies for new 
social tenants. 

 
2. In London, the Mayor is broadly supportive of the government’s reforms to the 

social housing system. A number of policies in his draft revised London Housing 
Strategy encourage boroughs and registered providers to make full use of their 
new flexibilities in order to better reflect the situation on the ground and their 
local priorities.  

 
3. However, the Mayor has a duty to set out policies that address regional housing 

challenges as well as local ones. The government has recognised this by granting 
the Mayor statutory consultee status for tenancy strategies, and requiring that 
boroughs have regard to the London housing strategy when formulating or 
revising their tenancy strategies. This is in addition to the general conformity duty 
set out in part 7a of the GLA Act 2007, which is not covered here. 

 

Jackie Odunoye 
Development and Renewal 
London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets 
Mulberry Place,  
5 Clove Crescent 
London, E14 2BG 
 
cc. Martin Ling 

Ref:  
Date: 9th October 2012 

Page 25



 

 
- 2 - 

 

General assessment of draft tenancy strategy 
 
4. In responding to consultations, the Mayor makes an assessment of draft tenancy 

strategies based on five key themes.  
 
 Increasing the supply of affordable housing 
 
5. The 2012-15 Affordable Housing Programme (AHP) will deliver 55,000 new 

affordable homes, with 36% of the new Affordable Rent homes being family sized. 
In order to meet their contractual commitments, and to deliver the much needed 
new homes, registered providers need more flexibility to manage their existing and 
new stock, and they need some consistency across the many local housing 
authorities in which they operate. This is a key theme in the Mayor’s draft revised 
London Housing Strategy. 

 
6. Tower Hamlets supports the continued use of life time tenancies in most cases, 

but also acknowledges that RPs may wish to use fixed term tenancies. We are 
satisfied that the approach set out in your draft tenancy strategy does give 
registered providers the flexibility they need in order to meet their contractual 
commitments, although we would like to see a more explicit acknowledgement of 
the link between RPs’ ability to grant fixed term tenancies and the affordable 
housing programme. 

 
 Promoting mixed and balanced communities 
 
7. We would like to underline the Mayor’s commitment to prioritising people who 

make an active and positive contribution to their community – e.g. through 
employment or volunteering – and who may also face barriers to accessing 
suitable housing in other tenures. It might be appropriate to take this into account 
when determining whether a tenancy is renewed or not, as well as the factors 
already set out in the tenancy strategy.  

 
 Tackling need 
 
8. In section 2.1, the draft strategy states that in ‘limited circumstances’ fixed term 

tenancies will be used and that ‘the tenancy strategy will seek to define… all 
possible circumstances when THH will be able to grant a fixed term tenancy’. 
Ideally these circumstances would be stated in the draft tenancy strategy. In its 
current form, there is not enough detail in the draft strategy to enable us to 
determine whether those in need will have adequate protections.  

 
9. The Mayor believes that boroughs and social landlords should be working to 

reduce levels of underoccupation in the social rented sector, which, if achieved, 
will directly benefit those households who are in need of larger accommodation. It 
may be worth considering how wider use of fixed term tenancies in Tower Hamlets 
could help to achieve this aim.  

 
 Enhancing mobility and choice 
 
10. The Mayor is supportive of any measures that seek to reduce as far as possible the 

potential barriers facing existing tenants who may need or want to move to a 
different home. This is particularly important given the recent launch of the 
Mayor’s new pan-London mobility scheme, Housing Moves, which Tower Hamlets 
is soon to join. We therefore welcome the ‘transferring secure tenants’ statement 

Page 26



 

 
- 3 - 

 

in section 3.1, but this could be more explicit about the mobility schemes that 
Tower Hamlets participates in. 

 
Rent policy 
 
11. The draft strategy also includes rent policy, which, though not included in the 

scope of a tenancy strategy as defined in the Localism Act, is closely related to 
tenure policy issues such as tenancy length.  

 
12. The HCA/GLA agrees contracts with RPs to deliver new affordable rented homes 

at a range of rents, up to 80% of average market rent. The GLA requires that RPs 
take account of proposed household benefit caps, particularly on larger homes, 
when agreeing rent levels. RPs should be allowed the flexibility to set rents on a 
site by site basis within the envelope of their overall contract with the GLA. 

 
13. The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the framework for delivering the 

Government’s housing objectives, including the Affordable Rent Programme. This 
is to be taken into account by local authorities and other planning bodies in 
preparing local development documents and spatial strategies. The GLA expects 
that London boroughs will maximise the delivery of affordable housing through 
their planning and housing policies and does not accept that this can be achieved 
by setting specific rent caps in local planning policies or tenancy strategies. The 
Mayor has clarified this position through consulting on Supplementary Planning 
Guidance devolving from his London Plan and a minor Alteration to the Plan.  

  
 
 
 Yours sincerely, 
 

    
  
 Alan Benson 
 Head of Housing Strategy, Policy and Services 

Greater London Authority 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

1 

 

Report on consultation on the draft Tenancy Strategy 
 
1.0 Background 
 
The Cabinet approved a draft Tenancy Strategy on the 5th September 2012 
and the statutory consultation with the Mayor of London and Registered 
Providers ran from Monday 17th September to Friday 2ndNovember. In 
addition a public consultation process, also agreed by Cabinet took place over 
the same period. 
 
This appendix sets out in more detail the outcome of the consultation. 

 
2.0 Statutory requirements 
 
Before adopting a tenancy strategy, the Council is required to consult with 
every private Registered Provider of social housing in Tower Hamlets and 
must give them a reasonable opportunity to comment on its proposals.  The 
Council must also consult the Mayor of London and such other persons as the 
Secretary of State may by regulations subscribe.  At the time of writing, the 
Secretary of State had not yet made any such regulations. 

3.0 Mayor of London 
 
The GLA on behalf of the Mayor of London wrote to the Council setting out his 
comments on the draft tenancy strategy on 9th October 2012. 
 
The Mayor of Londonhas stated that he is broadly supportive of the 
government’s reforms to the social housing system. A number of policies in 
his draft revised London Housing Strategy encourage boroughs and 
Registered Providers to make full use of their new flexibilities in order to better 
reflect the situation on the ground and their local priorities. 
 
3.1 General assessment of draft tenancy strategy 
 
In responding to consultations, the GLA on behalf of the Mayor makes an 
assessment of draft tenancy strategies based on five key themes. The Mayor 
of London’s comments and the Council’s proposed response to each 
comment is set out below: 
 
3.2 Increasing the supply of affordable housing 
 
Mayor of London’s comments: ‘The 2012-15 Affordable Housing 
Programme (AHP) will deliver 55,000 new affordable homes, with 36% of the 
new Affordable Rent homes being family sized. In order to meet their 
contractual commitments, and to deliver the much needed new homes, 
Registered Providers need more flexibility to manage their existing and new 
stock, and they need some consistency across the many local housing 
authorities in which they operate. This is a key theme in the Mayor’s draft 
revised London Housing Strategy. 

 

Page 29



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

2 

 

Tower Hamlets supports the continued use of life time tenancies in most 
cases, but also acknowledges that Registered Providers may wish to use 
fixed term tenancies. We are satisfied that the approach set out in your draft 
tenancy strategy does give Registered Providers the flexibility they need in 
order to meet their contractual commitments, although we would like to see a 
more explicit acknowledgement of the link between Registered Providers’ 
ability to grant fixed term tenancies and the affordable housing programme’. 
 
Council response: The tenancy strategy has been enhanced to recognise 
the link between fixed term tenancies and the affordable housing programme 
set out in the second paragraph in section 2.3 of the attached tenancy 
strategy. 
 
3.3 Promoting mixed and balanced communities 
 
Mayor of London’s comments:We would like to underline the Mayor’s 
commitment to prioritising people who make an active and positive 
contribution to their community – e.g. through employment or volunteering – 
and who may also face barriers to accessing suitable housing in other 
tenures. It might be appropriate to take this into account when determining 
whether a tenancy is renewed or not, as well as the factors already set out in 
the tenancy strategy. 
 
Council response: The Council has inserted a clause in section 4 .5 
recommending that Registered Providers take into account individual 
households employment or voluntary sector contributions when reviewing 
tenancies. 
 
3.4 Tackling need - A 
 
Mayor of London’s comments: in section 2.1, the draft strategy states that 
in ‘limited circumstances’ fixed term tenancies will be used and that ‘the 
tenancy strategy will seek to define… all possible circumstances when THH 
will be able to grant a fixed term tenancy’. Ideally these circumstances would 
be stated in the draft tenancy strategy. In its current form, there is not enough 
detail in the draft strategy to enable us to determine whether those in need will 
have adequate protections. 
 
Council response: As set out at 2.0 of the Tenancy Strategy, the Council has 
agreed with THH, the circumstances in which it will issue fixed term tenancies. 
 
3.5 Tackling need - B 
 
The Mayor believes that boroughs and social landlords should be working to 
reduce levels of under occupation in the social rented sector, which, if 
achieved, will directly benefit those households who are in need of larger 
accommodation. It may be worth considering how wider use of fixed term 
tenancies in Tower Hamlets could help to achieve this aim. 
 

Page 30



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

3 

 

Council response: the Council is in the process of agreeing an under 
occupation plan but does not intend to use fixed term tenancies as a specific 
tool to reduce under occupation through Tower Hamlets Homes. 

 
3.6  Enhancing mobility and choice 
 
The Mayor is supportive of any measures that seek to reduce as far as 
possible the potential barriers facing existing tenants who may need or want 
to move to a different home. This is particularly important given the recent 
launch of the Mayor’s new pan-London mobility scheme, Housing Moves, 
which Tower Hamlets is soon to join. We therefore welcome the ‘transferring 
secure tenants’ statement, but this could be more explicit about the mobility 
schemes that Tower Hamlets participates in. 

 
Council response 

 
This comment is noted and the two schemes that the Council participates in, 
Housing Moves and the Seaside and Country Homes schemes for the over 
60’s age group have been referred to in the tenancy strategy. 
 
3.7 Rent Policy 
 
The GLA states that the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the 
framework for delivering the Government’s housing objectives, including the 
Affordable Rent Programme. This is to be taken into account by local 
authorities and other planning bodies in preparing local development 
documents and spatial strategies. The GLA expects that London boroughs will 
maximise the delivery of affordable housing through their planning and 
housing policies and does not accept that this can be achieved by setting 
specific rent caps in local planning policies or tenancy strategies. The 
Mayor has clarified this position through consulting on Supplementary 
Planning Guidance devolving from his London Plan and a minor Alteration to 
the Plan. 
 
Council response 
 
The Council has carried out research and developed guidance on what it 
considers to be an acceptable level for affordable rents for the borough as a 
whole. In order  to give a clear indication as to what the Council views is on 
affordable rents in the borough,the direction on rents and affordable homes 
will be included in the tenancy strategy. This guidance would apply to homes 
built through section 106 planning gain or potentially through Council funding 
which sits outside the Affordable Housing programme. 
 
4.0  Registered Providers 
 
4.1 Consultation prior toagreement of the draft strategy 
 
Registered Providerswere fully involved in the development of the initial 
proposals through the following avenues: 

Page 31



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

4 

 

 

• Regular reports to the Tower Hamlets Housing Forum and selection of 
2 representatives to sit on the Tenancy Strategy Project Board 

 

• Letter to all Registered Providers in the Borough setting out Council’s 
approach and requesting information on Registered Providers 
emerging policies 

 

• Half day seminar to discuss the tenancy strategy issues in detail with a 
report back on the emerging Registered Providers policies 
 

4.2 Statutory Consultation 
 

All Registered Providerswho manage rented property in the borough were 
sent a copy of the draft tenancy strategy at the same time as the Mayor of 
London and were given six weeks to respond. 
 
Nine Registered Providersformally responded to the consultation by the 
closing date which appears to be a low number. However, the majority of 
Registered Providers had set out their views prior to the statutory consultation 
and their views helped shape the draft tenancy strategy. 
 
Set out below is a summary of the responses from Registered Providerswho 
responded to the statutory consultation: 
 
Anchor Housing Trust 
 
Anchor Housing Trust provides housing for older persons. The Trust sent a 
position statement which recognised the potential benefits of the use of fixed 
term tenancies for general needs tenancies. They have stated that the 
opportunities presented by flexible fixed term tenancies are not the same for 
landlords and residents of older person’s supported housing as they are for 
general needs residents. Anchor will retain lifetime tenancies in most cases. 
 
A2 Dominion 
 
A2 Dominion expressed concerns that the Council wished to see the 
continuation of lifetime tenancies. A2 Dominion intends to introduce fixed term 
tenancies of 5 years to all affordable properties and to trial it to 3 bed plus 
sized properties subject to re-let, where the nominee does not hold an existing 
tenancy that commenced before 1st April 2012 and who is under state 
retirement age. 
 
Riverside 
 
Riverside will not be issuing fixed term tenancies in Tower Hamlets. They will 
operate starter tenancies for all tenancies across their stock in London.This 
fits within the guidance issued within Tower Hamlets and Riverside’s 
strategies. 
 

Page 32



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

5 

 

Riverside has stated that as a national organisation sitting across many local 
authorities, their strategy has been set up to offer the flexibility to divisions to 
fit the local authorities we work within.  
 
Places for People 
 
Place for People sent an email stating that they had reviewed the Council’s 
draft Tenancy Strategy and that is causes them nodifficulties. 
 
Poplar Harca 
 
Poplar Harca are supportive of the Council’s position on lifetime tenancies 
and will be retaining 1 year probationary followed by lifetime tenancies for 
their tenants. Poplar Harca questioned the Council’s rationale in potentially 
offering flexible tenancies in exceptional circumstances. Poplar Harca believe 
that the benefit that security brings to a household far outweigh the benefit of 
making the property available to another household.  Their view is that re-
housing in the saddest of circumstances for the individuals concerned will be 
counter-productive in terms of sustainable and supportive communities. The 
Council will consider each case on its own merits and ensure the welfare of 
the individual household is paramount when decisions are taken. 
 
Genesis Housing Association 
 
From 1 April 2012, Genesis Housing association will, in most circumstances, 
grant a five year assured short hold fixed term tenancy for general needs new 
build property lettings and all relets. Genesis’s view is that flexible tenancies 
strikes a balance between allowing a landlord to manage their stock effectively 
e.g. in the case of underoccupation, and security of tenure. They had no 
specific comments on the Tower Hamlets draft tenancy strategy. 
 

Southwark and London Diocesan Housing Association 
 
Southwark and London Diocesan Housing Association willcontinue to grant 
permanent tenancies across all 1 and 2 bedroom homes and to all those 
residents who are vulnerable by virtue of age or health. They will grant 5 year 
time-limited tenancies on all new 3 and 4 bedroom homes.  They had no 
specific comments on the Tower Hamlets draft tenancy strategy. 
 
One Housing Group 
 
One Housing Group state that they are encouraged by Tower Hamlets 
decision to make provisions for the use of fixed term tenancies. One Housing 
Group will be offering fixed term tenancies to all tenants new to social 
housing. One Housing Group state that they  understand the Council’s 
concern that some tenant groups would benefit from receiving lifetime 
tenancies, but they would like to assure the Council that their fixed term 
tenancies will primarily provide a means of regularly checking that the 
household still requires the size and/or type of property they are occupying.  
 

Page 33



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

6 

 

Swan Housing Group 
 
Swan Housing Group made a number of observations relating to the draft 
tenancy strategy. They suggest that the document sets outs the Council’s 
responsibilities more clearly, that the Tower Hamlets Homes use of fixed term 
tenancies gives clear examples. Swan also suggest that it may be useful to 
set out specific differences between tenants with particular illnesses or 
disabilities and the nature of the adaptations in their properties. Swan suggest 
that in some circumstances if the nature of the adaptations or support is a 
shorter term requirement  that fixed term, rather than a lifetime tenancy would 
be more appropriate. 
 
Swan also questioned whether it is feasible that all Registered Providers will 
provide their policies for publication on the Council’s website. This section of 
the tenancy strategy will be modified to reflect this concern. 
 
5.0 Resident consultation 
 
Cabinet agreed that a ‘light touch’ consultation would run concurrently with the 
statutory consultation. Following an article in East End Life, comments were 
invited through a website survey, at residents meetings, through an invitation 
to all tenants associations to comment on the draft and a series of focus 
groups with residents on the housing register. Overall the responses indicated 
broad support for the Council’s approach but highlighted the need to ensure 
that the tenancy strategy is kept under review. 

 
The responses can be summarised as follows: 
 
5.1 Residents Scrutiny Panel  
 
A presentation was given to the Residents Scrutiny Panel on Tuesday 25th 
September. The meeting was in broad agreement with the Council’s draft 
tenancy strategy.  
 
5.2 Tenants and Residents Federation 
 

 The Federation supported the Council’s preference for lifetime tenancies and 
raised concerns about the level of consultation that Registered Providers were 
carrying out with their residents. It was also suggested that the Council should 
be firmer with Registered Providers who do not retain lifetime tenancies. 

 
5.3 Tenants and Residents Associations 
 

 The draft tenancy strategy was sent to all Tower Hamlets Homes tenants and 
residents associations. Only one Tenants and Residents Association has 
formally responded to the consultation and they supported the Council’s 
position on lifetime tenancies and in its direction to Registered Providers. 
 
6.0 Focus Groups 
 

Page 34



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

7 

 

 Four focus groups were held across the Borough during September and 
October 2012 with nearly 60 households taking part in discussions about the 
draft tenancy strategy. The households were drawn from a range of people 
who were currently on the common housing register who were either in 
temporary accommodation or on the transfer list. Tenants from Registered 
Providers also attended two of the sessions. The attendees were 
representative of the broad demography of the borough covering a range of 
age groups, ethnic backgrounds and household sizes. 

 
 The conversations were wide ranging and in addition to specific discussion 

about the tenancy strategy, participants raised a number of concerns about 
meeting the housing shortage, rent levels, condition in temporary 
accommodation, housing quality and housing management issues. 
 
6.1 General views 
 
With regard to the tenancy strategy there was clear support for the 
continuation of lifetime tenancies. Attendees recognised the idea behind using 
fixed term tenancies to tackle issues such overcrowding and making better 
use of adapted properties but were generally of the view that a lifetime 
tenancy was important to enable people to have stability and contribute to the 
local community. 
  
6.2 Anti-social behaviour - This was the one area wherea number of 
participants felt strongly that fixed term tenancies could be used – in most 
meetings there was real feeling that anti-social tenants were rehoused and 
that it was difficult to change their behaviour. 
 
Set out below is a summary of the range of comments recorded in response 
to specific questions across the four meetings in relation to the tenancy 
strategy. 
 
6.3 What would you want to see in the Council’s Tenancy Strategy? 
 
Priority view – Lifetime tenancies should remain 
 
There was general agreement that lifetime tenancies should remain and that  
this enabled people to put down roots in an area with schools, families and 
communities. 
 
The benefit of secure tenancies is that they root people in the community and 
encourage them to build links especially through children. Therefore if flexible 
tenancies do become a reality, people should be always be rehoused in the 
same area.  
 
In general, people in temporary accommodation were In favour of lifetime 
tenancies – need to settle in community – reassurance after so much 
uncertainty. 
 

Page 35



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

8 

 

Many participants who were currently in temporary accommodation said they 
would be unlikely to bid / accept a fixed term tenancy as they would want the 
security of a lifetime tenancy. 
 
A younger single man present at one session stated that he would be 
delighted to accept a one bed 5 year fixed term tenancy as that would give 
him the time tomove on in other areas of his life – His main problem was no 
fixed housing.People in the group agreed that they would take a fixed term in 
his position. 
 
People want a house they can call their own – an emotional attachment. 
 
It was suggested that families with children require stability and in to meet the 
challenges in raising children, a permanent abode is necessary. 
 
Residents may not provide commitment in the community as they could 
potentially move on if offered a fixed term tenancy. 
 
Anti – social behaviour 
 
Some strong agreement with fixed term tenancies if there is a history of anti – 
social behaviour 
 
Other Comments 
 
People need to be involved in the process and have some choice – decisions 
should not be simply forced upon them.  
 
One of the primary concerns was what happens after the fixed term period i.e. 
in terms of future allocation of housing. 
 
NB – Without proper explanation people will confuse fixed term / flexible 
tenancies with temporary accommodation. How the review and tenancy 
renewal process works needed to be explained very clearly. 
 
People should be given a choice – not told to move to a smaller property. 
 
6.4 How important is length of tenancy to you? 
 
Very important – after a discussion about renewal, attendees could see that 
using fixed term tenancies as a tool to tackle overcrowding to help people in 
their current situation could be reasonable but were still not keen on fixed 
term 
 
Adapted properties – Reasonable to expect people to give up specialist 
property if something suitable is offered. 
 
Income limits – Not seen as an issue in Tower Hamlets 
 

Page 36



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

9 

 

Tenancy length should be dependent on age of children Households with 
children under 15 years should be given longer tenancies. 
 
Flexibility should be used – each case on its merits. 
 
Participants in one focus group were clear that a fixed term tenancy would not 
be accepted because it is seen as a new form of temporary accommodation. 
However, if push comes to shove, they would, but reluctantly due to 
uncertainty of next offer of housing accept a fixed 5 year term.  
 
Most of the residents in the group said they would prefer life time tenancies, 
because they have an attachment to the borough and fixed term tenancies 
sounded too confusing and not stable. 
 
One resident who had moved several times said she would not mind fixed 
term tenancies and would be happy with a 5-10 years tenancy. 
 
One resident asked if with a fixed term tenancy if you down size will you get a 
lump sum payment as you currently do with life time tenancies – she felt that 
this was another drawback of fixed term tenancies. 
 
6.5 Do you think it is fair to not renew a tenancy if people’s need 
changes? 
 
Under – occupation 
 
Under occupation – People saw that this could help but were reluctant to say 
that it should be introduced. 
 
Should only be used to tackle under occupation of good quality alternative 
occupation is offered. 
 
Under –occupation should be addressed through tailor made solutions for 
individuals who will persuade them to move. 
 
Change of income 
 
People felt it was unworkable and that jobs/ salaries were too temporary and 
unreliable and it would not be fair to move people on as there circumstances 
could easily change again. 
 
General view that if people got a windfall, had a secure financial future they 
would move on anyway. 
 
View that income criteria was unworkable - people won’t share information, or 
will hide it, no permanent jobs. 
 
When asked if they felt that tenancies should not be renewed for households 
with high incomes, residents said that there is no such thing as a permanent 
job now, most people who can afford it would want to go and buy a nice 

Page 37



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

10 

 

house somewhere, but if they lose their job, will the Council guarantee that 
they will rehouse them again. If not, why take the risk. 
 
Adaptations 
 
Disability / adaptations – people saw this as a sensitive area – It was 
generally felt that it would be unfair to move people out of their homes. 
 
Adapted properties – some people felt that it was reasonable to expect people 
to give up specialist property if something suitable is offered. 
 
6.6 General Comments 
 
Council should do more to tackle sub-letting instead of fixed term tenancies. 
 
There should be other choices available. There should be a proper review 
process. 
 
Residents raised concerns about welfare reform and the impact this would 
have on their families. It was generally felt that it should only apply to new 
benefit claimants and those already living in the borough, many of whom have 
lived in the borough for many years, should be housed in Tower Hamlets 
because this is their home. 
 
Residents said that housing people outside of the borough would lead to 
family breakdown, depression and other health problems. 
 
One resident stated that he was in the process of completing his Black Cab 
training, if his family is moved away, that would mean he would not be able to 
complete his training and work in London. 
 
6.7 How can the changes and choices available be made clear to 

people entering social housing? 
 
Agreed that it was a complex area and that all households had different 
needs. 
 
Agreed that it was important that people were given sound 1-1 advice on their 
options and that the publicity made it clear where fixed term tenancies would 
be introduced. 
 
Advertising in East End Life is quite clear and should be used to set out 
tenancy policies. 
 
Through Council, Registered Providers and Common Housing Register 
websites. 
 
There should be more transparency on where people are on list and their 
chances of rehousing. 
 

Page 38



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

11 

 

Should communicate change via Bangladeshi TV channels. 
 
Focus Groups are excellent – very well received by group. 
 
Housing officers are usually the first point of contact, but they must have 
sufficient knowledge and information to relay to applicants on changes 
proposed. 
 
All responsible organisations must give a balanced position, outlining the pros 
and cons of fixed term tenancies. 
 
When explaining the change including any implications, it should be free of 
any jargon, concise and no long window. 
 
7.0 Website survey 
 
As part of its public consultation, a short survey was carried out through the 
Council website and there was total of 18 responses. In general the 
respondents were in broad agreement with the direction to retain lifetime 
tenancies. Set out below is a summary of the responses. 
 
General 
 
1. Tenure of respondents 
 

Renting from Council 6 

Renting from Housing Association 8 

Renting from private landlord 1 

Buying on a mortgage 2 

Owned outright 1 

 
2. Postcode of respondents 
 

E1 7 

E2 5 

E3 5 

E14 1 

 
3. No of bedrooms 
 

1 3 

2 11 

3 3 

3 1 

 
4. How many people live with you in your house? 
 

1 2 

2 4 

Page 39



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

12 

 

3 2 

4 2 

5 1 

6 2 

7 2 

8 3 

 
 
5. How satisfied are you with your current housing 
  

Very satisfied 3 

Fairly satisfied 7 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 1 

Fairly dissatisfied 4 

Very dissatisfied 3 
 

6. Do you plan to move home in the next five years? 
 

Yes 6 

No 3 

Maybe 9 
 

Tenancy Strategy Questions 
 
7. Lifetime tenancies 
 
The Council would like to retain lifetime secure tenancies for new Council 
tenants in homes managed by Tower Hamlets Homes in most circumstances. 
Do you think this is the right approach for the Council to take? 
 
 

Yes 11 

No 7 

 
8. Lifetime tenancies  
 
The Council would like Housing Associations to retain lifetime assured 
tenancies in most circumstances, for new in tenants Housing Association 
homes. Do you think this is the right approach for the Council to take? 
 

Yes 12 

No 6 
 

9. Fixed term tenancies 
 
Some Housing Associations may consider introducing fixed term tenancies for 
a minimum of five years. These fixed term tenancies may not be renewed if a 
tenant’s circumstances change.  

 

Page 40



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

13 

 

However, all Housing Associations will be expected to either rehouse the 
tenants into more suitable housing or give them advice on the alternative 
choices available to them. 

 
Please tell us whether you think fixed term tenancies should or should not be 
renewed if a tenant’s circumstances change in the following ways: 
 
When the home they live in has more bedrooms than they originally 
needed and it could be used to rehouse an overcrowded household. 
 

Yes, the tenancy should be 
renewed 

11 

No the tenancy should not be 
renewed 

7 

 
When the home they live in has been classified as a wheelchair 
accessible which they no longer require 
 

Yes, the tenancy should be 
renewed 

9 

No the tenancy should not be 
renewed 

9 

 
When the household could afford to either rent, part buy (shared 
ownership) or buy a home in the private sector. 
 

Yes, the tenancy should be 
renewed 

9 

No the tenancy should not be 
renewed 

9 

 
10. Anti – social behaviour 
 
The Council believes that landlords should not use fixed term tenancies as a 
way of removing tenants who have breached their tenancy - for example 
where a household has fallen into rent areas or caused anti-social behaviour 
– because landlords have adequate powers to take action through the courts 
to deal with such matters.  
 
 Do you agree with this approach? 
 

Yes 13 

No 5 
 

11. Households with children 
 

Where households have children aged 10 and under, the Council would 
expect Housing Associations who use fixed term tenancies to issue them for 

Page 41



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

14 

 

at least 10 and possibly up to 15 years, to reduce the need for children to 
change schools when families are rehoused.  

 
Do you agree that this is the right approach to take? 
 

Yes 13 

No 5 
 

 
 

 
12. Comments 
 
Are there any other comments you wish to make on the Council’s draft 
tenancy strategy? 
 
 
Any antisocial behaviour, aggressive dogs, binge drinking and they should be 
evicted from council houses. Subletting council properties should be forbidden 
and someone should enforce it. 
 
Please keep the tenancies as they are at present. Please also outline in East 
End Life if there is a way using the same Localism Act to protect the tenancy, 
such as Community Right to Build, Bid to enable people to remain in their 
homes. 
Anti-social behaviour like dumping rubbish, spitting in communal areas, and 
vandalism had become the norm in social housing. There should be more 
powers for housing associations to act on this. A lack of action makes living in 
social housing a living hell and breeds hatred.  
I have broadly agreed that tenancies should always be renewed however I 
think it should be made attractive for people to downsize and for ex-
wheelchair users to relocate. My RSL is 'tricky' and I suspect, not unique, 
Tenants need clear regulations to protect them from abuse. 
 
Many people are living in council and housing association properties that are 
too big for their needs. At a time of great housing shortage, the council should 
be encouraging and introducing processes to free up these homes so that 
better use may be made of them for the public good. 
 
I have lived in my current address since it was built in 1968 with my Father, 
Mother and Sister.  My Mother has passed away and my Sister has her own 
place, I now live here with my Father, wife and 2 Sons, when my Father 
passes away and my 2 Sons move out, my wife and I would like to down size, 
so Mutual exchanges in Tower hamlets should be made easier this is how it 
should be. 
 
Band 3 housing list people need to be taken into consideration, Tower 
Hamlets is doing very poorly to address the needs of band 3 bidders. There 
needs to be an urgent change in allocating more properties to Band 3, 
however it must be a justified move, for example, a person who is currently on 

Page 42



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Report on consultation – 
Appendix 3 
 

15 

 

Band 3 list should be re housed quickly if they have children under the age of 
5 and have been on the bidding list for more than 9/10 years. I think that no 
one should be waiting more than 10 years for a council to give at least one 
offer to a person, this is something that needs to be addresses quickly and 
efficiently. 
 
If the council and their partners introduce the 5 year tenancy limits then they 
should also help steer these tenants financially and provide other support so 
that they can become independent and move onto accommodation privately 
rented or buy their own properties. However I also agree that tenants who 
have more rooms than they need should be moved into smaller but 
appropriate accommodations. This should be done on a compulsory basis. 
Having said that, there will always be people who would like to use loopholes, 
for their advantage by registering close relatives or members of the family 
onto their tenancy when given notices or the time comes for them to re-new 
their tenancies. 
 
Homes for life play a vital role in building stable communities. 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

Equality Analysis (EA) 
 
Section 1 – General Information (Aims and Objectives) 
 

Name of the proposal including aims, objectives and purpose: 
(Please note – for the purpose of this doc, ‘proposal’ refers to a policy, function, strategy or project) 
 
Tenancy Strategy 
 

The London Borough of Tower Hamlets is required to produce a tenancy strategy as set out in  
the Localism Act which gained Royal Assent in November 2011. The tenancy strategy has to be  
published by January 2013.  
 
Through the existing allocations system, Registered Providers including Local Authorities 
generally enter into lifetime tenancies with new tenants. The Government will now allow 
Registered Providers the flexibility to offer shorter term tenancies if they decide that it will 
enable them to make better use of their housing stock and assist those people with the most 
pressing need more effectively.    

   Government has protected the security and rights of existing social housing tenants, including 
when they move to another social rented home. However, provisions in the Localism Act allow 
for more flexible arrangements for people entering social housing in the future. Registered 
Providers will be able to grant tenancies for a fixed length of time. The minimum length of 
tenancy will be two years in exceptional circumstances with five years or more likely to be 
considered as a more normal initial agreement. There is no upper limit on the length of tenancy 
and Registered Providers can still offer lifetime tenancies if they wish.  

Individual Councils will have to set out their approach to future tenancies in a published tenancy 
strategy. 

The aim of government policy is that Registered Providers (including the Council) shall grant 
tenancies which are compatible with the purpose of the accommodation, the needs of individual 
households, the sustainability of the community, and the efficient use of the stock. 

The Council’s draft strategy will be to retain lifetime tenancies in most circumstances for new 
Council tenants and to encourage Registered Providers to also retain lifetime tenancies. 
However the Council recognises that many Registered Providers will want to make use of the 
new flexibilities in order to more effectively manage their stock. In setting the Tenancy Strategy 
for Tower Hamlets, the Council would wish to see Registered Providers who do make use of the 
flexibility to abide by a set of conditions to ensure that the needs of vulnerable groups are met. 
 
This Equalities Assessment applies primarily to the Council’s preference for lifetime 
tenancies to be retained. It should be noted that the current ‘status quo’ position of lifetime 
tenancies can have a negative impact on some households such as those who are 
overcrowded and who have to wait longer to be rehoused under the current system. 
 
Who is expected to benefit from the proposal? 
 
The Government’s view is that by allowing Registered Providers the flexibility to offer shorter 
term tenancies if they decide that it will enable them to make better use of their housing stock 
and assist those people with the most pressing need more effectively. This has to be countered 
against enabling people who are rehoused into a community the opportunity to make a lifetime 
contribution to that community or neighbourhood without the possibility of having their tenancy 

Page 45



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

terminated after a fixed term. Through the introduction of fixed term tenancies it can be argued 
that different people will benefit at different times. For people who do not have their tenancies 
renewed, it is expected that the providers will assist in meeting their housing need through the 
offer of a more suitable property or by assisting a move into the private sector.    

 

Service area: 
Development and Regeneration 
 
Team name: 
 
Strategic Housing 
 
Service manager: 
 
Faisal Butt 
 
Name and role of the officer completing the EA: 
 
Martin Ling – Housing Policy Officer 
 

 
 
Section 2 – Evidence (Consideration of Data and Information) 
 

What initial evidence do we have which may help us think about the impacts or likely impacts on 
service users or staff? 
 
Issues and options paper presented to Cabinet 
Survey of Registered Providers in Borough 
 
Statistics covering housing demand in the Borough including: 
 
Housing Waiting list broken down by need 
Data on overcrowding 
Data on underoccupation 
Data on medical need 
Data on race of applicants for social housing 
Lettings statistics for Tower Hamlets Homes 
Lettings statistics for Registered Providers 
 
Registered Providers emerging Tenancy Policies 
 
 

 
Section 3 – Assessing the Impacts on the 9 Groups 
How will what you’re proposal impact upon the nine Protected Characteristics? 
 

For the nine protected characteristics detailed in the table below please consider:- 
 

• What is the equality profile of service users or beneficiaries that will or are likely to 
be affected? 

-Use the Council’s approved diversity monitoring categories and provide data by target group of users or 
beneficiaries to determine whether the service user profile reflects the local population or relevant target 
group or if there is over or under representation of these groups 

Page 46



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

• What qualitative or quantitative data do we have? 
-List all examples of quantitative and qualitative data available 
(include information where appropriate from other directorates, Census 2001 etc) 
-Data trends – how does current practice ensure equality 

• Equalities profile of staff? 
-Indicate profile by target groups and assess relevance to policy aims and objectives e.g. 
Workforce to Reflect the Community. Identify staff responsible for delivering the service 
including where they are not directly employed by the council. 

• Barriers? 
-What are the potential or known barriers to participation for the different equality target groups? 
Eg, communication, access, locality etc 

• Recent consultation exercises carried out? 
-Detail consultation with relevant interest groups, other public bodies, voluntary organisations, 
community groups, trade unions, focus groups and other groups, surveys and questionnaires 
undertaken etc. Focus in particular on the findings of views expressed by the equality target 
groups. Such consultation exercises should be appropriate and proportionate and may range 
from assembling focus groups to a one to one meeting.  

• Additional factors which may influence disproportionate or adverse impact? 
-Management Arrangements - How is the Service managed, are there any management 
arrangements which may have a disproportionate impact on the equality target groups 

• The Process of Service Delivery? 
-In particular look at the arrangements for the service being provided including opening times, 
custom and practice, awareness of the service to local people, communication 

 

Please also consider how the proposal will impact upon the 3 One Tower Hamlets objectives:- 
 

• Reduce inequalities 

• Ensure strong community cohesion 

• Strengthen community leadership. 
 
 
Please Note -  
Reports/stats/data can be added as Appendix  

 

 
 
 

Page 47



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

 Impact – Positive or Adverse 
 
What impact will the proposal have on specific groups of service 
users or staff? 

Reason(s) 

• Please add a narrative to justify your claims around impacts 
and, 

• Please describe the analysis and interpretation of evidence 
to support your conclusion as this will inform  decision 
making 

 
Please also how the proposal with promote the three One 
Tower Hamlets objectives?   

 

-Reducing inequalities 
-Ensuring strong community cohesion 

     -Strengthening community leadership 
 Retaining Lifetime Tenancies 

 
Introducing Fixed Term Tenancies 

Race 
 

No Impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

Positive - Where Registered Providers choose to introduce 
fixed term tenancies in order to reduce under occupation, 
opportunities to speed up the rehousing process for 
overcrowded families in the longer term could be realised. 
Data shows that Bangladeshi households are more likely to 
be overcrowded and could therefore benefit from such 
policies. 

Disability 
 

No Impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

Positive - Where Registered Providers or the Council choose 
to introduce fixed term tenancies in order to provide improved 
access to homes that have had adaptions for disabled people 
this could result in disabled people being rehoused more 
quickly to suitable housing.      
 
Adverse: If fixed term tenancies were introduced for disabled 
people it could have a significant impact on their sense of 
security and ability to create local and reliable support 
networks. The Council therefore urges Registered Providers 
to offer lifetime tenancies to people with longer term 
disabilities. 

Gender No Impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 

P
age 48



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

 and where registered providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 

No Impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 
choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group. 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

No impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 
choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group 

Religion or Belief 
 

No impact In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 
choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group. 

Age 
 

No impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 

Positive / Adverse - Where partners choose to introduce 
fixed term tenancies in order to reduce underoccupation, 
opportunities to speed up the rehousing process for 
overcrowded families in the longer term could be realised. 

P
age 49



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

This is likely to bring a better focus on the needs of 
underoccupying households who are more likely to be older 
people. This could lead to improved consideration of the offer 
to older persons and potentially a better choice if the policy is 
introduced sensitively. 
 
Adverse: If fixed term tenancies were introduced for disabled 
people it could have a significant impact on their sense of 
security and ability to create local and reliable support 
networks. The Council therefore urges Registered Providers 
to offer lifetime tenancies to people over 60 years of age. 
 
The policy could have a negative impact on older people who 
may have to leave their family home once their family has 
moved out. It should be noted that the policy will need to be 
introduced with care – If unsuitable offers were made to older 
persons at the end of fixed term tenancies there could be an 
adverse impact but the Council will work with partners to 
ensure the policy does have such adverse impacts with 
safeguards Introduced 
 
Children and young people who rehoused from overcrowded 
households will also benefit from the draft tenancy strategy 
where it is used to tackle this are of housing need. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnerships. 
 

No impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community 

No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 
choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 

No impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 

No impact - Where Registered Providers or the Council 
choose to introduce fixed term tenancies, the policy should 
have neither a positive or adverse impact on this group. 

P
age 50



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 

Other  
Socio-economic 
Carers 
 

No impact - In retaining lifetime tenancies for Council tenants 
and where Registered Providers also retain lifetime tenancies, 
the strategy will have neither a positive or adverse impact on 
this group as the current position will be not change. It can be 
argued that lifetime tenancies enhance community cohesion 
by enabling households to settle and contribute to their local 
community. 
 
 

Positive - Where partners or the Council choose to introduce 
fixed term tenancies in order to provide improved access to 
homes for people with support needs and accommodation for 
carers, the policy could enable improved access and support 
for both the person requiring the support and the carer in both 
the short and longer term. 

P
age 51



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

Section 4 – Mitigating Impacts and Alternative Options 
 
From the analysis and interpretation of evidence in section 2 and 3 - Is there any evidence of or 
view that suggests that different equality or other protected groups (inc’ staff) could have a 
disproportionately high/low take up of the new proposal? 
 
No, access to housing will be `maintained at similar levels for all groups.  
 
However as some Registered providers may introduce fixed term tenancies, the Council will 
expect them to introduce a minimum set of conditions and safeguards where these tenancies 
are granted. 
 
If yes, please detail below how evidence influenced and formed the proposal? For example, 
why parts of the proposal were added/removed? 
 
(Please note – a key part of the EA process is to show that we have made reasonable and informed 
attempts to mitigate any negative impacts. AN EA is a service improvement tool and as such you may 
wish to consider a number of alternative options or mitigation in terms of the proposal.) 

 

The Council is required to give direction to Registered Providers on how it expects their tenancy 
policies to operate in the borough and RPs must have ‘due regard’ to this direction. A number of 
RPs in the Borough have already progressed their tenancy policies which will include letting 
some properties on assured shorthold tenancies on a fixed term basis. The Council’s draft 
tenancy strategy whilst in favour of lifetime tenancies recognises that many Registered 
Providers will want to make use the new flexibilities in order to more effectively manage their 
stock. In setting the draft tenancy strategy for Tower Hamlets, the Council would wish to see 
Registered providers who do make use of the flexibility to abide by a set of conditions to ensure 
that the needs of vulnerable groups are met. 
 
These conditions are set out in the tenancy strategy and can be summarised as follows: 

 
Tenancies: 

 
The following categories of households will be offered lifetime tenancies: 
 
Person over 60 years of age 
People with a long term disability 
All transferring secure tenants of homes managed by Tower Hamlets Homes and tenant whose 
homes were transferred under the Housing Choice programme. 
 
Fixed term tenancies of 10 years or more should be offered to the following categories of 
households: 
 
Households containing one or more children under 10 years old. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Section 5 – Quality Assurance and Monitoring 
 
Have monitoring systems been put in place to check the implementation of the proposal and 
recommendations?  
 
No 
 
How will the monitoring systems further assess the impact on the equality target groups? 
 

The draft policy recommends that the policy is kept under constant review by all partners to 
measure its impact on lettings patterns including how they impact on target groups. The tenancy 
strategy will not come into force until 2013 but initial impacts will be monitored where partners 
have already started to introduce fixed term tenancies. 
 
The reports will track the proportion of life time/fixed tenancies being granted over coming 
years, and track these by relevant groups (ie: those where we've identified a potential impact on 
equality, older people) and a further equalities assessment will be carried out as part of the 
review process. 
 

 
 
 
Does the policy/function comply with equalities legislation? 
(Please consider the OTH objectives and Public Sector Equality Duty criteria) 
 
Yes  
 
If there are gaps in information or areas for further improvement, please list them below: 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
How will the results of this Equality Analysis feed into the performance planning process?  
 

The Council’s Housing Options section and Tower Hamlets Homes will take part in the 
monitoring of the proposals and feed the outcomes into their performance planning process. 
This work will also feed into the Tower Hamlets Housing Forum Common Housing Register 
group’s action plan. 

 
 

Page 53



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

 
 

Page 54



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

Section 6 - Action Plan 
 
As a result of these conclusions and recommendations what actions (if any) will be included in your business planning and wider review 
processes (team plan)? Please consider any gaps or areas needing further attention in the table below the example. 
 

Recommendation Key activity Progress milestones including 
target dates for either 
completion or progress 

Officer 
responsible 

Progress 

Example 
 

1. Better collection of 
feedback, consultation and 
data sources 
 
2. Non-discriminatory 
behaviour  
 
       
 

 
 
1. Create and use feedback forms. 
Consult other providers and experts 
 
 
2. Regular awareness at staff 
meetings. Train staff in specialist 
courses 
 

 
 
1. Forms ready for January 2010 
Start consultations Jan 2010 
 
 
2. Raise awareness at one staff 
meeting a month. At least 2 
specialist courses to be run per 
year for staff. 

 
 
1.NR & PB 
 
 
 
2. NR 

 
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 
 
 
Monitoring of partner 
tenancy policies and equality 
assessments 
 
Monitoring of lettings 
patterns and take up of fixed 
term tenancies through 
Housing Options 
 
Monitoring of impact on 

Key activity 
 
 
 
Survey of all agreed Registered 
Provider policies 
 
 
Analysis of lettings data and reports 
to Common Housing Forum 
 
 
 
Equalities Analysis of lettings data 

Progress milestones including 
target dates for either 
completion or progress 
 
Survey completed by April 2013 
 
 
 
Consideration of impact of 
Tenancy Strategy and flexibilities 
allowed by the Localism Act to be 
considered in standard reports 
 
Consideration of impact of 

Officer 
responsible 
 
 
Martin Ling 
 
 
 
Rafiqul 
Hoque / 
Martin Ling 
 
 
Rafiqul 

Progress 
 

P
age 55



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

equalities. 
 
 
 

and reports to Common Housing 
Forum 

Tenancy Strategy and flexibilities 
allowed by the Localism Act to be 
considered in standard reports 

Hoque / 
Martin Ling 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 7 – Sign Off and Publication 
 
 

 
Name:     
(signed off by) 
 
 

 
      

 
 
Position: 
 
 

 
 
      

 
 
Date signed off: 
(approved) 
 

 
 
      

 

P
age 56



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Section 8 Appendix – FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
This section to be completed by the One Tower Hamlets team 
 
Policy Hyperlink :       
 

Equality Strand Evidence 
Race       
Disability       
Gender       

Gender Reassignment       
Sexual Orientation       
Religion or Belief       
Age       

Marriage and Civil Partnerships.       

Pregnancy and Maternity  

Other  
Socio-economic 
Carers 

 

 

Link to original EQIA Link to original EQIA 

EQIAID        

P
age 57



Tenancy Strategy – Report to Cabinet – 05/12/12 – Appendix 4 
 

(Team/Service/Year) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 58



  

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
5/12/12 
 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

 

Report No: 
 
50/123 
 

Report of:  

 

Head of Paid Service and Corporate 
Director Communities Localities and 
Culture– Stephen Halsey   
 
Originating officer(s)  

 
R. Beattie 
Service Head Strategy and Resources  

Title:  

 
Olympic Impact Planning  
 

Ward(s) affected 

 

All 

 
 

Lead Member 
 

Mayor 

Community Plan Theme 
  

All 

Strategic Priority 
 

N/A 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a final round up on Olympic preparations and Games-

time (27th July – 9th September) operations.  
  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Agree the Council should continue to participate in and support the Growth 
Borough (6 Host Borough) group to maintain a coordinated lobby group for 
investment in East London and continued focus on legacy and regeneration. 

 
2.2 Agree the Council should review the promotion of Small and Medium sized 

businesses in the Borough with a view to improving it further  
 
2.3 Note the outcomes of the Impact Planning process outlined in the report.  
 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 

3.1 To ensure effective lobbying of regional and national government to secure 
the necessary investment in East London to deliver the promised long term 
economic legacy.   

 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 59



  

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Do not participate in the collective action of the six Growth Boroughs 

formerly known as the 6 Host Boroughs.  
 

Lobbying could be undertaken by the Borough on these matters in isolation. 
However, this offers little benefit as participation in the Growth Borough Group 
would not preclude independent action whilst the decision not to participate is 
likely to reduce the effectiveness of the Borough to bring forward local 
priorities to Government and could result in sub regional engagement that 
does not include the Borough.    

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

 

 Games planning assumptions, considerations and challenges 
 
5.1 The Olympics and Paralympics are the largest and second largest sporting 
 events in the World respectively. Although, ODA and LOCOG were 
 responsible for the delivering and staging of the Games, the Olympic Act 
 (2006) and Host Borough Agreement required LBTH to actively support and 
 assist the delivery of the Games. As such, LBTH Games planning was largely 
 dependent on information gleaned from LOCOG and TfL’s planning 
 assumptions and transport modelling which consistently indicated very high 
 numbers of people would be involved in and attending the Games.  
 
5.2 In addition, Tower Hamlets (unlike other host boroughs) hosted and was 
 surrounded by a large array of Games-time infrastructure designed to 
 facilitate the successful delivery of the Olympics and Paralympics. The key 
 elements were:  
 

• Olympic and Paralympic Route Networks (ORN and PRN)  

• MPS Security Zone 

• ODA trading boundary  

• BT official Live Site (Victoria Park) 

•  Cycle Hub and Last Mile arrangements  

• Games time training venues  

• Non competition venues  

• National Olympic Committees (NOCs)  
 

5.3 Unlike most other large-scale events only limited planning information was 
 available from the out-set. Information from TfL (i.e. transport congestion heat 
 maps) strongly indicated that East London and Tower Hamlets in particular, 
 would face extensive traffic disruption throughout the Games with their 
 success dependent on a 30 per cent reduction in background traffic (e.g. 
 commuters). However, the Games and its associated infrastructure, posed a 
 number of further key risks and challenges to LBTH and the local community 
 (i.e. traffic disruption, crowd congestion, restricted access to public space and 
 maintaining public and private business continuity).  

Page 60



  

 
5.4 Furthermore, following a desk top review of previous games impacts, it was 

found that large-scale events also stimulate and attract changes secondary 
impacts resulting in rises in: 

 

•  Crime and ASB  

•  Organisational cyber attacks  

•  Health and socio-economic related issues  

•  Security concerns 

•  Associated changes in service demand 

•  Civil disruption  
 
 
5.5 To ensure that Games related risks and impacts were minimised the council 
 developed a three phase project management approach. 
 

1. Set-up: Information gathering and analysis; 
2. Planning: Partnership engagement, risk identification, strategic  
3. planning and resource allocation;  
4. Implementation: Recruitment, training, communications and service 

 changes. 
 
6.  STRATEGIC APPROACH TO OLYMPIC PLANNING  
 
 
6.1 Project set up and governance arrangements  
 
6.2 CLC took over corporate responsibility for Olympic Impact Planning in 
 December 2010. Olympic legacy remained with D+R.  CLC set up the 
 necessary LBTH Olympic governance structure for impact planning via which 
 all Olympic strategic and planning decisions were processed (see diagram 1 
 below). Initially this included an Olympic Board but given the scale of the risks 
 and associated planning this was subsequently stood down in favour of direct 
 reporting to CMT.  
 
 
 Diagram 1: LBTH Olympic Governance Structure  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Corporate Management 

Team 

 Olympic Operations Group  Legacy and Employment 

Team (located within D+R) 

Directorate Sub-Groups 

Page 61



  

 
 
6.3 LBTH officers and Members worked with a host of partners (Olympic bodies, 
 regional organisations, local stakeholders and Council Directorates) to ensure 
 a coordinated and joined-up approach to manage the impact of the Games.  
 The Olympic Operations Group (OOG) was the key partnership group 
 (including senior LBTH managers, police, NHS, LFB, Tower Hamlets Homes, 
 Canary Wharf Group and TfL) that drove Council service planning and 
 information share necessary to understand and address the anticipated 
 impacts of the Olympic Games.  
 
6.4 Each Directorate was responsible for ensuring that their key Games related 
 service risks were adequately defined and mitigated.  Three Olympic Impact 
 Sub Groups were set up in Children, Schools and Families (CSF); Adults 
 Health and Well-Being (AHWB); Communities, Localities and Culture (CLC). 
 Resources, D+R and Chief Executives managed their smaller Olympic 
 planning agenda via their standing DMT. Each had a lead representative who 
 reported to the OOG and was responsible for ensuring that information from 
 the OOG was passed back to the Directorate and OOG decisions were 
 implemented by the Directorate.   
 
  
6.5 Corporate Games-time frameworks  
 
6.6 To ensure LBTH had appropriate resilience to deliver essential services and 
 maintain the reputation of the Council in Games-time several key corporate 
 work streams were developed. These included  
 

• Risk Identification  

• HR - Olympic staffing requirements and data analysis 

• C3 arrangements 

• Communications and engagement plans 

• 6 Host Borough Framework – Including Leaders and Mayors Group 
 and the Chief Executives Group 

• Member Engagement 
 
 
6.7 Prioritising Risks 
 
6.8 One of the initial work streams was to identify which LBTH services were 
 considered ‘critical’ and were defined as being:   
 

• A statutory service  

• A service focused on ‘life and limb’ issues  

• An essential support service without which the Council could not 
 operate effectively on a daily basis; 

• A service necessary to facilitate the effective delivery of the Olympic 
 or Paralympics’ Games or associated activities (e.g. trading 
 standards, licensing and parking). 

Page 62



  

 

 Table 1: below presents information on critical divisions, services and teams 
 by Council directorates 

  

 Table 1: Critical Games-time Services and Teams by Directorate 

AHWB 3 11 30

CE 0 0 0

CLC 5 17 127

CSF 6 24 282*

D&R 4 7 35

Resources 3 13 61

LBTH 21 72 535

*includes schools and colleges

Directorate

Number of Critical 

Divisions

Number of 

Critical Services

Number of 

Critical Teams

 

 

6.9 Analysis showed there were 3,174 critical Council Games-time staff working 
 in 72 services (across 21 divisions) in 535 teams with the majority identified 
 within CSF and CLC. In addition, to provide adequate critical service cover 
 and boost resilience a ‘reserve pool’ of staff were identified. In total, 1,331 
 staff reported they were willing to undertake different duties in Games-time, if 
 required.   

 
6.10 The flowchart (diagram 2) below highlights the key steps for LBTH service 
 planning leading to the development of strategic plans and ultimate 
 implementation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



  

 
 
Diagram 2: Service Planning Flowchart 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
6.11 Olympic progress reports were provided to the Corporate Risk team for 
 comment prior submission to CMT and provided oversight of all risks, 
 ownership and timelines. 
 
6.12 In total, 128 Olympic projects across the Council were identified with 351 
 priority risks. To deliver these 750 separate milestones were tracked to 
 manage Directorate preparations. In the week prior to the start of the Games 
 98.7% of the Council milestones had been completed 
 

Identification of 

necessary mitigating 

actions 

Project initiation and 

Milestone / Timeline 

Development 

Identification of Service 

Risks  

(& initial costs) 

Corporate Monitoring & 

Tracking Process initiated 

Development of 

Communication Messages 

 Detailed Service 

Cost analysis and 

review 

 

 

Delivery of LBTH 

Olympic Impact Plan 

Page 64



  

6.13 To ensure all LBTH risks were effectively covered and mitigated the Council 
 adopted a worst-case scenario planning approach. All Games-time critical 
 services completed the following planning work:     
 

• Developed mitigation action plans and risk analysis  

• Contributed to staff travel analysis and emergency staffing Plans.   

• Provided transparent project milestones and timelines  

• Developed internal and external communication messages 

• Produced finalised full service costings related to Games delivery 
 
6.14 Once completed, this work formed the detailed Olympic Impact Plan which 
 outlined Games-time service delivery arrangements and any adjustments 
 required. This work was also aligned to HR requirements and costing 
 exercises and was accompanied by a staged financial assessment and 
 review process overseen by the Resources Directorate and Financial 
 Services Group (FSG). This ensured that all projects were reconciled by 
 Directorate DMT’s to the MTFP and accounted for the limited external funding 
 provided by Olympic Agencies for Olympic service preparations.   
 
 
6.15 C3 arrangements 
 
6.16 A key component of the Council’s Games-time arrangements was to set up 
 appropriate C3 arrangements. This took the form of the Borough Olympic 
 Coordination Centre (BOCC) which acted as the communications hub for 
 Council services in Games-time. A key requirement of the BOCC was to 
 provide daily ‘situation reports’ to the sub-regional Borough Group Support 
 Unit (BGSU) on a number of essential services (e.g. waste collection and 
 clean-up operations) who submitted updates to regional and national levels to 
 inform daily Ministerial press briefings. In addition, the Council’s ‘Emergency 
 Response’ arrangements were reviewed and tested at local and regional level 
 ahead of the Games.    
 
6.17 Communications and engagement  
 
6.18 Another vital component of LBTH Olympic planning was to ensure that 
 pertinent and important information was cascaded to services, partners and 
 local community. This was the responsibility of Corporate Communications to 
 plan manage and deliver and for key service messaging and timings to be 
 clarified with services and incorporated in to a Communications Plan.  
 
6.19 In addition to this the Council’s Olympic Planning Unit engaged a range of 
 local stakeholders (via forums and presentations) to ensure that they were 
 aware of emerging issues regarding Olympic planning. Key local stakeholders 
 and partners engaged by the OPU included:  
 

• Council of Mosques 

• Tower Hamlets Community Voluntary Sector  

• Pan Providers (Social Care) 

• Canary Wharf Group  

Page 65



  

• KPMG 

• GLA 

• Registrars Service 

• Children’s Social Care Providers 

• Key Suppliers  

• RSL’s  
 
6.20 To ensure that local views concerning Olympic plans were considered, LBTH 
 persuaded the Olympic delivery organisations (i.e. LOCOG, ODA and TfL) to 
 deliver four additional meetings to SMEs designed to inform them of local 
 Games-time impacts.   
 
6.21 In May 2012 the former Head of Olympic and Paralympic Planning for 
 Vancouver City Council visited the borough for three days and provided 
 validation of Games-time operation planning. 
 
6.22 Member Engagement   
 
6.23 Over the life of the project three Member’s briefing sessions were delivered to 
 inform and update on Olympic planning progress. These were delivered with 
 specific inputs from both TfL and LOCOG.  
 
6.24 Three planning days were arranged with the Mayor and CMT on Olympic 
 Planning. At these events CMT presented their service risk preparations and 
 assumptions for review and challenge.  
 
6.25 Overview and Scrutiny reviewed the planning approach twice ahead of the 
 games and met on a separate occasion with representatives of TfL to better 
 understand the technical challenges specific to modelling of traffic and 
 congestion and verify the reasons for technical delays in the release of 
 modelling info to the Borough.  
 
7 BOROUGH OVERVIEW OF GAMES-TIME OPERATIONS AND ACTUAL 

IMPACTS 
 
7.1 All of the service preparation at directorate level performed as planned and 
 coped well with games time pressures. Whilst congestion pressures were 
 sporadic and less than anticipated services in many areas were tested as 
 predicted upturns in demand materialised. Where this occurred all services 
 coped well.  
 
7.2 Borough Olympic Coordination Centre 
 
7.3 Overall, there were no major issues reported by services over the Games. 
 The BOCC operated throughout the period with the opening and closing 
 ceremonies being the busiest days. The BOCC was not called upon very 
 often as most games time challenges were being adequately dealt with by 
 Services without the need for matters to be escalated. As a result BOCC 
 staffing levels were reduced mid games following a risk assessment. All 
 BGSU links were successfully maintained and obligations delivered.    

Page 66



  

 
7.4 Service delivery 
 
7.5 Comprehensive plans were put in place ahead of the games by all services to 
 ensure that staffing levels were not disrupted. These measures included 
 reconfiguring service operating times to avoid peak periods of the day and the 
 introduction of new  systems (e.g. Smarter Working) to enable higher 
 numbers of staff to work from home. ICT considered the system to have 
 worked successfully with 190 and 300 users logged onto the Virtual Network 
 per day during the Olympic Period.  
 
7.6 Transport impacts  
 
7.7 TfL have reported that road traffic was down by 15% and the DLR and Tube 
 carried more passengers (up 100% and 30% respectively) compared to last 
 year. Although, traffic incidents and congestion occurred sporadically, the 
 impacts on Borough services were very manageable. There was generally far 
 less traffic congestion than had been anticipated across London and this has 
 been attributed to the large number of people put off travelling in to London 
 altogether by the TfL and LOCOG pre publicity of the ORN and Public 
 Transport Arrangements. Public worries or uncertainties around penalties for 
 straying on to the ORN are also likely to have been a factor.  
 
7.8 Games-time security 
 
7.9 Initial problems were encountered with the Army specific to the deployment of 
 missiles in the Borough when agreed community engagement protocols were 
 not followed. This resulted in considerable public anxiety. Following 
 intervention by the Mayor and affected Ward Members and additional effort 
 by the Army to provide assurance these concerns subsided. 
 
7.10 There were a number of incidents that were addressed by security forces in 
 the Borough the details of which were not made transparent to the Council. 
 Following the missile deployment consultation problems security operations 
 were generally low key with the exception of the unscheduled arrival of 2,500 
 troops in Wapping. All operational matters necessary to manage this 
 deployment were dealt with successfully.   
 
7.11 The Police continued to work well with the Council’s THEO’s and no problems 
 with Policing were reported.  
 
 
7.12 Business impacts  
 
7.13 In the first week of the Games it became apparent that the ORN, TfL Traffic 
 Management arrangements and associated messaging campaigns had 
 caused retail and leisure footfall to drop below levels anticipated. LBTH had 
 put in place a local SME business survey to track impacts over games time. 
 As media stories broke regarding this impact on business the BGSU 
 requested weekly updates on borough footfall and business impacts. The 

Page 67



  

 LBTH sample based survey was used to report LBTH business impacts. It 
 focused on:  
 

• Staff travel 

• Passing trade 

• Business takings 

• Deliveries  

• Operating costs 

• Overall impacts  
 
7.14 The survey found that around 80% of local SME businesses reported 
 negative impacts derived from the Games over the six weeks of the study as 
 a result of the LOCOG and TfL ‘Stay away’ campaign.  The Council had 
 already established a business promotion programme ahead of the games. 
 During the games period dialogue was also established with the Federation of 
 Small Businesses specific to their campaign to Government for Small 
 business compensation.  
 
7.15 Communications work undertaken to support business during games time 

included targeted promotional activity targeting Brick Lane as Curry Capital of 
the World, Phone based area promotions and EEL promotions. 

 
 Technical work to support businesses included  
 

• The monitoring and reporting of games time impacts on SME’s to the 
 BGSU and regional government. 

• Technical support and lobbying on behalf of Fish Island Businesses.  

• Engagement with TfL and statutory undertakers to resolve specific 
 issues for businesses. 

• Engagement with the Federation of Small business and support for 
 their campaign for compensation from LOCOG for small business hit 
 by drop off in trade as a result of the games.        

 
8 GAMES-TIME PARTICIPATION  
 
8.1 A successful Olympic volunteers scheme kick started the Mayor’s Community 

Champions scheme. 100 local people were recruited and trained to accredited 
standards and successfully deployed during the games to act as  hosts or 
undertake support roles for Council services. This was part funded by the 
NHS for which the volunteers undertook a range of way finding and public 
support duties effectively through out the games.  

 
8.2 4621 residents of all ages have been able to go to the Olympics, Paralympics, 
 Olympic Park and Olympic test events free as a direct result of the Mayors 
 ticket scheme and other tickets secured and distributed via arrangements 
 negotiated between the Six Host Boroughs and LOCOG.  
 
8.3 All of the borough state run secondary schools signed up for the Get Set 

Ticket programme ensuring that many hundreds more children secured 

Page 68



  

Olympic Tickets and an Olympic experience to remember.  Many more young 
people participated in school and youth based Olympic community events. 
3,472 tickets were issued directly to schools via LOCOG’s Ticket Share 
scheme.  

 
8.4 In addition, 450 young people from the borough received ‘master classes’ 

from visiting Olympic teams based in the Borough. These  included four 
engagement events with the US embassy, Olympic Committee  and 
coaches and the GB Swimming Team.  

 
8.5 The Torch Relays generated an excellent local turnout (with estimates for the 

Olympic event in the region of 100,000 borough residents turning out to 
watch). Furthermore, there was a good turnout for the Paralympic Torch 
Relay particularly at Canary Wharf (despite  the poor weather conditions 
on the day).    

 
 Table 2: Total Olympic Tickets received and distributed by LBTH  
 

Number Tickets 

200 Olympic Tickets 

200 Paralympics Tickets 

1040 Olympic Day Passes 

1200 Goal ball/Handball test event 

33 Wheel chair basketball test event 

1000 Technical rehearsal Olympic Opening Ceremony 

725 
Olympic park day pass only (Distributed by CSF as part of the Key 
Seats Programme) 

4 To Mayor as part of host borough dignitary 

223 
Opening Ceremony ( distributed by CSF as part of Mosh Pit 
programme) 

Total 4625 

  
9 SPORTS INFRASTRUCTURE AND LEGACY BENEFITS 
 
9.1 Mile End Stadium and training improvements  
 
9.2 The London 2012 Games provided many positive outcomes and benefits for 
 Tower Hamlets – which included sports facilities and equipment, Games 
 participation and employment opportunities for local residents.  
 
9.3 There a number of important key sports legacy benefits which were directly 

derived from the US team being based at Mile End Stadium as a training 
venue. This included: 

 

•  Replacement of athletic running track at no cost to the Council  

•  Upgrade of field event areas at no cost to the Council 

•  Resurfaced run up areas for field events at no cost to the Council 

•  Upgrade throwing circles at no cost to the Council 

Page 69



  

•  Donation of Olympic quality training equipment (e.g. cardio-vascular,               
weights and strength and conditioning items).  

•  Upgrade of changing room areas at no cost to the Council.  
 
9.4 Although the cost for the track replacement was significant (and will be 

provided by the US Athletics Association) the publication of the exact figure is 
subject to a confidentiality agreement requested by the US team and cannot 
be released. Furthermore, other work to refurbish the stadium was carried out 
by Barclays Bank volunteers under its corporate responsibility agenda in 
readiness for the Olympics.   

 
9.5 St George’s Leisure Centre (underwater PA system) 
 
9.6 The Russian Synchronised Swimming Team was based at St George’s 
 Leisure Centre during Games-time. To facilitate their training requirements a 
 underwater PA system was installed funded by the Russian Team. LBTH 
 secured this as a donation to the Borough following the Team’s departure to 
 enable the community to benefit in the future.   
  
9.7 Mile End Urban Adventure Base BMX Track facilities 
 
9.8 The six Host Boroughs have submitted an application to ‘Access Sport’ (a 
 community sport organisation for the provision of six tracks across the 
 boroughs. Mile End Urban Adventure Base has been identified as the 
 borough location.    
 
9.9 Mayor’s Agreement with LOCOG 
 
9.10 Following LOCOG’s decision to change the Marathon route (in November 
 2010) LBTH gained a number of concessions which led to a programme of 
 activities to increase the accessibility of the Games to Borough residents (via 
 tickets, jobs and participation) and to promote Brick Lane as a Curry Capital 
 2012. The agreement was signed in public on 16th February 2011.  
 
9.11 The Mayor's 1,000 jobs commitment was exceeded with 1,700 job offers 

being secured from LOCOG contractors for Tower  Hamlets residents. In 
addition, 249 Tower Hamlets residents were employed directly by LOCOG. 

 
10. DIRECTORATE FEEDBACK 
 
10.1 This section presents information on Games-time operations by directorate. 
 However, it should be noted, that the information is based on currently 
 available data which may be subject to change as some data streams have 
 inherent time lags.   
 
10.2 Communities Localities Culture  
  
10.3 All CLC services performed well during Games-time. 
 
10.4 Waste and Street Care 

Page 70



  

 
10.5 Waste and Street Care services operated as planned over the Games period 
 with high levels of cleanliness delivered across the borough.  In total, 125 
 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) were issued by the Commercial Waste Officers 
 and Street Care Team over the Olympic period. The majority (62%) of FPN’s 
 during this period were for littering. 
 
10.6 Games-time ASB  
 
10.7 Pre games analysis indicated that an increase in some forms of ASB could be 

expected and service adjustments were made in preparation for such an 
uplift.  Expected uplifts were anticipated for Alcohol related ASB, Prostitution 
and Noise. A 24/7 noise service was instituted; THEO Olympic deployment 
strategy developed and support services specific to combating prostitution 
reviewed. Information retrieved from the APP system showed 1,590 ASB 
reports were received by the Council over the Olympic period. This 
represented an increase of 29% reported over the same period in 2011 
(1,125). There were increases in nuisance involving alcohol,  prostitution, 
general ASB and touting compared to the same period in the previous year. 
Table 4 identifies all reported ASB over the Olympic period compared with the 
same period in 2011. Individual reports are presented  below and in rank order 
of percentage change, highest to lowest.  

  
Table 4: Reported ASB in Tower Hamlets   

 

Activities 2012 2011 

Alcohol 388 81 

Prostitution 87 23 

General ASB 51 19 

Touting 16 7 

Rubbish 74 45 

Byelaw 33 23 

Noise 607 451 

Vehicle 30 23 

Housing 46 41 

Violence 51 46 

Animal 32 31 

Drugs 32 32 

Begging 18 20 

Other 43 61 

Hate Crime 5 9 

Environmental 68 164 

Vandalism 5 17 

Fly-Posting/Fly-Tipping/Graffiti 4 32 

Total 1590 1125 

 
 

Page 71



  

10. 8 Drug Interventions Programme (DIP)  
 
10.9 Pre games analysis indicated that levels of street based drug activity would 

increase during games time. The DIP functioned well during the Olympic 
Games period and there were no disruptions to the service in Games-time. 
Emerging figures show that drug related arrests halved between 2011 and 
2012 (from 315 to 148).  However this may reflect a temporary shift in local 
policing priorities during the games rather than a reduction in street level drug 
activity. The number of arrested people testing positive for drugs increased by 
21% (from 31% to 52%).   

 
10.10 Parking 
 
10.11 The Residents and Businesses Parking Protection Area (RBPPA) extended 
 parking restrictions in the eastern half of the borough from their normal times 
 to 8.30am to 9.00pm, Mondays to Sundays. This required extra resource in 
 terms of both the number of enforcement officers and the times that officers 
 worked. The Borough also implemented a temporary permit solution in order 
 to minimise the impact of the extra restrictions on residents and businesses. 
 
10.12 Parking Services assessed and managed effectively all relevant risks.  The 
 RBPPA functioned as planned.  
 
10.13 Cycle Hire 
 
10.14 Information collected on the total Barclays cycle hire scheme showed a large 
 increase in the number of cycle trips in July (346,705) compared with June 
 2012 (281,484) – representing a 23% rise between the two months. The chart 
 (1) below highlights a steady increase in scheme use from March to July 
 2012. 
 
10.15 Chart 1: Total Barclay Cycle Hire Use in Tower Hamlets (March to July 

2012)  
 

 

 

Page 72



  

10.16 Live Site  
 
10.17 The Live Site was managed and delivered by contractors (Live Nation) 

working to the GLA. All Live Site marketing required sign off from Live Nation, 
LBTH, GLA and Royal Parks. Live Nation led on delivering the Live Site and 
also led on marketing. Whilst visitor numbers varied significantly day to day 
and hour to hour approximately 200,000 visitors attended Victoria Park Live 
Site over the Games period. The Council secured a bond (of £80,000) from 
Live Nation as contingency to cover the full costs of any necessary 
reparations, if required – which has now been used to carry out the essential 
remedial works.  

 
10.18 Development & Renewal 

 
10.19 D&R have reported that its Services operated effectively throughout the 
 Games period. The measures put in place by services to mitigate the Olympic 
 risks meant that the Olympics had no significant adverse effects on the 
 standards or levels of service delivered.  
 
10.20 The Housing Options Service did, as anticipated, experience a reduction in 
 the availability of emergency private sector accommodation in Tower Hamlets 
 and neighbouring boroughs. However, it had procured additional emergency 
 B&B accommodation in partnership with other East London boroughs to make 
 up for the shortfall.  
 
10.21 The Building Control service operated an extended rota in order to maintain 
 emergency cover.  
 
10.22 The preparatory measures put in place by Facilities Management meant there 
 was no impact on service delivery during the period. 
  
10.23 For Tower Hamlets Homes the objective was to maintain normal operations 
 as far as possible. This was achieved.  
 
10.24 A number of measures implemented for the Games will have ongoing benefits 

for service delivery. For example, stronger links were established with AHWB 
around supporting vulnerable residents. The new contacts and relationships 
that were developed will continue to be used to improve the way we work 
together and share intelligence. Similarly, the changes to the caretakers’ shift 
patterns received positive feedback from both staff and residents, which will 
be incorporated into a future review of the service”.  

 
10.25 In addition to the jobs secured via the Mayors Agreement negotiated by D+R 

and outlined in 7.9 above, 1,668 Tower Hamlets residents worked for 
the ODA or their contractors over the Games period.   

 
10.26 Children Schools Families & Adults Health and Well Being 
 
10.27 CSF & AHWB have reported that all of the projected risks were effectively 
 covered and both directorates performed well during the Olympics. It is 

Page 73



  

 expected that there will be many benefits emerging from the experience in 
 terms of improved business continuity planning and supporting tools, 
 including enhanced GIS and embedded plans for satellite hubs, youth 
 engagement and partnership working.  
 
10.28 Some of the specific benefits identified by both directorates are listed as 
 follows: 
 

• CSF is looking into future events such as World Cup and 

 Commonwealth Games for Youth Engagement activities. Also 

 currently contributing to a Sports Strategy to ‘Lock in’ momentum and 

 benefits. 

• From a business continuity perspective CSF and AHWB now have a 

 documented process for setting up alternative duty points (based on 

 the Olympic planning) in partnership with other Directorates and local 

 Boroughs. 

• A bespoke GIS module for use during emergencies. The resulting 

 system held geographical and service related data on every 

 vulnerable client in the Borough.  In addition, the system was set up to 

 include locations of satellite service hubs in accordance with pre-

 planned risk mitigation, along with other Olympics related information. 

• Partnership working was also re enforced and improved by the 

 Olympic Planning activities that took place between the two 

 Directorate areas particularly between the Meals Service and Day 

 services for adults and home care. 

10.29 Resources 
 
10.30 The Resources Directorate provided support in relation to HR planning and 
 Olympic HR policy development ensuring that everyone had a clear 
 understanding of the implications of their mitigation planning specific to HR 
 obligations.  The collection of employee data, especially items such as home 
 location was used by managers to inform decisions and could prove useful in 
 the future.  
 
10.31 ICT supported the new VDI environment which enabled a greater number of 
 staff to work from home or other sites.  This complimented the work on 
 managing behaviours to support Smarter Working that was undertaken 
 corporately. Customer Access received fewer calls and visits than the same 
 time the previous year.   
 
11. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
11.1 The following net additional costs have been identified as having been 

incurred by the Council during the period of the Games: 
 

Street Cleansing £458,000 

Page 74



  

CCTV in Victoria Park £115,000 

Events and marketing to promote tourism £235,000 

Total: £808,000 

 
11.2 These costs will be met from earmarked reserves set aside for the purpose. 
 
11.3 In addition, £1.754m was provided by LOCOG, TfL, the GLA and other 

partner bodies contributing to street cleaning, the Olympic Route Network, 
volunteering and other costs.  This included funding provided by the US 
Olympic Committee for track improvements at Mile End Stadium.  In all an 
additional £2.562m was spent during the period of the Games, around two-
thirds of which was met by external partners. 

 
12.  CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
12.1 The proposal to continue to lobby in conjunction with other host boroughs may 

be properly aligned with discharge of the Council’s statutory functions and 
Council’s strategic objectives, such as expressed in the Tower Hamlets 
Community Plan.  This may be supported by reference to specific statutory 
powers, the Council’s general power of competence in section 1 of the 
Localism Act 2011 or the incidental power in section 111 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

12.2 The Council’s Games-related planning required hundreds of hours of legal 
support.  This included – 

 

• Preparation of legal agreements, including for the Victoria Park Live 
Site. 

• Dealing with litigation, such as the challenge to the decision to move 
the Olympic marathon route (which secured jobs for the borough). 

• General advice about Games issues, such as the curry capital 
designation and crowd control, often on an urgent basis. 

 
12.3 It does not appear that the Games gave rise to higher than usual enforcement 

referrals to Legal Services.  Usual court listings in the Thames Magistrates’ 
Court were suspended during the Games and the associated back-log is 
presently being dealt with. 

 
13. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
13.1 The effective planning undertaken by the Council and its partners ensured 

that all One Tower Hamlets issues were well managed during games time and 
community cohesion did not suffer.  

 
13.2 Effective pursuit of Olympic legacy regeneration will assist with a wide range 

of poverty related inequalities experienced by residents in this Borough. The 
Growth Borough Group are preparing a lobby platform based on addressing 
key disadvantages across economic, housing, employment and health 
agendas faced by residents of the east end.   

Page 75



  

 
14. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
14.1 There are no implications.  
 
15. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 The approach taken to Olympic Impact preparation was entirely risk based. 

The programme of risk management actions were completed to time and all 
relevant processes put in place to manage risks worked effectively.     
 

16. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications specific to the 

recommendations. Monitoring and joint tasking arrangements are in place to 
review and manage the nature of any uplift in localised crime and ASB 
should it persist.  

  
17. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
17.1   N/A 
 
18. APPENDICES 
 
   None 

 
 
 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

None  
  

 
 

Page 76



  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
5th December 
2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
CAB 51/123 

Report of:  

Corporate Director: Stephen Halsey 
 
Originating officer(s)  
David Tolley – Head of  Consumer and Business 
Regulations 

 

Title:  

Saturation Policy – Brick Lane Area 
 
Wards Affected: Weavers, Spitalfields and 
Banglatown, Whitechapel 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Councillor Ohid Ahmed 

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Safe and Cohesive Community 

Strategic Priority 
 

Focusing on Crime and ASB 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council have the power to designate an 

area within the Borough a “Cumulative Impact Zone” if it feels that the number 
of licensed premises is having an adverse impact on any of the Licensing 
Objectives (crime and disorder, noise / nuisance, public safety and harm to 
children).  

 
1.2. It is proposed that the Council adopt a saturation policy for Brick Lane and 

environs on the basis of the high levels of crime, anti social behaviour and 
alcohol related harm. This has the support of the Police and would be 
managed in partnership with them. 

 
1.3. This report presents the context, evidence and justification for adoption and 

explains the process required for implementation. 
  
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Consider and comment on the proposal for the area defined in the draft   
policy to become a “Cumulative Impact Zone” 

 

2.2 Consider and comment on the draft policy. 
 
2.3 Agree that consultation on the draft policy may commence 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 77



  

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Council has the power to consider the cumulative impact of licensed 

premises in any part of the Borough and make special provision for this in its 
statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
3.2 The draft policy consultation will be undertaken highlighting the policy 

considerations in section 12 of the attached ‘Proposal for Cumulative Impact 
Policy for the Brick Lane area’. 

 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Cabinet does have the option not to introduce a cumulative impact zone. 

This option may have an adverse impact on the achievement of the licensing 
objectives .i.e. reducing crime and disorder and nuisance. 

 
4.2 The creation of the cumulative impact zone will enable the current licence 

holders to carry on their business as they currently do. The creation of the 
zone will require any new licence applicants to demonstrate that they will not 
have an adverse impact on the area and that a rebuttal presumption will 
stand.  

 
 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 Tower Hamlets Police in their role as a “Responsible Authority” under the 

Licensing Act 2003 have expressed their concern at the levels of alcohol 
related harm, crime, disorder and anti social behaviour in and around the 
Brick Lane. 

 
5.3 The Council have introduced many measures to deal with Crime and 

Disorder within the Borough namely: 
 
 a) Investment with the police to create the Partnership Task Force, 21 

Officers 
 b) Second round of 18 Police Officers to commence in November 2012  
 c) Creation of the Police Town Centre Team 
 d) Introduction of the Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers who from 

September 2011 to August 2012 made 2146 alcohol seizures, an 89 per 
cent rise on the previous year. They also made 115 street urination 
prosecutions and served 20 Noise abatement notices over the last 12 
months in Brick Lane and the surrounding area. 

 c) Introduction of a Drinking Control Zone in September 2011 
 d) Licensing reviews undertaken and extra conditions imposed on licences to 

reduce anti social behaviour. 
 

Page 78



  

5.2 Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council as Licensing Authority may 
consider introducing saturation policies (known under the guidance to local 
authorities as “Cumulative Impact Policies”).  

 
5.3 These policies can be introduced where there is a combined impact or 

cumulative effect of licensed premises on one or more of the four Licensing 
Objectives, namely crime and disorder, the protection of children from harm, 
public safety or public nuisance 

 
5.4 To develop this policy there is a requirement to specifically identify the area 

and for adequate evidence to be produced to justify a policy. 
 
5.5 If a policy is then proposed by the Council, it must consult with relevant 

stakeholders. If the consultation responses support the proposals the 
Council can then introduce a policy that presumes against further licences 
being issued.  

 
5.5 This does not stop applications being submitted and considered – it is not a 

ban on new licences. Any applicants may be successful if they can 
demonstrate and convince the Responsible Authorities and Licensing Sub 
Committee that their business will not add to any of the problems that have 
been identified. 

 
5.6 Current licence holders and their current operating hours are not affected. 

The affect will be for new applicants or those that wish to vary their licences. 
The licences affected are both alcohol on and off sales and those premises 
that require a licence for late night refreshments.  

 
5.7 It has been agreed with the Communications Team that there will be a 

communications strategy around the consultation exercise to reduce any 
potential concerns for current licence holders.  

 
 
6. PROPOSAL, JUSTIFICATION & TIMETABLE 
 
6.1 There has been an ongoing dialogue between the Police and the Council. 

Considerable evidence has been produced and captured in the “Proposal for 
Cumulative Impact Policy for Brick Lane Area” which is in Appendix 1 of this 
report 

 
6.2 The proposal explains in detail:- 

• What a Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) is  

• The powers the Council has to introduce a CIZ 

• The limitations of a saturation policy 

• The area suggested in and around Brick Lane for the CIZ 

• The Brick Lane demographics 

• The detailed evidence that provides the justification for a CIZ. 

• Details of other saturation policies in the rest of London 

• Conclusions and recommendations 
 

Page 79



  

 
 
 
6.3 The justification for a saturation policy in Brick Lane can be summarised as:- 
 

a. There are already over 207 Licensed Premises within this small area 
(17.6% of all premises within Tower Hamlets). 

b. The continuing high levels of violent / alcohol related in the Brick Lane 
Area (2011 Violent Crime 30% of all Alcohol Related Crime) 

c. It is responsible for 8% of all crime within Tower Hamlets. 
d. There has been a steady increase in notifiable offences   
e. There has been a steady increase in criminal damage and drug 

offences 
f. It is responsible for the highest level of complaints about street drinking 
g. 22% of all police calls to Licensed premises are in the Brick Lane Area 
h. There are clear demonstrable links between violence against the 

person offences and alcohol related violence in the Brick Lane Area.   
i. LBTH has the second highest level of ASB in London 
j. The highest rates of ASB in the Borough are in the Brick Lane Area 
k. ASB is now decreasing in the Borough and Brick Lane Area but it still is 

at levels that continues to give rise to complaints from local residents  
l. LBTH has significantly worse alcohol related harm indicators compared 

with regional and national averages 
m. There is a steady increase in ambulance call outs in the Brick Lane 

Area 
n. The Brick Lane Area has a vibrant and expanding night time economy 

which has led to a sizeable and steady increase in visitors to the area. 
o. Considerable tensions have been built up because of the conflicting 

demands of the night time economy and the local residents. 
p. The increasing levels of crime, disorder, and alcohol related harm has 

meant the need to deploy increasing levels of resourcing by the Police, 
Local Authority and other partners.  

 
6.4 It is therefore contended that the numbers of licensed premises have 

reached saturation point and there is a need to limit any further increases in 
licences being issued or variations being made. 

 
6.5 The likely timetable for the Policy Implementation will be  

• Cabinet approval – Dec 2012 

• Consultation concludes – Feb 2013 

• Policy Implementation – June 2013  
 
6.6 The Appendix to this report contains the draft policy document “Proposal for 

Cumulative Impact Policy for Brick Lane area 
 
6.7 This report outline plans for the consultation on the policy, including 

timeframes. The Communications Team will liaise with the Consumer and 
Business Regulation Service to develop a communications strategy for this 
policy in line with the Mayor’s priorities for the borough.  

 

Page 80



  

 
 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report. The 

service will need to ensure that in adoption of the policy it is deliverable 
within existing budgeted resources. 

    
 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1 The Council is required by section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 to determine its 

policy with respect to the exercise of its licensing functions, and to publish a 
statement of that policy.  The statement of licensing policy operates for a 
period of three years (in future it will be five years following a change in the 
law), during which time the Council must keep it under review and make such 
revisions to the policy as are considered appropriate. 

 
8.2 Cumulative impact is not mentioned specifically in the Licensing Act 2003.  

The Secretary of State has, however, issued guidance under section 182 of 
the Act, which deals with cumulative impact.  The Council must have due 
regard to the statutory guidance in exercising its licensing functions (Licensing 
Act 2003, section 4(3)). 

 
8.3 According to the statutory guidance, cumulative impact means “the potential 

impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of 
licensed premises concentrated in one area”.  The cumulative impact of 
licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a proper 
matter for the Council to consider in developing its licensing policy statement.  
The statutory guidance gives an indication of types of cumulative impact, 
which focus on nuisance, disorder and crime in areas where the number, type 
or density of premises selling alcohol is high or exceptional, resulting in a 
concentration of large numbers of drinkers. 

 
8.4 A saturation policy or cumulative impact policy would form part of the 

Council’s statement of licensing policy.  This would require the Council to 
revise its existing policy statement.  Before revising the policy, the Council 
must first consult with persons specified in section 5(3) of the Licensing Act.  
Revisions to the statement of licensing policy are the responsibility of full 
council.  The statement of licensing policy forms part of the budget and policy 
framework in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution and revisions to it should 
be brought forward in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules.  This will involve consultation with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

8.5 The statutory guidance provides that there should be an evidential basis for 
the decision to include a special policy within the statement of licensing policy.  
In that regard, local community safety partnerships and responsible 

Page 81



  

authorities, such as the police and the local authority exercising environmental 
health functions, may hold relevant information which can be used to establish 
the evidence base for introducing a special policy relating to cumulative 
impact into their licensing policy statement.  Evidence to show cumulative 
impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives may 
include: 
 

• Local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types 
of crime and crime hotspots; 

• Statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences; 

• Health-related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency 
attendances and hospital admissions; 

• Environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and 
noise; 

• Complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include 
complaints raised by local residents or residents’ associations; 

• Residents’ questionnaires; 

• Evidence from local councillors; and 

• Evidence obtained through local consultation. 
 
8.6 Relevant evidence will need to be gathered and considered before any 

cumulative impact policy can be formulated and brought forward for adoption. 
 

8.7 The statutory guidance identifies steps to be followed in considering whether 
to adopt a cumulative impact policy within the statement of licensing policy.  
At this stage, concerns have been identified about crime and disorder and a 
risk of cumulative impact.  If a policy is to be brought forward, then the 
evidence base will need to be expanded and the statutory consultation carried 
out. 
 

8.8 When preparing revisions to its statement of licensing policy, the Council must 
have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality 
Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t.  This will require equality analysis, which should be carried 
out in conjunction with any consultation. 

 
 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and no adverse 

impacts have been identified. 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 There are no adverse impacts identified. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

Page 82



  

11.1 There are no identified risks, current licence holders and their current terms 
of business are not affected. Any new application, if representations are 
made, will still be determined by the Licensing Sub – Committee and 
subjected to the procedures of that Sub-Committee. 

 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 The Appendix to the report identifies the current crime and anti-social 

behaviour statistics. As discussed in the report the adoption of a cumulative 
impact zone should have a downward pressure on the number of crime and 
anti-social behaviour incidents and complaints. 

  
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
13.1 The costs of monitoring the cumulative impact zone will be included in the 

current monitoring regime. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Proposal for Cumulative Impact Policy for Brick Lane Area 
Appendix 2 – Equality Analysis Quality Assurance Checklist 
 
 

 
___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 
 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal for Cumulative Impact Policy for Brick Lane Area 
 
1.0 What is a Cumulative Impact Policy and what powers does the Council 

have 
 

1.1 Under the Licensing Act 2003 the Council has to have and review a 
“Statement of Licensing Policy” which details how it will administer and 
enforce the provisions of the Act. 

 
1.2 The Council has the power to consider the “cumulative impact” of licensed 

premises in any part of the Borough and make special provision for this in its 
Statement of Licensing Policy. Cumulative impact means the potential impact 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed 
premises concentrated in one area.  

 
1.3 The Licensing objectives are:- 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder. 

• Public safety. 

• The prevention of public nuisance. 

• The protection of children from harm. 
 

1.4 If the Council identifies a concern linked to a Licensing Objective it may 
choose to start the process towards adopting a special policy for a Cumulative 
Impact Zone. The process of adopting a policy is as follows:- 

 
a. Gather evidence and demonstrate issues are happening and are caused 

by customers of licensed premises or identify that the risk of cumulative 
impact is imminent 

b. Define boundaries / area where problems are occurring 
c. Consult with responsible authorities, affected businesses and residents 
d. Determine and publish in statement of Licensing Policy 

 
1.5 The effect of adopting a special policy for a Cumulative Impact Zone is to 

create a “rebuttable presumption” that applications for new premises licences 
or club premises certificates or variations that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused, following relevant representations. 
If however the applicant can demonstrate in their operating schedule that 
there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives, their application could be granted.  

 
1.6 However, a special policy must stress that this presumption does not relieve 

responsible authorities or interested parties of the need to make a relevant 
representation, referring to information which had been before the licensing 
authority when it developed its statement of licensing policy, before a 
licensing authority may lawfully consider giving effect to its special policy.  

 

Page 85



1.7 If there are no representations to an application when a special policy is in 
force, the licensing authority must grant the application in terms that are 
consistent with the operating schedule submitted. It is also a requirement that 
special policies should be regularly reviewed to ensure they are still relevant 
and needed. 

 
1.8 The guidance for Local Authorities which advises on the application of its 

powers under the Licensing Act 2003 is clear about the limitations about the 
extent of cumulative impact. It advises the following:- 

 
a. Cumulative impact as it relates to the Licensing does not relate to need. 

This is an issue that is dealt with through the Planning process.  
b. Special Policies must not be used to revoke a licence. Revocation must 

take place after an individual licence review.  
c. Special Policies must not impose quotas 
d. Other mechanisms both within and outside the remit of the licensing 

regime should be recognised for controlling cumulative impact  
e. Special Policies must not state a blanket terminal hour 
f. Special Policies must never be absolute - individual circumstances must 

always be considered 
 
1.9 The guidance also advises that other mechanisms both within and outside the 

remit of the licensing regime should be recognised for controlling cumulative 
impact. Examples of these are:- 

 
a. Planning controls. 
b. Positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 

partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
departments of the local authority. 

c. The provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, 
provision of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and 
litter patrols. 

d. Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area as 
places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly. 

e. Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices. 

f. The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk. 

g. The power to confiscate alcohol in public places across the borough 
(Drinking Control Zone). 

h. Police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed 
premises or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of 
disorder or noise emanating from the premises causing a nuisance. 

i. The power of the police, other responsible authorities or a local resident or 
business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question. 

j. Other local initiatives that similarly address these problems. 
 

1.10 The Council have introduced many measures to deal with Crime and 
Disorder within the Borough namely: 

 

Page 86



 a) Investment with the police to create the Partnership Task Force, 21 
Officers 

 b) Second round of 18 Police Officers to commence in November 2012  
 c) Creation of the Police Town Centre Team 
 d) Introduction of a Drinking Control Zone 

  e) Introduction of the Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers who from 
September 2011 to August 2012 made 2146 alcohol seizures, an 89 per 
cent rise on the previous year. They also made 115 street urination 
prosecutions and served 20 Noise abatement notices over the last 12 
months in Brick Lane and the surrounding area.  

 f) Licensing reviews undertaken and extra conditions imposed on licences to 
reduce anti social behaviour. 

 
2.0 Cumulative Impact Proposals for the Brick Lane Area 
 
2.1 The Police in Tower Hamlets have expressed a desire to formulate a special 

policy on cumulative impact for Brick Lane and its immediate environs.  
 

2.2 Over the last decade, Brick Lane has developed into one of London’s major 
night time economies. Brick Lane attracts not only Londoners to the area but 
many tourists, especially young foreign students who have read about the 
vibrant night life in and around the Truman Brewery. Others are attracted by 
the many curry restaurants in the street. 

 
2.3 Brick Lane and its environs have the highest concentration of licensed 

premises in Tower Hamlets. This continued development and increased 
number of restaurants, late night takeaways, off licences and bars, have now 
placed a considerable strain on police resources and also that of other 
responsible authorities. 

 
2.4 This has lead to alcohol related violence, public disorder and anti-social 

behaviour (ASB). Some may be considered “low level” ASB but actions such 
as urinating in the street or groups of foreign students playing drums into the 
early hours of the morning has a debilitating effect on the local residents and 
blights their home lives.  

 
2.5 A special policy on cumulative impact is an important strand in a range of 

policies to promote and support the delivery of three of the four licensing 
objectives, namely:- 

 
a. The prevention of crime and disorder 
b. The prevention of public nuisance 
c. Public safety 

 
2.6 The Police in Tower Hamlets advocate that the proposed policy would include 

all licensed premises. It is not usual to include off licences in a special policy 
but there is an association in Brick Lane that off licences are linked to some of 
the disorder in the area. There are nine off licences in the area. Some of 
these are open after the nearby pubs and clubs have closed. As a result, 
people congregate outside the premises and the continued access to alcohol 

Page 87



only increases ASB. It often leads to people sitting in surrounding streets 
disturbing the residents whether it is by continuing their partying or committing 
disorder. Although a special policy will not directly affect the current off 
licences in this area, it will play a very important role in any future applications 
including variations. This is similarly true of late night eateries, especially 
chicken shops. 

 
2.7 The Borough’s Police would like a special policy to be adopted for the Brick 

Lane area. It will maintain a balance between the importance of the night time 
economy and the concerns of the Metropolitan Police and local residents.  

 
2.8 Whilst it is important to support a vibrant economy in Tower Hamlets the 

balance has to be struck between an uncontrolled expansion of licensed 
premises and what follows and the need to ensure public safety, quality of life 
for local people and prevention of crime and disorder. 

 
2.9 It is clear that over recent years the development of Brick Lane into a tourist 

attraction has seen considerable investment to draw people into the night 
economy. With this comes large numbers of visitors, crowded places and a 
crime hotspot with issues related to alcohol. This needs to be managed at a 
strategic level and the special policy proposal would be an essential tool in 
focusing attention on getting the balance right.  

 
3.0 Context, Scope and Evidence 
 
3.1 The evidence provided to support this proposal has been produced by the 

Police and the Council’s Safer Communities Services. 
 
3.2 The evidence provided is as follows:- 
 

a. An overview of the premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 
across the Borough 

b. The proposed area where the special policy for cumulative impact will 
apply 

c. Brick Lane demographics 
d. Comparative crime statistics for the Brick Lane area to show trend and hot 

spots. 
e. Links with violent crime in wards surrounding Brick Lane 
f. Comparative Anti Social Behaviour statistics for the Brick Lane Area 
g. Comparative Alcohol Related Harm  statistics 
h. Current CIZ’s in London. 

 
4.0 Licensing Overview for Tower Hamlets  
 
4.1 Tower Hamlets has an area of just over 19 sq km. It is the 6th smallest Local 

Authority area in England and London. Located within Tower Hamlets are 909 
venues with premise licenses and these venue types can be broken down into 
the following categories;  

 
 

Page 88



Licensed Premises in Tower Hamlets  

Premises Category Number of Premises 
Church / Community Organisations 7 
Members / Social / Sports Clubs 26 
Pub / Night Club / Wine Bar  190 
Restaurant / Café 312 
Nightclub 9 
Off Licences / Grocers / Shops 245 
Hotel / Arts / Cinema / Conference 48 
Office / Catering / Commerce 28 
Takeaways 39 
Educational 8 
Other 22 

Total 909 

 
4.2 The two main geographical areas for licensed premises are concentrated are 

the Brick Lane and Canary Wharf Areas. 
 
4.3 The map below (Figure 1) shows the location of the licensed premises within 

Tower Hamlets with the two key high concentration locations of Brick Lane 
(blue area) and Canary Wharf (green area) highlighted. 

 
 

Page 89



 
Figure 1 

 
 
 
 
 
4.4 The 207 premises in the proposed Brick Lane Saturation Zone can be broken 

down into the following categories.  
 

Licensed Premises in the Brick Lane Saturation Area 

Premises Category Number of Premises 
Church / Community Organisations 4 
Members / Social / Sports Clubs 1 
Pub / Night Club / Wine Bar  

31 
Restaurant / Café 117 
Off Licences / Grocers / Shops 28 
Hotel / Arts / Cinema / Conference 14 
Office / Catering / Commerce  0 
Takeaways 4 

Page 90



Educational 3 
Other  0 

Total 207 

 
 
4.5 The proposed saturation area accounts for 22.8% of all licensed premises in 

the Borough. The proposed saturation area is 2.85% of the total area of the 
Borough.  

 
4.6 The chart below (Figure 2) shows that the number of annual premises 

licences that are operational for the Borough and in the Brick Lane area. The 
number of licences is shown to be steadily increasing both in the Borough as 
a whole and in the Brick Lane area  

 

 
(Figure 2) 

 

 
5.0 The Proposed Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone  
 
5.1 The proposed Cumulative Impact Zone area is detailed in the map below 

(Figure 3). The map shows all of the premises (red dots) currently licensed 
under the Licensing Act 2003 in the Brick Lane Area. The proposed area is 
defined by the blue line.  

 

Page 91



 
Figure 3 

6.0 Brick Lane Profile  
 
6.1 In the north west of Tower Hamlets are the busy commercial and residential 

wards of Weavers and Spitalfields & Banglatown.  Brick Lane runs down the 
spine of these two wards. Brick Lane’s thriving night time economy is its main 
attraction to visitors from within and outside the Borough.  

 
6.2 Brick Lane houses a large number of licensed venues, clubs and restaurants, 

predominantly clustered around the Truman Brewery, drawing large crowds. 
Its proximity to the City’s commercial centre means that the population of this 
area can increase dramatically after offices close.  In addition, large volumes 
of tourists visit the area during peak summer months.  

 
6.3 There are several key transport hubs in the area making Brick Lane and its 

immediate environs readily accessible. The main access point is Liverpool 
Street train and underground stations which draw an increasingly high volume 
of people from across the UK with over 57 million using the train station alone 
during 2007/08 [Office of Rail Regulation statistics] linking to commuters and 
airports. In addition, there is a nearby underground station at Aldgate East. In 
May 2010, a new underground station opened at the northern end of Brick 
Lane (Shoreditch High Street – East London Line) which is linked to the 
London overground network.  

Page 92



 
6.4 This is likely to increase the number of visitors to the area.  
 
6.5 The southern half of Brick Lane is populated with restaurants, many serving 

as licensed premises. Touting remains a problem in these areas with some of 
these venues employing ‘touts’ to persuade customers inside.  

 
6.6 There is also evidence of links between this Touting activity, drug dealing and 

violent crime. 
 
6.7 Brick Lane and Spitalfields has been a centre for prostitution in London for 

centuries and during 2009-2010, the area around Commercial Road 
accounted for the majority of prostitution related offences on the Borough. 

 
7.0 Overview of Alcohol Related and linked Crime in the Brick Lane Area 
 
7.1 There is a well established link between alcohol and violent crime. This 

manifests in higher levels of violent crime where there is a strong night time 
economy and higher levels of alcohol consumption.   

 
7.2 The hotspot maps (Figure 4 and 5) below show Street Drinking complaints to 

the Police for the periods, April 2010–  March 2011 and April 2011–  March 
2012 shows 3 main hotspots with the largest and most noticeable in the 
proposed Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone. The proportion of the 
Borough’s total calls for the Brick Lane area was for the two periods 13% and 
12% of the complaints received. 

 

 
Figure 4 

Page 93



 
Figure 5 

 

7.3 The next hotspot maps (Figures 6 and 7)  for the Borough shows calls made 
to the Police about Licensed premises for the periods April 2010 – 2011 and 
April 2011 – March 2012. The proportion of total calls in the Borough calls 
emanating from premises in the proposed Brick Lane Cumulative Impact Zone 
for these periods were 18 and 22% respectively. 

 

Page 94



 
 

Figure 6 
 

 
 

Figure 7 

 
7.4 The map below (Figure 8), produced by the Police, shows the wards with the 

highest rates for Violence Against the Person (VAP) offences for the period 
April to March 2012. The busiest ward for VAP was Bethnal Green South. 

Page 95



Other busy wards were Whitechapel, Spitalfields & Banglatown (circled) and 
East India & Lansbury, MIllwall and Limehouse. This map is also reflective of 
the past five financial years with Bethnal Green South the busiest ward for 
these periods. It is apparent that the wards that contain and surround the 
Saturation Policy Area are the busiest wards for violence against the person 
offences. There are clear demonstrable links between violence against the 
person offences and alcohol related violence in the Brick Lane Area, 

 
Figure 8 

 

7.5 A study of the proposed Saturation Policy area was conducted to look at 
crimes within the area for the following time periods, calendar years 2007, 
2008, 2009 2010 and.2011.  

 
7.6 Six crime types were looked at for these periods to see if increases had been 

seen in the area during this five year period. The crime types looked at were:- 
 

a. Total Notifiable Offences (all offences) 
b. Criminal Damage 
c. Drug Offences 
d. Robbery 
e. Sexual Offences 
f. Violence Against the Person 

Page 96



 
7.8 The graph (Figure 9) below shows all Notifiable Offences. Apart from a peak 

in 2007 there has been there has been a steady year on year increase from 
2008 

 

Total Notifiable Offences Brick Lane Area

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

 
Figure 9 

 

7.9 The graphs below (Figures 10,11,12, 13 and 14) show the criminal damage, 
drug, robbery sexual and violence against the person offences for the Brick 
Lane saturation area. The data shows that :- 
a. Since 2008 criminal damage offences have increased year on year. 
b. Since 2007 drug related offences have dramatically increased  
c. In 2011 the was a dramatic increase in robberies 
d. Apart from a significant decease in 2010 there has been a steady increase 

in sexual related offences  
e. Since 2007 there has been a steady rise in violence against the person 

offences 

Criminal Damage Offences Brick Lane Area

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

 
Figure 10 

 

Page 97



 
Figure 11 

 

Robbery Offences Brick Lane Area

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

 
Figure 12 

 

Sexual Offences Brick Lane Area

0

5

10

15

20

25

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

 
Figure 13 

Drugs Offences Brick Lane Area

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Page 98



Violence Against the Person Offences Brick Lane Area

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

 
Figure 14 

 
 
 
 

8.0 Overview of Anti Social Behaviour in the Brick Lane Area  
 

8.1 The most recent data from the Police shows that Tower Hamlets has 
experienced decrease in complaints to the Police about Anti Social Behaviour 
The chart below (figure 15) shows the different ASB categories and the 
respective changes ( RED = increase, GREEN = decrease).  In 2011/12 there 
was nearly a 12% reduction in complaints. However overall the level of ASB 
complaints remain quite high. 

 

ASB Category 2010/2011 2011/12 % change 

Abandoned vehicles 340 175 -49% 

Animal Problems 614 238 -61% 

Begging / Vagrancy 339 267 -21% 

Fireworks 219 309 41% 

Littering / Drugs Paraphernalia 64 41 -36% 

Malicious Communications 1591 1592 0% 

Noise 1199 1280 7% 

Nuisance Neighbours 1737 1357 -22% 

Prostitution Related Activity 266 231 -13% 

Rowdy / Inconsiderate Behaviour 16690 14889 -11% 

Street Drinking 276 75 -73% 

Trespass 253 241 -5% 

Vehicle Nuisance / Inappropriate Use 738 749 1% 

  24326 21444 -11.85% 

Figure 15 

 

Page 99



8.2 The two maps (Figure 16 /17) below from LBTH Safer Communities data 
shows a 24 month (April 2010 to March 2012) Anti Social Behaviour Hotspot 
Map with the location of Pubs/Bars shown. The maps demonstrate the link 
between the concentration of licensed premises in the Brick Lane area and  
the highest rates of Anti Social behaviour  

 

 
Figure 16 

 

 
Figure 17 

Page 100



8.3 Data from the LBTH Anti-Social Behaviour Hotline also supports and 
correlates with the Police CAD. The graph below (Figure 18) 
demonstrates the steady and significant increase in Anti-Social 
Behaviour Calls from 2009 –March 2011. From April 2011 to March 
2012 however there has been a decline in ASB complaints. This is in 
the main due to the implementation of the Borough’s Drinking Control 
Zone and the increased high visibility enforcement of the Police and 
the Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers  

 

 
 

Figure 18 

 
8.4 Due to the high concentration of licensed premises, the continued 

development and increasing number of restaurants, late night takeaways, off 
licences and bars there continues to be a significant levels of Anti-Social 
behaviour within the Brick Lane area.  

 
8.5 Although a CIZ will not directly affect the current venues in this area, it will 

play a very important role in any future applications including variations and a 
key strand within the CIZ is the prevention of public nuisance.  

Page 101



 
9.0 Alcohol Related Harm in the Brick lane Area 
 
9.1 This chart below (Figure 19) shows Tower Hamlets' measure for each 

indicator for Alcohol Related Harm, compared with the regional and English 
averages. When looking at specific measures, Tower Hamlets shows a 
significantly worse prevalence in the following categories;  

 
a. Alcohol Specific Male Hospital Admissions  
b. Alcohol Attributed male Hospital Admissions 
c. Admission Episodes for Alcohol Attributed  Conditions  
d. Alcohol Related Recorded Crimes  
e. Alcohol Related Violent Crimes  
f. Alcohol Related Sexual Offences 

 
 

 
 

 
Figure 19 

 

Page 102



9.2 This next part of this section uses data produced by the London Ambulance 
Service to show the increase in alcohol related call outs in the Brick Lane area 
and the disproportionately high levels. Also demonstrated is the link between 
Alcohol Related Harm and the number of licensed premises 

 
9.3 It is difficult for the Police  to give exact numbers of Violent Incidents around 

Brick Lane area as under reporting of violence within all night time economy 
areas is generally accepted to be higher  than available data suggests. Less 
serious incidents are unlikely to attract police attention or warrant A&E 
attendance, and so often go unrecorded. The ‘hidden’ figure of violence, 
especially violence occurring inside pubs and clubs, is substantial (Shepherd 
and Brickley, 1996). Other research suggests that in 2003 A&E Data boosted 
the number of violent incidents by police data by 16%. It may be that venue 
staff are reluctant to report violence occurring on their premises for fear of 
inviting negative police attention and license revocation.  

 
9.4 The chart below (Figure 20) shows alcohol related ambulance callouts within 

the proposed Brick Lane Cumulative Impact zone. The data runs from 
January 2004 to Feb 2012. There is a clear correlation between the 
increasing number of licensed premises and the number of ambulance 
callouts.  

 

 
 

Figure 20 
 

9.5 The charts below (Figures 21,22 and 23) shows the increasing number 
alcohol related calls year on year ambulance callouts in the Borough. It also 
demonstrates that whilst the overall call out rate has increased by 47.4% 
since 2005 it has increased by 333% in the Brick Lane area.  

Page 103



 
 

Figure 21 
 

 

 
Figure 22 

 
Figure 23 

 
10.0 Other Cumulative Impact Areas in London 

Page 104



 
10.1 Cumulative Impact Areas are a widely used tool by many Local Authorities 

and more are applying for such Zones. 
 
10.2 The latest figures available show that there are 134 Cumulative Impact Areas 

within England and Wales. 29 areas are in the London Boroughs.  The 
indications are that the introduction of Cumulative Impact Areas effective in 
stabilising the stress and problems caused by high numbers of licensed 
premises in a confined area. The London Boroughs that have implemented 
special policies are as follows:- 

 

London Boroughs Number of Cumulative Impact Areas 

Croydon,  Redbridge and Hackney 1 

Bromley, Camden, Lewisham, Ealing, 
Merton and  Richmond 

2 

Bexley, Westminster and Southwark 3 

Greenwich 5 

 
 
10.3 The map below (Figure 24) also shows the location of Cumulative Impact 

Areas  in London. 
 

 
Figure 24 

11.0 Conclusions 
 
11.1 The proposed Cumulative Impact Area for Brick Lane is required because :- 
 

a. There are already over 207 Licensed Premises within this small area (22.8% 
of all premises within Tower Hamlets). 

Page 105



b. The continuing high levels of violent / alcohol related in the Brick Lane Area 
(2011 Violent Crime 30% of all Alcohol Related Crime) 

c. It is responsible for 8% of all crime within Tower Hamlets. 
d. There has been a steady increase in Notifiable offences   
e. There has been a steady increase in criminal damage and drug offences 
f. It is responsible for the highest level of complaints about street drinking 
g. 22% of all police calls to Licensed premises are in the Brick Lane Area 
h. There are clear demonstrable links between violence against the person 

offences and alcohol related violence in the Brick Lane Area.   
i. The highest rates of ASB in the Borough are in the Brick Lane Area 
j. ASB is now decreasing in the Borough and Brick Lane Area but it still is at 

unacceptably high levels  
k. LBTH has significantly worse alcohol related harm indicators compared with 

regional and national averages 
l. There is a steady increase in ambulance call outs in the Brick Lane Area 

 
11.2 The Brick Lane Area has a vibrant and expanding night time economy which 

has led to a sizeable and steady increase in visitors to the area. 
 
11.3 The increasing levels of crime, disorder, and alcohol related harm has meant 

the need to deploy increasing levels of resourcing by the Police, Local 
Authority and other partners.  

 
11.4 It is contended that the numbers of licensed premises have reached a 

saturation point and there is a need to stop any further licences being issued 
or variations being made. 

 
 
12.0 Draft Policy Principles for Consultation 
 
12.1 The Suggested Policy Principles for consultation are set out below:- 
 
 
PP1. The adverse ASB, Crime and public safety implications resulting from the 
cumulative impact of Licensed premises are sufficiently acute to justify a special 
licensing policy (a Cumulative Impact Zone) in the area comprising Brick Lane and 
its environs as set out in Figure 3 of this report.   
 
PP2. Within this area there will be presumption against additional licences being 
granted or varied in a way that would add to the adverse cumulative impact on the 
local community.  
 
PP.3 This presumption should relate to all premises that require a licence to sell 
alcohol including off licences. 
 
PP.4 This presumption should also relate to all premises that require a licence for 
late night refreshment 
 
PP.5 Any company or persons seeking a licence for late night refreshment or a 
license to sell alcohol or a variance to an existing licence for the same must 

Page 106



demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority that the proposal will not 
add to the cumulative adverse impact of in respect of : 

• Crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• Public nuisance. 
 

PP.6 The above policy principles relate only to those matters outlined by PP.5. 
Arguments supporting applications specific to demand or need are not relevant 
to the licensing considerations. These are issues more properly dealt with 
through the Planning process.  
 
PP.7 The Policies outlined here will not be used to revoke an existing licence.  
 
PP.8 These proposals will not impose quotas as this would prevent applications 
being considered on their merits and deny prospective applicants the opportunity 
to demonstrate that their proposals would not add to adverse cumulative impacts 
specific to the areas identified in PP5. This is not the purpose of the CIZ and any 
such quota based policy approach would, in any event, be likely to successful 
challenge.  
 
PP.9. The CIZ policies are not to be applied as the sole method of controlling 
cumulative impact. The Council will ensure that it will also apply other 
mechanisms both within and outside the remit of the licensing regime to do this.  
 
PP.10. In accordance with licensing guidance individual circumstances of the 
application and of those making representations will always be considered.   
 

 

 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

H
E

C
K

L
IS

T
  

 

N
a
m

e
 o

f 
‘p

ro
p

o
s
a
l’
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 h

a
s
 i
t 

b
e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
(p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 a

 p
o

lic
y
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
, 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
/s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l)
 

 

S
a
tu

ra
ti

o
n

 P
o

li
c

y
 –

 B
ri

c
k
 L

a
n

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 
C

L
C

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l)

 

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

 
D

a
v
id

 T
o

ll
e

y
 

S
ig

n
e
d

 O
ff

 B
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ta
g

e
 

 

 C
h

e
c
k
li

s
t 

A
re

a
 /

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 
Y

e
s
 /
 

N
o

 /
 

U
n

s
u

re
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
(I

f 
th

e
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

is
 n

o
/u

n
s
u

re
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 a

s
k
 

th
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

P
P

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 l
e
a
d

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

) 
 

1
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ro
p

o
s
a

l 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 c

le
a

r?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 d

ra
ft

 s
a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 B
ri
c
k
 

L
a

n
e

 a
re

a
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 U
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0

3
, 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 s
a
tu

ra
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

w
h

e
re

 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

lic
e
n

s
e

d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

c
ri
m

e
 

a
n

d
 d

is
o

rd
e

r,
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
, 
p

u
b

lic
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 n
u

is
a
n

c
e

).
  
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

o
lic

y
, 

it
 i
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

 a
re

a
 w

h
e

re
 a

 s
a

tu
ra

ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
 i
s
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
d

 (
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

Z
o
n

e
) 

a
n

d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 j
u

s
ti
fy

 a
 

p
o

lic
y
. 

  
 T

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t,

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 j
u

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
a

tu
ra

ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 
 I
f 

a
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 e

n
d
o

rs
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

Page 109



 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 m
u

s
t 
b

e
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
e

d
. 

 I
f 

th
e

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 

s
a

tu
ra

ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
a

t 
a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 i
m

p
o

s
e

 a
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
lic

e
n

c
e

 
g
ra

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 
Z

o
n
e

 (
Z

o
n
e

).
  

 
 

b
 

Is
 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

r 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 w

h
a

t 
is

 b
e

in
g
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 (

in
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
)?

 I
s
 

th
e

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

o
s
e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
?

  

Y
e

s
 

If
 a

 s
a

tu
ra

ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

th
e

 
p

o
lic

y
 w

o
u

ld
 a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 r

e
je

c
t 

c
e

rt
a

in
 l
ic

e
n

c
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

lic
e
n

s
e
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

Z
o
n

e
. 
  

 T
h
e

 p
o

w
e

r 
g
ra

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h
e

 P
o

lic
e
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
o

rd
e

r,
 p

u
b

lic
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 

n
u

is
a

n
c
e

, 
c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 o

c
c
u

rr
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
 i
n

 a
n
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 Z
o

n
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
b

e
n
e
fi
te

d
 b

y
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

  
 

 W
a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 d

a
ta

 e
x
is

ts
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 p
o
lic

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
  

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 
v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
b

 a
ls

o
 e

x
is

ts
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

y
. 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 Z
o

n
e

 w
ill

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 a

s
 n

o
rm

a
l 
e

v
e

n
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

Z
o
n

e
. 

 T
h

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 a
 

s
a
fe

r 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 
  

c
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

 n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

h
e

re
 N

O
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
?

 
P

le
a

s
e

 n
o

te
 –

 i
f 

a
 F

u
ll 

E
A

 i
s
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 s
c
re

e
n

 o
r 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 
th

a
t 

a
 p

ro
p
o

s
a
l 
h

a
s
 

N
o

 
T

h
is

 p
o

lic
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 d

ra
ft

 a
n
d

 s
u
b

je
c
t 
to

 p
u

b
lic

 /
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
O

n
ly

 w
h

e
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

fi
n

a
lis

e
 i
ts

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

im
p
a

c
ts

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

Page 110



 

n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
’ 
a

m
e
n

d
e

d
, 
a

 n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
to

 e
x
p

la
in

 t
h
e

 r
e
a
s
o

n
s
 

w
h

y
 a

n
d

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 

th
is

 p
o

lic
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 o

f 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u
p

s
. 

 
 

2
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 /

 C
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 /
 D

a
ta

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 r

e
lia

b
le

 q
u
a

lit
a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

la
im

s
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o

u
t 
im

p
a

c
ts

?
 

Y
e

s
 

A
 f

u
ll 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 d

a
ta

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

t 
a
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
b

u
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
e

s
 v

a
ry

 b
y
 c

ri
m

e
 o

r 
A

S
B

 i
n

c
id

e
n
t 

ty
p

e
. 

 

 
Is

 t
h

e
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l/
re

g
io

n
a

l/
n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 t
h

e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 u

s
e

. 
 

b
 

H
a

s
 a

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
tt
e
m

p
t 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 (
p

e
o

p
le

, 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

) 
h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
is

 p
o

lic
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 A

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 w

ill
 

b
e

 h
e

ld
, 

if
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 t

h
is

 d
ra

ft
 p

o
lic

y
. 

c
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d
 u

s
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l?
 

N
A

 
A

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

, 
if
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
s
 

th
is

 d
ra

ft
 p

o
lic

y
. 

3
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

re
 c

le
a

r 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
(i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 
d

a
ta

 e
tc

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 n
in

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
?

 

Y
e

s
 

 

 
Is

 t
h

e
re

 a
 c

le
a

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

p
p

lie
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 w

a
y
 c

a
n

 h
a

v
e

 u
n

e
q
u

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
?

 

Y
e

s
 

 

b
 

H
a

s
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 t
h

re
e

 
a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
) 

a
n

d
 

O
T

H
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
?

 
 

Y
e

s
 

 

4
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
a
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

?
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

b
 

A
re

 a
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 S

M
A

R
T

 (
S

p
e

c
if
ic

, 
M

e
a

s
u

ra
b

le
, 

A
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

, 
R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 T

im
e

 B
o

u
n
d

e
d

) 
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

Page 111



 

c
 

A
re

 t
h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 c

le
a
r?

 
N

A
 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

d
 

H
a

v
e

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

6
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

re
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

r 
a

u
d

it
 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l?
 

N
A

 
Y

e
s
 

b
 

Is
 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
o

 t
ra

c
k
 

im
p

a
c
t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
?

?
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

7
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

a
 

D
o

e
s
 t

h
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 c

o
n

ta
in

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 f
o

r 
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e

 

8
 

S
ig

n
 O

ff
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

a
 

H
a

s
 t

h
e
 L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 E
A

?
 

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 –

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 E
A

 a
n

d
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
h
e
 O

n
e

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 t

e
a

m
 

Y
e

s
 

 

  

  A
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 d

ra
ft

 s
a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 B
ri
c
k
 L

a
n

e
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
 U

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 
L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
2

0
0

3
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 s
a

tu
ra

ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

lic
e

n
s
e

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 o

n
 o

n
e

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 
d

is
o

rd
e

r,
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
, 
p

u
b

lic
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 n
u

is
a
n

c
e

).
  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

o
lic

y
, 

th
e
 a

re
a

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 c
le

a
rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 

(C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

Z
o
n

e
) 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
. 

  
 If

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
e

d
. 
 I
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
a

t 
a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 i
m

p
o

s
e

 a
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
lic

e
n

c
e

 g
ra

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

Z
o

n
e
 

(Z
o

n
e

).
 

 In
 t

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 
th

a
t 

a
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 
a

 f
u

ll 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

 
 

 
 

Page 112



 S
ig

n
a
tu

re
 

 
D

a
te

 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
y
o
u
r 

re
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 T
e
a
m

 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
5th December 
2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

 

Report No: 
 
CAB 52/123 

Report of:  

 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal 
Services) 
 
Originating officer(s) Afazul Hoque, 
Senior Strategy & Policy, Performance 
Officer  
 

Title:  

 
Establishing Healthwatch Tower Hamlets 
and Commissioning of Independent 
Complaints Advocacy Service 
 
Wards Affected: ALL 

 
Lead Member 
 

Adults Health & Wellbeing  

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Healthy and Supportive Community 

Strategic Priority 
 

Ensure that NHS reforms are implemented effectively 
locally  
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides Cabinet with an update on the local and national 

situation regarding the commissioning and establishment of Healthwatch 
Tower Hamlets and the commissioning of the NHS Independent Complaints 
Advocacy Service as required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Agree to the establishment of Healthwatch Tower Hamlets and authorise the 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) to enter into contract with the 
preferred bidder which will be known as Healthwatch Tower Hamlets.  

 
2.2 Agree that the Council enter into a pan-London Framework Agreement for 

the provision of NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy Service and 
authorise the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) to enter into 
contract with the preferred bidder.  

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires all local authorities with social 

care responsibilities to commission a local Healthwatch by 1st April 2013. 
Local Healthwatch organisations will replace Local Involvement Networks 
which have run since 2008. This report outlines the progress to date on 
establishing Healthwatch Tower Hamlets and sets out the next steps to 
ensure that in fulfilling these responsibilities we maximise the opportunity to 
improve health outcomes for local people.  

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 115



  

3.2 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also requires local authorities to 
commission a replacement   NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy 
Service (ICAS), with effect  from April 2013. At present the ICAS is a national 
service commissioned by the the Department of Health through 3 regional 
contracts. London is covered by one contract, with POhWER as the provider. 
This report outlines proposals for the Council to enter into a pan-London 
commissioning process to provide this service to ensure the current high 
quality service is maintained and that we maximise value for money.  

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The Department of Health has confirmed that there will be no guidance 

concerning the procurement of Local Healthwatch. There are two options: 
grant-in-aid/single tender or an open procurement. Although Healthwatch is 
considered to be a Part B service, which means it is exempt from the full  EU 
Procurement Law procedure , the Council remains under an obligation to 
demonstrate that it has fulfilled its statutory duty to obtain best value and 
compliance with the EU Treaty Principles by following a transparent and 
open procurement process. For these reasons, it is recommended to expose 
the contract to the market and so a full procurement exercise is undertaken. 

 

4.2 The Healthwatch Project Board has considered a range of options for the 
commissioning of the NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy Service which 
included: adding it to existing social care advocacy contracts; commissioning 
a borough based service and; joining a pan-London contract. The preferred 
option is based on ensuring a seamless service across London which 
minimises confusion for service users and therefore offers the most 
accessible service. A pan London service also offers strong value for money 
because 27 London boroughs have opted into the contract offering 
considerable economies of scale and a level of service which would be 
unaffordable if we were to procure the service on a borough basis.  The 
current ICAS employs specialise trained advocates to support some of the 
most vulnerable residents many of whom have complex complaints.  

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The health and social care landscape is going through considerable change 

amongst which are: the abolition of Primary Care Trusts and creation of a 
local GP led Clinical Commissioning Group with responsibility for 
commissioning of health services overseen by the local authority and  led by 
the Health & Wellbeing Board; the transfer of Public Health to local authorities 
and; at a local level, the merger of three local hospitals. In this context it is 
vital that effective and robust structures are put in place to champion the voice 
of residents on health and social care issues.   

 
5.2 The patient and public engagement field has gone through considerable 

change over the last 10 years. In 2003, the system of Community Health 
Councils, which had existed for 29 years, was abolished. In their place, a 
system of ‘Patients’ Forums’ was established, overseen by a Commission for 

Page 116



  

Patient and Public Involvement in Health (CPPIH) which was then abolished 
in 2008. The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
introduced the current system based on local involvement networks (LINks). 
LINks are community-based, locally accountable networks, designed to 
strengthen the patient, public and user voice in commissioning, provision and 
scrutiny of local services.  

 
5.3 From April 2013 local Healthwatches will be established in all local authority 

areas to:  
 

1. Provide information and advice to the public about accessing health and 
social care services and choice in relation to aspects of those services; 

2. Make the views and experiences of people known to Healthwatch 
England helping it to carry out its role as national champion; 

3. Make recommendations to Healthwatch England to advise the Care 
Quality Commission to carry out special reviews or investigations into 
areas of concern; 

4. Promote and support the involvement of people in the monitoring, 
commissioning and provision of local care services; 

5. Obtain the views of people about their needs for and experience of local 
care services and make those views known to those involved in the 
commissioning, provision and scrutiny of care services; 

6. Make reports and recommendations about how those services could or 
should be improved. 

 
LOCAL CONTEXT  

 
5.5 In Tower Hamlets, Urban Inclusion Community was commissioned by the 

Council in April 2008 to host the Tower Hamlets Involvement Network 
(THINk). THINk has a membership of over 1,000 people, and a core Steering 
Group made up of ten residents, five user group representatives and five 
community and voluntary group representatives. THINk gathers community 
intelligence though direct outreach, and makes sure that this intelligence is 
considered when health services are being designed or their performance is 
being assessed.  

 
5.6 An independent evaluation in 2010 and general feedback from users and 

statutory partners on THINk suggests that it has been performing well and 
achieved the agreed outcomes. THINk is recognised as being an effective 
partner in bringing the views of residents to the forefront of local health and 
social care service providers. It has built a strong volunteer base that leads on 
the work and provides clear evidence based reports and recommendations to 
the statutory sector. It is well recognised amongst other local stakeholders 
such as the community and voluntary sector. It is important to retain these 
strengths through the transition to Healthwatch Tower Hamlets whilst ensuring 
that in moving to Healthwatch we strengthen performance in areas where 
there is room for improvement..  

 
5.7 Health inequalities are a key issue for the borough with health outcomes for 

local people still falling short on the London average. We know that the high 

Page 117



  

levels of deprivation in the borough contribute to health inequalities, as does 
personal behaviour and a lack of access to treatment and services. Through 
the borough’s refreshed Community Plan the Tower Hamlets Partnership has 
identified a number of objectives to help make Tower Hamlets a healthier 
place. One of these objectives is ‘helping people to live healthier lives’ and a 
key way of achieving this is ensuring  residents experience informs the way in 
which health and social care policy and services are designed and 
commissioned to ensure people are able to access services which will meet 
their needs effectively.  In this context developing an effective and efficient 
Healthwatch will: 
 

• Engage local people so that they feel a greater sense of control and 
‘ownership’ over their health and social care services 

• Enable local people to become involved in decision making about local 
health and social care services 

• Provide an opportunity for local people to help others, by providing 
information and advice, develop social ties, and address local concerns 

• Strengthen the relationships between the statutory sector and service 
users of one of cooperation and collaboration  

• Contribute towards and develop public understanding and confidence in 
the local health and social care economy so it is used more effectively and 
efficiently  

• Support our commitment to ensuring health and social care services are 
accountable to local people and standard of care is maintained / improved  

 
5.8 The outline Health and Wellbeing Strategy that has been developed by the 

Tower Hamlets Health & Wellbeing Board illustrates the Board’s vision for 
improving health and wellbeing in Tower Hamlets. It details the principles that 
will underpin the full strategy and delivery plan as well as 4 priority areas. The 
vision of the strategy is ‘to improve health and wellbeing throughout all stages 
of life to reduce health inequalities and promote choice, control and 
independence’ and one of the important cross cutting themes to achieve this 
is “working better in partnership” which includes a focus on the involvement 
and engagement of local residents and service users in the commissioning, 
design and delivery of services. Healthwatch Tower Hamlets will play a 
proactive role in supporting the delivery of this strategy. 

   
6. DEVELOPING HEALTHWATCH TOWER HAMLETS  
 

6.1 The Healthwatch Project Board identified a range of stakeholders that needed 
to be engaged in the development of an effective and efficient Local 
Healthwatch. Through extensive engagement work with these stakeholders 
we heard a strong message that Healthwatch Tower Hamlets should build on 
the legacy of Tower Hamlets Involvement Network and have some of the 
following characteristics: 

• An independent resident led consumer champion on health and social 
care which is accountable to local stakeholders.  

• Reflects the diversity of the local community in its Board, Staff and 
Membership and actively address inequalities through its work 
programme  

Page 118



  

• A high profile local organisation recognised by a wide range of local 
stakeholders and able to influence decision making through its 
statutory role on the Health & Wellbeing Board  

• Has developed strategic partnerships and effective working 
relationships with organisations in the Tower Hamlets Partnership and 
other local and regional networks to address local health and social 
care priorities  

• Builds on the THINk legacy and fits into the wider engagement 
framework being developed in the borough 

• Develops innovative and creative ways of engaging the community 
which encourages and supports a range of local residents, 
patients/service users and carers to get involved 

 
6.3 Drawing on our consultation and engagement activity we have developed the 

following vision for Healthwatch Tower Hamlets:  

Healthwatch Tower Hamlets will be an independent resident led 
consumer champion on health and social care. It will be rooted in the 
local community, utilising existing networks and engagement pathways 
and developing creative and innovative ways to bring the voice of the 
diverse community to service providers/commissioners and make a real 
impact on service design and delivery.  
 

6.4 This vision and key characteristics have been used to develop the 
specification for Healthwatch Tower Hamlets. Organisations bidding for this 
contract will be expected to demonstrate their ability to meet the requirements 
of the specification in delivering the functions of Healthwatch and prove how 
their experience and expertise will enable them to deliver improvement for 
local people across a range of outcomes. The procurement process will be 
undertaken in line with the Council’s agreed procurement framework. The 
timetable for this is outlined below: 

 

• Advert Published – 1st October 2012 

• Supplier Event – 8th October 2012  

• PQQ Evaluation completed – 23rd November 2012  

• Tender Documentation Issued – 27th November 2012  

• Return of Tender Documentation 14th January 2013  

• Interview and Presentations – 8th February 2013 

• Award of contract – March 2013  
 
6.5 Once the contract has been awarded a monitoring programme will be 

developed to review the progress of establishing an effective and efficient 
Healthwatch. The payment of funding will be based on performance against 
key targets. 
FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS  

 
6.6 The government currently allocates £27 million each year to local authorities 

for LINks through the local government Formula Grant. In 2011-12 we 
received funding of £178,000 for THINk.  

 

Page 119



  

6.7 The Department of Health has announced that this funding will continue and 
additional money will be made available from 2013/14 to cover the costs of 
providing the new signposting and information function that local 
Healthwatches will have. Funding will also be made available to cover the 
costs of commissioning the ICAS service. Final funding levels will be 
announced in January 2013.  

 
6.8 The latest indication provided by the Department of Health states the Council 

will receive approximately the following additional annual amounts for the new 
functions: 

 

• Information and signposting element transferred from PCT PALS: 
£93,751 

 

• Independent Complaints Advocacy Service: £81,125 
 
7. NHS INDEPENDENT COMPLAINTS ADVOCACY SERVICE (ICAS) 

7.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 transfers the remit and funding from the 
Department of Health to local authorities to commission ICAS, with a 
replacement service required to be in place from April 2013. 
 

7.2 Direct complaints advocacy usually involves some or all of the following, 
depending on the needs and wishes of the client: 

• An opportunity to talk through the whole story with someone who is skilled 
and able to work with the client’s needs and issues; 

• Help to understand the complaints system and what can be expected of it; 

• Information about the standards that the client might have expected of the 
service complained about; 

• Help to obtain medical records; 

• Accessing medico legal clarification, if needed; 

• Help to consider options and outcomes; 

• Help in writing complaints letters; 

• Support to attend meetings; 

• Help to follow up on promised action. 
 
7.3 In June 2012 the Mayor indicated that he was prepared  to commission ICAS 

separately to the Local Healthwatch as is the practice in most local authorities 
in the country and is the preferred option of the Tower Hamlets Involvement 
Network. However, there is a clear commitment to ensure that information 
from ICAS helps formulates Healthwatch Tower Hamlets work programme 
and there is a positive working relationship.  
 

7.4 The Council is part of a London Wide Healthwatch and ICAS Commissioning 
Network which is supported by the Joint Improvement Partnership and NHS 
London. A sub-group from this Network has developed proposals for a 
London wide service with 27 boroughs indicating support for a pan-London 
contract. The procurement process is being led by the London Borough of 

Page 120



  

Hounslow. 
 

7.5 The contract will be on a Framework Agreement which will allow individual 
councils to buy services they require in line with local demand. Service users 
will be able to access face to face, telephone and web based support.  

7.6 This model of service will require the provider to: have a local presence; to 
advertise locally and; to work with existing networks and NHS organisations to 
ensure local residents are able to access the service. The draft Service 
Specification also outlines a requirement for local reporting to Healthwatch 
and Health & Wellbeing Boards. Each borough will receive quarterly 
monitoring reports, be able to adjust local service provision and be able to 
withdraw from the contract on a notice period.  

The timetable for awarding the contract for the pan-London ICAS service is 
set out below:  

Activity  Deadline  

Final Agreement to participate  18th November 2012  

Service Specification Development  Oct-Nov 2012   

London wide Project Group to finalise Procurement 
paperwork   

16th November 2012  

Procurement Process  Nov 2012 – Mar 2013   

Launch of new ICAS Contract  April 2013  

 

7.7 As Commissioner of the ICAS service for Tower Hamlets the Council is key 
partner within the London wide contract and we have been able to influence 
the procurement process to ensure that the service will be able to meet the 
needs of our diverse local community. We will also have a direct contractual 
relationship with the service provider(s) in regards to monitoring and review of 
service. We will also expect Healthwatch Tower Hamlets to have an overview 
of the issues and outcomes from the delivery of this service in order to inform 
their work programme. 

 
8. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
8.1 This report describes the developments for the commissioning and 

establishment by the Council of Healthwatch Tower Hamlets and also the 
creation of an independent complaints advocacy service under the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012 from April 2013.  

 
8.2 In 2012-13 the Council has already received £17,873 for the set-up costs of 

the local Healthwatch and is expected to receive further grant funding of 
£245,000 for the costs of Healthwatch and £81,125 for an independent 
complaints advocacy service in 2013-14. Currently, the Council provides a 
community based forum for public and user consultation through its THINk 
contract funded by £178,000 grant from government that will be replaced by 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets. 

Page 121



  

 
8.3 If the Council agrees further action in response to this report’s 

recommendations then officers will be obliged to seek the appropriate 
financial approval before further financial commitments are made. 

 

9. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
9.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 proposes amendments to the Local 

Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  Whilst it is expected 
that the relevant changes considered here will take effect from 1 April 2013, 
the provisions have not yet been commenced and work is being carried out in 
anticipation of the changes taking effect. 
 

9.2 The Council will be required to make contractual arrangements for the 
purpose of ensuring there are means by which specified activities can be 
carried on in Tower Hamlets.  The required activities are – 

 

• Promoting and supporting the involvement of local people in the 
commissioning, provision and scrutiny of local care services. 

• Enabling local people to monitor and review the commissioning and 
provision of local care services. 

• Obtaining the views of local people about their needs for, and their 
experiences of, local care services. 

• Making such views known and making reports and recommendations 
about how local care services could or ought to be improved. 

• Providing advice and information about access to local care services 
and about choices that may be made with respect to aspects of those 
services. 

• Reaching views on the standard of local care services and whether and 
how these could or ought to be improved. 

• Making those views known to Healthwatch England committee of the 
Care Quality Commission. 

• Making recommendations to the Healthwatch England committee to 
advise the Commission about special reviews or investigations to 
conduct. 

• Making recommendations to the Healthwatch England committee to 
publish reports about particular matters. 

• Giving such assistance to the Healthwatch England committee as it 
may require to carry out its functions. 

 

9.3 It is intended that the obligation on the Council will be to make arrangements 
with a body corporate which is a social enterprise and which satisfies such 
criteria as may be prescribed by regulations made by the Secretary of State.  
To date the Department of Health has consulted on the necessary 
regulations, but has not yet published them.   
 

Page 122



  

9.4 The Council will be required by section 223A of the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 to make such arrangements as it 
considers appropriate for the provision of independent advocacy services in 
Tower Hamlets.  The Council may make payments to the person providing the 
services or arranging the provision of the services.  The services may not be 
provided by a local Healthwatch organisation. 
 

9.5 Independent advocacy services are services providing assistance, by way of 
representation or otherwise, to persons making or intending to make 
complaints of specified kinds in relation to health services.  In making its 
arrangements, the Council must have regard to the principle that the provision 
of services should, so far as practicable, be independent of any person who is 
the subject of a relevant complaint or who is involved in investigating or 
adjudicating on such a complaint. 
 

9.6 When procuring the local Healthwatch organisation and independent 
advocacy services, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate 
unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of 
opportunity and the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  The Council’s procurement 
procedures make provision for these matters to be taken into account in the 
procurement process.  Information relevant to these considerations is 
provided in the report. 

 
9.7 As this is a procurement process the Council has to establish a level playing 

field amongst potential tenderers and therefore will not discuss the new 
contract with the existing provider once the decision to procure has been 
taken by Cabinet, as this would be in breach of procurement law. Any 
meetings with the existing provider will be minuted and will be restricted to 
matters relating to the existing contract.  

 
9.8 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council as a best 

value authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 
the way in which its functions are exercised. 

 
10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
10.1 Key to developing a Local Healthwatch will be to ensure that it is able to 

reflect the voice and concerns of the diverse population of the borough. A 
key requirement will be for the organisation to ensure this is reflected in its 
membership and its work programme. The Local Healthwatch will provide 
services to individuals through advice and information. This will be open to 
all but are likely to be particularly valuable to people who face barriers to 
finding out about services and their rights: including people with learning 
disabilities, mental health service users, people without internet access and 
residents whose first language is not English or who find reading difficult.  

 
10.2 The Local Healthwatch will enable local people to take on a community 

leadership role in the health and social care sector and therefore influence 

Page 123



  

commissioning and delivery of services according to local needs. Tackling 
health inequalities will be central to the work of the Local Healthwatch 
through their involvement in Health & Wellbeing Board, preparation of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
10.3 The Local Healthwatch will be subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty 

under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and should prepare and publish 
an equality policy showing how they will meet the duty.  

 
10.4 The NHS ICAS provider will be expected to provide an accessible service 

which meets the needs of our diverse community. The provider will be 
monitored on accessibility of the service by different groups of residents.  

 
11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
11.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report but organisations 

commissioned will be expected to be mindful of the Council’s policy on 
sustainability.  

 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
12.1 The Council has a statutory responsibility to commission Healthwatch Tower 

Hamlets and NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy Service. This has 
been undertaken with the involvement of key stakeholders to ensure it is 
able to have these services in place by April 2013. A risk register has been 
established as part of the project management process and these are 
reviewed to ensure they are managed effectively.  

 
13. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from the award 

 of the contracts set out in this report. 
 

14. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
14.1 The establishment of Healthwatch Tower Hamlets will enable greater 

engagement and involvement of local residents in the health and social care 
economy and thereby ensuring these services meet the needs of the local 
community. The information and signposting function of Healthwatch will 
enable more effective access of resources by local residents which will help 
reduce costs to service providers.  

 
14.2 The Pan-London Framework is the most efficient route for the 

commissioning of the NHS Independent Complaints Advocacy Services. It 
will allow the Council to benefit from economies of scale through the 
framework at the same time as ensuring the delivery of an accessible 
service.  

 
15. APPENDICES 
 

Page 124



  

Appendix 1 – Healthwatch Tower Hamlets, Report of Stakeholder Engagement 
Activity  

 
 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None 
 
 

Afazul Hoque Tel: 020 7364 4636 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



  

 

Appendix 1 

Healthwatch Tower Hamlets  
Report of Stakeholder Engagement Activity  

June – July 2012  
 

1. Background  
 
1.2 The Council identified a range of stakeholders that needed to be engaged in the 

development of an effective and efficient Local Healthwatch. It was noted that the 
THINk was one of the better performing LINKs and the development of the 
Healthwatch was an opportunity to build on the legacy of THINk and this was the key 
aim of the engagement activities undertaken.  

 
1.3 This report presents the findings from the engagement with those groups/individuals. 

The consultation included the following: 
 

• On-Line Survey – Accompanied by 2 articles in East End Life and e-mail to a 
range of third sector organisations  

• THINk AGM & Steering Group meetings  

• Consultation with existing groups – Third Sector Health & Wellbeing Forum, 
Older Peoples Reference Group, Youth Council, Rainbow Hamlets, Interfaith 
Forum, Accessible Transport Forum 

• Consultation with Statutory Partners – Barts Health NHS, East London 
Foundation Trust, Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group, Tower 
Hamlets Public Health Department 

• Formal Groups – Health & Wellbeing Board, Health Scrutiny Panel & focus 
group with representatives from Children & Families Partnership Board.  

• Three information events at Bow, Whitechapel and Chrisp Street Idea Stores.  
 
2. Summary Findings of the Questionnaire  
 

a. Equality profile of those completing the questionnaire:  
Gender: Male – 36, Female 36  
Age: 25-34 (18), 35-44 (14), 55-64 (11), 65+ (11) and 16-24 (10) 
Disability: Yes (20), No (54) 
Ethnicity: White British (31), Bangladeshi (21), Somali (6) 
Area: E1 (23), E2 (22), E14 (15) 

 
2.2 A total of 91 residents completed the on-line survey or the hard copy at the three 

information events at the Idea stores.  
 

Q1) Do you feel you have a say in the Health and Social Care services that 
operate in Tower Hamlets? 

 
89 residents answered this question with 32.6% (29) saying ‘Yes’ and 67.4% (60) 
saying ‘No’. 

 
46 of the respondents commented that they did not know how to have a say.  

 
Q2) Have you tried to access information about Health and Social Care 

Services in Tower Hamlets? 
 

Page 126



  

89 residents answered this question with 53.9% (48) saying ‘Yes’ and 46.1% (41) 
saying ‘No’. 

 
 38 respondents commented that they would go to their GP for information.  

Q3) Are you aware of or have you been involved with the Tower Hamlets 
Involvement Network (THINk)? 

 
88 residents answered this question with 37.5% (33) saying ‘Yes’ and 62.5% (55) 
saying ‘No’. 

 
This question was also asked to users of the Learning Disability Day Care Services 
with the following response.  
 
26 Responses with 15 saying Yes and 11 saying No.  

 
Q4)  How effective do you feel the THINk has been at identifying and 

addressing the key Health and Social Care issues in Tower Hamlets? 
 

49 residents answered this question with 40.8% (20) saying that it is ‘Not effective’. 
36.7% (18) said it is ‘Very effective’ and 22.4% (11) said it has ‘limited 
effectiveness’. 

 
Almost half chose to skip this question which implies that they have not heard of 
THINk and so could not answer this question.   

 
Q5) What would encourage you to get involved as a volunteer in 

Healthwatch? 
 
84 residents answered this question, the top three choices are as follows: ‘Knowing 
that I can make a real difference’ (54), ‘Making getting involved fun’ (17), 
‘Developing my own skills’ (14). 

 
Q6) The Local Healthwatch will need to be inclusive so that it operates for 

the benefits of all members of its local community.  Which of the 
following do you think will help Local Healthwatch to achieve this 
function? 

 
51 residents answered this question, the top three choices are as follows: 
‘Consulting regularly with residents’ (18), ‘Supporting people to voice their 
views and concerns about health and social care services’ (16) and ‘Working 
with other local organisations and community groups’ (13).  

 
Q7)  Which of the following do you think are important in making Local 

Healthwatch effective, efficient and accountable to the residents of 
Tower Hamlets 

 
46 residents answered this question, the top three choices are as follows: ‘An active 
organisation trusted with visible leaders, respected and accountable to local 
people and recognised as statutory route for patients and the public to express 
their views’ (12), ‘Work positively and in partnership with local people and 
commissioners’ (13), ‘Reaches out to individuals and groups who find it 
difficult to express and communicate their views and choices. Ensure support 
is available for people who are unable to make choices for themselves’ (13). 

 

Page 127



  

Q8)  The following is a list of services that Healthwatch will offer- how would 
you prioritise these service? 

 
89 residents answered this question the top three choices are as follows: ‘Inspection 
of services’ (31), ‘Influencing decision-making by health and social care 
organisations’ (30), ‘Report and research on local health and social care 
issues’ (22)  

 
3. Summary Findings of discussions with Statutory Partners  
 
3.1 The discussions with health partners raised a number of points relating to THINk and 

issues for consideration in developing the local Healthwatch. These are summarised 
below:  

 

THINk 
 

Healthwatch 

• Positive relationships with a 
range of stakeholders  

• Good pieces of work 

• Brining the voice and concerns 
of local residents  

• Independent voice of local 
residents 

• Contributed to key partnership 
work such as JSNA & Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy  

• Information presented to 
service providers in a useful 
format  

• Mental Health Sub Group very 
useful  

 
 

• Mental Health Sub Group to continue  

• Mental Health remains high on their agenda  

• Cross borough working between Local Healthwatch 
particularly in East London 

• Undertake Enter and View Visits  

• Continue improvement to comments on Quality Accounts  

• Develop a better balance between critical comments and 
positive feedback  

• Develop work around children’s services  

• Need to be embedded into the commissioning process  

• Develop strategic view of health and social care to help 
prioritise their work programme  

• Develop relationships with existing community leaders  

• Role in health prevention and promotion – Opportunity For 
HW Members to complete Royal Society of Public Health 
Level 2  

• Use of technology to reach a wider audience  

• HW work programme needs sign up from range of 
stakeholders  

• HW need utilise role on HWBB to influence and make 
changes  

• Develop local information/ intelligence into actions and 
solutions for HWBB 

• Develop innovative and creative ways to engage local 
people in JSNA process  

• HW info and advice element need to work with existing 
provision to avoid duplication and develop a more pro-
active approach to this  

• Diversity of HW needs to reflect the local community and 
life course approach  

• HW needs to work with schools, parents and special 
interest groups 

• HW can takeover the ‘Tell Us’ Survey and ‘You Are 
Welcome’ Inspection  

• Needs to be commissioned locally with strong local 
experience, knowledge and connections 

 

Page 128



  

4. Summary of feedback from Community and Third Sector  
 
4.1 The summary of the discussions with the Tower Hamlets Council for Voluntary Sector 

and the Tower Hamlets Third Sector Health and Well-being Forum is outlined below: 
 

THINk 
 

Healthwatch 

• THINk has undertaken 
substantial amount of work  

• Recognised locally for their 
work  

• One of the more effective LINKs 
in the country  

 
 

• HW need to be part of the solution and take ownership of 
their part in decision making  

• Diversity of HW needs to reflect the local community  

• Strengthen working relationship with third sector and in 
particular with the Health and Wellbeing Forum  

• Make Healthwatch much more visible so its recognised 
locally  

• Needs to be commissioned locally with strong local 
experience, knowledge and connections  

 
5. Summary of feedback from existing groups  
 
5.1 This section summarises the key issues highlighted from the range of discussions with 

existing groups in the borough.  
 

THINk 
 

Healthwatch 

• Efficient organisation 

• Undertaken some excellent 
projects and produced good 
reports such as the Long Term 
Conditions report 

 
 

• HW needs to play a greater role in providing information 
and scrutinising social care  

• HW play an integral role in supporting residents disclose 
their equality information 

• HW undertake pieces of work that focus on particular 
communities  

• HW Board should include young people representatives 
and disabled people 

• HW publicity needs to be much wider to ensure it is visible 
locally  

• HW should have a communication lead  

• HW activities should be widely accessible ie high street, 
super markets  

• HW reach to diverse communities is critical to ensure it is 
able to improve services locally  

• HW should receive regular updates on complaints from 
service providers  

• Children Centres is a useful way of getting parents and 
families involved  

• HW need to demonstrate impact of people getting involved 

• HW needs to use different methods to engage different 
groups  

• Incentives may be needed for different groups to get 
involved  

• HW needs to take a role in lobbying in local service 
providers and national government  

• HW needs to be much more dynamic with people with 
energy and creativity involved in its running  

 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee/Meeting: 

Cabinet 
 

Date: 

5th December 
2012 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 

 

Report No: 
 
CAB 53/123 

Report of: 

Corporate Director: Isobel Cattermole 

Originating officer(s) Vicky Allen 

Title:  

Reviewing the impact of the Children’s 
Centres restructure – report of the Scrutiny 
Working Group 

Wards Affected: All wards 

 
 

Lead Member Cllr Oliur Rahman, Lead Member for Children’s Services 
 

Community Plan Theme A Great Place to Live 

Strategic Priority Improving educational aspiration and attainment 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report submits the report and action plan in response to the 

review recommendations of the Scrutiny Working Group on Reviewing 
the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure. 

 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 

The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Consider this report of the scrutiny working group and agree the 

action plan in response to the review recommendations. 
 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 

3.1 Significant reductions in both revenue and capital budgets has meant 
that the council has had to seek savings from every part of the 
organisation.  Due to the speed of the change, the national climate of 
service cuts, and the difficulty many Members and parents had in 
accessing information about the restructure, the scrutiny review group 
sought to assess the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure.   

3.2 The purpose of the review was to gain a strategic overview of the 
restructure of Children’s Centres and to test the Council’s assertion 
that it has impacted minimally on service users, and to ensure that 
this is communicated in an accessible way to parents / carers, other 
users and stakeholders and Members.   

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 131



4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 

4.1 To take no action.  This is not recommended as the proposed 
recommendations are strategic, measurable and attainable, and 
clearly address the council’s need to better communicate its decision 
making with residents and Members.  A timetable for delivering the 
recommendations has also been agreed by officers at the most senior 
levels of the organisation.  The action plan is outlined in appendix 1. 

4.2 To agree some, but not all recommendations.  As outlined above all of 
the recommendations are achievable at little additional cost to the 
organisation.  Although the scrutiny review group is confident all the 
recommendations will be addressed, there may be reasons for not 
accepting all of them. 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Working Group was established in February 2012 to review the 

impact of the Children’s Centres restructure.   
 
5.2 The objectives of the review was to test the following perceptions for 

accuracy following the lack of clear communications about the 
changes: 

 

• That service provision has become patchy, geographically less 
accessible to users and offers a smaller range of services than 
before; 

• That the move to targeting the offer to more vulnerable families 
has led to a reduction in universal provision which has begun to 
impact on community cohesion in some areas; 

• Whether a reduction in back office staff has resulted in frontline 
staff having to undertake administrative activities, and spending 
less time with service users as a consequence; and 

• That it is difficult for parents to become fully involved as key 
stakeholders in children’s centres (eg. Parent Networks are not 
fully used).  

 
6. BODY OF REPORT 

 
The report afforded an opportunity for Members to access information about 
the restructure itself, the services on offer and patterns of use before and after 
the changes, and the views held by parents and staff about the service.  The 
review makes nine recommendations to improve this area of council work: 
 
R1.  Improve proactive communications to Members, by 

• Democratic Services working with Corporate Communications to 
develop the Members’ intranet pages as a dissemination tool for 
key ward-based and council-wide information, exploring the 

Page 132



possibilities within the current IT system, and tying any full scale 
re-development in the upcoming refresh of the intranet by ICT. 

• Service areas working with the Internal Communications team to 
provide briefings and seminars at the start and end of future 
restructures. 

• Children, Schools, and Families to provide Members with 
information on the complaints mechanisms available to parents, 
and ensure this information is clearly available to parents via the 
internet. 

• The Early Years service to provide briefings and seminars on 
the extension of provision for disadvantaged 2 years olds. 

 
 R2. Directorate DMTs to work with Communication Leads to improve 

proactive communications to residents, by 

• Ensuring user engagement is fitted into all restructure or review 
consultation periods where appropriate, recognising that this 
cannot be before consulting with the staff directly affected.   

• Providing holding information to parents and other key 
stakeholders at the start of the review process in order to 
mitigate concern and rumours. 

 
R3. The Children, Schools and Families Directorate to sustain and enhance 

the excellent service provision on offer, by  

• Ensuring there are no further cuts to funding for the children’s 
centres service. 

• Considering how to increase the number of sessions which are 
both welcoming and suitable for parents with children of different 
ages 

• Publicising the services on offer in new Children’s Centres which 
could alleviate the distance some families have to travel 

 
R4. The Learning and Achievement Service to publicise the range of 

available sessions and the Council’s policy for allocating spaces when 
there is high demand more clearly to parents. 

 
R5. The Learning and Achievement Service to review job descriptions, job 

title and salary scale of the Office Assistants / Receptionists posts, to 
ensure the grade is commensurate with the job activities and additional 
responsibilities, and recognises the front line nature of the job. Review 
the capacity across the service for 2012/13 and increase where 
necessary.  

 
R6. Recognising the importance of robust data collection, the Learning and 

Achievement Service to undertake a business process improvement 
exercise with the aim of streamlining what data is captured and how it 
is collected, input and analysed. 

 
R7. The Learning and Achievement Service to prioritise additional training 

to Children’s Centres staff to build capacity and resilience during times 
of strain such as sickness absence and annual leave. 

Page 133



 
R8. Whilst recognising the importance of traditional methods of 

communications, and the cut in the advertising budget, the Learning 
and Achievement Service to improve and expand communications to 
parents by 

• increasing the use of creative communications such as e-mail, 
text and social media as an efficient and cost effective way of 
communicating with parents 

• using Parent Forums to review both printed communications and 
that which is displayed within Children’s Centres, in order to 
ensure they communicate clearly the entire offer to both children 
and parents, including adults’ services and children’s sessions 
for mixed ages 

• widening the reach of written publicity to include more venues 
such as doctors surgeries, school noticeboards and chemists. 

 
R9. The Learning and Achievement Service to facilitate the engagement of 

a wide range of parents in governance, by 

• providing a programme of training for Community Development 
Workers and other staff as appropriate, to become capable and 
confident facilitators of Parents Forums who can recruit and 
support a range of parents to become involved 

• providing a programme of training and capacity-building for 
parents, including understanding of their role and responsibilities 
within the governance model, with a particular focus on those 
less likely to come forward for such positions 

• ensuring the Governance Model is user friendly and not unduly 
bureaucratic. 

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 This report describes the analysis and recommendations of the 

Working Group’s review of the impact of the restructure of children’s 
centres.  

 
7.2 The Council’s funding from central government has reduced since 

2010-11 and will continue to reduce over the next four years. This will 
therefore affect any recommendations agreed and any additional costs 
that arise from the recommendations must be contained within 
directorate revenue budgets, specifically, recommendation R5 to 
review job grades for posts and R9 to introduce training programs. 
Consequently, officers will be obliged to seek the appropriate financial 
approval before further financial commitments are made. 
 

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1 The Council is required by section 9Fof the Local Government Act 

2000 to have an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to have 

Page 134



executive arrangements that ensure the committee has specified 
powers.  Consistent with this obligation, Article 6 of the Council’s 
Constitution provides that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may 
consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants and may 
make reports and recommendations to the Full Council or the 
Executive in connection with the discharge of any functions.  It is 
consistent with the Constitution and the statutory framework for the 
Executive to provide a response. 

 
8.2 The Council is obliged under the Childcare Act 2006 to make 

arrangements, so far as is reasonably practicable, for sufficient 
provision of children’s centres to meet local need.  The Act defines the 
limits and extent of the Council’s duty. 

 
8.3 Pursuant to section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

Council is required to appoint such officers as it thinks necessary for 
the proper discharge of its functions.  The Council is required to 
comply with employment legislation, the Equality Act 2010, national 
agreements and its own policies and procedures in appointing and 
managing its staff.  In relation to the recommendations contained in 
the report, the Council’s procedure on handling organizational change 
will be particularly relevant.  Any consideration of grades will have to 
be supported by relevant evidence. 

 
8.4 To the extent that staff have transferred to the Council, the Transfer of 

Undertakings (Protection of Employees) Regulations 2006 will apply.  
Any proposed harmonisation of, or changes to, terms and conditions 
would have to be carried out in accordance with the Regulations, 
including by justifying any changes in accordance with the specified 
economic, technical or organizational criteria. 

 
8.5 Any disclosure of information under the action plan must be carried 

out having regard to the Council’s information governance framework 
and the requirements of relevant legislation, particularly the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

 
8.6 Before agreeing the action plan or implementing it, the Council must 

have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the 
Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the 
need to foster good relations between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who don’t.  Information is set out in section 9 
of the report relevant to these considerations. 
 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Children’s Centres play a key role in delivering the One Tower Hamlets 

principles because their core offer, as outlined by the government, is 
to improve outcomes for young children and their families, with a 
particular focus on the most disadvantaged families, in order to 
reduce inequalities in child development and school readiness.  The 

Page 135



value of children mixing with others from different backgrounds and 
communities is viewed as positive by service users. 

 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 There are no direct environmental implications arising from the report 

or recommendations. 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1. There are no direct risk management implications arising from the 

report or recommendations.  Risks relating to the recommendations will 
be monitored through the council’s corporate risk register and 
directorate risk registers. Risks are assessed for likelihood and impact, 
and will have responsible owners and programmes of mitigating 
actions. 
 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 

12.1 There are no direct implications of crime and disorder as a result of 
the recommendations of this review.  

 
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
13.1 One of the objectives of the review was to test the claim that the 

reduction in back office staff had resulted in frontline staff having to 
undertake administrative activities, and spending less time with 
service users as a consequence 

 

14. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Scrutiny review action plan 

 

 

 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 

 

Page 136



APPENDIX ONE 
 
 

Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 
 

Scrutiny Working Group Report 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
April 2012 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Acknowledgements 

 
The Working Group would like to thank all the officers and partners that 
supported this Review, particularly Vicky Allen for her ongoing support and 
diligence. Most importantly we would like to thank all of the Children’s Centres 
users and staff who offered their input to the Review. These views and 
perspectives have been fundamental in shaping the final recommendations of 
this Report. 
 
Working Group Chair: 
Councillor Amy Whitelock 
 
Working Group Members: 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs 
Councillor Zara Davis 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
Jake Kemp (Co-optee) 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets: 
Anne Canning Service Head Learning & Achievement 
Monica Forty Head of Achievement, Birth – 11, Learning and 

Achievement Service 
Mohammed Jolil Children’s Centre Locality Lead 
Paula Holt Children’s Centre Locality Lead 
Jo Freeman Children’s Centre Locality Lead 
Amanda Hicks Children’s Centre Locality Lead 
Sheikh Ahmed Around Poplar Children’s Centre Lead 
Jill McGinley Head of Parent & Family Support 
 
 
Strategy, Policy & Performance: 
Vicky Allen         Chief Executive’s Directorate 
Harriet Potemkin        Children’s Schools & Families 
 
External: 
None, it was not possible to find an expert witness within the timescales of this 
review. 
 
 

Page 138



  9 

Chair’s Foreword 

 
Children’s centres are one of our most important frontline services, bringing 
children and families together from across our communities and providing vital 
support for the most vulnerable. The extent to which children’s centres are 
cherished and relied upon by parents and children was clear from the level of 
concern and confusion which arose surrounding the Mayor’s decision to 
restructure the service in 2011. 
 
I was therefore grateful to my colleagues on Overview and Scrutiny for 
agreeing to prioritise a scrutiny review into the process and impact of the 
children’s centres restructure. Due to the speed of the change, the national 
climate of service cuts, and the difficulty many Members and parents had in 
accessing information about the restructure, it was important to shine a light 
on this area of service provision. 
 
The review afforded the first opportunity for Members to access detailed 
information about the restructure itself, the services on offer and patterns of 
use before and after the changes, and the views held by parents and staff 
about the service. I am grateful to my colleagues on the review working group 
for their diligence and to staff and parents for their invaluable input. We were 
particularly impressed by the frontline staff we met who displayed such 
commitment and passion for their work. 
 
Overall, our findings present a mixed picture. On the one hand, despite 
assurances at the time of no impact on the frontline, we observed a reduction 
in the number of classes on offer since the restructure of around a third. In 
addition, removing two levels of management has meant frontline staff are 
now performing additional back office responsibilities, which can take them 
away from their frontline duties.  
 
However, it appears this impact has not yet been felt by parents, with the 
latest Parent Voice survey showing 94% of parents are happy with the 
activities on offer for families. We found this is down to staff in children’s 
centres going the extra mile to continue providing an excellent service, so 
parents and children do not see the impact of the restructure. The flipside is 
that now staff are very stretched and there is less flex and capacity in the 
system. 
 
The review working group recognises the pressures on the service and the 
drivers for the restructure, particularly in light of significant cuts to central 
Government funding for children’s centres and the council’s general budget. 
However, we are concerned about the impact that the service, and particularly 
staff, has already sustained.  
 
In view of the demand and popularity of children’s centres among parents and 
the existing pressures on staff, we strongly recommend the service is 
protected from further cuts, so it does not reach breaking point. We have also 
made recommendations to improve the process of communicating 
restructures internally and externally, address staff capacity issues and 

Page 139



  10 

strengthen parental engagement. We hope these will enable the service to 
sustain the high quality provision currently provided to our families. 
 
Councillor Amy Whitelock 
Chair of Working Group and Scrutiny Lead, Children’s Schools & 
Families 

Page 140



  11 

Report Recommendations 
 
R1.  Improve proactive communications to Members, by 

•    Democratic Services working with Corporate Communications to 
develop the Members’ intranet pages as a dissemination tool for 
key ward-based and council-wide information, exploring the 
possibilities within the current IT system, and tying any full scale re-
development in the upcoming refresh of the intranet by ICT. 

• Service areas working with the Internal Communications team to 
provide briefings and seminars at the start and end of future 
restructures. 

•    Children, Schools, and Families to provide Members with 
information on the complaints mechanisms available to parents, 
and ensure this information is clearly available to parents via the 
internet. 

•    The Early Years service to provide briefings and seminars on the 
extension of provision for disadvantaged 2 years olds. 

 
  

R2. Directorate DMTs to work with Communication Leads to improve 
proactive communications to residents, by 

• Ensuring user engagement is fitted into all restructure or review 
consultation periods where appropriate, recognising that this 
cannot be before consulting with the staff directly affected.   

• Providing holding information to parents and other key 
stakeholders at the start of the review process in order to 
mitigate concern and rumours. 

 
R3. The Children, Schools and Families Directorate to sustain and enhance 

the excellent service provision on offer, by  

• Ensuring there are no further cuts to funding for the children’s 
centres service. 

• Considering how to increase the number of sessions which are 
both welcoming and suitable for parents with children of different 
ages 

• Publicising the services on offer in new Children’s Centres which 
could alleviate the distance some families have to travel 

 
R4. The Learning and Achievement Service to publicise the range of 

available sessions and the Council’s policy for allocating spaces when 
there is high demand more clearly to parents. 

 
R5. The Learning and Achievement Service to review job descriptions, job 

title and salary scale of the Office Assistants / Receptionists posts, to 
ensure the grade is commensurate with the job activities and additional 
responsibilities, and recognises the front line nature of the job. Review 
the capacity across the service for 2012/13 and increase where 
necessary.  

 

Page 141



  12 

R6. Recognising the importance of robust data collection, the Learning and 
Achievement Service to undertake a business process improvement 
exercise with the aim of streamlining what data is captured and how it 
is collected, input and analysed. 

 
R7. The Learning and Achievement Service to prioritise additional training 

to Children’s Centres staff to build capacity and resilience during times 
of strain such as sickness absence and annual leave. 

 
R8. Whilst recognising the importance of traditional methods of 

communications, and the cut in the advertising budget, the Learning 
and Achievement Service to improve and expand communications to 
parents by 

• increasing the use of creative communications such as e-mail, 
text and social media as an efficient and cost effective way of 
communicating with parents 

• using Parent Forums to review both printed communications and 
that which is displayed within Children’s Centres, in order to 
ensure they communicate clearly the entire offer to both children 
and parents, including adults’ services and children’s sessions 
for mixed ages 

• widening the reach of written publicity to include more venues 
such as doctors surgeries, school noticeboards and chemists. 

 
R9. The Learning and Achievement Service to facilitate the engagement of 

a wide range of parents in governance, by 

• providing a programme of training for Community Development 
Workers and other staff as appropriate, to become capable and 
confident facilitators of Parents Forums who can recruit and 
support a range of parents to become involved 

• providing a programme of training and capacity-building for 
parents, including understanding of their role and responsibilities 
within the governance model, with a particular focus on those 
less likely to come forward for such positions 

• ensuring the Governance Model is user friendly and not unduly 
bureaucratic. 

 

Page 142



  13 

Introduction 

 
The national landscape has changed considerably since the introduction of 
children’s centres. The coalition Government have reduced overall funding for 
family support services, and directed all funding through the Early Intervention 
Grant. It has also re-designed the early years curriculum to make it more 
focused on ensuring children start school ready and able to learn.  
 
In order to respond to these changes and tailor services to reflect local needs, 
the council redesigned its children’s centres to focus on providing increased 
support to the most vulnerable and hard to reach families while maintaining a 
universal offer, and has restructured the service by reducing the number of 
managers and administration support.  
 
There has been significant national and local media coverage about the 
implications of reduced funding on children’s centres. This national climate, 
coupled with uncertainty about the council’s restructure and its impact, and 
lack of forthcoming information about it, led to a perception among residents 
that there had been cuts in service provision. 
 
Members also received numerous questions and concerns from parents about 
the implications of the children’s centres restructure on service provision. 
Many parents had felt ill-informed about the restructure and fearful about the 
future of provision for their children. Concerns related to potential reduction in 
access, patchiness of provision across the borough, reduced choice of 
services on offer, future sustainability of centres, and the apparent move away 
from universality which could undermine community cohesion. 
 
Members did seek clarity from the council on various occasions, but found it 
difficult to get accessible and transparent information. Equally, 
communications directly to parents do not seem to have allayed concerns, 
and this has raised issues around parental engagement.  
 
In recognition of this, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee prioritised the 
children’s centres restructure for a thorough Scrutiny review. This provided 
the opportunity to review the process and impact of the children’s centres 
restructure in light of the perceptions held by Members and residents on 
service provision and user engagement. 
 
Purpose 

 
The purpose of this review was to gain a strategic overview of the restructure 
of children’s centres, to test the council’s assertion that it has impacted 
minimally on service users, and to ensure that this is communicated in an 
accessible way to parents/carers, other users and stakeholders and 
Members.  

 

The objectives were to test the following perceptions for accuracy, following 
the lack of clear communications about the changes: 
 

Page 143



  14 

• That service provision has become patchy, geographically less 
accessible to users and offers a smaller range of services than 
before; 

• That the move to targeting the offer to more vulnerable families 
has led to a reduction in universal provision which has begun to 
impact on community cohesion in some areas; 

• Whether a reduction in back office staff has resulted in frontline 
staff having to undertake administrative activities, and spending 
less time with service users as a consequence; and 

• That it is difficult for parents to become involved as key 
stakeholders in children’s centres (eg. Parent Forums are not 
fully used) 

 
Methodology 

 
The following methodology for the review was agreed by the Working Group: 
 
Introductory review meeting 

• The Working Group received presentational evidence on the children’s 
centre restructure in terms of delivery and staffing, from the Service Head 
Learning & Achievement, and Head of Achievement, Birth – 11, Learning 
and Achievement Service.  

• This aided in formalising scoping of the review and enabled a thorough 
discussion on the process and communications around the restructure. 

 
Visit to Around Poplar children’s centre 

• The Working Group visited Around Poplar children’s centre to have 
discussions with parents about their experience of the restructure, the 
service and the mechanisms of involvement, and speak to staff to hear 
about the restructure from their perspective 

• Service users were consulted on their experience of children’s centres and 
engagement 

 
Service use and provision before and after the restructure 

• The Working Group reviewed service user data including attendance, 
equalities information and parent feedback, and analysed service 
provision, to look at patterns of use before and after the restructure 

• The Working Group heard evidence from the Locality Leads and the Head 
of Achievement, Birth-11. 

 
Parental involvement mechanisms 

• A presentation was received from the Head of Parent & Family Support on 
how the council engages with parents in general and specifically in 
children’s centres Parent Forums 

• The new governance framework for Parents and Carers Council and 
Parent Forums was discussed 

 
 
 

Page 144



  15 

Parent Forum 

• One member of the Working Group attended the Wapping children’s 
centre Parent forum to see user engagement in action. 

 
Final review meeting 

• Key findings were discussed, tested and agreed, and recommendations 
finalised. 
 

Key Findings 

 
The key findings arising from the review have been divided into five sections, 
including the background and process of the restructure, and the four key 
perceptions that the review sought to answer:  

• That service provision has become patchy, geographically less accessible 
to users and offers a smaller range of services than before; 

• That the move to targeting the offer to more vulnerable families has led to 
a reduction in universal provision which has begun to impact on 
community cohesion in some areas; 

• Whether a reduction in back office staff has resulted in frontline staff 
having to undertake administrative activities, and spending less time with 
service users as a consequence; and 

• It is difficult for parents to become involved as key stakeholders in 
children’s centres (eg. Parent Forums are not fully used) 

 
1. Background and process 

 
The Working Group heard that nationally, the number of children’s centres 
has reduced from 3,631 in June 2010 to 3,507 in September 2011. Locally, in 
April 2011 (go live date June 2011), a restructure of the children’s centre 
provision and staff was undertaken because of the reduction in funding to pay 
for services (the Early Intervention Grant was reduced by approximately £4m 
in 2011-12).  
 
Children’s centres contributed £2.7m towards the £100m savings for the 
council overall. The restructure decreased management and aimed to 
increase targeted provision while retaining the universal offer. The children’s 
centres service was previously funded solely by the Sure Start Grant. This 
was a direct grant from government which ended on 31st March 2012. The 
service is now funded, in part, from the Early Intervention Grant. 
 
The children’s centres have now moved from 23 ‘reach’ areas, to 12 
‘community’ areas meaning that the catchment area for each children’s centre 
has now widened. For each of the borough’s 4 administrative areas (paired 
LAP)  there are 3 centres with full children’s centre designation and a number 
of smaller centres providing a range of different services. The children’s 
centre core offer is therefore delivered through a hub and spoke model.  The 
core offer, as outlined by the government, is to improve outcomes for young 
children and their families, with a particular focus on the most disadvantaged 
families, in order to reduce inequalities inchild development and school 

Page 145



  16 

readiness. This issupported by improved parenting aspirations, self esteem 
and parenting skills, child and family health and life chances. 
 
The Working Group were advised that the drivers for the restructure of the 
service are identified as follows: 

• Large cut to government funding of children’s centres 

• Large cuts to the council’s budget 

• The opportunity to look at the provision which has grown organically 
and unmanaged due to the original children’s centres structures under 
Sure Start 

• The importance of early years learning for children’s future 
achievements. 

• The opportunities of a hub and spoke model in helping keep 
management costs down and cutting premises costs while ensuring 
frontline reductions are kept to a minimum. 

 
The Service management reported that, overall, they feel the restructure has 
improved the council’s provision as there is now more clarity and 
harmonisation around job descriptions, structures, and governance. There is a 
mixture of locally and centrally provided provision to ensure the service is 
flexible to the needs of the locality. In comparison, provision prior to the 
restructure was inherited and had grown organically with ad-hoc structures in 
place. 
 
However, Working Group members remained concerned about the ultimate 
impact of the restructure on service users and staff, which are explored in the 
following sections. Concerns were also raised about the process of the 
restructure, which was felt by parents and Members to be non-transparent, 
fuelling negative perceptions and concerns, for example when one group of 
very distressed parents took a petition to full Council. 
 
The Service management explained their process of responding to the high 
volume of Members’ and parents’ enquiries, and also outlined the protocol in 
terms of consultation with affected staff before any public information can be 
released. 
 
The Working Group still felt that there was a lack of proactive or detailed 
communication between Officers and Members which left some Members 
feeling that they are ill equipped to serve their residents effectively. It was felt 
that existing mechanisms of communications should be developed so that 
Members can be kept better informed of the council’s business. Although this 
issue was explored as part of this scrutiny review, the Working Group felt that 
communications should be broadened to encompass the council as a whole. 
 
 

Page 146



  17 

Recommendation 1 
Improve proactive communications to Members, by 

• Democratic Services working with Corporate Communications to 
develop the Members’ intranet pages as a dissemination tool for key ward-
based and council-wide information, exploring the possibilities within the 
current IT system, and tying any full scale re-development in the upcoming 
refresh of the intranet by ICT. 

• Service areas working with the Internal Communications team to provide 
briefings and seminars at the start and end of future restructures. 

• Children, Schools, and Families to provide Members with 
information on the complaints mechanisms available to parents, and 
ensure this information is clearly available to parents via the internet. 

• The Early Years service to provide briefings and seminars on the 
extension of provision for disadvantaged 2 years olds. 

 
Although the restructure was undertaken quickly because of the reduction in 
budget and national changes to children’s centres, the Working Group felt that 
more could have been done to consult with parents, such as providing a 
holding notice to service users informing them of impending changes which 
would have been helpful in allaying fears and mitigating against rumours. 
 
The Working Group was informed that views of staff and parents were sought 
on the specific service provision after staff had been consulted on the 
structure of the service. The service used the annual parent’s satisfaction 
survey as an additional tool to help to understand parent’s views. 
 

Recommendation 2 
Directorate DMTs to work with Communication Leads to improve proactive 
communications to residents, by 

• ensuring user engagement is fitted into all restructure or review 
consultation periods where appropriate, recognising that this cannot be 
before consulting with the staff directly affected.   

• providing holding information to parents and other key stakeholders 
at the start of the review process in order to mitigate concern and rumours. 

 
 
2. Consistency, access and range of services 
 
The Working Group heard verbal evidence and reviewed analysis undertaken 
by the Children’s Schools and Families directorate as part of an ongoing 
equalities impact analysis of the restructure. The Working Group were 
concerned to note that (at the time of the analysis) there were 3,372 fewer 
children attending children’s centres since the restructure. This was tested 
with officers, who confirmed that there was no drop in birth rate over that 
period, so this reduction in attendance was unlikely to be due to a sudden fall 
in demand. This therefore indicates some reduction in access. 
 
The Working Group also analysed the data supplied by the directorate in 
response to a Members Enquiry about service provision and found that there 
had been a reduction in the number of sessions offered since the restructure, 

Page 147



  18 

both in terms of the number of classes (153 fewer) and the number of hours 
(715 fewer). This amounted to around a third fewer services on offer, though 
the data for the Members Enquiry was a snapshot comparing Q3 2010/11 to 
Q3 2011/12, and is subject to change dependant on demand and taking into 
consideration user feedback. Nevertheless, the available data indicates both 
some reduction in the number of services on offer and that provision has been 
spread more evenly across localities, as reductions in classes were greater in 
some areas, to even out provision geographically. 
 
The reduction in the number of sessions was found to be largely due to 
decommissioning of sessions contracted out to health providers and run 
through children’s centres. The Service Manager for Early Years explained 
that this reduction in health provision was in line with other local authorities. 
Staffing issues for some health sessions such as Midwife Services have aided 
the perception that there has been service deterioration within children’s 
centres, which is borne out in parent surveys which show highest 
dissatisfaction with health-related services. The Working Group heard how the 
children’s centres have been building capacity in order to deliver some 
services separate to the reduced offer from Health providers. Another area 
where there has been a particular reduction is in English Speakers of Other 
Language (ESOL) provision for parents. 
 
The Working Group also heard evidence from a small sample of parents at 
Around Poplar children’s centre. Parents reported they have built up strong 
relationships with the children’s centre and appreciate the opportunity they 
bring in terms of meeting other parents, carers and professionals. Some 
parents appreciate the informal support networks that build up around the 
children’s centres. However, parents raised the following concerns about the 
service: 

• Some parents found that the distance to their nearest children’s centre 
was unsatisfactory at over 40 minutes walk away, however some 
parents are also prepared to move around the borough in order to 
attend a mixture of sessions to suit. 

• Some parents reported that it was difficult to find sessions which could 
adequately cater for siblings of different ages. 

• There was frustration due to the lack of spaces in some popular 
sessions, and some parents had noticed that sessions were much 
busier than before the restructure.   Parents reported that they had 
sometimes been turned away from popular courses due to demand 
and this upset both parents and their children. 

• Some parents had been using the service for several years and did 
notice the impact of the restructure, regretting the closure of some 
smaller centres nearby. 

 
However, the Working Group found that overall parent satisfaction with 
children’s centres remains high, as borne out in parent satisfaction surveys 
and the independent Parent Voice report. 89% said services had made a 
positive impact on their relationship with their child or children, while 94% said 
they were happy with the activities on offer for families. Despite reductions of 
around third in terms of service availability, the Working Group acknowledged 

Page 148



  19 

the efforts of staff to ensure in large part this does not impact on parents’ and 
children’s experience of the service. Nevertheless, as outlined later, this has 
led to strain in the service. 
 
Due to the high demand for and popularity of children’s centres, the 
importance of the service in terms of early years’ achievement, the existing 
pressures on staff and reductions in service provision already sustained, the 
Working Group felt strongly that the no further cuts to funding should be borne 
by the children’s centres service. 
 

Recommendation 3  
The Children, Schools and Families Directorate to sustain and enhance the 
excellent service provision on offer, by  

• ensuring there are no further cuts to funding for the children’s 
centres service. 

• considering how to increase the number of sessions which are both 
welcoming and suitable for parents with children of different ages 

• publicising the services on offer in new Children’s Centres which 
could alleviate the distance some families have to travel 

 
3. Targeted and universal provision 
 
The Working Group heard evidence from the Service Head and Service 
Manager for Birth-11 who advised that there had been no move away from 
universal to targeted provision and explained that the targeted offer is built 
into the universal provision. This method is seen as a more effective and 
efficient way of identifying those vulnerable families who could benefit from 
additional support, with universal services being an important referral 
mechanism into additional support services. It also means provision is less 
stigmatised, and parents, carers and their children can meet a range of 
different people from their community, rather than only meeting other 
vulnerable families. The value of children mixing with others from different 
backgrounds and communities was also mentioned by parents the Working 
Group spoke to. The Service Head and Service Manager reiterated the 
council’s commitment to retaining universal provision as well as enhanced 
targeted provision, because of the positive impact universal provision has on 
targeted provision as well as community cohesion. 
 
The Working Group recognised this commitment, but noted that 
disproportionately more hours had been lost in the universal service 
compared to targeted provision since the restructure. Service management 
reported this was largely due to reductions in the number of whole day drop-in 
sessions available to all parents. 
 
The Working Group felt that there was a general lack of communication about 
how the service allocates session spaces, which had led to a perception of 
unfairness among some parents. In exploring the issue of lack of spaces on 
popular courses, the Working Group heard from the Service Manager for 
Birth-11 that on some occasions spaces were reserved for vulnerable families 
who had been encouraged to attend a specific session by Family Support 

Page 149



  20 

Workers. The policy on allocating spaces, which includes reserving spaces for 
local parents as well as vulnerable parents, has been in operation since 
before the restructure. However, because there are fewer sessions since the 
restructure, this policy has become more noticeable to parents, leading to 
greater frustration. The Service Manager described the equitable and robust 
measures in place to deal with high demand, which include directing parents 
to other activities, prioritising them for the next session, or referring those who 
become distressed to a Family Support Worker. 
 

Recommendation 4  
The Learning and Achievement Service to publicise the range of available 
sessions and the Council’s policy for allocating spaces when there is high 
demand more clearly to parents. 

 
The Working Group reviewed work undertaken by Children Schools and 
Families as part of an ongoing equalities impact analysis to assess the 
diversity of children using the children’s centres, before and after the 
restructure.  In comparing the percentage of under fives using children’s 
centres per ethnic grouping in 2010/11 to 2011/12, there has been a drop of 
around 35% of Bangladeshi children attending since the restructure of the 
service (with the smallest decreases among White and Indian children). 
However, further analysis showed that this demographic had previously been 
over-represented as a whole, as Bangladeshi under 5’s make up 42.8% of the 
borough population and post restructure, account for 41% of the total number 
of under 5’s attending children’s centres. This is more in line with other ethnic 
groups, where there is less than 2% difference between the overall proportion 
of the demographic and the proportion using children’s centres. Officers 
confirmed that additional equalities analysis will be undertaken to explore 
further whether the children’s centres are being accessed fairly by different 
groups. 
 
4. Reduction in back office staff 
 
The Working Group met a representation of staff from various job roles and 
centres at the Around Poplar children’s centre who had been invited to share 
their opinion of the restructure process and impact. Staff confirmed that they 
had been kept informed about the restructure by their managers and felt that 
they had been professional in their attitude around reassuring parents about 
the future of the service.   
 
Some staff talked about the positive outcomes arising from the restructure 
including the opportunity to improve their qualifications and reskill. However, 
there were some negative comments about the restructure including:  

• the new data entry burden placed on all staff, especially Office Assistants / 
Receptionists 

• Office Assistants / Receptionists undertaking duties that were previously a 
managerial responsibility 

• the reduction in the number of staff leading to some staff feeling stretched 
and sometimes working above their grade, for example in order to cover 
annual leave and sickness 

Page 150



  21 

• impact on staff wellbeing of the increased strain and demand on the service 

• Community Development Officers now have to work across different sites 
and this has led to a feeling that the service has been diluted, making it 
harder to build relationships and support parents 

 
The Working Group felt that the restructure of the Service had led to the role 
of Office Assistants / Receptionists being under-estimated, both in terms of 
the grade and their importance as front line staff, being the first point of 
contact for parents and carers. The parallel review of the restructure by the 
Service has also recognised that there are too few Office Assistants / 
Receptionist posts and their job description should be reviewed. 
 
The majority of staff interviewed felt that the data entry work was too time 
consuming and difficult to complete whilst performing front line duties, 
although all acknowledged the importance of collecting this data for reasons 
such as monitoring for grants, child safeguarding, management information 
and the future payment by results. 
 
The Working Group noted the positive team spirit and generally good morale 
among staff, providing peer support and regular social activities for each 
other. However, members were concerned that staff have absorbed most of 
the impact of the restructure, going the extra mile and working more to ensure 
parents do not see a reduction in the quality of the service. While this is 
laudable, the potential impact on staff wellbeing is significant and the overall 
reduction in staff has led to a loss of flex and capacity in the system, so it is 
less resilient to staff absence, with potentially greater disruption to service 
provision at these times. 
 

Recommendation 5  
The Learning and Achievement Service to review job descriptions, job title 
and salary scale of the Office Assistants / Receptionists posts, to ensure the 
grade is commensurate with the job activities and additional responsibilities, 
and recognises the front line nature of the job. Review the capacity across the 
service for 2012/13 and increase where necessary. 

 

Recommendation 6  
Recognising the importance of robust data collection, the Learning and 
Achievement Service to undertake a business process improvement exercise 
with the aim of streamlining what data is captured and how it is collected, 
input and analysed 

 

Recommendation 7  
The Learning and Achievement Service to prioritise additional training to 
Children’s Centres staff to build capacity and resilience during times of strain 
such as sickness absence and annual leave. 

 
5. Parental involvement 
 
At the visit to the Around Poplar children’s centre, the Working Group 
interviewed parents and found that in the main those who did not attend 

Page 151



  22 

Parent Forums did so out of choice and still felt that their views were taken 
into consideration and acted upon because of the openness and 
approachability of children’s centre staff, and other mechanisms such as 
feedback forms. Parents confirmed that they were encouraged to provide 
feedback; at Around Poplar children’s centre there is a suggestion box in 
reception. One outcome of a suggestion made by parents was that the dads 
only baby group was reverted back to a session for all parents and this 
session is now much better attended. 
 
The Working Group also spoke to two parents who attended Parents Forums 
on a regular basis and reported that the parents found them to be informative 
and helpful, and covered a wide area of interest. However, one parent spoke 
of how much better his experience of the Around Poplar Parent Forum was 
compared to the Forum at another children’s centre. The Working Group also 
noted differences in terms of how frequently Parent Forums meet; in some 
areas it is weekly, whereas in others only monthly. One of the Community 
Development Officers said that how well Parents Forums function depends on 
the size of the area the different CDOs have to cover and therefore how much 
time they can give to each Forum. The Working Group were concerned to 
address this inconsistency in terms of how parent engagement is facilitated 
across different children’s centres. 
 
The user survey identified that a large number of parents questioned were 
unaware of additional services offered by centres, especially those services 
available for adults. The Working Group felt that there is a need to publicise 
the offer and services of the children’s centres more widely and clearly, and to 
increase the use of technology and social media to communicate with parents 
and carers, especially if savings made can be redirected to service provision. 
Data from the User Satisfaction survey showed that less than 10% of parents 
said they were kept informed via creative communications (such as text, e-
mail, internet) however around 32% would like to receive communications that 
way. It was acknowledged however that there was also a need to retain more 
traditional methods of communication, such as leaflets and face-to-face, in 
order to avoid excluding any groups.   
 

Recommendation 8  
Whilst recognising the importance of traditional methods of communications, 
and the cut in the advertising budget, the Learning and Achievement Service 
to improve and expand communications to parents by 

• increasing the use of creative communications such as e-mail, text 
and social media as an efficient and cost effective way of communicating 
with parents 

• using Parent Forums to review both printed communications and 
that which is displayed within Children’s Centres, in order to ensure they 
communicate clearly the entire offer to both children and parents, including 
adults’ services and children’s sessions for mixed ages 

• widening the reach of written publicity to include more venues such 
as doctors surgeries, school noticeboards and chemists. 

 

Page 152



  23 

The Working Group heard from Jill McGinley, Head of Parent and Family 
Support, about how this service provides support to parents and schools. It 
was agreed that parents elected onto the Parents Forums within the new 
governance model should be provided with training, in order to build capacity 
and empower parents to become effective Forum Chairs. In addition, it was 
felt that there should be a programme of training for staff to assist them in 
their role as Forum facilitators and ensure greater consistency of parental 
engagement across different children’s centres. 
 
The Working Group also heard about the review of the governance framework 
from the Service Manager and how parents are being consulted around its 
terms of reference. Having observed current Parent Forums in action and 
from experience of other community governance structures, members felt that 
it was important to ensure representation from parents of all backgrounds in 
the new structures. Under-represented demographics and harder to reach 
groups should be actively encouraged to join, which may require targeted 
proactive outreach work by staff. The Working Group also raised issues 
around the accessibility of the new governance model – including the 
language and process. 
 

Recommendation 9  
The Learning and Achievement Service to facilitate the engagement of a wide 
range of parents in governance, by 

• providing a programme of training for Community Development 
Workers and other staff as appropriate, to become capable and confident 
facilitators of Parents Forums who can recruit and support a range of 
parents to become involved 

• providing a programme of training and capacity-building for parents, 
including understanding of their role and responsibilities within the 
governance model, with a particular focus on those less likely to come 
forward for such positions 

• ensuring the Governance Model is user friendly and not unduly 
bureaucratic. 

 
Conclusions 

 

• The Working Group welcomed the opportunity to investigate the impact of 
the children’s centre restructure, with a view to assessing its true impact 
and improving communications to service users about restructure changes 
in the future.  

 

• The Early Years Service also welcomed the opportunity for this timely 
review, because it enabled the service to ensure Members were updated 
on the service and provided a facility to test the outcome of the restructure. 
The service welcomes the recommendations which have arisen as a result 
of the review. 

 

• This Review has focused on testing service perceptions for accuracy, and 
it is hoped that the adoption of the proposed recommendations will 

Page 153



  24 

improve both the provision for service users, support for staff, and future 
communications and engagement processes. 

 

• In light of the continuing high demand for children’s centre services, their 
popularity among parents, the service reductions already sustained and 
the resulting pressures on staff, the Working Group hopes that the 
recommendations will be considered and adopted by the Mayor and his 
Cabinet, to enable children’s centres to survive and thrive in this difficult 
climate, for the families who cherish and rely on them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



  25 

 

Page 155



  26 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

R1. 
Improve proactive communications to Members, by 
 

Ward Profiles are currently being updated and are 
expected to be completed by the CRU by December 2010.  
Members to be consulted on draft / design stages in 
October 2012 via a group workshop or Survey Monkey 
exercise. 
 

Corporate Research 
Unit Manager 
 

October 
2012 

We will place the most current Members Bulletin on the 
front page of the Members Intranet in order to encourage 
readership.  Members are due to receive VPN keys so that 
they are able to access the intranet from outside the 
Council building by November 2012. 
 

Service Head 
 

November 
2012 

• Democratic Services working 
with Corporate Communications 
to develop the Members’ intranet 
pages as a dissemination tool 
for key ward-based and council-
wide information, exploring the 
possibilities within the current IT 
system, and tying any full scale 
re-development in the upcoming 
refresh of the intranet by ICT. 

 

We will set up an intranet page for each Directorate, 
communicate this to both Directorates and Members.  
Each Directorate page will be managed by Directorate 
support services such as the directorate intranet rep.  We 
will ensure that Communications Advisers remind 
Managers at DMTs to use the Members Intranet as a key 
communications tool for disseminating information to 
Members 

Service Head 
 

November 
2012 

P
age 156



  27 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

 We will undertake an informal survey about Members 
Intranet and its format and contents. 
 

Service Head, 
Communications 
 
 

February 
2013 

Restructures are discussed at DMTs, and Communications 
Advisers (when invited to DMTs and with consultation from 
Human Resources and the Service Head), will take the 
lead on providing communications to Members via the 
Members Bulletin and Members Intranet.  Where 
Communications Advisers are not regularly invited to 
Directorate DMTs, Service Heads should contact their 
Directorate Communications Advisers direct. 
 
 

Service Head, 
Communications, Head 
of Media 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

More detailed information, such as seminars, will be 
provided to Members, in consultation with the Service 
Head and relevant Lead Member, and will be led by the 
relevant Service. 
 

Communications 
Advisers 
 

Ongoing 

• Service areas working with the 
Internal Communications team 
to provide briefings and 
seminars at the start and end of 
future restructures. 

 

Directorates encouraged via DMTs to contribute relevant 
items for the Members seminar schedule. 
 

Members Support 
Manager 

September 
2012 

• Children, Schools, and Families 
The complaints procedure for the Council (Children’s Locality Leads, October 

P
age 157



  28 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

Centre version) will be published in the Members Bulletin 
and placed on the Members Intranet and on the Children’s 
Centre web page on the Council Internet so that it is easy 
to find for future reference. 

Learning & 
Achievement Service 

2012 

It will be displayed in individual Children’s Centres and 
made available to families on request 

Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

October 
2012 

to provide Members with 
information on the complaints 
mechanisms available to 
parents, and ensure this 
information is clearly available to 
parents via the internet. 

 
An article will be published in Parent Matters to offer 
advice, support and guidance to families on raising issues 
and concerns. 

Locality Leads, Head of 
Parent & Family 
Support  

December 
2012 

• The Early Years service to 
provide briefings and seminars 
on the extension of provision for 
disadvantaged 2 years olds. 

 

A briefing paper will be published in the Members Bulletin 
and placed on the Members Intranet and the Council 
Internet so that it is easy to find for future reference. 

Head of Achievement, 
Birth-11, Learning & 
Achievement Service 

February 
2013 

R2. 
Directorate DMTs to work with Communication Advisers to improve proactive communications to residents, by 
 

• providing holding information to 
parents and other key 
stakeholders at the start of the 
review process in order to 
mitigate concern and rumours. 

 
The People Board will look at the need to amend corporate 
guidance for managers around handling organisational 
change – to include our communications and engagement 
with key stakeholders and ways in which this can be 

Service Head, Human 
Resources 
 

November 
2012 

P
age 158



  29 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

monitored. 
 

• ensuring user engagement is 
fitted into all restructure or 
review consultation periods 
where appropriate, recognising 
that this cannot be before 
consulting with the staff directly 
affected.   
 

 
The People Board will look at the need to amend corporate 
guidance for managers around handling organisational 
change – to include our communications and engagement 
with key stakeholders and ways in which this can be 
monitored. 
 
 

Service Head, Human 
Resources 
 

November 
2012 

R3. 
The Children, Schools and Families Directorate to sustain and enhance the excellent service provision on offer, by  
 

•       ensuring there are no further 
cuts to funding for the 
children’s centres service. 

 

We will seek to protect the funding allocated to our 
Children’s Centres but will need to keep this under review 
as funding, including that from central government grants, 
and budget priorities change. 

 
Director of Children’s, 
Schools & Families 

 
Ongoing 

• considering how to increase 
the number of sessions which 
are both welcoming and 
suitable for parents with 
children of different ages 

A termly audit of provision by each Children’s Centre will 
be undertaken to ensure that across the locality a range of 
sessions are available to parents with children of different 
ages. 

Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed 
and ongoing 

Services on offer in new Children’s Centres as well as in all 
Community Leads, 

Completed 

P
age 159



  30 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

Children’s Centres are publicised on the Children’s Centre 
web page on the Council internet and regular updates on 
services available in leaflets. 

and ongoing 

Services are advertised on banners outside Children’s 
Centres. 

Completed 
and ongoing 

•       publicising the services on 
offer in new Children’s Centres 
which could alleviate the 
distance some families have to 
travel 

 
We will produce regular updates on services in East End 
Life. 

Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Ongoing 

 
See R3 for actions we will undertake to publicise the 
services within Children’s Centres 

Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed 
and ongoing 

R4.  
The Learning and Achievement 
Service to publicise the range of 
available sessions and the 
Council’s policy for allocating 
spaces when there is high 
demand more clearly to parents. 

 

We will continue to publicise the service’s policy for 
allocating spaces when there is high demand and ensure 
that the policy is clearly visible within Children’s Centres. 

Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed 
and ongoing 

 
We will update the Job Description for Office Assistants to 
capture better the work they undertake. 
 
 

 
 
Completed 

R5.  
The Learning and Achievement 
Service to review job descriptions, 
job title and salary scale of the 
Office Assistants / Receptionists 
posts, to ensure the grade is 
commensurate with the job 
activities and additional 

Job Descriptions for Office Assistants will be reviewed and 
updated in terms of pay scales to ensure that it reflects the 
frontline nature of the job and the job activities. 

 
 
Locality Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

November 
2012 

P
age 160



  31 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

 responsibilities, and recognises 
the front line nature of the job. 
Review the capacity across the 
service for 2012/13 and increase 
where necessary.  

 

We will draw up a business case to present to the People 
Board, to appoint an additional Office Assistant to each 
locality and then implement if approved. 

 

March 2013 

A business case will be drawn up to present to the 
People’s Board for the recruitment of a Data Analyst to 
take on borough level Children’s Centre data analysis – 
and then recruit to the post if approved. 

Completed 

We will review the information collected by Children’s 
Centres to ensure that the data collected is both necessary 
and relevant, and reviewed to streamlined the process. 
 
There will be a review of the data collected by Children’s 
Centres to ensure that data is collected in a streamlined 
way. 

Locality Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Ongoing 

R6.  
Recognising the importance of 
robust data collection, the 
Learning and Achievement 
Service to undertake a business 
process improvement exercise 
with the aim of streamlining what 
data is captured and how it is 
collected, input and analysed. 

 We will then review the data we collect again, once the 
Government releases their expectations around 
Performance by Results. 

Locality Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Expected 
April 2013 

R7.  
The Learning and Achievement 
Service to prioritise additional 

A programme of support will be designed and delivered to 
Locality Leads which will deal with resilience, leadership 
and management. 

Head of Achievement, 
Birth – 11, Learning & 
Achievement Service 

September 
2012 

P
age 161



  32 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

 

We will also design a course on Child Development theory, 
the delivery of which will be rolled out to all Community 
Leads, Locality Leads and Play & Learning Workers. 
 

Head of Achievement, 
Birth – 11, Learning & 
Achievement Service 

January 
2013 & 
ongoing 

training to Children’s Centres staff 
to build capacity and resilience 
during times of strain such as 
sickness absence and annual 
leave. 

 
Every Children’s Centre will have 5 inset days and two of 
them will be used for team building, and developing 
resilience. 

Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed & 
ongoing 

R8.  
Whilst recognising the importance of traditional methods of communications, and the cut in the advertising budget, the Learning and 
Achievement Service to improve and expand communications to parents by 
 

We are currently exploring the option of buying into a text 
messaging service as an additional way of communicating 
with parents. 

Locality Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

April 2013 
•       increasing the use of 

creative communications such 
as e-mail, text and social media 
as an efficient and cost effective 
way of communicating with 
parents 

 

We will consult with parents via the Parent Forums to 
explore the range of communication methods and respond 
to their preferences accordingly. 

Community 
Development Officers, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Ongoing & 
completed 
by April 2013 

•       using Parent Forums to 
review both printed 
communications and that which 
is displayed within Children’s 

We will pair up Parent Forums and enable them to host 
visits to each other’s Children’s Centre as a way to focus 
on how access information is displayed and made 
available to families and to act on the findings. 

Community 
Development Officers, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Ongoing & 
completed 
by April 2013 

P
age 162



  33 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

Centres, in order to ensure 
they communicate clearly the 
entire offer to both children and 
parents, including adults’ 
services and children’s 
sessions for mixed ages 

 

•       widening the reach of written 
publicity to include more 
venues such as doctors 
surgeries, school noticeboards 
and chemists 

We will review the range of publicity materials which we 
already send out to parents and which venues they are 
displayed in.  Then explore the possibility of developing a 
leaflet outlining generic services delivered within Children’s 
Centres.  We will identify key staff within each Children’s 
Centre who will have responsibility to ensure leaflets are 
displayed in an accessible way. 

Community 
Development Officers, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

December 
2012 

R9.  
The Learning and Achievement Service to facilitate the engagement of a wide range of parents in governance, by 
 

Commission support from the Parental Engagement Team 
to support with the development of staff and of Parent 
Forums 

Locality Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed 
•       providing a programme of 

training for Community 
Development Workers and 
other staff as appropriate, to 
become capable and confident 
facilitators of Parents Forums 

We will provide 4 training sessions for Community 
Development Officers to support them in leading Parent 
Forums 

Parental Engagement 
Team, CSF 

Started & 
due to 
complete 

P
age 163



  34 

APPENDIX TWO 

 

SCRUTINY REVIEW ACTION PLAN – Reviewing the impact of the Children’s Centres restructure 

Recommendation Response / Comments / Action Responsibility Date 

who can recruit and support a 
range of parents to become 
involved 

 

March 2013 

•       providing a programme of 
training and capacity-building for 
parents, including understanding 
of their role and responsibilities 
within the governance model, 
with a particular focus on those 
less likely to come forward for 
such positions 

 

We will provide training sessions and support for parents to 
take a lead in running Parent Forums once staff are 
trained. 

Community 
Development Officers & 
Parental Engagement 
Team 

Due to 
complete by 
March 2014  

•       ensuring the Governance 
Model is user friendly and not 
unduly bureaucratic. 

 

The Governance Model was reviewed as a result of 
consultation via Parent Forums to ensure it is user-friendly 
and not unduly bureaucratic, and is now in place.  We will 
review the Governance Model via Parent Forums, on an 
annual basis, to ensure it stays both relevant and 
responsive to need. 

Locality Leads and 
Community Leads, 
Learning & 
Achievement Service 

Completed & 
reviewed 
annually. 

 

P
age 164



  

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
5/12/12 
 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

 

Report No: 
 
CAB 54/123 

Report of:  

 
Head of Paid Service– Stephen Halsey   
 
Originating officer(s)  

 
Environmental Health (Commercial) 
Service Manager – David Tolley 

Title:  

 
Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 
2012/2013 
 
Ward(s) affected 

 

All 

 
 

Lead Member 
 

Councillor Ohid Ahmed 

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Healthy Community 

Strategic Priority 
 

Reduce differences in people’s health and promote 
healthy lifestyles 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the Council’s eleventh annual plan for effective enforcement 

of food safety legislation. The formal introduction of the Plan has been delayed 
this year as a result of the Olympics on the basis that progress on the Olympic 
critical aspects of the Plan were being reported separately via Olympic impact 
planning infrastructure. The aim of the Plan is to ensure that food in the Borough 
is produced and sold under hygienic conditions, is without risk to health and is of 
the quality expected by consumers. 

 
1.2 The Food Standards Agency requires local authorities to have in place a Food 

Law Enforcement Service Plan.  The Plan will form a significant part of the 
standard against which local authorities will be audited by the Agency to assess 
their effectiveness in ensuring food safety. 

 
1.3 The Food Safety Service is a statutory function and the activities of the Service 

are monitored by the Food Standards Agency (FSA). If the FSA are not satisfied 
with the performance of the Service, then they are empowered to take the 
function away and request that a neighbouring Authority take on the functions. 
This will result in no control over the provision of the Service, reputation risk and 
loss of budget.    

 
1.4  Accordingly the Cabinet is requested to consider the Food Law Enforcement 

Service Plan 2012/13 and Food Sampling Policy 2012/13 and make 
recommendations as appropriate and adopt this plan.   

  
 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 165



  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Approve the Tower Hamlets Food Law Enforcement Plan 2012/2013 and Food 

Sampling Policy attached at the Appendix of the report. 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 

3.1 Under the powers given to it by the Food Standards Act 1999 The Food 
Standards Agency (FSA) oversees and monitors how Local Authorities 
enforce food safety legislation. The FSA require all Local Authorities to 
produce and approve an annual plan that sets out how it is going to discharge 
its responsibilities.   

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 If the Council take no action the FSA have the power to remove food safety 

responsibilities and engage another authority to deliver the service. The likely 
scenario would be for a neighbouring Local Authority to be seconded to 
provide this service.  

 
4.2 If this did happen the Council would still have to fund the service but would 

lose Member and management control of the service. This sanction has rarely 
been used but when it has been exercised the local authorities have been 
named and shamed and suffered reputation damage 

 
4.3 The Council might adopt a plan in different terms, but the content of the 

proposed plan is recommended for reasons set out in the report.  If the Mayor 
were minded to consider a different plan, then further analysis may be 
required prior to decision. 

 
5 THE PLAN 
 
5.1 The Plan incorporates the Council’s objectives as set out in the Community 

Plan and the Trading Standards & Environmental Health (Commercial) 
Service Plan. In particular it impacts on the quality of life in Tower Hamlets 
and the health of residents and visitors. It helps to ensure that businesses 
maintain high standards. The standard format of the plan allows easier 
comparisons with other authorities. 

 
5.2 The plan is divided between reactive and proactive work. Reactive work 

includes consumer complaints and requests for advice or information from the 
business community, residents, employees in the Borough and tourists. 
Proactive work comprises of inspections. Tower Hamlets has 2563 food 
premises requiring inspection. This is a 3% increase from 2011/12. The 
frequency of such inspections is determined by a nationally agreed risk based 
inspection rating scheme. 

 

Page 166



  

5.3 Last year the Food Safety team achieved 86.5% of all food premises being 
broadly compliant with the food safety legislation. This will place the authority 
in the top quartile of local authorities. 

 
5.4 The plan also covers complaints and enquiries, sampling, food hazard 

warnings, outbreak control, health promotion, training and publicity.  
 
5.5 The plan also highlights some of the major successes during 2011/12. Some 

notable examples are 

• Improving inspection performance. 

• Responding to an increasing number service requests. 1031 were received an 
increase on the previous year  

• Improving enforcement activity – 21 food premises closures were carried out 
(17 in the previous year). Businesses and individuals were prosecuted as a 
result of either programmed inspections or complaint inspections. 11 
successful cases were undertaken in 2011/12  
 

6 PERFORMANCE AND ISSUES FOR 2012/13 
 
6.1 The main indicator used to assess the Council’s performance is the proportion 

of food establishments in the Borough which are broadly compliant with food 
hygiene law. The performance trend for compliance is steadily improving in 
the Borough. The performance for the last five years is as follows:- 

 

• 2007/8 57% 

• 2008/9 74% 

• 2009/10 81% 

• 2010/11 86% 

• 2011/12 86.5% 
 

6.2 It should be noted that there is a constant challenge to performance 
improvement by the high turnover rate of food businesses in the Borough and 
the increasing age of the commercial stock. 

 
6.3 From 2009-12 funding was received from the Healthy Cities initiative and the 

Primary Care Trust Obesity Strategy to develop a Healthy Eating Award, 
which aims to create a culture of healthy food choices for residents/workers in 
the Borough. The programme has since been supported through the Food for 
Health programme funded until March 2013.  A separate Team has been 
developed to deliver this initiative within the Environmental Health 
Commercial Team and 77 Awards have been made. External funding is 
currently being sought to keep the project running. 

 
6.4 The national “Scores on the Doors” scheme announced by the FSA has now 

been implemented. This star rating scheme allows Local Authorities to publish 
an assessment of the hygiene standards of food premises.   

 
6.5 Over the last two years the Service worked as part of the Joint Local 

Authorities Regulatory Services (JLARS). This group were the Olympic 
Development Agency (ODA) funded joint service that dealt with regulatory 

Page 167



  

issues inside the Olympic Park. It also worked with partners to develop the 
response for food safety enforcement in the lead up and during the Olympics. 
The FSA grant funded the Authority to carry out enhanced sampling activities 
throughout the Olympic period and to employ two short term contractors to fill 
the demands on the Service whilst Officers concentrated on the higher risk 
businesses. 

 
 
 
7 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 The report seeks approval of the Tower Hamlets Food Law Enforcement 

Service Plan 2012/13 and Food Sampling Policy 2012/13. This should ensure 
that performance levels are maintained at a level as prescribed by the Foods 
Standards Agency. 

 
7.2 As outlined in section 6.3 the funding for the Healthy Cities initiative has 

ended. The initiative has since been supported through the Food for Health 
programme for which funding of £60,000 has been received until March 2013. 
However, if the initiative is to continue, alternative external funding sources 
will need to be identified.  

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1 The Council is the food authority for Tower Hamlets and is responsible for 

enforcing and executing the provisions of the Food Safety Act 1990 within the 
borough. 

 
8.2 The Food Standards Agency (“FSA”) is responsible under the Food Safety Act 

for monitoring the performance of enforcement authorities in enforcing 
specified legislation (including the Food Safety Act itself).  The FSA is 
empowered to request information from the Council relating to its enforcement 
action.  A Framework Agreement has been developed which sets out what the 
FSA expects from local authorities and sets out an audit scheme under which 
the FSA monitors the activities of local authorities.  The FSA requires local 
authorities to maintain a food law enforcement plan and to report on 
performance against the plan. 

 
8.3 The Food Law Enforcement Plan is based on a template recommended by 

the FSA and looks at both pro-active work (e.g. routine food hygiene 
inspections) and re-active work (e.g. responses to consumer complaints).  By 
auditing the Plan, the FSA will be able to provide a report to the European 
Commission in accordance with obligations under Article 14 of the Official 
Control of Foodstuffs Directive 89/397. 

 
8.4 The Secretary of State has issued the Food Law Code of Practice (England) 

under section 40 of the Food Safety Act 1990, which makes reference to an 
authority’s service plan.  The FSA is empowered to direct authorities to 

Page 168



  

comply with the code of practice and this potentially provides another basis on 
which the Council may be required to produce a food law enforcement plan. 

 
8.5 Before adopting the Plan, the Council must have due regard to the need to 

eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance 
equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between persons 
who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  Information is 
provided in the report relevant to these considerations. 

 
 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1  As a result of targeted training the Food Safety function is approaching a 

workforce to reflect the community, which has lead to a multi lingual 
capability. 

 
9.2 The service has procedures and training programmes that promote and 

deliver equal treatment to all businesses 
 
9.3 The Food Safety sampling programme has focussed on imported foods that 

are sold to local communities. This is to ensure imported foods are 
wholesome and safe. 

 
9.4 Food Safety activity is focussed on raising the quality of food businesses in 

the Borough. Raising the quality of businesses will help customers obtain 
better value for money and help make businesses more profitable. 

 
9.5 Develop training opportunities for women who hold a larger proportion of 

lower graded positions within the Team,  
 
9.6 An equality analysis has been carried out which suggests that all residents in 

the borough will be positively affected by the proposed plan.  No adverse 
impacts are expected for any groups. 

 
 

10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 Food businesses are encouraged to reduce food waste and deal efficiently 

with the waste they do produce. 
 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Council as a Food Authority is required to carry out statutory functions in       

relation to food safety. The annual plan sets out how the Council will fulfil its 
obligations under this legislation.  

 
11.2 Failure to ensure that the council discharges its responsibilities can have 

serious consequences for the Council and these are set out below.  
 

Page 169



  

11.3 Should the Council not exercise its duties and provide a food safety service 
there is the potential that both unsafe and unscrupulous activities would go 
unchecked and un- enforced, which may lead to serious food borne illness or 
disadvantage to the residents, consumers and businesses within the borough. 

 
11.4 The Food Standards Agency are charged with overseeing the activities of 

Food  Authorities and may carry out audits of the authority to ensure it is 
meeting the requirements of The Standard for Food Services set out in the 
Framework Agreement and its statutory functions. 

 
11.5 Should the Council not fulfil its obligations as specified above, the Food 

Standards Agency may use its powers to take away the functions of the 
authority and place them with another authority to exercise them on its behalf. 
 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications 
  
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
13.1 The completion and implementation of the Environmental Health 

(Commercial) service review has improved efficiency and the Service is kept 
under continual review.  

 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 –   LBTH Food Law Enforcement Plan – 2011/12 
Appendix 2 -   Equality Analysis Quality Assurance Checklist   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

No background papers David Tolley x 6724 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



D
:\

m
o

d
er

n
g
o

v
\D

at
a\

A
g
en

d
aI

te
m

D
o

cs
\8

\7
\4

\A
I0

0
0

3
7

4
7

8
\$

en
zk

m
sa

f.
d

o
c 

 
1

 

 
 

     

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 
 

L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 T

O
W

E
R

 H
A

M
L

E
T

S
 

    
F

O
O

D
 L

A
W

 E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
  

 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3
  

    

Page 171



 
2

 

  

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
 

1
.0

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
im

s
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 

 
2

.0
 

B
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

 
3

.0
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 

 
4

.0
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

5
.0

 
Q

u
a

li
ty

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 
6

.0
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

 
7

.0
 

A
n

n
e

x
e

s
 

  

Page 172



 
3

 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 f

u
lf
ils

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 F
o

o
d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e

 F
o
o
d

 S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

F
S

A
).

 T
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
is

 
p

la
n

 i
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t,
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
fo

o
d
 i
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 w

it
h

o
u
t 

ri
s
k
 

a
n

d
 s

o
ld

 u
n

d
e

r 
h

y
g
ie

n
ic

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 i
s
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lic
is

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
 T

h
e

 p
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
s
 t
e

a
m

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 c

o
re

 
th

e
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 p
la

n
 a

ls
o

 g
iv

e
s
 a

n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 2
0
0

1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
. 

 In
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a

m
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
7

5
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

F
o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 d

u
e

 i
n
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

b
a

n
d

s
 o

f 
A

-C
 a

n
d

 4
4

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
fo

o
d

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 d

u
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
b

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
A

-B
. 

F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 s

e
e
n

 a
s
 a

 s
e

c
o

n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 t
h
a

t 
o
f 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 a
s
 

th
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
ro

s
s
e

s
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
o

u
n
d

a
ri
e

s
. 

F
o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 e
x
a

m
in

e
s
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
f 
fo

o
d

. 
F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 e

x
a

m
in

e
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 l
a

b
e

lli
n

g
, 

c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 c

o
m

p
o

n
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

o
d
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
 m

a
rk

in
g
. 

T
h

e
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 t
y
p
e

s
 a

re
 l
e
d

 b
y
 f

o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

, 
a

s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 d
e

e
m

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 g

re
a

te
r.

 F
o

o
d

 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

re
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 i
f 

th
e

 n
e
x
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 r

a
ti
n

g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
c
o

re
 f

a
lls

 d
u

e
 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

a
t 
th

e
 f

o
o

d
 

h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 d

u
e

. 
T

h
is

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

s
u
lt
s
 i
n

 a
 l
o

w
e

r 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

fo
o

d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 b
e

in
g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 9
1

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k
, 

A
 b

a
n

d
, 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
. 
  

  
  

 
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

a
s
 f

a
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
w

it
h

 2
1

 f
o
o

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 c

lo
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
p
e

s
t 

in
fe

s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

£
3

4
,2

3
5
 f

in
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
ts

 b
e

in
g
 

is
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 1
1

 c
a

s
e

s
 t
a

k
e
n

 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

a
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 f
ro

m
 8

6
%

 t
o

 8
6
.5

%
. 

 
 T

h
e

 m
a

in
 f
o

o
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 c

lo
s
u

re
s
 a

re
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 i
n

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
e

s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
e

 w
e

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 o
b

ta
in

in
g
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 F
S

A
 w

h
ic

h
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 a

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a
rt

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
p
p

o
in

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
S

A
, 

to
 c

o
a

c
h

 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
ri
s
k
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 –

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
s
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 T

h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
–

 1
8

4
- 

w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
o

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 b
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h

 f
o
o

d
 

h
y
g
ie

n
e

 l
a

w
. 
W

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 8
6

%
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 c
o
n

s
ta

n
t 
fr

o
m

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
d

 t
o

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
O

b
e

s
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
 A

w
a

rd
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
im

s
 t

o
 

c
re

a
te

 a
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
 c

h
o

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
/w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
A

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a

m
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d
 3

7
 A

w
a

rd
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 i
n

to
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 
fu

n
d

in
g
 u

n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3
. 

 

Page 173



 
4

 

W
e
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 o
b

ta
in

in
g
 g

ra
n

t 
m

o
n

ie
s
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 u

s
 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
. 
W

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
h

is
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
 t

w
o

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

lo
w

e
r 

ri
s
k
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
, 
w

h
ils

t 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

, 
b

y
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
ll 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 i
n

s
p
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 w

e
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 o

u
r 

s
a

m
p

lin
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 T
h
e

 N
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
F

o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 R
a

ti
n

g
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

u
n
n

in
g
 s

m
o
o

th
ly

, 
w

it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 s

tr
iv

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 t
o
p

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

r 
o
f 

a
 r

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
4

 o
r 

5
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

 v
e

ry
 f

e
w

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 f
o

r 
re

-i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

c
o

re
 g

iv
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
a

ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
p

la
y
e

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n

to
 l
o
c
a

l 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 b

u
rd

e
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 l
if
te

d
 

o
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 b

u
t 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
ri
s
k
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
o

n
e
 t

h
is

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

a
ti
n

g
 

in
d

ic
a

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 i
s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

  
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 e

x
tr

a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e
r 

ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
, 
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
in

a
d
e

q
u

a
te

 
fo

o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
p
e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

w
e

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 i
n

s
p

e
c
t 
a

ll 
th

o
s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
fa

ll 
d

u
e

 i
n

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
. 
T

h
o

s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 s
e

le
c
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
g
im

e
s
 t
h
a

t 
ta

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 o
r 

d
u
e

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

lo
w

 r
is

k
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o

o
d

 b
e

in
g
 s

o
ld

 i
.e

. 
p

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

d
 f
o

o
d

s
. 

  
 

 
  

Page 174



 
5

 

1
 

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 A

IM
S

 A
N

D
 O

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
S

 
 1

.1
 

 
A

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

 1
.1

.1
 

T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
g
u

la
te

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

fo
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

 f
o

o
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

 1
.1

.2
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
ll 

s
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 o

n
 f
o

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 m

a
tt
e

rs
. 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
 A

w
a

rd
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

a
s
t 
fo

o
d

 o
u

tl
e

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 i
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

 
1

.1
.3

 
T

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 s
p

re
a
d

 o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 f
o

o
d
 p

o
is

o
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
. 

 1
.1

.4
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

m
o

k
e

 f
re

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
id

e
n

t 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o
n

. 
 1

.1
.5

 
A

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o
f 

z
o

o
n
o

ti
c
 d

is
e

a
s
e

s
. 

 1
.1

.6
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

a
d

in
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
. 

  
 

 
1

.2
  

 
L

in
k
s
 t

o
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
s
 

 
1

.2
.1

 
T

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n

 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 
th

e
: 

 
 

• 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 

• 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
la

n
 

• 
D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

’s
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

la
n

 

• 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 

 
1

.2
.2

 
 

T
h
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 a
re

 l
in

k
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 T

e
a
m

 P
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

m
o

n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e

s
, 

th
e

 F
o

o
d

 E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
fi
n
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

T
h

e
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 f
u
n

c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

, 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

F
o
o

d
 a

n
d

 R
u

ra
l 
A

ff
a

ir
s
, 

A
n

im
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e
n

c
y
 

 1
.2

.3
 

 
T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

2
0
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 i
s
 t

o
: 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
iv

e
s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
th

o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

Page 175



 
6

 

1
.2

.4
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 r
e

a
lis

e
 i
ts

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

V
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 f
o
u
r 

c
o

re
 t

h
e

m
e

s
, 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 i
s
 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
: 

 

• 
A

 g
re

a
t 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 

• 
A

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

• 
A

 S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 C
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

• 
A

 H
e

a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

 1
.2

.5
 

T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a

m
 i
s
 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
, 

v
is

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 b

y
: 

 

• 
T

h
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
o
n

s
u

m
e

r 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

, 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
, 
a
w

a
rd

s
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t.

 

• 
A

d
v
is

in
g

 c
o

n
s
u

m
e

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
iv

il 
d

is
p

u
te

s
 w

it
h

 t
ra

d
e

rs
. 

• 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
n

g
 f
o

o
d
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
/s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

 t
h
e

 w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

t 
p

u
b

lic
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

• 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

p
re

a
d

 o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 f
o

o
d
 p

o
is

o
n

in
g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
 

• 
Is

s
u

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a
p

p
ro

v
a

ls
 (

m
a

n
u

fa
c
tu

ri
n

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
) 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

• 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

re
g

e
n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

• 
In

v
o

lv
in

g
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 i
n

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
.e

. 
O

b
e

s
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

fa
s
t 

fo
o

d
 o

u
tl
e
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

. 

• 
P

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

w
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

s
m

o
k
e

 f
re

e
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 l
o

c
a

l 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

• 
A

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
z
o

o
n

o
ti
c
 i
n

fe
c
ti
o

n
s
 

 
 1

.2
.6

 
T

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 l
in

k
s
 i
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 T
e

a
m

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o
ff

ic
e

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

la
n

s
. 

 
 

 
2

.0
  

 
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

 2
.1

 
 

P
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 
 2

.1
.2

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
fo

o
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

 

Page 176



 
7

 

§
 

M
a

jo
r 

s
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

ts
 (

T
e

s
c
o

, 
A

s
d

a
, 
S

a
in

s
b

u
ry

, 
L

id
l,
 M

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 S
p

e
n

c
e

r 
&

 W
a
it
ro

s
e

) 
§
 

O
ff

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 b

y
 b

lu
e

 c
h

ip
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
, 

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

rs
, 
w

it
h

 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 c

a
te

ri
n

g
  

§
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 
m

a
jo

r 
h

o
te

ls
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

ri
ta

n
n

ia
, 

F
o

u
r 

S
e

a
s
o
n

s
, 

G
o

u
rm

a
n

, 
H

o
lid

a
y
 I

n
n

, 
H

ilt
o

n
, 

R
a
d

is
s
o

n
 a

n
d

 M
a

rr
io

tt
 

§
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
fe

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 I

ta
lia

n
, 

F
re

n
c
h

, 
G

re
e

k
, 
T

u
rk

is
h

, 
S

o
m

a
li,

 S
p

a
n

is
h

, 
C

h
in

e
s
e

, 
J
a

p
a

n
e

s
e

, 
T

h
a

i 
a
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 I
n

d
ia

n
 s

u
b

-c
o

n
ti
n
e

n
t 
(I

n
d

ia
, 
B

a
n

g
la

d
e

s
h

, 
a

n
d

 P
a

k
is

ta
n

).
  

 
§
 

9
4

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
§
 

B
ill

in
g
s
g
a

te
 –

 L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 m

a
jo

r 
W

h
o
le

s
a

le
 F

is
h

 M
a

rk
e

t 
§
 

W
o
rl
d

 f
a

m
o

u
s
 s

tr
e

e
t 
m

a
rk

e
ts

 a
t 
P

e
tt

ic
o

a
t 

L
a

n
e

, 
W

h
it
e

c
h

a
p
e

l,
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n

e
 a

n
d
 R

o
m

a
n
 R

o
a

d
. 

§
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 G
u

ild
h
a

ll 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

Q
u

e
e

n
 M

a
ry

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 a

n
d

 T
h
e

 R
o

y
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
M

e
d

ic
a

l 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

§
 

T
h
e

 R
o

y
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

, 
S

t 
A

n
d

re
w

s
, 

M
ile

 E
n

d
, 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 C
h

e
s
t 
a

n
d

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 I
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
H

o
s
p

it
a
ls

 
§
 

2
 p

o
u

lt
ry

 s
la

u
g
h

te
rh

o
u
s
e

 
§
 

3
 C

it
y
 F

a
rm

s
 

§
 

n
u

m
e

ro
u

s
 n

ig
h

t 
c
lu

b
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

v
e

n
u

e
s
 

§
 

M
a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rt
s
 i
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a

 P
a

rk
 a

n
d
 f

e
s
ti
v
a

ls
 i
n

 B
ri
c
k
 L

a
n

e
. 

 
 

2
.2

 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

 2
.2

.1
 

T
h
e

 T
e
a

m
 i
s
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 D

iv
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 L

o
c
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 A
n

n
e

x
e

 
B

 a
n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
it
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 i
n

 A
n
n

e
x
e

 C
. 

 2
.2

.2
 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 f

a
lls

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
o

rt
fo

lio
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
p

u
ty

 M
a

y
o

r.
 

 
2

.3
  

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
o
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 2
.3

.1
 

T
h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 a
ll 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
p

re
m

is
e

s
. 

• 
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 

• 
fo

o
d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

• 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 

• 
in

fe
c
ti
o
u

s
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
 

• 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

• 
S

m
o

k
e

 F
re

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
 2

.3
.2

 
N

u
is

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
is

s
u
e

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 

T
h
e

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 T

e
a
m

 d
e

a
ls

 w
it
h

 a
n

im
a

l 
fe

e
d

in
g
-s

tu
ff

s
 a

n
d
 f

ra
u

d
u

le
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
t.

  
 

Page 177



 
8

 

 2
.3

.3
 

A
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 f
o

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 A

c
t.
  

 2
.4

 
D

e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 F

o
o

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 2

.4
.1

 
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 P

ro
fi
le

 
 2

.4
.2

.1
 

T
h
e

 t
a
b

le
s
 b

e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fo
o
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 r
is

k
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
 r

a
ti
n

g
. 

 S
o
m

e
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
 i
s
 n

e
g
lig

ib
le

 a
re

 d
is

c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
 2

.4
.3

 
F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
s
p
e

c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a
b

e
lli

n
g
, 

c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 s
tu

ff
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 m

is
le

a
d

in
g
ly

 s
u

b
s
ti
tu

te
d

 w
it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h
e

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 m

a
k
e

s
 s

u
re

 
c
o

n
s
u
m

e
rs

 a
re

 n
o

t 
m

is
le

a
d

 a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 w
h

e
n
 i
t 
is

 s
o

ld
 t

o
 t

h
e

m
. 
P

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 i
n

s
p
e

c
te

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 
im

p
o

rt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

o
rt

e
rs

 w
h

o
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
e

v
e

n
 h

o
ld

 f
o
o

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 –

 t
h

is
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u

m
b
e

rs
 i
n

 
T

a
b

le
 1

 a
n
d

 T
a
b

le
 2

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 2

.4
.4

 
F

o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
s
 v

it
a

l 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
. 

O
u

r 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
v
e

r 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

c
le

a
n

in
g
, 

s
to

ri
n

g
 o

f 
fo

o
d
, 

p
e

s
t 

c
o
n

tr
o

l,
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
, 
c
o

o
k
in

g
, 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

ly
in

g
 o

f 
fo

o
d

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
o

d
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

   
 

 
 

 
         T

a
b

le
 1

  

   

Page 178



 
9

 

   

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

fo
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 (
2

2
/6

/1
2

) 
 U

s
a

g
e

 
A

 B
a
n

d
 

B
 B

a
n

d
 

C
 B

a
n

d
 

D
 B

a
n

d
 

E
 B

a
n

d
 

O
u

ts
id

e
 

U
n

ra
te

d
 

T
o
ta

l 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

rs
 

 
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

S
la

u
g
h

te
rh

o
u

s
e

 
 

 
 

 
1

 
1

 
 

2
 

M
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 
2

 
3

 
2

0
 

8
 

7
 

2
 

1
0

 
5

2
 

P
a

c
k
e

rs
 

 
 

1
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

Im
p
o

rt
e

rs
 E

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
6

 
1

 
7

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

e
rs

 
 

1
 

2
8

 
2

8
 

2
3

 
1

 
 

8
1

 

A
rt

ic
le

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 
fo

o
d

 
 

 
 

 
2

 
1

 
 

3
 

M
fr

 s
e

lli
n

g
 b

y
 r

e
ta

il 
 

2
 

1
5

 
9

 
3

 
 

 
2

9
 

S
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 
 

1
 

1
2

 
9

 
9

 
 

3
 

3
4

 

R
e

ta
ile

r 
 

7
 

1
7

8
 

2
1

8
 

2
3

7
 

4
 

1
8

 
6

6
2

 

R
e

s
ta

u
ra

n
t/

C
a
fé

/C
a
n

te
e

n
 

5
 

5
7

 
6

8
3

 
8

6
 

5
4

 
2

 
3

2
 

9
1

9
 

P
u

b
/C

lu
b

 
 

4
 

8
5

 
6

1
 

5
8

 
 

 
2

0
8

 

T
a

k
e

a
w

a
y
 

2
 

2
7

 
1

8
3

 
2

6
 

2
4

 
 

3
6

 
2

9
8

 

C
a

ri
n

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

1
 

9
 

2
3

 
1

4
 

7
1

 
 

 
1

1
8

 

S
c
h

o
o

l/
C

o
lle

g
e

 
 

1
5

 
8

2
 

4
 

4
 

 
 

1
0

5
 

H
o

te
l/
G

u
e

s
t 

H
o
u

s
e

 
 

 
5

 
4

 
 

 
 

9
 

O
th

e
rs

 
1

 
1

 
1

1
 

2
 

7
 

 
1

2
 

3
4

 

T
o
ta

l 
1

1
 

1
2

7
 

1
3

2
7

 
4

6
9

 
5

0
0

 
1

7
 

1
1

2
 

2
5

6
3

 

 
 

 
 T

o
ta

l 
2
5

6
3
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

 
 T

h
e

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
: 

C
a

te
g
o

ry
 A

, 
e

v
e

ry
 6

 m
o

n
th

s
; 

B
, 
e

v
e

ry
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
; 

C
, 
e

v
e

ry
 1

8
 m

o
n

th
s
, 

D
, 

e
v
e

ry
 2

 Y
rs

; 
a

n
d
 E

, 
e

v
e

ry
 3

 Y
rs

. 
T

h
e
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
U

n
ra

te
d

 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

v
is

it
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 A

-E
. 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 E

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 u
s
in

g
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

Page 179



 
1
0

 

   
 T

a
b

le
 2

  T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

fo
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 (

2
2

/6
/1

1
) 

 U
s
a

g
e

 
 

A
 B

a
n

d
 

B
 B

a
n

d
 

C
 B

a
n

d
 

O
u

ts
id

e
 

U
n

ra
te

d
 

T
o
ta

l 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

rs
 

 
 

 
 

1
 

1
 

S
la

u
g
h

te
rh

o
u

s
e

 
 

1
 

1
 

 
 

2
 

M
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 
2

 
2

6
 

1
0

 
 

1
5

 
5

3
 

P
a

c
k
e

rs
 

 
1

 
 

 
 

1
 

Im
p
o

rt
e

rs
 E

C
 

 
3

 
1

 
1

 
3

 
8

 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

e
rs

 
4

 
6

3
 

9
 

1
 

3
 

8
0

 

A
rt

ic
le

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

 
fo

o
d

 
 

 
1

 
2

 
 

3
 

M
fr

 s
e

lli
n

g
 b

y
 r

e
ta

il 
 

1
4

 
1

4
 

 
1

 
2

9
 

S
u

p
e

rm
a

rk
e

t 
 

8
 

2
2

 
 

4
 

3
4

 

R
e

ta
ile

r 
2

 
2

6
7

 
3

1
7

 
2

2
 

5
4

 
6

6
2

 

R
e

s
ta

u
ra

n
t/

C
a
fé

/C
a
n

te
e

n
 

3
 

4
3

0
 

3
9

9
 

3
 

8
1

 
9

1
6

 

P
u

b
/C

lu
b

 
 

6
3

 
1

3
8

 
 

7
 

2
0

8
 

T
a

k
e

a
w

a
y
 

2
 

1
5

5
 

7
1

 
 

7
0

 
2

9
8

 

C
a

ri
n

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

 
9

 
4

5
 

3
 

6
1

 
1

1
8

 

S
c
h

o
o

l/
C

o
lle

g
e

 
 

2
4

 
8

0
 

1
 

 
1

0
5

 

H
o

te
l/
G

u
e

s
t 

H
o
u

s
e

 
 

3
 

6
 

 
 

9
 

O
th

e
r 

 
7

 
1

3
 

 
1

4
 

3
4

 

T
o
ta

l 
1

3
 

1
0

7
4

 
1

1
2
7

 
3

3
 

3
1

4
 

2
5

6
1

 

 
T

o
ta

l 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 2

5
6

1
 

 T
h
e

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
: 

A
, 

e
v
e

ry
 1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
; 

B
, 
e

v
e

ry
 2

 y
e

a
rs

; 
C

, 
e

v
e

ry
 5

 y
e

a
rs

. 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 C

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 u
s
in

g
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

Page 180



 
1
1

 

2
.4

.3
 

A
s
 a

t 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 w
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

 a
n
d

 m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

fo
o

d
 f
o
r 

th
e

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

m
a

rk
e

t:
 -

 
 

§
 

4
 f

is
h

e
ry

 m
a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 
§
 

5
0

 w
h

o
le

s
a

le
 f

is
h

e
ry

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 a
n
d

 l
iv

e
 s

h
e

llf
is

h
  

§
 

1
 F

is
h

 w
h

o
le

s
a

le
/r

e
ta

il 
m

a
rk

e
t 

§
 

5
 d

a
ir
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

rs
 

§
 

3
 m

e
a

t 
p

ro
d
u

c
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 

§
 

1
 s

a
n
d

w
ic

h
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

  
2

.4
.4

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
fo

o
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 c
a

te
re

rs
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

ile
rs

. 
  

 2
.4

.5
 

T
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 r
is

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
im

p
o

rt
e

d
 f
o

o
d

s
 (

fr
o
m

 n
o
n

 E
C

 C
o

u
n

tr
ie

s
) 

e
n

te
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
e

it
h

e
r 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 i
m

p
o

rt
e

d
 

b
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 o

r 
b

y
 t

h
ir
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
. 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 f
o

o
d

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
lle

g
a

l 
(i
.e

. 
b

a
n

n
e
d

 f
ro

m
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
) 

o
r 

d
o

 n
o
t 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p
o

s
it
io

n
a

l 
o

r 
la

b
e

lli
n

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

e
a
p

 i
m

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
u
m

e
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
is

 f
o

o
d

 g
iv

e
s
 r

is
e

 t
o

 a
 r

is
k
 t

o
 h

u
m

a
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

 o
ff

e
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
o

rt
e

rs
. 

 
 2

.4
.6

 
W

e
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 J

o
in

t 
L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
ir
 t

h
e

 N
o

rt
h

 E
a

s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 G

ro
u
p

. 
 2

.4
.7

 
W

h
e
n
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
 f

o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 o
r 

fo
o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i

n
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
, 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 &
 s

a
fe

ty
 i

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 w
h

e
re

 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 t
h

e
 e

n
fo

rc
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

 
 2

.4
.8

 
O

n
e

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 o

f 
B

a
n

g
la

d
e

s
h

i 
o

ri
g
in

 a
n

d
 o

v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 t

h
e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
re

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

is
 p

ro
fi
le

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

h
ig

h
. 
E

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 
fo

o
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
p

ri
e

to
rs

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 p
re

fe
r 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
. 

A
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
n
te

rp
re

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
f 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
u

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 m

u
lt
i 
lin

g
u

a
l.
 

 2
.4

.9
 

R
e

c
e

p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 2

.4
.1

0
 

T
h
e

 r
e

c
e
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 p
o

in
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 T

ra
d

in
g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 (
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l)
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

is
 l
o

c
a

te
d

 
a

t:
 

 
A

n
c
h

o
ra

g
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 
C

lo
v
e

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t 

Page 181



 
1
2

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 E
1
4

 
 

2
.4

.1
1
 

W
e
 o

p
e

ra
te

 a
n

 o
u

t-
o
f-

h
o

u
rs

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 c

a
ll-

o
u

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 o
p

e
ra

te
s
 f

ro
m

 5
p
m

 t
o

 8
a

m
 o

n
 a

 w
e

e
k
d

a
y
 a

n
d

 2
4
h
rs

 a
t 

w
e

e
k
e

n
d

s
 

a
n

d
 B

a
n

k
 H

o
lid

a
y
s
. 

 T
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
s
 o

n
ly

 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o
n

in
g
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 o

r 
m

a
jo

r 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

n
o

n
-f

o
o

d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 r

e
la

te
d

 e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
. 

 2
.4

.1
2
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 a

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
t 

w
w

w
.t

o
w

e
rh

a
m

le
ts

.g
o

v
.u

k
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a
m

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 E
-

m
a

il 
a
d

d
re

s
s
, 
n

a
m

e
ly

: 
fo

o
d

s
a
fe

ty
@

to
w

e
rh

a
m

le
ts

.g
o

v
.u

k
 a

n
d
 h

e
a

lt
h
a

n
d

s
a
fe

ty
@

to
w

e
rh

a
m

le
ts

.g
o

v
.u

k
 T

h
is

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 u
s
e

d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

, 
k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 E

H
C

N
e

t.
 

 2
.5

  
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

 2
.5

.1
 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 i
s
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 a

ll 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
it
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o

lic
y
. 

  
It

 s
e

e
k
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fo

rm
a

l 
e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a

l 
ri
s
k
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
 f

a
ir
, 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
m

a
n

n
e

r.
  

 2
.5

.2
  

T
h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o

lic
y
 i
s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 T
e
a

m
 d

u
ri
n

g
 a

ll 
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
s
 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 r
e
fe

re
n

c
e

d
 t
o

 w
h

e
n

 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

L
e
g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

  
 

 3
.0

 
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 

 3
.1

 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 3
.1

.1
 

F
o

o
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 l
a

w
 i
s
 a

 m
e
a
s
u

re
d

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 a
n

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d

 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o

v
e

rs
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

o
o

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
n

o
t 
ju

s
t 

th
o

s
e

 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

is
 

y
e

a
r.

 A
 r

is
k
 s

c
o

re
 o

f 
1

0
 p

o
in

ts
 o

r 
b
e

lo
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n

c
e

 i
n

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
e

 p
re

m
is

e
 i
s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.
  

 
 

3
.1

.2
 

T
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

 A
g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
d

e
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

g
u

id
e

s
 o

u
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

e
rm

it
s
 s

h
o

rt
e

r 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 
o

n
 t
h

o
s
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 o

f 
C

 a
n
d

 D
 f

o
r 

fo
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n

d
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 i
n

 c
a
te

g
o

ry
 E

  
 3

.1
.3

 
W

e
 u

s
e

 a
 h

a
z
a

rd
 s

p
o

tt
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 d
e
e
m

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 T
h

is
 r

e
d

u
c
e

s
 t
h
e

 b
u

rd
e

n
 o

n
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

s
 o

u
r 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

o
n

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

 f
u

ll 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

if
 t
h

e
s
e

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o
f 

th
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

r 
a

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h
 r

is
k
 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

. 
 

Page 182



 
1
3

 

3
.1

.4
 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 m
o

v
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 b
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
a

n
d
 n

o
t 

b
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
-i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 k
e
e

p
 t
h

e
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t.

 
 3

.1
.5

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 8
6

.5
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

fo
o
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t.
 

 3
.1

.6
 

T
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f

o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

/s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

t 
fr

e
q
u

e
n

c
ie

s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d

 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 c

o
v
e

r 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e
 a

n
d
 f

o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

is
 f

a
lls

 
d

u
e

 (
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
o
m

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 f

a
ll 

d
u

e
 f

o
r 

fo
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

) 
a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 l
a

w
, 

e
it
h

e
r 

in
 v

e
ry

 b
ro

a
d

 t
e

rm
s
 o

r 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 f
o

c
u

s
e
d

 h
e

a
lt
h
 &

 s
a
fe

ty
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
T

h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 d

ic
ta

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 f

o
o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 r
a

ti
n

g
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 t

h
is

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
e

a
d

s
 

to
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u
e

n
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 b
u

ild
s
 i
n

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 o

n
ly

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

a
t 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
s
 d

u
e

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 A

 –
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 f
o

o
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

s
 a

re
 

c
h

e
c
k
e
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
S

o
m

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
e

rs
 w

h
o

 d
o
 n

o
t 

a
c
tu

a
lly

 h
a

n
d

le
 o

r 
s
to

re
 f

o
o

d
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
o

n
ly

 t
o

 f
o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
. 

 
 3

.1
.7

 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 E

 f
o

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n

d
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 C

 f
o
o
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 a

 s
e

lf
 a

u
d

it
 q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 q
u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 a
ll 

C
a

te
g
o

ry
 E

 a
n

d
 C

 r
a

te
d

 p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

V
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
o

n
 5

%
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
. 

 
3

.1
.8

 
F

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fo
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
e
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 T
a

b
le

 3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fo
o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
e

 
is

 s
h

o
w

n
 i
n

 T
a

b
le

 4
: 

 
  T

a
b

le
 3

 
 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 2
0
1
2

/1
3
. 

 
 

Page 183



 
1
4

 

    
T

a
b

le
 4

 
   

  
  
  

  
  
 

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 

In
s

p
e

c
ti

o
n

 
R

a
ti

n
g

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

in
s

p
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 d

u
e

 

A
 

1
3

 

B
 

6
8

3
 

C
 (

v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
) 

1
7

 

U
n

ra
te

d
 

2
3

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

9
4

3
 

 3
.1

.9
 

M
o

s
t 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 a

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
. 
It

 i
s
 t
h

e
 t
e

a
m

s
’ 
ta

rg
e

t 
to

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
A

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 d

u
e

. 
 

 

In
s

p
e

c
ti

o
n

 R
a

ti
n

g
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fo
o

d
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
 i

n
s

p
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 d

u
e

 

A
 

6
 x

 2
 =

 1
2

 

B
 B

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

4
4

 

B
 n

o
t 
B

ro
a
d

ly
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
9

7
 

C
 B

ro
a

d
ly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
9

4
8

 

C
 n

o
t 

B
ro

a
d

ly
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
8

2
 

D
 B

ro
a

d
ly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
2

6
3

 

D
 n

o
t 
b

ro
a

d
ly

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
3

4
 

E
 (

v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
1

2
 

U
n

ra
te

d
 

4
8

 

T
o

ta
l 

In
s

p
e
c

ti
o

n
s

 
3

2
9

 

T
o

ta
l 

S
u

rv
e

il
la

n
c

e
 

in
s

p
e

c
ti

o
n

s
 

1
2

1
1

 

T
o

ta
l 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 

1
5

4
0

 

Page 184



 
1
5

 

 3
.1

.1
0
 

W
h
e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 n

e
w

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

s
p
e

c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

s
e

 ‘
u
n

ra
te

d
’ 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
u

n
t 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e
 b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

s
c
o

re
 a

n
d

 h
e

n
c
e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

llo
c
a

te
d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

u
n

ra
te

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 
 3

.1
.1

1
 

F
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n

d
 f

o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 d

e
ta

il 
th

e
 s

te
p

s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

y
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

C
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 F
S

A
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
In

d
u

s
tr

y
 G

u
id

e
s
. 

 3
.1

.1
2
 

H
y
g
ie

n
e

 r
e

-i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

h
e
re

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
n

o
ti
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
s
s
u
e

d
, 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p
u

b
lic

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
is

k
 o

r 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

 n
o

t 
b

ro
a

d
ly

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t.
 

 3
.1

.1
3
 

F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
-i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 o

f 
a

 l
o

w
e

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

s
 o

ft
e

n
 a

s
 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

. 
 

 3
.1

.1
4
 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
s
 3

.2
 

F
u

ll
 T

im
e

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

(F
T

E
).

 R
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 2

 F
T

E
. 

A
n

n
e

x
 A

 g
iv

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 t
h

e
 T

e
a
m

 w
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 1

E
H

O
. 

A
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 m

o
v
e

 a
n
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
in

to
 t

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 0

.9
9
 F

T
E

 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 n

o
t 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
n

g
 a

ll 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
fa

ll 
d
u

e
 w

h
e

re
 p

re
 p

a
c
k
e

d
 f
o

o
d

 i
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 
re

g
im

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

im
ila

r 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
, 
n

a
m

e
ly

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
o
ff

 l
ic

e
n

c
e

s
, 
n

e
w

s
a

g
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 c
h

e
m

is
ts

. 
 

 3
.1

.1
5

  
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

- 
 

 
§
 

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a
t 

m
a

jo
r 

fe
s
ti
v
a

ls
. 

§
 

E
n

h
a
n

c
e
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 G

a
m

e
s
, 
th

is
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 m

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
l 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
, 

m
is

 l
e

a
d

in
g
 c

la
im

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
h

y
g
ie

n
e

 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
. 

§
 

A
ll 

0
 a

n
d

 1
 r

a
te

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

s
p
e

c
te

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
 

§
 

G
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
e

d
 c

o
a

c
h

in
g
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
S

A
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 a
t 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
/f

a
ili

n
g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d

 u
p
 t

o
 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 

§
 

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e

 a
t 
B

ill
in

g
s
g
a

te
 M

a
rk

e
t.

 

§
 

A
ll 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 t
im

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 t

h
e

y
 p

re
s
e

n
t.

 
§
 

F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
it
h

 F
o

o
d

 H
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s

. 
§
 

Il
le

g
a

l 
im

p
o

rt
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d
 a

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
§
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
 a

 t
h
e
m

e
d

 b
a

s
is

. 
§
 

C
lo

s
u

re
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

-u
p

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

§
 

W
e
 w

ill
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e

t 
A

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 a

n
d

 H
ig

h
e

r 
B

’s
 w

it
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
§
 

W
e
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n

 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

in
s
p

e
c
t 

s
o
m

e
 i
f 

re
a

c
ti
v
e

 d
e
m

a
n

d
s
 a

re
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
. 

 

Page 185



 
1
6

 

 

3
.2

 
F

o
o

d
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

/R
e

q
u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 3

.2
.1

 
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 r
e

c
o

rd
, 

a
s
s
e

s
s
, 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 a
n
d

 d
e

a
l 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 
R

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

la
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

r 
lo

w
e

r 
ri
s
k
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 
a

re
: 

 

• 
T

o
 g

iv
e

 a
 1

s
t  r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 9
9

%
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 3

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 

 

• 
T

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

1
0

0
%

 o
f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 i
s
s
u

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u
e

s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
. 

 

• 
T

o
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
a

ll 
n

e
w

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
  
p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
rm

. 
 3

.2
.2

 
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 w
a

s
 1

0
3

1
. 
 

 3
.2

.3
 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 i
s
 1

.9
 F

T
E

. 
 3

.3
 

H
o

m
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 P
ri
n

c
ip

le
 

 3
.3

.1
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
rm

a
lly

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
ri
n

c
ip

le
 a

t 
th

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
1

3
th

 J
u

n
e

 1
9
9

5
. 
 A

 H
o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 b

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
n

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
s
 s

it
u
a

te
d
. 

 T
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n
d

 d
e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
 A

n
 

O
ri
g
in

a
ti
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
s
 o

n
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

 f
o
o

d
 i
s
 m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
d
, 

s
to

re
d
 o

r 
fi
rs

t 
im

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
o

, 
b

u
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ly

. 
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n
c
e

p
t 
o
f 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
m

a
y
 a

ff
e

c
t 

w
o

rk
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 t

ra
d

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

w
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
e

n
a
b

le
 o

n
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 b
e
 a

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 g
u

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 3
.3

.2
 

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

0
0

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

ro
b

a
b

le
 H

o
m

e
 o

r 
O

ri
g
in

a
ti
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

E
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 

fr
o
m

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 3

.3
.3

 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 0

.2
5

 F
T

E
. 

 3
.4

 
A

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

 

Page 186



 
1
7

 

3
.4

.1
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 i
s
 f

re
e

ly
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 f
o

o
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
d

 u
p

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t.
  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 s

e
tt

in
g
 u

p
 a

 f
o
o

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
e

n
t 
to

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 

 A
 

v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 l
e

a
fl
e

ts
, 

in
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

s
, 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 3
.5

 
F

o
o

d
 I
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
a

m
p

lin
g
  

 3
.5

.1
 

F
o

o
d

 i
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 U
K

 a
n
d

 E
U

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

 A
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 e

a
c
h

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 m

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 c

h
e

m
ic

a
l 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
. 

O
u

r 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 a

t 
A

n
n

e
x
 D

 
 3

.5
.2

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 F

o
o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

H
P

A
),

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
o

o
rd

in
a
ti
n

g
 B

o
d

y
 o

n
 R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

L
A

C
O

R
S

),
 E

U
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 F
o

o
d

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 F
o

o
d

 L
ia

is
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
. 
 P

la
n

n
e

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
. 

 3
.5

.3
 

T
h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2
0

1
2
/1

3
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

8
8

 s
a

m
p

le
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
 i
s
 

£
1

2
,0

0
0
. 

 3
.5

.4
 

T
h
e

 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

s
 t
a

k
e
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 1

8
8

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 4
0
 w

e
re

 u
n

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

 u
p

 a
c
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 3
.5

.5
 

T
h
e

 L
a

b
o

ra
to

ri
e

s
 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 s
a

m
p

le
s
 a

re
 s

e
n

t 
a
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
. 
A

n
a

ly
s
is

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 P

u
b

lic
 A

n
a

ly
s
ts

:-
 

 
D

u
n

c
a

n
 A

rt
h

u
r 

J
e

re
m

y
 W

o
o
te

n
 

E
u

ro
fi
n

s
 S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 L

a
b
o

ra
to

ri
e

s
, 
4

4
5
 N

e
w

 C
ro

s
s
 R

o
a
d

, 
L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
S

E
1

4
 

 M
ic

ro
b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
e

x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
:-

 
S

u
s
a

n
 S

u
rm

a
n
 (

F
o

o
d
 E

x
a

m
in

e
r)

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 A
g
e
n

c
y
, 

F
o

o
d

, 
W

a
te

r 
&

 E
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
M

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g

y
 U

n
it
 (

L
o

n
d
o

n
),

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 M

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g
y
 L

a
b

o
ra

to
ry

, 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 L
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
, 

6
1

, 
C

o
lin

d
a

le
 A

v
e

n
u

e
, 

L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
N

W
9
 5

H
T

. 
 O

n
 o

c
c
a

s
io

n
s
, 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 f

o
r 

m
ic

ro
b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
e

x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 E
u

ro
fi
n

s
 S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 L

a
b

o
ra

to
ri
e

s
. 

 
3

.5
.6

 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 0
.5

F
T

E
 

 3
.6

 
O

u
tb

re
a

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

 I
n
fe

c
ti
o
u

s
 D

is
e

a
s
e

 C
o

n
tr

o
l  

 

Page 187



 
1
8

 

3
.6

.1
 

W
e
 w

ill
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 a

ll 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 O

u
tb

re
a

k
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
a

 m
a

jo
r 

o
u

tb
re

a
k
 (

i.
e

. 
4

 o
r 

m
o

re
 c

a
s
e

s
).

 
 3

.6
.2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
a

lle
g
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
 c

a
u

s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

 o
f 
fo

o
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
b
u

t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 

m
e

d
ic

a
l 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
re

a
te

d
 a

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e
q
u

e
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
0

.0
2
 F

T
E

  
 3

.7
 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 I

n
c
id

e
n
ts

 
 3

.7
.1

 
W

e
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 F
o

o
d

 A
le

rt
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

 A
le

rt
s
 

re
q
u

ir
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 o
v
e

r 
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

 o
u

t-
o
f-

h
o

u
rs

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 n
o

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 
o
ff

ic
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 n

o
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

m
 o

f 
a

 m
a

jo
r 

in
c
id

e
n

t 
o
f 

fo
o
d

 c
o

n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 o

c
c
u

rs
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
n

o
rm

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
 h

o
u

rs
. 

 
 3

.7
.2

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
o

lic
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 n

o
te

 o
n

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 F
o
o

d
 H

a
z
a

rd
 W

a
rn

in
g
s
. 

 3
.7

.3
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 a
re

 d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h
e

 d
e
m

a
n

d
. 
In

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 3

9
 F

o
o
d

 H
a
z
a

rd
 W

a
rn

in
g
s
 a

n
d

 6
2

 A
lle

rg
y
 A

le
rt

s
 

is
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
0
.0

5
 F

T
E

. 
(I

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 3

.8
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 O
th

e
r 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 

 3
.8

.1
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

ri
n

g
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r:

 -
 

 
§
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 a

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 E
a

s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 F

o
o
d

 L
ia

is
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

ts
 e

v
e

ry
 e

ig
h

t 
w

e
e

k
s
. 

  
§
 

A
 P

E
H

O
 a

tt
e
n

d
s
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 

§
 

P
la

n
n
e

d
 l
ia

is
o
n

 m
e

e
ti
n
g
s
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

§
 

W
e
 a

re
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 f
o

r 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
 3

.8
.2

 
T

h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
0
.0

3
 F

T
E

. 
 3

.9
 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 

 3
.9

.1
 

T
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
c
e

rt
a

in
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
m

o
re

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

: 
 

Page 188



 
1
9

 

§
 

It
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 e
x
a

m
in

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 
d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
lk

s
, 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

is
p

la
y
s
 f

o
r 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 o

r 
a

t 
e

v
e

n
ts

 o
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

 
§
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
O

b
e

s
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

C
T

. 
§
 

S
e

e
k
in

g
 s

m
a

ll 
g
ra

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 F

o
o
d

 S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

b
e

s
p

o
k
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

  
 

3
.9

.2
 

T
h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
0
.0

3
 F

T
E

. 
 3

.1
0
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 3
.1

0
.1

 
T

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
’s

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
A

d
m

in
 t

e
a

m
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 
 

 3
.1

1
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 3
.1

1
.1

 
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 2

 P
E

H
O

’s
 w

h
o

 a
ls

o
 

h
a

v
e

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 d
u

ti
e

s
. 
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 0

.8
 F

T
E

. 
 4

.0
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 4

.1
 

 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 

 4
.1

.1
 

T
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 (
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l)
 c

o
s
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
. 
 

 4
.1

.2
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 e
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
fr

e
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 a

re
 r

u
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 

A
g
e

n
c
y
. 

 
 4

.1
.3

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
e
n

tr
a

l,
 d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 l
e

g
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 a

d
d
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

to
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
T

h
is

 r
e

c
h

a
rg

e
 i
s
 o

n
 a

 d
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
b

a
s
is

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 
b

ro
k
e
n

 d
o

w
n

 i
n

to
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
te

a
m

s
. 

 4
.2

 
S

ta
ff

in
g
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 

 4
.2

.1
 

T
h
e

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 f

o
r 

fo
o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

, 
is

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 
0

.3
 x

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

2
 x

 P
ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
(P

E
H

O
) 

2
 x

 S
e

n
io

r 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
(S

E
H

O
) 

  
3

 x
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
(E

H
O

) 

Page 189



 
2
0

 

2
 x

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(F
S

O
) 

 
1

x
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 E

a
ti
n

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

L
e

a
d
 –

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
  

(T
o

ta
l 
T

e
c
h
n

ic
a

l 
S

ta
ff

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 p

la
n

 =
 1

1
.9

9
 F

T
E

) 
 

4
.2

.3
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 a
re

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

 
T

S
O

/C
S

O
 –

A
n

im
a

l 
F

e
e

d
in

g
-s

tu
ff

s
 –

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
&

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 T

e
a
m

s
 s

h
a

re
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
: 

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
: 

 1
 x

 S
e

n
io

r 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
(0

.1
 F

T
E

) 
1

 x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
(0

.3
 F

T
E

) 
4

 x
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
1

.2
 F

T
E

) 
(T

o
ta

l 
A

d
m

in
 s

ta
ff

 =
 1

.6
 F

T
E

) 
 

 
4

.2
.5

 
A

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
e

te
n

c
ie

s
 

 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r/
P

E
H

O
s
/E

H
O

s
: 

 
 • 

F
u

lly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 t

o
 D

ip
lo

m
a

/D
e

g
re

e
 l
e

v
e

l 

• 
A

u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n

s
p
e

c
t 
a
ll 

c
a

te
g
o

ri
e

s
 (

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 f
o

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

r 
h

a
v
e

 
in

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

) 

• 
T

a
k
e

 a
ll 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 (

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 f

o
r 

2
 y

e
a

rs
 o

r 
a

re
 F

o
o

d
 

S
a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

) 
 

 
 

 
 

4
.3

  
  

  
 

S
ta

ff
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

la
n

 
 4

.3
.1

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

u
s
e

s
 i
ts

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 t
o

: 
 

• 
S

e
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

im
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
. 

 

• 
M

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 a

p
p

ra
is

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
 

• 
A

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

 
 

Page 190



 
2
1

 

A
t 

th
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 P
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
P

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 m

a
in

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

. 
 4

.3
.2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 T
e
a

m
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

la
n

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

 

• 
C

o
m

m
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

• 
T

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

• 
T

ra
in

in
g
 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o
 n

e
w

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 

• 
T

ra
in

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
m

a
tt
e

rs
 (

IT
, 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
) 

 4
.3

.3
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
:-

 
 

F
o

o
d

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 

U
p

d
a

te
 S

e
m

in
a

rs
 –

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 o
n

 f
o

o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 t

o
p

ic
s
 

C
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
s
c
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 R
a

ti
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

U
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 s
to

p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 (

R
A

N
) 

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
Is

s
u

e
s
 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 t

e
c
h

n
iq

u
e
s
 –

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

In
te

rv
ie

w
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
a
u
ti
o

n
 –

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 
n

e
w

ly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
t 

in
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

u
c
h

 l
e

g
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
 

 4
.4

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

 4
.4

.1
 

T
a

b
le

 5
 i
n

 A
n

n
e

x
 A

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 (

i.
e

. 
1

0
 F

T
E

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
) 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 
p

la
n

 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 w

e
re

 a
llo

c
a

te
d
. 

 T
h
e

 t
a
b

le
 a

ls
o

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 f
u

lf
il 

th
e

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

.  
 4

.4
..
2
 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 6

.0
 o

f 
th

is
 P

la
n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

 i
n

 2
0
1
1

/1
2

 
 4

.4
.3

 
 

T
h
e

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

e
re

: 
 

§
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 –

 n
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 u
p

 
to

 a
 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 
 

§
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

e
re

 7
5

%
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 f
o

r 
h

y
g
ie

n
e

 (
 a

n
d

 4
4

%
 f
o

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 
E

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 D
 a

n
d

 E
 a

n
d

 C
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
. 

T
h
e

 T
e

a
m

 c
o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 f

o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 
T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 

Page 191



 
2
2

 

in
to

 2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 
T

h
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

e
re

 l
e

a
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 d
u

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
. 

In
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 f

a
ll 

d
u

e
 w

h
e

n
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
u

e
 h

e
n

c
e

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 d
a
te

. 
  

 
5

.0
 

 
Q

u
a

li
ty

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 5
.1

 
T

h
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

: 
- 

 
 

• 
D

e
s
k
to

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 c
a

s
e

 p
a
p

e
rw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 f

ile
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 a

 P
E

H
O

. 

• 
N

e
w

 
o

r 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

in
d
u

c
te

d
 

in
to

 
th

e
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

a
n

d
 

s
h

a
d
o
w

e
d

 
o

n
 

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 

to
 

e
n

s
u

re
 

c
o

m
p
e

te
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
. 

• 
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 6

-8
 w

e
e

k
ly

 1
 t

o
 1

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 c

a
s
e

w
o

rk
. 

• 
A

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

it
h

 e
a

c
h

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
. 

• 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

• 
B

i 
-m

o
n
th

ly
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 t
e
a

m
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

• 
O

c
c
a

s
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 t
o

 a
id

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
, 

s
ta

ff
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n

d
 6

 m
o
n

th
 

re
v
ie

w
s
. 

• 
M

o
n

th
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 F
L
A

R
E

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

 6
.0

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

 6
.1

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 

 6
.1

.1
 

T
h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
p

re
s
e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e
a

m
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
. 

 6
.1

.2
 

A
t 

th
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r,

 a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
w

it
h

 i
n

p
u

t 
fr

o
m

 t
e
a

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

n
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 I
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 i

d
e

n
ti
fy

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a

r.
  

T
h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
2
0

1
1
/1

2
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 6
.4

 b
e

lo
w

. 
 6

.2
 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
.  

 
6

.2
.1

 
A

n
y
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

 6
.4

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
n

y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

. 
 W

h
e

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

n
y
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

rs
 p

la
n

. 
 

Page 192



 
2
3

 

6
.3

 
 

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
 

 6
.3

.1
 

W
h
e
re

 
a

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

a
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
s
 

p
a

rt
 

o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

o
r 

th
ro

u
g
h

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

rs
 p

la
n

. 
K

e
y
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n
 

p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h

 6
.1

7
. 

 6
.4

 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 6
.4

.1
 

7
5

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
fo

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
re

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
d

 a
 f

o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

F
o

r 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t

h
is

 
w

a
s
 9

7
%

 (
A

 –
 B

 r
is

k
).

 A
ll 

o
v
e

rd
u

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 2

0
1
2

/1
3

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 6
.4

.2
 

6
2

7
 r

e
-i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
is

 e
q
u

a
te

s
 t

o
 1

 i
n

 1
.5

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 r
e

-
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

. 
  

 
6

.4
.3

 
4

4
%

 
o
f 

th
e

 
fo

o
d

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 
w

a
s
 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 
o

u
t,

 
fo

o
d

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 
th

a
t 

fa
ll 

d
u
e

 
a

lo
n

g
 
s
id

e
 
fo

o
d

 
h

y
g
ie

n
e
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 a

s
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
d

u
e

 o
r 

th
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 h

a
d

 b
e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 l

o
w

 
ri
s
k
. 

 
 6

.5
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t  
 6

.5
.1

 
1

1
 
(1

5
 
in

 
th

e
 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 
y
e

a
r)

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
w

e
re

 
p

ro
s
e

c
u

te
d

 
a

s
 
a

 
re

s
u

lt
 
o
f 

e
it
h

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 
o
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
. 
T

h
is

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
fi
n

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
ts

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 o
f 

£
3
4

,2
3

5
  

 6
.5

.2
 

1
2

3
 (

7
8

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r)
 f

o
rm

a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

n
o

ti
c
e

s
 w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e

d
. 

 
 6

.5
.3

 
2

1
 

(1
7
 

in
 

th
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
r)

 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 

w
e

re
 

c
lo

s
e
d

 
b

y
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 

N
o

ti
c
e

s
 

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
c
lo

s
u

re
, 

m
a

in
ly

 
fo

r 
u

n
c
o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 p
e

s
t 

in
fe

s
ta

ti
o

n
, 

th
is

 w
a

s
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
l 

to
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e
n

tr
a

ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
ri
s
k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
. 
  

 6
.6

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

 6
.6

.1
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

e
a

rl
y
 m

o
rn

in
g
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 w

e
re

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

B
ill

in
g
s
g
a

te
 M

a
rk

e
t.

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

rk
e
t.

 A
ll 

T
ra

d
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
to

 t
ra

d
e

 a
t 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t.

 
 6

.7
 

F
o

o
d

 C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

/R
e

q
u
e

s
ts

 f
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
 

Page 193



 
2
4

 

6
.7

.1
 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
0
3

0
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

  
 6

.7
.2

 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 w

e
re

: 
8

9
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
lle

g
e

d
 f

o
o

d
 p

o
is

o
n

in
g
 d

u
e

 t
o

 e
a

ti
n

g
 o

u
t 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 (

a
 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 1

1
0

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r)

. 
2

3
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

d
ir
ty

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 (

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 1

7
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r)
, 

7
5

 a
b

o
u

t 
u
n

h
y
g
ie

n
ic

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 
(s

a
m

e
 
a

s
 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r)

, 
9

3
 
a
b

o
u

t 
p
e
s
t 

in
fe

s
ta

ti
o
n

s
 
(p

re
v
io

u
s
 
y
e

a
r 

7
3

) 
a
n

d
 
9

5
 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 
w

e
re

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 
a
b

o
u

t 
fo

o
d
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 i
s
s
u
e

s
, 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 f

o
o

d
 l
a

b
e

lli
n

g
 (

U
s
e

 b
y
 d

a
te

s
).

  
 6

.8
 

 
H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
ri
n

c
ip

le
 

 
6

.8
.1

 
N

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

e
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 c
o
n

ta
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

u
ts

id
e
 b

o
d

ie
s
 w

e
re

 H
o

m
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

E
a

c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 w
a

s
 d

e
a

lt
 

w
it
h

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
ri
n

c
ip

le
. 

 6
.9

 
A

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

 
6

.9
.1

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 
p

a
c
k
s
 
fo

r 
n
e

w
 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 
to

 
b

e
 
is

s
u

e
d
, 

a
lo

n
g
 
w

it
h

 
a

 
b

o
o

k
le

t 
g
iv

in
g
 
a

d
v
ic

e
 
o

n
 
c
a

rr
y
in

g
 
o

u
t 

a
 
h

a
z
a

rd
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

. 
 6

.1
0
 

F
o

o
d

 I
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 &

 S
a
m

p
lin

g
 

 
6

.1
0
.1

 
1

8
8

 F
o

o
d
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 w

e
re

 t
a

k
e

n
, 
o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 4
0

 f
a

ilu
re

s
. 
A

ll 
o
f 

th
e

s
e

 w
e

re
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u
e
n

tl
y
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 u

p
. 

  
 6

.1
0
.2

 
A

 f
u

ll 
S

a
m

p
lin

g
 P

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 
T

h
e

 S
a
m

p
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y
 i

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 A
n

n
e

x
 D

 a
n

d
 i

s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 F
o

o
d

 L
a

w
 P

la
n

. 
 6

.1
1
 

 
O

u
tb

re
a

k
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
&

 I
n
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 D

is
e
a

s
e

 C
o
n

tr
o

l  
 

6
.1

1
.1

 
S

o
m

e
 8

9
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 w
e

re
 i

n
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

a
lle

g
e

d
 f

o
o
d

 p
o

is
o
n

in
g
 o

ri
g
in

a
ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 f
o

o
d

 c
o

n
s
u
m

e
d

 i
n
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
N

o
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

T
y
p
h

o
id

 a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ty
p

h
o

id
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 U

n
it
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 
tr

a
c
in

g
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
. 

 6
.1

2
 

 
F

o
o

d
 A

le
rt

s
 

 
6

.1
2
.1

 
3

9
 F

o
o
d

 A
le

rt
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
, 

m
o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 d
id

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 a
n

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
d

id
 

re
s
u

lt
 i

n
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u
e

 o
f 

P
re

s
s
 R

e
le

a
s
e

s
 t

o
 n

o
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 s
o
m

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
ti
fi
e

d
 i

n
 

w
ri
ti
n

g
. 

Page 194



 
2
5

 

 6
.1

2
.2

  
F

o
o

d
 A

le
rt

s
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

a
 h

ig
h

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 i

m
m

e
d
ia

te
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

. 
 W

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
p
p

e
n
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 d
iv

e
rt

e
d

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
fo

o
d
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

c
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
is

 c
a

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o
u

tp
u

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

. 
 

 6
.1

3
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 O
th

e
r 

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 

 
6

.1
3
.1

 
T

h
e

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 u

n
it
 f

u
lf
ill

e
d
 a

ll 
o
f 

it
s
 l
ia

is
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 P

la
n

. 
  

 6
.1

4
 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 

 
6

.1
4
.1

 
P

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 f
o

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

e
re

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
 6

.1
4
.2

 
T

h
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
w

o
rk

e
d

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 
F

S
A

 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 
a

n
 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 
c
a

rr
y
 
o

u
t 

fo
o

d
 
h

y
g
ie

n
e

 
c
o

a
c
h

in
g
 
o
n
 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
ri
s
k
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

 6
.1

5
 

S
ta

ff
in

g
 

 
6

.1
5
.1

 
T

h
e

 t
e
a
m

 w
a

s
 f

u
lly

 s
ta

ff
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r.
  

 6
.1

6
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

 6
.1

6
.1

 
T

h
e

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r,

 t
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

: 
 

• 
S

a
m

p
lin

g
 

• 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
S

a
fe

ty
 

• 
In

te
rv

ie
w

in
g
 t

e
c
h

n
iq

u
e
s
 

• 
L

e
g
a

l 
u

p
d

a
te

s
 

• 
C

a
rb

o
n

 m
o
n

o
x
id

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

• 
A

u
d

it
in

g
 f

o
o

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

• 
 

6
.1

6
.2

 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

6
.1

6
.3

 
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 t
e

a
m

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c
e
. 

 6
.1

6
.4

 
M

o
n

th
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 
  

Page 195



 
2
6

 

6
.1

7
 

K
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t/

D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

 6
.1

7
.1

 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d

 n
e

w
ly

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

 6
.1

7
.2

  
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 t
o

 c
o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 h

a
z
a

rd
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 s

ta
ll 

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
o

 o
b
ta

in
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 t
ra

d
in

g
 d

e
ta

ils
. 

 6
.1

7
.3

  
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 k

e
p

t 
u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
. 

 6
.1

7
.4

 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 r

e
q
u
e

s
te

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 t

ra
in

in
g
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

. 
 6

.1
7
.5

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 
fo

r 
lo

w
 
ri
s
k
 
p

re
m

is
e

s
, 

n
o

w
 
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 
w

it
h

 
D

 
ra

te
d

 
fo

o
d

 
s
a
fe

ty
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
. 

 6
.1

7
.6

 
 C

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 F
o

o
d

 H
y
g
ie

n
e

 R
a

ti
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

 6
.1

7
.7

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
 f
o

o
d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
 

6
.1

7
.8

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 S

a
m

p
lin

g
 d

a
ta

, 
U

K
F

S
S

, 
a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
s
h

a
re

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 
 

 
6

.1
7
.9

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

h
a

n
d
 h

e
ld

 c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
IT

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

 
 

6
.1

7
.1

0
 

T
o
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 B
e
tt

e
r 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o
n

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
 6

.1
7
.1

1
 

R
e

v
is

it
s
 a

re
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

 a
s
 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 w

h
e

n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

. 
 6

.1
7
.1

2
 

T
h
e

 m
o

v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

a
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

. 
  

        7
.0

 
 

A
n

n
e

x
e

s
  

 

Page 196



 
2
7

 

A
n

n
e

x
 A

: 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

A
n

n
e

x
 B

: 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 M
a

k
in

g
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

A
n

n
e

x
 C

: 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

A
n

n
e

x
 D

: 
F

o
o

d
 S

a
m

p
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1
3

 
 

Page 197



 
2
8

 

 

A
n

n
e

x
 A

 
 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3
 

 T
a

b
le

 5
 

E
s
ti
m

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
ll 

T
im

e
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
(F

T
E

) 
 1

 y
e

a
r 

3
6

5
 d

a
y
s
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
L
e

a
v
e

  
3

1
 d

a
y
s
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 /

 t
e

a
m

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
s
 

2
4

 d
a

y
s
 

B
a

n
k
 H

o
lid

a
y
s
/S

ta
tu

to
ry

 l
e

a
v
e

 
1

2
 d

a
y
s
 

S
ic

k
 l
e

a
v
e

/d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

c
y
/S

p
e

c
ia

l 
le

a
v
e

 
e

tc
 

5
 d

a
y
s
 

W
e
e
k
e

n
d

s
 

1
0

4
 d

a
y
s
 

D
o

w
n

ti
m

e
 –

 r
e
a

d
in

g
, 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 e

tc
. 

1
8

 d
a

y
s
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
 

1
0

 d
a

y
s
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 

1
6

1
 d

a
y
s
 

1
 F

T
E

 
1

6
1

 d
a

y
s

 (
1

1
2

7
 h

o
u

rs
) 

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 I
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
s

 
 H

ig
h

 r
is

k
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 (

C
a

t 
A

,B
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
b

ro
a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
) 

=
 3

2
9
 i

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
e

 (
T

a
b

le
 3

 a
s
 T

o
ta

l 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
),

 a
t 

3
 ½

 h
o
u

rs
 p

e
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 (
th

is
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 –
 L

F
G

G
 b

e
n

c
h

 m
a

rk
in

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

1
9

9
9

),
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 1

1
5

1
 

h
o

u
rs

 t
o

 i
n

s
p
e

c
t 
1

0
0

%
. 

 B
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 =

 1
2

1
1
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

s
 (

T
a

b
le

 3
 a

s
 S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 I
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
) 

d
u
e

 a
t 

1
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 p
e

r 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
 1

8
1
6

 h
o
u

rs
 t

o
 

in
s
p

e
c
t 
1

0
0
%

. 
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
/s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 =
 2

9
6
7

 h
o
u

rs
 (

4
2
4

 d
a

y
s
)  

 L
o

w
 r

is
k
 (

D
, 

E
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
 a

n
d
 C

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
) 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
: 

 A
llo

w
 1

0
 h

rs
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
A

llo
w

 0
.2

5
 h

rs
 p

e
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 (

8
7

5
) 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
h
e

m
e

 =
 2

1
8

 h
o

u
rs

  

Page 198



 
2
9

 

 A
llo

w
 5

%
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

, 
i.
e
. 

4
3

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

t 
1

.5
 h

rs
 e

a
c
h

 =
 6

4
.5

 h
rs

  
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 =

 2
8

2
 h

rs
 (

4
0
 d

a
y
s
) 

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 A

 r
a

te
d

: 
1

3
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

n
ly

 @
 2

 ½
 h

rs
 e

a
c
h

 =
 3

2
 h

rs
 (

4
 d

a
y
s
) 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 i

s
 g

a
in

e
d

 a
s
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 t

o
 l
o

w
 r

is
k
 f

o
o
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

a
t 

th
e

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
s
 d

u
e
. 

 
 A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 o

f 
H

A
C

C
P

 2
0

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 @

 1
4

 h
o

u
rs

 =
 2

8
0

 h
rs

 (
4
0

 d
a

y
s
) 

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0

0
%

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
a

te
 =

 3
.2

 F
T

E
. 

 R
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
s

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
s

  
 A

ll 
C

a
te

g
o

ry
 A

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 a
 r

e
v
is

it
 a

s
 w

ill
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
fa

ll 
o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e

 b
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

ra
n

g
e

. 
 

 A
 =

 1
2

 @
 3

.5
h

rs
 =

 4
2

 h
rs

 (
6

 d
a

y
s
) 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 f
a

lli
n

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 

b
ro

a
d

ly
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

c
a

te
g
o

ry
 6

2
7

@
 3

.5
 h

o
u

rs
 =

 2
1

9
4

 h
o

u
rs

 (
3

1
3

 d
a

y
s
)  

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
re

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 =

 3
1

3
 d

a
y
s
 =

 2
 F

T
E

 
  F

o
o

d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
v
is

it
s
 1

3
 @

 2
h

rs
 =

 2
6

h
rs

 (
2
d

a
y
s
)  

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
fo

o
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 r

e
v
is

it
s
 =

 0
.0

1
 F

T
E

  
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s

ts
 

 It
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 1

0
0

0
 f

o
o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 I
t 

is
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
e
a

c
h

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 a
n
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

1
.5

 h
rs

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 1
5

0
0
 h

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

s
e

. 
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 1
5

0
0
 h

o
u

rs
 (

2
1

4
 d

a
y
s
)  

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
: 

5
0

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 @

 1
 h

r 
e

a
c
h
 =

 5
0

 h
rs

 
 

Page 199



 
3
0

 

T
o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 =

 5
0

 h
rs

 (
7

 d
a

y
s
) 

 4
0

 P
re

m
is

e
s
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 @

 0
.5

 h
r 

e
a

c
h

 =
 2

0
 h

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
P

re
m

is
e
s
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

 A
p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 =

 2
0

 h
rs

 (
3

 d
a

y
s
) 

 3
9

 f
o

o
d
 a

le
rt

s
 @

 0
.5

 h
r 

e
a

c
h
 =

 1
9

 h
rs

 
 1

0
%

 a
p

p
ro

x
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
s
 e

tc
.4

 @
 a

p
p

ro
x
. 

3
.5

 h
rs

 e
a

c
h

 =
 1

4
 h

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
F

o
o
d

 A
le

rt
s
 =

 3
2

 h
rs

 (
4

.5
 d

a
y
s
) 

 A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
0

 n
e
w

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

o
 o

p
e
n

 d
u
ri
n

g
 y

e
a

r 
@

  
3
 ½

 h
rs

 e
a

c
h

 =
 5

2
5

 h
rs

 
 T

o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
N

e
w

 P
re

m
is

e
s
 =

 5
2

5
 h

rs
 (

7
5

 d
a
y
s
) 

 T
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 =
 3

0
3

 d
a

y
s
 =

 1
.9

 F
T

E
 

 H
o

m
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 P
re

m
is

e
s

 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 2

0
0

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e

 e
it
h

e
r 

H
o
m

e
 o

r 
O

ri
g
in

a
ti
n

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 M

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e
 w

ill
 s

im
p

ly
 b

e
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

ro
u

ti
n

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
it
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
a

tt
e
n

ti
o
n

. 
 1

5
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 @

 7
 h

rs
 e

a
c
h

 =
 1

0
5

 h
rs

 
 1

8
5

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 @

 1
 h

r 
e
a

c
h

 =
 1

8
5

 h
rs

 
 T

o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
H

o
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 =
 2

9
0

 h
rs

 (
4

1
.4

 d
a

y
s
) 

=
 0

.2
5
 F

T
E

 
 A

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s
e
s

 
 T

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
o

ru
m

s
 e

tc
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 o

n
 a

n
 a

d
-h

o
c
 b

a
s
is

 
 A

d
-h

o
c
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 a
d

v
ic

e
 =

 2
5
0

 h
rs

 
T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 =
 2

5
0

 h
rs

 (
3

5
 d

a
y
s
) 

=
 0

.2
 F

T
E

 
 

Page 200



 
3
1

 

F
o

o
d

 S
a

m
p

li
n

g
 

 S
a

m
p

lin
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 S

a
m

p
lin

g
 P

la
n

 -
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

s
is

ts
 o

f 
a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

, 
b

y
 e

it
h
e

r:
 E

U
, 
L

/H
P

A
 o

r 
th

e
 N

E
 S

e
c
to

r 
L

ia
is

o
n

 G
ro

u
p
, 

p
lu

s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 h

o
m

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
. 

 1
3

9
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 @

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

3
 h

rs
 p

e
r 

s
a

m
p

le
 =

 4
1

7
 h

o
u

rs
 

 F
o

llo
w

 u
p

 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 2

0
%

 =
 2

8
 @

 4
 h

o
u

rs
 p

e
r 

s
a

m
p

le
 =

 1
1

2
 h

o
u

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
S

a
m

p
lin

g
 =

 5
2

9
 h

rs
 (

7
5

 d
a

y
s
) 

=
 0

.5
 F

T
E

 
 O

u
tb

re
a

k
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
 T

h
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 a
n

 o
u

tb
re

a
k
 w

ill
 d

e
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

iz
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t.
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 0

.0
2

 F
T

E
. 

 L
ia

is
o

n
 

 A
tt

e
n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

S
e

c
to

r 
G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

s
tu

d
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 e

tc
 a

n
d

 f
o

llo
w

-u
p

 w
o

rk
 =

 5
 d

a
y
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
d

 i
s
 =

 0
.0

3
 F

T
E

  
 F

o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 
 A

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
e
d

, 
a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 

• 
M

is
c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 p

re
s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 @
 3

5
 h

rs
 (

5
 d

a
y
s
)  

 T
o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 =

 3
5

 h
rs

 (
5

 d
a

y
s
) 

=
 0

.0
3

 F
T

E
 

 O
th

e
r 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
 In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a
t 

m
a

jo
r 

fe
s
ti
v
a

ls
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 B
ri
c
k
 L

a
n

e
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

 V
ic

to
ri
a

 P
a

rk
. 
 

 T
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
fe

s
ti
v
a

ls
 2

0
0
h
rs

 (
2

8
 d

a
y
s
)  

 B
ill

in
g
s
g
a

te
 M

a
rk

e
t:

 
 

Page 201



 
3
2

 

A
llo

w
 4

 h
rs

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 f
o

r 
P

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 v
is

it
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

. 
 A

llo
w

 1
2

5
 h

o
u

rs
 f

o
r 

a
u
d

it
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 T
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
B

ill
in

g
s
g
a

te
 M

a
rk

e
t 

=
 3

3
3

 h
rs

 (
4
7

 d
a
y
s
) 

 Im
p
o

rt
e

d
 F

o
o
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

/S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 a
llo

w
 3

0
0

 h
rs

 
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
Im

p
o

rt
e
d

 F
o
o
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
=

 3
0

0
 h

rs
 (

4
3

 d
a

y
s
) 

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 P

re
m

is
e

s
: 

 A
llo

w
 7

0
 h

rs
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 y

e
a

r 
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 =

 7
0

 h
rs

 (
1

0
 d

a
y
s
) 

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 P

ro
je

c
ts

: 
 A

llo
w

 1
4

0
 h

rs
 f

o
r 

F
o

o
d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 =
 1

4
0
 h

rs
 (

2
0

 d
a

y
s
)  

 A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

0
 c

lo
s
u

re
s
 @

 u
p

 t
o

 5
0

 h
rs

 e
a
c
h

 (
in

c
 o

f 
le

g
a

l 
a

c
ti
o
n

) 
=

 1
0

0
0
 h

rs
 

 T
o
ta

l 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
C

lo
s
u

re
s
 =

 1
0

0
0

h
rs

 (
1

4
2

 d
a

y
s
)  

  T
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 =

 2
9

0
 d

a
y
s
=

 1
.8

 F
T

E
 

  H
e

a
lt

h
y
 E

a
ti

n
g

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 
 T

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
C

T
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

e
d

 t
h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
 o

f 
£

6
0

,0
0

0
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 F

o
o

d
 C

h
o

ic
e

s
 A

w
a

rd
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 o
b
e

s
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
is

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 u

s
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
 1

 F
T

E
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
u

n
ti
l 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.
  

 
 T

e
c

h
n

ic
a
l 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

Page 202



 
3
3

 

 T
h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 b

a
c
k
-u

p
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
 A

lo
n
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 0

.2
5

 F
T

E
 

 A
d

m
in

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
 A

d
m

in
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

 g
e

n
e

ri
c
 a

d
m

in
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 s

it
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 D

iv
is

io
n

 o
f 

C
L

C
. 
  

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 T
h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
is

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 0

.2
5

 F
T

E
 o

f 
th

e
 

2
 P

E
H

O
’s

 i
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

s
. 
T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 0
.8

 F
T

E
  

 A
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
2

/1
, 

a
llo

w
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

to
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

th
a

t 
a

re
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

is
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n
 

T
a
b

le
 6

: 
 T

a
b

le
 6

 
  

A
c

ti
v
it

y
 

T
im

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 w
o

rk
 i

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n

 
(2

0
1

1
/2

0
1

2
) 

T
im

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 w
o

rk
 i

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n

 
(2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 
In

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
s

 
2

.9
 

3
.2

 

R
e

-i
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 

1
.6

 
2

 

F
o

o
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

0
.1

 
0

.0
1

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 R

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 
1

.9
 

1
.9

 

H
o

m
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
0

.2
5

 
0

.2
5

 

A
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

e
s
 

0
.2

 
0

.2
 

F
o

o
d

 s
a

m
p

li
n

g
 

0
.5

 
0

.5
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 

0
.2

 
0

.0
3

 

F
o

o
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 
P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 
0

.0
3

 
0

.0
3

 

Page 203



 
3
4

 

F
o

o
d

 P
o

is
o

n
in

g
 

o
u

tb
re

a
k

s
  

0
.2

 
0

.0
2

 

O
th

e
r 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
1

.5
 

1
.8

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

0
.8

 
0

.8
 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

 

0
.5

 
0

.2
5

 

H
e

a
lt

h
y
 E

a
ti

n
g

 A
w

a
rd

 
1

 
1

 

T
o

ta
l 

1
1

.6
8

 
A

c
tu

a
l 

A
v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y
 

1
1

.3
 

1
1

.9
9

 
A

c
tu

a
l 

A
v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y
 

1
0

 

    
 

 

Page 204



 
3
5

 

A
n

n
e
x
 B

 ;
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 M
a
k
in

g
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
: 

  C
a
b

in
e
t 

 M
a

y
o

rs
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 M
a
k
in

g
 

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 

 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 
H

e
a
lt

h
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
a
n

e
ls

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

ts
 S

u
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
P

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

K
in

g
 G

e
o

rg
e
s
 F

ie
ld

 C
h

a
ri

ty
 B

o
a
rd

 
L

ic
e
n

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 S

u
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 (

A
d

v
is

o
ry

) 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

  
 

Page 205



 
3
6

 

 

A
n

n
e
x
 C

 
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

                     

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
(A

d
u

lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
) 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
(C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
(D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e
n

e
w

a
l)

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
(C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
, 

L
o

c
a
li

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 

C
u

lt
u

re
) 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

  

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

 
H

e
a
lt

h
  

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l)

 /
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
  

L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

Page 206



 
3
7

 

  
 

 
 

 

 A
n

n
e
x
 D

 
L

O
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 O
F

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

A
M

L
E

T
S

 
 

F
O

O
D

 S
A

M
P

L
IN

G
 P

O
L

IC
Y

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

  
It

 i
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

s
a
m

p
lin

g
 m

a
d
e

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 F

o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
t 

1
9
9

0
 a

n
d

 F
o

o
d

 H
y
g
ie

n
e

 
(E

n
g
la

n
d

) 
R

e
g
s
 2

0
0
6

 t
h

a
t 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 o

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 
 In

 c
o
m

m
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 F
o

o
d

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

L
F

C
G

).
  
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 

u
p

 b
y
 

A
L

E
H

M
 (

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

),
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

h
ie

f 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
’ 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 i
n

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 L
A

C
O

R
S

 t
o

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 t
h

e
 f
o

o
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u

p
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
, 

P
u

b
lic

 A
n
a

ly
s
ts

 a
n

d
 a

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 A
g
e

n
c
y
. 

 O
n
e

 
o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 –

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 d

iv
id

in
g
 t

h
e

 3
3

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 i
n

to
 4

 
re

g
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
to

rs
, 

w
it
h

 e
a

c
h

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

rr
a

n
g
in

g
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

re
a
 o

n
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

p
ro

p
e

r 
lia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
3

 s
e

c
to

rs
. 

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 i
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
E

 s
e

c
to

r.
 

 F
O

O
D

 S
A

M
P

L
IN

G
 O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
 

 T
h
e

 m
a

in
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
h
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u
m

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

fo
o

d
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

fa
ir
 t

ra
d

in
g
. 

 I
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

lim
it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
ts

 f
o

o
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
rd

e
r:

 
 

(i
) 

In
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 a

n
d

 f
o
o

d
 c

o
n

ta
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

 
(i
i)

 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
h

e
re

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 i
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

(i
ii)

 
Im

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
o

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

(i
v
) 

H
o

m
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 r
e

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

(v
) 

E
U

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
te

d
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

(v
i)

 
H

P
A

/L
A

C
O

R
S

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

(v
ii)

 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 –

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 

(v
iii

) 
L

o
c
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 

Page 207



 
3
8

 

T
Y

P
E

S
 O

F
 S

A
M

P
L

E
S

 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

 R
a

n
d

o
m

 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 

 
(i
) 

T
h
e

s
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 c
h
e
m

ic
a

l 
a
n

d
 m

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
. 

(i
i)

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 b

u
t 

p
ri
n

c
ip

a
lly

 w
it
h

in
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
ti
n

g
 o

n
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
fo

o
d
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

(i
ii)

 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 j
u

s
ti
fi
e
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 a

 n
e

w
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 
o

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t.
 

 M
ic

ro
b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
a

m
p

le
s
 

 
(i
) 

F
o

rm
a

l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

h
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
. 

(i
i)

 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
a

k
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
m

ic
ro

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
l 
s
a

m
p

le
s
 –

 t
h
e

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 l
a

id
 d

o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
n

 a
n

y
 c

a
s
e

 
g
o

o
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

a
th

e
ri
n

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 i
s
 m

in
im

a
l.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 o

n
ly

 s
a

m
p

le
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

g
a

l 
p

ro
c
e
e

d
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 H
P

A
 a

s
 F

o
rm

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
. 

 I
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
H

P
A

 F
o

rm
a

l 
S

a
m

p
le

 f
o

rm
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
. 

 C
h

e
m

ic
a

l 
s
a

m
p

le
s
 

 
(i
) 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
 a

n
d
 t

im
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
ta

k
in

g
 f

o
rm

a
l 
c
h

e
m

ic
a

l 
s
a

m
p

le
s
 i
t 

is
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

c
h
e
m

ic
a

l 
s
a

m
p

lin
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

l 
–

 t
h

is
 i
s
 e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e
 w

h
e

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

s
 a

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

r 
fa

c
t 
fi
n
d

in
g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
. 

(i
i)

 
F

o
rm

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 w
h

e
n

: 

• 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
v
e

n
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

re
 s

u
s
p
e

c
te

d
 

• 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
th

o
u

g
h
t 

re
p

e
a

ta
b

le
, 
e

.g
. 

p
e

s
ti
c
id

e
 r

e
s
id

u
e

s
 o

r 
a
fl
a

to
x
in

s
 i
n

 f
o
o

d
 

• 
In

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 f
o

o
d

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

• 
R

e
p

e
a
t 

s
a
m

p
lin

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 u

n
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

 
 

Page 208



 
3
9

 

S
a

m
p

lin
g
 i
n

 m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

 
(i
) 

T
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
s
a

m
p

le
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 w

ill
 d

e
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

fa
c
to

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

• 
T

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e
 r

a
w

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
, 

in
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 a
n

d
 f

in
is

h
e
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 

• 
T

h
e

 e
x
is

te
n

c
e
 o

r 
a
b

s
e
n

c
e

 o
f 

H
a

z
a

rd
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

o
in

ts
 (

H
A

C
C

P
) 

ty
p

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u
re

s
 

• 
T

h
e

 e
x
is

te
n

c
e
 o

f 
in

-h
o
u

s
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 

• 
T

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
-h

o
u

s
e

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 d
o
c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

 
(i
i)

 
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fo

o
d

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

ro
u

ti
n

e
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
a

id
 d

o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

C
o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 L
A

C
O

R
S

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 
 A

d
 h

o
c
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 t

a
k
e
n

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
re

g
a

rd
 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 a
n
d

 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
e

t 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
v
o

id
e

d
. 

 S
A

M
P

L
IN

G
 P

R
O

C
E

D
U

R
E

 
 It

 i
s
 w

a
s
te

fu
l 
o
f 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
a
m

p
lin

g
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
fi
rs

t 
c
o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 –

 t
h

is
 i
s
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 

s
a

m
p

lin
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

 A
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

ti
c
a

l 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 l
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 a
n

d
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
 u

n
if
o

rm
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
 C

le
a

rl
y
 t

h
e

 s
u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 w

ill
 d

e
p

e
n
d

 u
p
o

n
 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

to
c
o

l 
a

g
re

e
d
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

lla
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
e

c
to

r 
g
ro

u
p

s
. 
 I

t 
is

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
o
n

 
o

c
c
a

s
io

n
s
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

s
e

c
to

rs
 o

r 
th

e
 L

F
C

G
 w

ill
 w

a
n

t 
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
id

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

 L
E

V
E

L
 O

F
 S

A
M

P
L

IN
G

 
 L

o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
a

m
p

lin
g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

tu
rn

s
. 

 T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
g
g
re

g
a

te
d

 a
n
d
 

re
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o
 B

ru
s
s
e

ls
 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 O
ff

ic
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
o
f 

F
o
o

d
s
tu

ff
s
 D

ir
e

c
ti
v
e

. 
 

Page 209



 
4
0

 

C
O

-O
R

D
IN

A
T

IO
N

 
 In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

s
c
a

rc
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 

th
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fo

o
d

 s
a
m

p
lin

g
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 

fo
r 

re
a

c
ti
v
e

 d
u
ti
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

rt
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 h
o

m
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 d
u

ti
e

s
, 
is

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 L
F

C
G

. 
 P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
re

d
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
e

c
to

rs
. 

 S
e

c
to

r 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

c
to

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
im

ila
r 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 –

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 a

v
o

id
 d

u
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
. 

 R
e

p
o

rt
s
 o

f 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
a

s
s
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
e

c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 L
F

C
G

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 w
id

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
 s

h
a

ri
n
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 In
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

re
a

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

F
o

o
d

 P
a

n
e

l 
o
f 

L
A

C
O

R
S

. 
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 
 T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 P
o

lic
y
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

te
c
ts

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

m
e

r,
 a

n
d

 i
n

 s
o

 d
o

in
g
 f
o

llo
w

s
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

s
 s

c
a

rc
e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
. 

 T
h
e

 P
o

lic
y
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 o
n

ly
 a

s
 a

 g
u

id
e

. 
 I

t 
is

 f
le

x
ib

le
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 
b

u
t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 a
 m

o
re

 l
o

c
a

lly
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 
fo

o
d
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
. 

 N
o

th
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
m

p
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d
e

d
 t
o

 p
re

c
lu

d
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 –

 t
h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

c
c
a

s
io

n
, 

in
 

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
ta

n
t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

c
h
a

n
g
e

, 
w

h
e

n
 a

d
 h

o
c
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

     

Page 210



 

E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

H
E

C
K

L
IS

T
  

 

N
a
m

e
 o

f 
‘p

ro
p

o
s
a
l’
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 h

a
s
 i
t 

b
e
e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 
(p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 a

 p
o

lic
y
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
, 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
/s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l)
 

 

F
o

o
d

 L
a
w

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 /
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 
C

L
C

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
, 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l)

 

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

 
D

a
v
id

 T
o

ll
e

y
 

S
ig

n
e
d

 O
ff

 B
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ta
g

e
 

 

 C
h

e
c
k
li

s
t 

A
re

a
 /

 Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 
Y

e
s
 /
 

N
o

 /
 

U
n

s
u

re
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
(I

f 
th

e
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

is
 n

o
/u

n
s
u

re
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 a

s
k
 

th
e
 q

u
e
s
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

P
P

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 l
e
a
d

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

) 
 

1
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ro
p

o
s
a

l 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 c

le
a

r?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 e

le
v
e

n
th

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

fo
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
. 

It
 a

im
s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
fo

o
d

 i
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
ri
s
k
 a

n
d

 s
o

ld
 u

n
d

e
r 

h
y
g
ie

n
ic

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

 

b
 

Is
 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

r 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 w

h
a

t 
is

 b
e

in
g
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 (

in
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
)?

 I
s
 

th
e

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

o
s
e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
?

  

P
a

rt
ia

l 
  

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 f
o

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

  
  

  
 

 A
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
ill

 
b

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
th

ro
u

g
h
 s

e
c
u

ri
n

g
 f

o
o
d

 
s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
A

ll 
fo

o
d
 r

e
la

te
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

n
e
fi
t 

a
s
 r

e
p
u

ta
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

Page 211



 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 m

in
im

is
e

d
 b

y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

  
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 l
a

w
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 

c
o

n
fi
g
u

re
d

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

  
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

O
v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 n
o
n

-w
h

it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 d
a

ta
 p

ic
tu

re
 i
f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

s
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p
a

n
ie

s
 w

h
o

 m
a

y
 b

e
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

 T
h
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 
(D

&
R

) 
d

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 h
a

v
e

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 l
e

a
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 d
a

ta
 

c
a

p
tu

re
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

c
h
n

ic
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 s

tr
a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 
b

a
s
e

. 
 

 

c
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

 n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

h
e

re
 N

O
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
?

 
P

le
a

s
e

 n
o

te
 –

 i
f 

a
 F

u
ll 

E
A

 i
s
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

b
a

s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 s
c
re

e
n

 o
r 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 
th

a
t 

a
 p

ro
p
o

s
a
l 
h

a
s
 

n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
’ 
a

m
e
n

d
e

d
, 
a

 n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
to

 e
x
p

la
in

 t
h
e

 r
e
a
s
o

n
s
 

w
h

y
 a

n
d

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 d
u

e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 

N
/A

 
T

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
m

a
n

y
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
e

n
g
a

g
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 o

p
e

ra
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

 o
f 

fo
o

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
o

n
e
 t

h
a

t 
c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

ly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 a
t 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 
 T

h
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

 A
g
e

n
c
y
, 

w
h

o
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

rs
 h

o
w

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 e

n
fo

rc
e

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
F

o
o
d

 L
a

w
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
. 

 T
h

is
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 t
o
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

c
t 
1

9
9
9

. 
 T

h
e

 

Page 212



 

p
la

n
 i
s
 n

e
it
h
e

r 
n

e
w

 n
o

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

. 
 

 

2
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 /

 C
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 /
 D

a
ta

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

a
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 r

e
lia

b
le

 q
u
a

lit
a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 d
a

ta
 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

la
im

s
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o

u
t 
im

p
a

c
ts

?
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 r

e
lia

b
le

 d
a
ta

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 
liv

e
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 b

a
s
ic

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

s
 

m
a

d
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 n

o
 d

a
ta

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
to

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 n

o
 c

le
a

r 
w

a
y
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 
a

c
c
u

ra
te

ly
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 f

a
c
e
d

 b
y
 a

ll 
L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
. 
  

 
D

+
R

 a
re

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
. 

 

 
Is

 t
h

e
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l/
re

g
io

n
a

l/
n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 t
h

a
t 
c
a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

?
 

N
o

 
S

e
e

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 

b
 

H
a

s
 a

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
tt
e
m

p
t 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 (
p

e
o

p
le

, 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

) 
h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

?
 

Y
e

s
 

 

c
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d
 u

s
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

l?
 

N
A

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
P

la
n

 t
h
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 g

u
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
F

S
A

. 
  

 

3
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

re
 c

le
a

r 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
(i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 
d

a
ta

 e
tc

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e

 n
in

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
?

 

N
A

 
 

 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

 c
le

a
r 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

p
p

lie
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 w

a
y
 c

a
n

 h
a

v
e

 u
n

e
q
u

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
?

 

Y
e

s
 

T
h
e

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

. 
D

e
p
e

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
a
n

y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 o
r 

o
w

n
e

r 
th

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

e
ff

o
rt

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 t
o

 e
a

c
h
 v

a
ri
e

s
. 

 A
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
ta

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ie
ld

. 
  

b
 

H
a

s
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 t
h

re
e

 
a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 (
P

S
E

D
) 

a
n

d
 

O
T

H
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
?

 

Y
e

s
 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

Page 213



 

 

4
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

a
 

Is
 t

h
e

re
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

?
 

N
A

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
g
ro

u
p

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

s
 

a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 h
e
lp

e
d

 t
h

e
m

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
t 

a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 

T
o
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
th

a
t 

a
n

y
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 f
a

lls
 m

o
re

 
h

e
a

v
ily

 o
n

 a
 g

ro
u

p
 w

it
h

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
, 
th

is
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

u
n

in
te

n
d
e

d
 b

u
t 

ju
s
ti
fi
a
b

le
 h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 

p
u

b
lic

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 t
o

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t.
 

b
 

A
re

 a
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 S

M
A

R
T

 (
S

p
e

c
if
ic

, 
M

e
a

s
u

ra
b

le
, 

A
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

, 
R

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 T

im
e

 B
o

u
n
d

e
d

) 
 

N
A

 
 

c
 

A
re

 t
h
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 c

le
a
r?

 
N

A
 

 

d
 

H
a

v
e

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 o
p
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
 

N
A

 
 

6
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
 

A
re

 t
h
e

re
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

r 
a

u
d

it
 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
in

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
 f
o

r 
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 a
n
d

 f
o
o

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

. 
S

o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 a
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a

r’
s
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
F

o
o

d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
. 
 

b
 

Is
 i
t 

c
le

a
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 t
o

 t
ra

c
k
 

im
p

a
c
t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
?

?
 

N
A

 
 

7
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

a
 

D
o

e
s
 t

h
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 c

o
n

ta
in

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t?
 

Y
e

s
 

T
h
e

 s
u
m

m
a

ry
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 

th
e

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 s

tu
d

y
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

8
 

S
ig

n
 O

ff
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

a
 

H
a

s
 t

h
e
 L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 E
A

?
 

P
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 –

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 E
A

 a
n

d
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 t
h
e
 O

n
e

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 t

e
a

m
 

Y
e

s
 

 

 Page 214



 

 

  A
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

 

  

 S
ig

n
a
tu

re
 

 

 
 D

a
te

 
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
y
o
u
r 

re
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 T
e
a
m

 

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
05/12/12 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
56/123 

Report of:  

 
Corporate Director Resources 
 
Originating officer(s) Alan Finch, Service 

Head Financial Services, Risk & Accountability 
Louise Russell, Service Head Corporate Strategy 
and Equality 

Title:  

Strategic Performance and Corporate 
Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 
Q2 2012/13 (Month 6)  
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
Community Plan Theme 
  

All 
 

Strategic Priority 
 

All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1  This monitoring report details the financial position of the Council at the end of 

Quarter 2 compared to budget, and service performance against targets.  This 

includes year-end projection updates for the: 

 

• General Fund Revenue and Housing Revenue Account; 

• Capital Programme; together with 

• An overview of performance for all of the reportable strategic 

measures.  

 

1.2 This report will be considered by Overview & Scrutiny on 4th December. 

 

1.3 Finance Overview 

 

1.3.1 General Fund 

 As at the end of September 2012, Directorates forecast an overspend of 

£0.482m for the year end on an overall net budget of £292m.  

 

1.3.2 HRA 

 The HRA is projecting an overall underspend of £0.425m. Further information 

on this is provided both in Section 3 and Appendix 3 of this report. 

 

1.3.3 Capital Programme 

 Directorates have spent 28.2% of their capital budgets for the year (£54.4m 

against budgets of £192.8m). Programme slippage of £24.7m is currently 

being projected, due in the main part to delays in procurement on the decent 

Agenda Item 10.2

Page 217



  

homes programme, the costs of which will instead be incurred in future years. 

Further information is provided in section 4 of the report and Appendix 4. 

 

1.4 Strategic Plan and Measures 

  

1.4.1 The Strategic Plan provides the framework for delivering the Council’s 

priorities and contributions to the Community Plan, including the Mayor’s 

Pledges. There are currently 68 activities in the Strategic Plan. 91% of these 

activities are either complete or on target to complete on time. Of the total 

activities within the Plan, 9 (13%) were due for completion between April and 

September 2012. 8 of these 9 are complete, the remaining activity ‘Improve 

Equipment and Accommodation’ is delayed but with a 90% completeness 

percentage. 

 

1.4.2 The strategic measures set enables the Council to monitor progress against 

our priorities. Of the 24 measures reportable this quarter (including subset of 

measures), 7 (29%) are at or above the standard target (lower bandwidth), 

with 6 (25%) meeting or exceeding the stretched target (GREEN).  

 

1.4.3 Detailed monitoring information for the Strategic Plan and strategic measures 

is contained in the report and Appendices 5 & 6. 

 

1.5 Appendices 

 More detailed performance and financial information is contained in the 

following report appendices: 

 

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments (including virements) for the 

General Fund and for the capital budget. 

 

• Appendix 2 - provides the budget outturn forecast by Directorate and 

explanations of any major variances. 

 

• Appendix 3 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of 

major variances for the HRA.  

 

• Appendix 4 – provides details of the capital programme and explanations 

of any major variances. 

 

• Appendix 5 – provides an overview of progress against the Strategic Plan 

activities. 

 

Page 218



  

• Appendix 6 - provides an overview of performance for all of the reportable 

strategic measures. 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1. Review and note the Quarter 2 2012/13 performance; and 

 

2.2. Note the Council’s financial position as detailed in sections 3 and 4 and 

Appendices 1-4 of this report. 

 
2.3. Cabinet is asked to approve the transfer of £808,000 from the Olympic 

reserve set aside to fund additional expenditure as a result of the Olympics as 

set out at section 3.4 and 3.6 of this report. 

 

3. REVENUE 

 

3.1 The following table summarises the current expected outturn position for the 

General Fund. 

SUMMARY 

 

Latest 

Budget 

Budget 

to Date 

Actual to 

Date 

Variance 

to Date 

Forecast 

Outturn 

Variance 

 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adults Health and 

Wellbeing 100,265 42,481 42,480 -1 100,265 0 

Chief Executive 

9,447 4,584 4,612 28 9,447 0 

Children, Schools and 

Families 82,838 41,419 43,457 2,038 82,320 -518 

Communities, Localities 

and Culture 78,797 29,878 29,220 -658 78,797 0 

Development and 

Renewal 20,217 10,109 10,056 -53 20,217 0 

Resources 

12,160 6,080 6,440 360 13,160 1,000 

Corporate Costs / 

Capital Financing -11,458 4,949 7,570 2,621 -11,458 0 

Total 292,266 139,500 143,835 4,335 292,748 482 

 

3.2 Year-to-date variances are explained in the detailed budget analysis in 

Appendix 2.  

 

Page 219



  

3.3 Adults, Health and Wellbeing    NIL 

 A breakeven position is forecast for the financial year.  This reflects the use of 

budget contingencies to offset slippage in savings relating to Domiciliary Care 

Commissioning and In-House Home Care.  The application of contingencies 

for one-year only has been agreed by the Lead-Member – Resources. 

 
3.4 Chief Executive                                               NIL 
  A breakeven position is forecast for the financial year. £0.235m was spent 

before and during the Olympics on the events and marketing to promote 
tourism in the Borough. This will be funded from Olympic Reserves set aside 
for the purpose. 

   

3.5 Children, Schools and Families                                  £0.518m Underspend 

 Overall, the CSF budget is expected to break-even with the exception of the 

Mayor’s Educational Allowance where originally estimated rates of claims and 

eligibility have proven to be too high, with the experience of the first full 

academic year of the initiative.  The projected underspend on this activity for 

2012/13 financial year is £0.518m. 

 

3.6 Communities, Localities & Culture      NIL 

 A breakeven position is forecast for the financial year.  At the end of month 

six, the variance to date reflect the increased cost of cleaning due to the 

Olympics. £0.115m relates mainly due to additional costs incurred on account 

of CCTV in Victoria Park and £0.458m relates to increased cost on account of 

On-Street Cleansing during Olympics.  Cabinet is asked to formally approve 

the use of the earmarked Olympics reserve set aside for this purpose.  

 

3.7     Development and Renewal                           NIL 

 A breakeven position is forecast for the financial year. 

 

3.8 Resources       £1 million Reduced Income 

 The variance on the housing benefits net budget is due to lower than 

anticipated levels of Housing Benefits subsidy income arising from changes in 

the treatment of overpayments raised by the Council under the subsidy grant 

regulations.  Implementation of new software by DWP has reduced instances 

of Housing Benefit overpayments, resulting in a reduction in Housing Benefit 

subsidy.  This was first reported to CMT in the month 5 report. 

 

3.9   Corporate Costs & Capital Financing          NIL 

 A breakeven position is forecast for the financial year. Spend to date variance 

is due to items such as depreciation, severance payments and minimum 

revenue provision being processed at year-end. 

 

Page 220



  

3.10 Projected General Fund Overspend 

 The net projected overspend of £482,000 represents a 0.2% variance on total 

budget.  Officers are required by standing orders to seek to contain costs 

within available budgets.  Any overspend that exists at the year-end will need 

to be met in the first instance from budget contingencies. 

 

3.11   Housing Revenue Account (HRA)    £0.425m Underspend 

 The overall projected HRA underspend relates primarily to a projected 

underspend on the energy budget, as the 2012/13 budget anticipated that gas 

& electricity prices would increase by 30%, whereas gas prices in 2012/13 will 

be 13% higher, and electricity will be 2% lower.  Both the budget and patterns 

of energy consumption will continue to be closely monitored. A detailed 

analysis of the HRA is attached as Appendix 3. 

 

3.12 Additional Information 

 

 October Cabinet agreed funding of £900,000 in 2012/13 to establish grant 

funding to faith groups to facilitate effective asset management of local 

community assets.  The funding will be allocated from an earmarked reserve 

to the appropriate Directorate budget head during 2012/13. 

 

3.13   Income Collection Performance Targets 

 

 Details of income collection during 2012/13 are shown below.   

 

Income Stream Collected 
in 2011/12 

% 
 

2012/13 
Target to  
30.09.12   

% 

2012/13 
Collected 

to 30.09.12   
% 

Direction 
of Travel 

 
 

Business Rates 99.40 48.99 59.92 ↑ 

Central Income 93.00 82.00 75.00 ↓ 

Council Tax 95.40 47.60 47.50 ↑ 

Housing Rents 99.61 99.60 99.01 ↑ 

Service Charges £12.850m  
(102%) 

£6.95m 
£7.02m  

(101.0%) 
↑ 

 

  The central income collection is slightly below target but better than last year, 

with the expectation that it will recover fully by the end of the financial year.  

 

 Income collection on the whole is currently exceeding targets and is forecast 

to remain this way throughout year.  

 

4. CAPITAL 

Page 221



  

 

4.1 The capital budget now totals £192.8m, compared to £186.4m in previous 
quarter.  The main reason for the increase in this budget is the approval of two 
section 106 funded schemes by Development and Renewal relating to 
Bromley by Bow station and Wellington Way Health Centre. 

 
4.2 Details of all the changes to the capital budget are set out in Appendix 1. 

 

4.3 Total capital expenditure to the end of Quarter 2 represented 28.2% of the 

revised capital programme budget for 2012/13 as follows:   

 

Annual Budget Spent to % Budget

 as at 30-Sep-12 30-Sep-12 Spent

£m £m %

TOTALS BY DIRECTORATE:

Communities, Localities and Culture 12.748 3.782 29.7%

Children, Schools and Families 16.705 8.702 52.1%

Resources 0.128 0.000 0.0%

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.402 0.005 1.2%

Development and Renewal 21.108 1.337 6.3%

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 65.244 26.997 41.4%

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 66.432 13.574 20.4%

Corporate GF provision for schemes 

under development
10.000 0.000 0.0%

GRAND TOTAL 192.767 54.397 28.2%

 

This compares with 33.8% at the same stage last year. 

 

4.4 Projected capital expenditure for 2012/13 compared to budget is as follows: 

Annual Budget Projection Forecast

 as at 30-Sep-12 31-Mar-13 Variance

£m £m £m

Communities, Localities and Culture 12.748 12.757 0.009

Children, Schools and Families 16.705 16.289 -0.416

Resources 0.128 0.128 0.000

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.402 0.242 -0.160

Development and Renewal 21.108 21.108 0.000

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 65.244 65.244 0.000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 66.432 52.340 -14.092
Corporate GF provision for schemes 

under development
10.000 0.000 -10.000

GRAND TOTAL 192.767 168.108 -24.659

 

 Programme slippage of £24.7m is currently being projected, due in the main 

part to delays in procurement on the decent homes backlog programme, the 

costs of which will instead be incurred in future years. This figure also 

includes a £10m provision for General Fund capital schemes.   

Page 222



  

 
4.5 The total approved budget, taking into account the whole life of all capital 

schemes, is currently £816.1m against which spend of £786m is forecast 

resulting in a total underspend variance of £30m.  The main reason for this 

underspend is that a £30m that was set aside in the budget for new General 

Fund schemes has not been allocated although £25m for this is earmarked to 

Poplar Baths/Dame Colet House schemes. 

 

All year budget  Projection

 as at 30-Sep-12 30-Sep-12 Variance

£m £m £m

Communities, Localities and Culture 60.468 60.478 0.010

Children, Schools and Families 116.505 116.378 -0.127

Resources 2.236 2.236 0.000

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.840 0.840 0.000

Development and Renewal 35.185 35.185 0.000

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 325.890 325.890 0.000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 245.008 245.008 0.000
Corporate GF provision for schemes 

under development
30.000 0.000 -30.000

GRAND TOTAL 816.132 786.015 -30.117

 
 
 
5. STRATEGIC PLAN 2012/13 
 

5.1 The Council’s performance management and accountability framework 

requires members to consider our progress against Strategic Plan activities 

every 6 months. This section provides a monitoring update for the first 6 

months of the 2012/13 Plan.  

 

5.2 All activities within the Strategic Plan have been monitored and are included 

in Appendix 5. The following criteria are used to report on the status of 

activities: 

• Completed (Green) - where an activity has been completed. 

• On Target (Gold/Amber) - where an activity is not due for completion yet, 

and managers consider that progress is on track to meet the deadline. 

The percentage completed is given to provide an indication of the work 

already carried out.  

• Delayed (Orange) - where an activity has missed its deadline or is 

assessed as likely to miss its deadline, but is still anticipated to complete 

within the financial year. 

• Overdue (Red) - where an activity has been identified as likely to not be 

completed this financial year.  Managers have provided comments for all 

Page 223



  

overdue activities to explain why the deadline was missed; what is being 

done to rectify the situation; and when the activity will be completed.  

 

5.3 There are currently 68 activities in the Strategic Plan. 91% of these activities 

are either complete or on target to complete on time. 

 

5.4 Of the total activities within the Plan, 9 (13%) were due for completion 

between April and September 2012. 8 of these 9 are complete, the remaining 

activity ‘Improve Equipment and Accommodation’ is delayed but with a 90% 

completeness percentage.  Launching the new approach to Telecare 

milestone within this activity will now launch in November, a two month delay. 

 

5.5 In total 11 (16%) activities are completed, 51 (75%) are on target with 4 (6%) 

delayed and 2 (3%) overdue. 

 

5.6 Overall performance in delivering against the Strategic Plan is strong.  The 

Council responded effectively to the Olympics, including managing the 

programme of events and activities, mitigating the impact of the Olympic 

Route Network and supporting residents into Games-time jobs. 

 

5.7 The Council has developed, and is delivering, an effective programme to 

manage the impact of welfare reform on local residents.  In addition, work is 

on-track in addressing homelessness and supporting housing decency.   

 

5.8 The good education attainment results highlighted in section 6 reflect the 

supporting work of the Council, and progress in delivering the second year of 

the Mayor’s Education Allowance is on-track.  

 

Page 224



  

5.9 Community Safety remains a priority and work to further develop the THEO 

Service has taken place, including the implementation of a community 

feedback initiative, progress on the development and consultation on a 

Saturation Policy to establish stronger licensing controls in areas of high 

Crime and ASB, and further support for action to reduce violence against 

women and girls.   

 

5.10 Recent activity to support health and wellbeing includes improvements at St. 

George’s Pool and Mile End Stadium, significant work with schools and 

support to the PCT on smoking cessation.   

 

5.11 Of the total 68 activities in the Strategic Plan, two activities have been 

assessed as being overdue, as they are unlikely to be completed this financial 

year. Details on the overdue activities, including remedial action, are outlined 

below. In addition, Performance Review Group will review all activities at risk 

of not achieving their year-end target, to consider what further action is 

required.  

 

5.12 Deliver regeneration at Robin Hood Gardens and Ocean Estate 

Ocean Estate remains overall on target to deliver 819 new homes within 

contract dates and refurbishment/environmental works by April 2013.  Start on 

site for Robin Hood Gardens is now projected for quarter 1 2013/14.  This has 

slipped due to delays experienced in the submission and approval of the 

reserved matters application. 

 

5.13 Prepare for the Introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 The examination in public (EIP) is now programmed for Autumn 2013 rather 

than December 2012.  This rescheduling allows further time for a longer 

discussion and approval process, including consideration by full Council prior 

to EIP.  The CIL will still be delivered in advance of the required deadline of 

April 2014. 

 

6. STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE MEASURE 

 

6.1 The strategic measures enable the Council to monitor progress against its 

priorities outlined in the Strategic Plan. The strategic measures set reflect the 

Council’s continued commitment to set itself stretching targets. It is reviewed 

on an annual basis as part of the refresh of the Strategic Plan to ensure that it 

remains fit for purpose. Where necessary, there will also be in-year reviews of 

the measures. 

 

Page 225



  

6.2 Appendix 6 illustrates the latest performance against our strategic measures. 

Performance against the current stretching target is measured as either ‘Red’, 

‘Amber’ or ‘Green’ (RAG).  Should performance fall below standard target – 

indicated as the dotted red line, it is marked as ‘Red’.  Should it be at or above 

the standard target, but below the stretched target – indicated as the solid 

green line, it is ‘Amber’.  Where performance is at or above the stretched 

target, it is ‘Green’.  Performance is also measured against the equivalent 

quarter for the previous year, as a ‘direction of travel’.  Where performance is 

deteriorating compared to the same time last year, it is indicated as a 

downward arrow �, if there is no change (or less that 5% change) it is neutral 

�, and where performance has improved compared to the previous year, it is 

indicated as an upward arrow �.   

 

6.3  The number of strategic measures available for reporting fluctuates between 

periods due to the different reporting frequencies of the measures. Of the 47 

measures in the strategic set, including subset of measures, 28 are reportable 

this quarter. Of these: 

• 9 (32%) are meeting or exceeding their stretch target (Green), with 6 of these 

an improvement from last year (�); 

• 7 (25%) are above the standard target but below the stretch target (Amber), 

with 2 of these improving (�) and 2 deteriorating (�) compared to last year’s 

performance; and 

• 12 (43%) are below the standard target (Red), with performance remaining 

unchanged for 6 measures and deteriorating for 4 measures (�). 

 

 
  

Performance Summary 

 

6.4 The following sections detail our performance under three key headings: 

• High performing areas; 

• Areas of improvement; and 

• High risk areas 

Page 226



  

 

6.5 High Performing Areas 

 The following measures exceeded their stretch targets. 

 

Overcrowded families re-housed (lets to overcrowded households) 

736 lets were made to overcrowded households this quarter, far exceeding 

the quarterly target.  

 

Homelessness prevention through casework intervention 

This outturn is the latest available and relates to June (Q1) rather than 

September. The outturn for Quarter 1 is above the standard and stretch 

target. 

 

 

 

Street cleanliness - graffiti  

Leading up to the Olympics, extra resources were put in place and hotspot 

areas targeted to clear up defacement. Targeted wards were Bethnal Green 

South, Bow West, Mile End East, Millwall, & Shadwell. With the exception of 

Bethnal Green South and parts of Shadwell, the other wards generally have 

low levels of graffiti. 

 

Street cleanliness – fly-posting  

Performance is better than the standard target, stretch target and compared 

to this time last year. Leading up to the Olympics, extra resources were put in 

place to reduce fly posting with hotspot areas targeted. 

 

Crime - rate of residential burglary 

The rate of residential burglary has exceeded its stretch target. 

 

Smoking cessation 

This outturn is the latest available and relates to June (Q1) rather than 

September. The Quarter 1 outturn far exceeds the stretch target. Tower 

Hamlets continues to perform well on this measure. 

 

Achievement of 5 or more A*- C grades at GCSE or equivalent including 

English and Maths. 

The provisional result for 2012/13 (academic year 2011/12) is 61.2%, above 

the stretched target. Final figures will be confirmed in January 2013, at which 

point it is normal to see a slight improvement in the figures. 

 

Page 227



  

Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and Maths at Key Stage 

2 

The provisional results for achievement at level 4 or above in both English and 

Maths at Key Stage 2 in 2012/13 (academic year 2011/12) is 82%. This 

exceeds the target and is a significant improvement from the previous year. 

Tower Hamlets is above the provisional national average results of 80%. Final 

results will be published in January 2013. 

 

Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early Years Foundation 

Stage 

Provisional results show that 55% of children achieved at least 78 points 

across the Early Years Foundation Stage, with at least 6 in each of the scales 

in Personal Social and Emotional Development and Communication, 

Language and Literacy. This is above the stretched target and a significant 

improvement from the previous year's performance. Final data will be 

published in January 2013. 

 

6.6 Areas of Improvement 

In addition to the high performing measures, two measures have also 

improved compared to last year. 

 

Workforce to Reflect the Community - Percentage of senior staff that 

have a disability 

The outturn for September (4.1%) is above the standard target (2.96%) but 

slightly below the stretch target (5.5%). Work is on-going to develop action 

plans within directorates to improve performance.  It is hoped that the outputs 

of the Navigate programme will help to improve performance against this 

indicator.  

 

Social care clients and carers in receipt of Self Directed Support 

The provisional outturn at the end of Quarter 2 is 47.1% compared to the 

stretch target of 48.6%.  In comparison with the Quarter 1 outturn (39.8%) the 

current performance is showing a strong upward trend, with the results 

improved by 7.3 percentage points. It is anticipated that the performance will 

improve further once we include two providers’ figures which are still pending. 

 

6.7 High Risk Areas 

As part of the monitoring of our performance each quarter, analysis is 

undertaken to identify those measures at risk of not achieving their annual 

targets. This includes measures that are below their standard target and have 

deteriorated since the corresponding quarter for the previous year. This 

Page 228



  

quarter, the following measures have been identified as high risk, with 

commentary provided below. 

 

Number of affordable homes delivered  

288 affordable homes have been delivered in this quarter, just below the 

standard target of 300.  With some schemes originally due to complete in this 

quarter being delayed and delivery in 2011/12 being higher than expected 

(double other boroughs within the sub region), the annual forecast is slightly 

lower than initially profiled.   Delivering 2,023 affordable units in 2011/12, the 

highest across London, we are confident that Tower Hamlets will remain a top 

performer nationally for this measure and it is expected that the Mayor’s target 

of 4,000 affordable homes will be delivered.  Work is on-going with Registered 

Partners to ensure that, where possible, all schemes complete on time. 

 

Number of social rented housing completion for family homes (gross) 

Closely linked to the delivery of affordable homes, delivery on this measure is 

beneath the quarterly target, in part due to Registered Providers re-profiling 

some schemes into 2013/14 and also due to higher delivery in 2011/12 than 

expected.  As indicated above, the Council is continuing to work with its 

partners to ensure that, where possible, all schemes complete on time. 

Delivering over 700 social rented housing completions for family homes in 

2011/12, it is expected that Tower Hamlets will remain a top performer 

nationally for this measure. 

 

Carers receiving needs assessment or a review and a specific carer’s 

service 

Although performance is below target, some data is still awaited from 

commissioned providers. 

 

 Rate of violence with injury  

This measure relates to Police duties and performance. The Council is playing 

a very active role in supporting the police to help them improve performance 

against the above measure.  

 

Police analysis suggests that actual incidents are not rising but the proportion 

of incidents that get reported as crime resulting in injury is increasing.  The 

increase in reporting violence indicates that victims are more confident in 

reporting injuries sustained as a result of DV and this is a key element in 

securing positive action in relation to perpetrators, and improving the safety of 

the victims of this form of violence. Tower Hamlets has one of the highest 

arrest rates in the Metropolitan Police Service for DV and a proactive unit to 

target offenders has been established. 

Page 229



  

 

To support the Police the Council has increased resources to support DV 

mitigation, is moving forward with a Violence against Women and Girls 

Partnership Plan, has paid for extra police for the Borough and is consulting 

on a Saturation Policy to limit additional licensed premises in areas of high 

crime / ASB.  The Council, like many other London Boroughs, has adopted 

Responsible Drinking Borough Policies to help target areas with high levels of 

drink related crime or antisocial behaviour.    

 

There will be a large operation mounted over Christmas and New Year in an 

effort to reduce violent crime in Q3. 

 

NEETs 

Whilst this measure appears to be significantly off target, it is not a high risk 

measure. The borough’s unusually high NEET rate this quarter is due to a 

change in the methodology for this measure.  

 

In previous years young people moving forward to the second year of a two 

year Post-16 course could have their destination confirmed over the summer.  

Under the new methodology, the Council now needs to confirm all 

destinations again after September 2012. Whilst this data is being collated, 

young people are recorded as unknown, putting up the adjusted NEET figure. 

This has happened across East London where, for example, Newham had a 

NEET figure of 6% in September 2011 but 18.2% in September 2012. The 

Council will not get a true picture of the NEET situation until the end of 

November when all follow up work is complete. 

 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

7.1 Under Financial Regulations it is the responsibility of senior managers to 

spend within budgets and, where necessary, management actions will need to 

be taken over the remainder of the financial year to avoid overspend. 

 

7.2 Any overspend we incur at the end of 2012/13, or at any time over the 

forthcoming period, will risk the financial position and would increase the 

savings targets required to meet spending cuts, with a potential impact on 

front-line services. The projected figures at this stage do not indicate that this 

is a significant risk. 

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 

Page 230



  

8.1 The report provides performance information, including by reference to key 

performance indicators and the budget.  It is consistent with good 

administration for the Council to consider monitoring information in relation to 

plans and budgets that it has adopted. 

 

8.2 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council as a best 

value authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 

the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  Monitoring of performance 

information is an important way in which that obligation can be fulfilled. 

 

8.3 The Council is required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs.  The 

Council’s chief finance officer has established financial procedures to ensure 

the Council’s proper financial administration.  These include procedures for 

budgetary control.  It is consistent with these arrangements for Members to 

receive information about the revenue and capital budgets as set out in the 

report. 

 

8.4 It is proposed to transfer money from an Olympic reserve ear-marked by the 

Council for this purpose.  The Council’s financial procedures contemplate 

authorisation of expenditure from reserves by the appropriate senior officer in 

consultation with the Director of Resources.  It is understood that the Mayor’s 

agreement is sought to due to the amount involved. 

 

8.5 When considering its performance, the Council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to 

advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 

persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  Relevant 

information is set out in section 9 of the report and officers must consider the 

need for equality analysis when carrying out any action in discharge of the 

Council’s functions. 

 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan and strategic measures are focused upon 

meeting the needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and 

supporting delivery of One Tower Hamlets. In particular, strategic priorities 

include the reduction of inequalities and the fostering of strong community 

cohesion and are measured by a variety of strategic indicators. 

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 

Page 231



  

10.1 An element of the monitoring report deals with environment, through the Great 
Place to Live theme. 

   
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the information contained 

within the strategic measure set will assist the Cabinet, Corporate Directors 
and relevant service managers in delivering the ambitious targets set out in 
the Strategic Plan. Regular monitoring reports will enable Members and 
Corporate Directors to keep progress under regular review. 

 
11.2  There is a risk to the integrity of the authority’s finances if an imbalance 

occurs between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular monitoring 
and, where appropriate, corrective action. This report provides a corporate 
overview to supplement more frequent monitoring that takes place at detailed 
level. 

 
11.3 The explanations provided by the Directorates for the budget variances also 

contain analyses of risk factors.   
 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 The strategic measure set contains a number of crime and disorder items 

under the Safe & Cohesive theme, however there are no specific crime and 
disorder reduction implications.  

  
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
13.1 Efficiencies for 2012/13 are incorporated within the estimated forecast outturn. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments (including virements) for the 
General Fund and for the capital budget 

 

• Appendix 2 - provides the estimate budget outturn forecast by Directorate 
for the General Fund and explanations of any major variances. 

 

• Appendix 3 - provides the budget outturn forecast and explanations of 
major variances for the HRA.  

 

• Appendix 4 – provides details of the capital programme and explanations 
of any major variances 

 

• Appendix 5 – provides an overview of performance for the reportable 
strategic plan. 

 

• Appendix 6 – provides an overview of performance for the reportable 
strategic measures. 

 

Page 232



  

_______________________________________________________ 
 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 

  
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  

No “background papers” were used in writing 

this report 

 

 

 

Page 233



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

A
d

u
lt

s
, 

H
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e
in

g

C
h

il
d

re
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

L
o

c
a
li

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 

C
u

lt
u

re

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

R
e
n

e
w

a
l

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
's

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

/ 
C

a
p

it
a
l

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

It
e
m

s

2
0
1
2
-1

3
 O

ri
g

in
a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
t 

C
a
s
h

 P
ri

c
e
s
 

2
9
2
,2

6
5
,5

9
5

9
8
,2

2
4
,2

1
9

8
9
,8

3
0
,4

5
1

6
8
,4

4
2
,8

7
5

2
0
,2

1
0
,2

7
9

8
,8

1
0
,7

0
0

8
,7

4
8
,9

6
8

1
3
,4

5
9
,5

4
2

(1
5
,4

6
1
,4

3
9
)

��
��
�
��
�
�

�
	

�
�


	
�
�

�	

�
�


	
�
�
�

�
���
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
� 
�
!!
�
!�
�
��

�
"
�
�

�
�
�

�"
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
���
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�#
�
�
�
��
���
$
�
%

�
&
'
	

�
�
�

�&
'
	

�
�
�
�

�
(
�(
��
�)
�
(
��
��
*
��
�+
�
�
!�
���
�
��
�
�
��
��
�$
�,
(
�
*
�
�!

�
�	
"
&

�
�
�
�

�
"
�

-
-
�
�

�-
-


�
&
�
�

��

�

�
�
�
�

�	
-
�

�
�
�
�

�



'

�
�
�

��
&
'

�
'
"
�

�
��
�
(
�
��
�.
�
�
�
*
�
�
�
�
�

�
-
&
�

&
�
�

�-
&
�

&
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
��
+
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
!

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
���
��
!�
.
�
�
�
*
�
�
�
�
��
)
�
��
�1
�2
(
�
*
�
�!

�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�

	
�
�

�
�
�

$
��
�
!�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�!
��
��
��
��
�
�+
)
�
��
�
�+
#
+

�
�	
"

�
�
�
�

	
"

�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
��
��
�
�2
�
!�
�
��
��
�
��
�)
�
��
��
)
��
�
�
*
�
��
+
�
�
�
(
�
��
��
!

�
'
�

�
�
�

�'
�

�
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�3
�
(
��
��
�
�
��
3
�
+
��
��
�
!!

�
	
�
�

�
�
�

�	
�
�

�
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�$
�
�
�
��
4
�
�
��
�!
�.
�
��
�

�
	
�
�

�
�
�

�	
�
�

�
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�#
�
 
�.
�
�
(
!�
�+
�
�
�
(
�
��
1
�2
(
!

�
-
&

�
�
�

�-
&

�
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�2
�*
�#
�
��
�
�1
� 
��
1

�
�


	
�
�

��


	
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�#
)
+
�+
�
��
��
(
�
�
��
*
��
#
��
�
��
�
*
�)
�
��
��
�

�
�
"

�
�
�

��
"

�
�
�
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�)
�
��
��
)
��
�
�
*
�
��
+
�
�
�
(
�
��
��
!

�
"
�

�
�
�

�"
�

�
�
�
�

+
#
+
�(
!�
��
��
+
�
�
��
�
*
�
�
�1
��
5
�
��
�
(
�
,
�
��
�
�
�
�6

�
�
��

�
	

�



�
�
�

�	

�



�
�
�
�

+
4
3
�(
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
�7
�
�
�$
�
�
�
��
4
�
�
��
�!

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
�

0
3
)
�/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
� 
��
�(
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
'
�

�
�
�

��
'
�

�
�
�
�

+
4
3
��
7
�
�
�7
��
�)
�
�
��
*
!�
8
�
���
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	
	
�	
�

�
&
�

�
�
�

�&
�

�
�
�
�

.
�
��
!�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�!
��
.
)
�
��
��
�
�!
���
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�

�&
'

�
�
�
�

��
&

�
�
�
�

	
�
&

�
�
�

7
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�8
�
�
�
�
��
�
�9
�#
�
�
��
��
*
�8
�!
�
,
���
�1
��
��
�
��

�
	

�
	
�

�
�
�

�	

�
	
�

�
�
�
�

8
�
�
��
���
�
�1
�+
�
��
�+
�
�
�
�!
!�
�
�
��
*
�)
���
�
�
*
�
��
��
)
�
�
��
*
!�
��
�
	
�
��
	
�
��
�
�1
�

�
-
�
	

�
�
�

�-
�
	

�
�
�
�

��
��
�
(
!�
�4
�
�
�
��
��
�)
���
�
�
*
�
��
��
!�
�
��
*
!�
��
�
	
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�1
�

�
"

�

�
�
�

�"

�

�
�
�
�

$
��
�
!�
�
��
�
��
:
�
(
��
�9
�+
�
�
�
�
%
��
�
!�
)
�
��
��
�
�

�
�


-
�

'
�
�
�




-
�

'
�
�

$
��
�
!�
�
��
�
��
+
�
�
�
(
�
��
1
�#
�
�
*
(
�
*
�
!

�
�'
&
"

�
	
�
�

'
&
"

�
	
�

/
!�
��
��
0
�
!�
��
�
!�
��
.
�
1
�
�;
!�
7
��
��
�
�0
�
�
��
�

�
�
'
'

�
�
�

��
'
'

�
�
�
�

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
0

2
,0

4
1
,0

0
0

(6
,9

9
2
,5

8
5
)

1
0
,3

5
4
,0

4
9

7
,0

0
0

6
3
5
,8

0
0

3
,4

1
1
,0

9
9

(3
,5

6
3
,2

7
6
)

(5
,8

9
3
,0

8
7
)

R
e
v
is

e
d

 C
u

rr
e
n

t 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
2
-1

3
2
9
2
,2

6
5
,5

9
5

1
0
0
,2

6
5
,2

1
9

8
2
,8

3
7
,8

6
6

7
8
,7

9
6
,9

2
4

2
0
,2

1
7
,2

7
9

9
,4

4
6
,5

0
0

1
2
,1

6
0
,0

6
7

9
,8

9
6
,2

6
6

(2
1
,3

5
4
,5

2
6
)

�


�
�
�	
�
��
�

Page 235



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	
�


�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

	

�

�
�
��
�
�
�	

�

�
�
��

�	

�
��

�
�
�
�
��

�

�
�


��
�
�
��

�
��



�

�
�
��

 �

!
"
�
�
�
��
#
�
$�

�
%
�
�
�
�



�
�
�

�
�
��



�
	
��

�
�
�
�
��

�

�
	

��

�
&

��
��

�

�
�
&

&
�
	
��
��

�
��

'
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

	

�

�
�
��
�


�

�
�


�
�


�
��

(
�
#
�
��

�
&

�
	
��
�
	

�

%
�
	
�
)

�
�

�
�
�
�
�	

�
�%

�
#
�
	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
*�

�
�+



��

�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�


,
��

�
�
�
��

�
�
�	

�
�

�
-
.
��

/
/
��

.
/

�
0
.
��

�
�

/
-
�1

1
/
�2

/
�

�
�
2
��

2
0
��

�
�

/
��

2
.
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

1
2
��

2
.

/
�
��

1
/
��

�
�

3
�
�*
��

�
��

��
�

4�

�
�&

�
	
��

2
2
0
�.

1
.

.
/
�1

�
/

5
�
�.

�
�
�-

2
1
6

�
�
1
�-

1
�

*�
�
�2

1
0
�0

�
�

1
�-

�
�
�2

�
/

�
�
�0

�
2
�-

�
.

/
��

.
.
�.

.
�

3
�
�*
��

�

�
�
�

�
-
/
��

/
�
�1

�
�

0
�
�
�1

�
/

/
.
��

0
0
��

/
0

�
�
1
�-

1
�

�
/
�0

�
2
�.

1
2

�
0
��

�
/
�2

�
/

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�1

�
2
��

�
�

/
/
�0

�
�
�.

.
�

�
�
�
�	

�
��
�
�
�


�
#
�
��

�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
 �

�
�

�
�
�
 �

�
�

!
"
#
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

$
 �

�
�
 �

�
�

$
 �

�
�
 �

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

�%
�
*�



�
 �
��


7

%
	�

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	�
��

�
�
�
��
�

��

��
�
�

�
�&

��
�
�
	�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
'
�(

�

��

'
�
��

�)
	*

�
�
��

��
�
�
��

��
��
�
�
�	
�
'
�'

�
	�

*
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�+

(
�
*
��

��
�
��

��
,�
	�

'
�'

(
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
'
��

(
�-

�
*
.�
/

�
�&

��
��

��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
0
��

�
��

1
 �

�
�
�

��
1
 �

�
�
�

2
�
��

�
��

�
�3

�
(
�
�
��
��

�
��

�
�
-
�

�0
0
 �

�
�
�

�0
0
 �

�
�
�

4
'
�
	�
�
�
�%

��
-
�
��

��
�
��

�
�
-
�

��
0
 �

�
�
�

��
0
 �

�
�
�

#
�
�
�
�
�
�
&
�%

�
�'

�
�
�
��

��
�
��

�
�
-
�

��
0
 �

�
�
�

��
0
 �

�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��

�
��

'
�5

�
�
'
��

��
�
��


*
�3

"
�
��

�
�
�
$
��

6
��

��
�
�
��

�
�
-
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

�
(
�
�
��

��
�
�
� 

�7
�
�
�	
	�

��
��

�
�
� 

�8
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�
��

�
�
'
�9

*
�

��

��
�
�
��

��
'
�
	�

*
�
��
��

��
�
�

�
	�

��
�
�

�0
�
1
 �

�
�
�

�0
�
1
 �

�
�
�

9
�
�

�4
��

�
�8

��
,,
��

�7
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��

#
�
-
��

�
��

��
�
��

�
�(

�
'
�
��

�
&
�
�
��

,�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
	�

��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��

0
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

��
�
�
 �

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
(
�*

:�
��

�
�
'
��

��
��

��
#
�
'
�
-
�
	�

�
�

�
�
��

�
,�
�
��
�
��

��
�
��

�
�
#
�
�	
��

��
��

��
		
��

�
��

��
�
��

�
�'

�
	�

*
�
'

��
�
 �

�
�
�

��
�
 �

�
�
�

9
�(

�
�
,�
�
	'

��
��

�
�
��

��
�
�

�
��
��


��

�
�
,�
��

�
��
�
�
��

,�
��

�
�
��

��
�
,�
,(

�
'
�
�,
��

�
�'

�
-
�
	�

�
�
�

�0
�
�
 �

�
�
�

�0
�
�
 �

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

��
�
�
��

)
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�5

�
�
'
�
�
�
�
�
�;

�
�
��

-
�
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�,
(
�
'
��


��

0
 �

�
�
�

��
0
 �

�
�
�

(
�
�
��

��
	
�
�(

�
��

�
�
��


��
�
��

�


�
�


�
��

�(
�

�
�
��



�
7
7

�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

�%
	�

�
�
�8

�
�

�
��

�
�	
'
��

�
:�

��
�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�&

�
��

��
!

�
-
�
	�

�
�

�
�
��

#
�
,(

��
.

�
�
 �

�
�

�
�
 �

�
�

�
5
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

�9
	�

�
&
�

�
		
�/

�
*
�9

(
�
��

��
�
�
��

�#
�
��

�
(
��
�

��

$
$
��

(
�

�
�
 �

�
�

�
�
 �

�
�

�
5
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

�7
�	
�
�<

�
'
��

��
'
�(

�
�8

��
�
&
��

�
�
(
�,

�
�
��


�
6
 6

6
6

�
6
 6

6
6

�
5
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

�

�
�
�
*
,�
�
	'

�
�)

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��

��
�
��


��

��
�

��

�
�
�	
�
�
'
�
�
�
�
�

�
1
 �

�
�

�
1
 �

�
�

!
"
#
��

�
�
��
�
	�


��


��

�
�

�
��

�

��
-
�
��

��
�
�
��

��
;�

�
��

-
�
�

�
�
��

%
��

�
��

��
�
�
�
�

*
��

,,
��

��
�
�
*
��

��

��

�
�

�
�
�
�
 �

�
�

�
�
�
 �

�
�

+
��

�


��

�
�


�
#
�
��

�
�

4�

�
�&

�
	
��

�

3
�
�*
��

�
��

��
�

4�

�
�&

�
	
��

/
�0

�
.
�-

-
-

�
�

�
�
-
.
��

�
�

*�
��

/
2
��

�
�

�
1
��

2
�
��

�
�

�

�
�
��

��
%
�
#
��

�

��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
*�

�
�
2
�
�1

/
/
�/

�
2

0
�
�
�1

�
/

/
.
��

0
0
��

/
0

�
�
1
�-

1
�

�
/
�1

�
0
�.

1
2

�
�
�1

0
1
�-

�
0

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
2
��

�
�

/
/
�0

�
�
�.

.
�

=
�8

�
��

��
�
-
�
	-

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

��
��


��

,�
�
�
�
�
'
��


��

�
��

��
�
��

(
��

�
�
�

=
=
��

�
��

��
�
�

�
��

>
�
�
�
'
��


�?

�
�
�
&
��

�
'
��

�
��

�
>
�
�
�
'
��


�?

�
�
�
&
 �
�
�
�
��

�
	�

-
�
�
��

�
�
��
�

��

�
�
�
��

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�


�
�
��
�
��
�

Page 236



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

t
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 D

a
te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 D
a

te
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

3
3

2
.4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
2

,9
0

6
1

1
5

,3
1

2
4

8
,8

5
4

4
9

,1
6

2
3

0
8

1
1

5
,3

0
8

1
1

7
,7

5
6

2
,4

4
4

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

,6
8

2
)

(1
5

,0
4

7
)

(6
,3

7
3

)
(6

,6
8

2
)

(3
0

9
)

(1
7

,3
7

4
)

(1
7

,4
9

1
)

(2
,4

4
4

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
8

,2
2

4
1

0
0

,2
6

5
4

2
,4

8
1

4
2

,4
8

0
(1

)
9

7
,9

3
4

1
0

0
,2

6
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

5
,8

5
9

1
7

,1
2

0
8

,4
2

3
8

,5
7

3
1

5
0

1
6

,6
7

1
1

7
,1

2
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(7
,0

5
0

)
(7

,6
7

3
)

(3
,8

3
9

)
(3

,9
6

1
)

(1
2

2
)

(7
,6

7
3

)
(7

,6
7

3
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,8

0
9

9
,4

4
7

4
,5

8
4

4
,6

1
2

2
8

8
,9

9
8

9
,4

4
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

4
4

,9
3

8
1

4
4

,4
1

5
7

2
,2

0
8

5
7

,1
7

6
(1

5
,0

3
2

)
1

4
5

,1
3

2
1

4
5

,9
0

9
1

,4
9

4

In
c
o

m
e

(6
1

,4
6

0
)

(6
1

,5
7

7
)

(3
0

,7
8

9
)

(1
3

,7
1

9
)

1
7

,0
7

0
(6

2
,2

1
1

)
(6

3
,5

8
9

)
(2

,0
1

2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3

,4
7

8
8

2
,8

3
8

4
1

,4
1

9
4

3
,4

5
7

2
,0

3
8

8
2

,9
2

1
8

2
,3

2
0

(5
1

8
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
5

,3
0

8
1

2
9

,6
5

5
5

4
,6

5
7

5
2

,4
1

9
(2

,2
3

8
)

1
2

9
,1

6
2

1
3

0
,3

5
5

7
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
6

,8
6

5
)

(5
0

,8
5

8
)

(2
4

,7
7

9
)

(2
3

,1
9

9
)

1
,5

8
0

(5
1

,6
6

5
)

(5
1

,5
5

8
)

(7
0

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
8

,4
4

3
7

8
,7

9
7

2
9

,8
7

8
2

9
,2

2
0

(6
5

8
)

7
7

,4
9

7
7

8
,7

9
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

0
,3

3
1

8
0

,8
3

6
4

0
,4

1
8

3
6

,3
1

6
(4

,1
0

2
)

8
1

,3
1

2
8

0
,8

3
6

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
0

,1
1

8
)

(6
0

,6
1

9
)

(3
0

,3
1

0
)

(2
6

,2
6

0
)

4
,0

5
0

(6
1

,3
5

1
)

(6
0

,6
1

9
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0

,2
1

3
2

0
,2

1
7

1
0

,1
0

9
1

0
,0

5
6

(5
3

)
1

9
,9

6
1

2
0

,2
1

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

2
5

,7
1

3
3

2
9

,9
8

5
1

6
4

,9
9

7
1

7
6

,2
1

5
1

1
,2

1
8

3
3

0
,6

9
4

3
3

0
,9

8
5

1
,0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

6
,9

6
4

)
(3

1
7

,8
2

5
)

(1
5

8
,9

1
7

)
(1

6
9

,7
7

5
)

(1
0

,8
5

8
)

(3
1

8
,2

0
7

)
(3

1
7

,8
2

5
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,7

4
9

1
2

,1
6

0
6

,0
8

0
6

,4
4

0
3

6
0

1
2

,4
8

7
1

3
,1

6
0

1
,0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

9
4

(9
,0

6
3

)
6

,1
4

6
1

0
,2

7
7

4
,1

3
1

(5
,5

5
9

)
(9

,0
6

3
)

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,3

9
5

)
(2

,3
9

5
)

(1
,1

9
7

)
(2

,7
0

7
)

(1
,5

1
0

)
(2

,3
9

5
)

(2
,3

9
5

)
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
,0

0
1

)
(1

1
,4

5
8

)
4

,9
4

9
7

,5
7

0
2

,6
2

1
(7

,9
5

4
)

(1
1

,4
5

8
)

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

9
5

,4
4

8
8

0
8

,2
6

0
3

9
5

,7
0

3
3

9
0

,1
3

8
(5

,5
6

5
)

8
1

2
,7

2
1

8
1

3
,8

9
8

5
,6

3
8

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

9
,5

3
4

)
(5

1
5

,9
9

4
)

(2
5

6
,2

0
4

)
(2

4
6

,3
0

3
)

9
,9

0
0

(5
2

0
,8

7
5

)
(5

2
1

,1
5

0
)

(5
,1

5
6

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8

5
,9

1
4

2
9

2
,2

6
6

1
3

9
,5

0
0

1
4

3
,8

3
5

4
,3

3
5

2
9

1
,8

4
7

2
9

2
,7

4
8

4
8

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

1
8

,5
8

0
3

4
7

,0
3

0
1

7
3

,5
1

6
7

6
,0

2
5

(9
7

,4
9

1
)

3
4

6
,6

2
1

3
4

6
,6

6
5

(0
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
1

8
,5

8
0

)
(3

4
7

,0
3

0
)

(1
7

3
,5

1
6

)
(1

,2
7

3
)

1
7

2
,2

4
3

(3
4

6
,6

2
1

)
(3

4
6

,6
6

5
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
7

4
,7

5
2

7
4

,7
5

2
0

0
0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 (
D

S
G

)

C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

T
O

T
A

L

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S

1
 o

f 
3

2

Page 237



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
8

3
3
3

1
6
6

1
6
8

2
3
3
2

3
3
2

(1
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

0
)

(1
5
5
)

0
0

0
(1

5
5
)

(1
3
9
)

1
6

(1
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
8

1
7
8

1
6
6

1
6
8

2
1
7
8

1
9
3

1
5

8
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

D
.C

o
h
e
n

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
1

1
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

4
1

1
,1

8
1

5
1
0

4
9
2

(1
8
)

1
,1

8
1

1
,1

8
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(1
4
0
)

0
(0

)
(0

)
(1

4
0
)

(1
4
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

4
1

1
,0

4
1

5
1
0

4
9
2

(1
8
)

1
,0

4
1

1
,0

4
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
,3

3
0

2
6
,1

4
2

9
,5

0
0

9
,5

2
6

2
6

2
5
,5

3
2

2
6
,1

8
8

4
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,4
8
2
)

(4
,4

8
2
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

1
5
)

(1
5
)

(4
,4

8
4
)

(4
,4

8
4
)

(2
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
,8

4
8

2
1
,6

6
0

6
,5

0
0

6
,5

1
1

1
1

2
1
,0

4
8

2
1
,7

0
4

4
4

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,1

4
7

2
2
,0

7
8

9
,5

0
0

9
,8

3
2

3
3
2

2
2
,8

0
2

2
3
,6

8
9

1
,6

1
1

7

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
8
7
)

(3
,6

8
7
)

(1
,9

0
0
)

(2
,1

8
9
)

(2
8
9
)

(5
,1

7
3
)

(5
,1

7
3
)

(1
,4

8
6
)

4
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
,4

6
0

1
8
,3

9
1

7
,6

0
0

7
,6

4
3

4
3

1
7
,6

2
9

1
8
,5

1
6

1
2
5

1
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,6

4
0

9
,3

5
2

3
,8

5
0

4
,0

2
9

1
7
9

9
,8

1
3

9
,7

5
9

4
0
7

4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
8
6
)

(1
,9

3
7
)

(1
0
0
)

(1
1
4
)

(1
4
)

(1
,9

6
2
)

(1
,9

6
2
)

(2
5
)

1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,7

5
4

7
,4

1
5

3
,7

5
0

3
,9

1
5

1
6
5

7
,8

5
1

7
,7

9
7

3
8
2

5
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

R
.F

ra
d
g

le
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,2

6
4

7
,5

7
1

3
,6

0
0

3
,8

8
8

2
8
8

8
,8

5
4

8
,9

6
5

1
,3

9
4

1
8

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,7
1
4
)

(1
,7

1
5
)

(1
4
0
)

(1
4
6
)

(6
)

(2
,7

6
4
)

(2
,7

6
4
)

(1
,0

4
9
)

6
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,5

5
0

5
,8

5
6

3
,4

6
0

3
,7

4
2

2
8
2

6
,0

9
0

6
,2

0
1

3
4
5

6
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
4

2
6
9

1
6
0

1
5
7

(3
)

2
3
1

2
3
1

(3
8
)

(1
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

(5
5
)

(5
6
)

(5
6
)

0
(5

5
)

(5
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
4

2
1
4

1
0
4

1
0
1

(3
)

1
7
6

1
7
6

(3
8
)

(1
8
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
4
6
 H

IV
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

A
4
4
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
e
la

y
s
 w

it
h
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
D

o
m

c
a
re

 r
e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t)

. 
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

b
ri
n
g

in
g

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

.

A
4
5
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 b

ri
n
g

in
g

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

.

A
4
3
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 b

ri
n
g

in
g

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

.

A
0
4
 P

re
v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

A
0
5
 C

a
re

rs
 G

ra
n

t

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

A
5
3
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 M

&
A

A
4
2
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

3
2

Page 238



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

7
6

1
,1

2
5

5
8
0

5
9
7

1
7

1
,1

6
4

1
,1

6
4

3
9

3

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

7
6

1
,1

2
5

5
8
0

5
9
7

1
7

1
,1

6
4

1
,1

6
4

3
9

3
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

D
.I

n
g

ra
m

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
8

5
0
8

2
5
0

2
4
6

(4
)

4
9
1

4
9
1

(1
7
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(9

6
)

(9
6
)

3
7

3
7

(0
)

(9
6
)

(9
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1
2

4
1
2

2
8
7

2
8
3

(4
)

3
9
5

3
9
5

(1
7
)

(4
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
.D

is
n
e
y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
,9

6
2

1
4
,4

0
7

7
,7

0
0

7
,3

0
3

(3
9
7
)

1
3
,4

5
6

1
3
,5

2
1

(8
8
6
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

(2
5
)

0
(3

)
(3

)
0

(2
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,9

6
2

1
4
,3

8
2

7
,7

0
0

7
,3

0
0

(4
0
0
)

1
3
,4

5
6

1
3
,4

9
6

(8
8
6
)

(6
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
 K

ilp
a
tr

ic
k

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
0
3

8
2
3

3
5
5

3
5
4

(1
)

8
2
9

8
2
9

6
1

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

0
0

0
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
5
3

7
7
3

3
5
5

3
5
4

(1
)

7
7
9

7
7
9

6
1

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
5
6

5
5
0

6
0

6
2

2
5
5
0

5
5
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
5
6

5
5
0

6
0

6
2

2
5
5
0

5
5
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
1

9
5
5

2
1
5

2
2
3

8
9
5
5

9
6
9

1
4

1

In
c
o
m

e
(2

3
)

(2
3
)

(3
8
)

(3
8
)

0
(3

8
)

(3
8
)

(1
5
)

6
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7
8

9
3
2

1
7
7

1
8
5

8
9
1
7

9
3
1

(1
)

(0
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

0
7

7
6
1

3
4
0

2
2
2

(1
1
8
)

4
4
9

5
3
7

(2
2
4
)

(2
9
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

7
0
)

(3
5
0
)

(1
,1

2
0
)

(1
,0

0
0
)

1
2
0

0
(1

2
6
)

2
2
4

(6
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

3
7

4
1
1

(7
8
0
)

(7
7
8
)

2
4
4
9

4
1
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

E
. 

H
u
s
s
e
in

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
1
0

8
1
6

3
5
0

2
8
3

(6
7
)

7
0
1

7
0
1

(1
1
5
)

(1
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
0
)

(2
3
8
)

0
0

0
(1

3
8
)

(1
3
8
)

1
0
0

(4
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
6
0

5
7
8

3
5
0

2
8
3

(6
7
)

5
6
3

5
6
3

(1
5
)

(3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
2

1
2
2

6
0

6
3

3
1
2
6

1
2
6

4
3

In
c
o
m

e
(6

7
)

(6
7
)

0
0

0
(6

9
)

(6
9
)

(2
)

3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

5
5

6
0

6
3

3
5
7

5
7

2
4

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.S

u
g

a
rs

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
5
,4

7
9

8
6
,9

9
3

3
7
,1

9
6

3
7
,4

4
6

2
5
0

8
7
,4

6
3

8
9
,2

3
3

2
,2

4
0

(2
8
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
,6

5
5
)

(1
3
,0

2
0
)

(6
,3

1
7
)

(6
,5

2
4
)

(2
0
7
)

(1
5
,1

2
4
)

(1
5
,2

5
9
)

(2
,2

3
9
)

5
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
2
,8

2
4

7
3
,9

7
3

3
0
,8

7
9

3
0
,9

2
1

4
2

7
2
,3

4
0

7
3
,9

7
4

1
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
D

.C
o

h
e
n

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 &

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
6
1
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
 &

 P
ro

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

 A
6
2
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
o

li
c
y

A
5
8
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

A
5
9
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
5
5
 Q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
5
6
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 I

.T
.

A
4
8
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

A
5
0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

S
a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
/f

 (
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
h
o
s
te

ls
 s

e
rv

ic
e
) 

to
 m

e
e
t 

ti
m

in
g

 d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 

o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

A
4
7
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

P
a
g

e
 3

 o
f 

3
2

Page 239



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

A
0
8
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
8
0

3
8
0

1
8
0

1
8
3

3
4
0
2

4
0
2

2
2

6

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8
0

3
8
0

1
8
0

1
8
3

3
4
0
2

4
0
2

2
2

6
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

H
.G

re
e
n

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2

 A
1
5
 O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
3
1

4
3
1

(1
,6

3
0
)

(1
,6

1
6
)

1
4

4
8
9

4
7
5

4
4

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
3
1

4
3
1

(1
,6

3
0
)

(1
,6

1
6
)

1
4

4
8
9

4
7
5

4
4

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.S

q
u
ir
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
1
6
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

6
9

1
,1

6
9

4
2
0

4
6
0

4
0

1
,2

5
9

1
,2

5
9

9
0

8

In
c
o
m

e
(2

5
0
)

(2
5
0
)

0
0

0
(2

5
0
)

(2
5
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1
9

9
1
9

4
2
0

4
6
0

4
0

1
,0

0
9

1
,0

0
9

9
0

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.S

q
u
ir
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
9

9
9

4
5

4
6

1
9
6

9
6

(3
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
9

9
9

4
5

4
6

1
9
6

9
6

(3
)

(3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.O

a
te

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
4
9

5
4
9

2
2
0

1
9
9

(2
1
)

5
2
3

4
9
7

(5
2
)

(9
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)
(0

)
(1

)
(1

)
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
4
8

5
4
8

2
1
9

1
9
8

(2
1
)

5
2
2

4
9
6

(5
2
)

(9
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.O

a
te

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

1
9

1
,6

1
9

7
1
0

7
0
9

(1
)

1
,6

1
9

1
,6

1
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

7
)

(3
7
)

(1
7
)

(1
7
)

0
(3

7
)

(3
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

8
2

1
,5

8
2

6
9
3

6
9
2

(1
)

1
,5

8
2

1
,5

8
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.O

a
te

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,0

7
4

4
,7

2
4

2
,3

5
0

2
,4

0
1

5
1

4
,0

7
4

4
,8

2
6

1
0
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
)

(4
4
)

0
0

0
(4

4
)

(1
4
6
)

(1
0
2
)

2
3
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,0

3
0

4
,6

8
0

2
,3

5
0

2
,4

0
1

5
1

4
,0

3
0

4
,6

8
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.O

a
te

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
0
2
 D

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s
 &

 H
e
a
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

M
&

A
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
5

2
7
1

1
7
5

1
7
4

(1
)

2
6
3

2
7
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

(9
6
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
5

2
7
1

1
7
5

1
7
4

(1
)

1
6
7

2
7
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

K
.M

a
rk

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
1
3
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

 S
u

b
 D

iv
is

io
n

 M
&

A
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3

8
3

4
1

4
1

0
1
0
2

1
0
2

1
9

2
3

In
c
o
m

e
(3

5
)

(3
5
)

(1
8
)

(1
8
)

0
(3

5
)

(3
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
8

4
8

2
3

2
3

0
6
7

6
7

1
9

4
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

S
.H

o
w

a
rd

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
3
3
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 D
a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

A
3
4
 H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

A
3
0
 A

d
u

lt
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

 M
&

A

A
3
1
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 E

s
ta

b
li

s
h

m
e
n

ts

P
a
g

e
 4

 o
f 

3
2

Page 240



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

A
1
4
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 &

 C
a
re

 M
g

m
t.

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
7
6

9
7
6

4
5
0

4
8
8

3
8

1
,0

7
3

1
,0

7
3

9
7

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
4
)

(2
0
4
)

0
(1

0
2
)

(1
0
2
)

(4
9
4
)

(4
9
4
)

(2
9
0
)

1
4
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7
2

7
7
2

4
5
0

3
8
6

(6
4
)

5
7
9

5
7
9

(1
9
3
)

(2
5
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

S
.H

o
w

a
rd

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
1
9
 A

d
u

lt
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
0

3
3
0

1
6
0

1
3
7

(2
3
)

3
3
0

3
3
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

8
)

(3
8
)

0
0

0
(3

8
)

(3
8
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7
2

2
9
2

1
6
0

1
3
7

(2
3
)

2
9
2

2
9
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

A
.T

y
re

r

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
2
3
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
2

9
2

4
5

4
5

0
9
2

9
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

0
)

(9
0
)

0
0

0
(6

7
)

(6
7
)

2
3

(2
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
2

4
5

4
5

0
2
5

2
5

2
3

1
,1

5
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

S
.D

if
fe

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
2
4
 A

re
a
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 T

e
a
m

s
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

5
8

2
,4

5
8

1
,1

2
0

1
,1

6
5

4
5

2
,5

5
8

2
,5

5
7

9
9

4

In
c
o
m

e
(2

7
7
)

(2
7
7
)

0
0

0
(2

4
5
)

(2
4
5
)

3
2

(1
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

8
1

2
,1

8
1

1
,1

2
0

1
,1

6
5

4
5

2
,3

1
3

2
,3

1
2

1
3
1

6
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

S
.D

if
fe

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
2
5
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
7
7

4
7
7

2
1
0

2
0
3

(7
)

4
4
7

4
7
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
)

(3
4
)

0
0

0
(4

)
(4

)
3
0

(8
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4
3

4
4
3

2
1
0

2
0
3

(7
)

4
4
3

4
7
3

3
0

7
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

L
.A

.J
o
h
n
s
o
n
 

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
3
2
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
7
2

4
1
8

2
5
0

2
0
7

(4
3
)

3
2
0

3
2
0

(9
8
)

(2
3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

)
(5

)
(2

)
(2

)
0

(3
)

(3
)

2
(4

0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6
7

4
1
3

2
4
8

2
0
5

(4
3
)

3
1
7

3
1
7

(9
6
)

(2
3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

S
.H

o
w

a
rd

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
3
7
 E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
3
1

3
6
1

1
8
0

2
2
4

4
4

4
5
0

4
5
0

8
9

2
5

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
)

(2
0
)

(3
)

(3
)

(0
)

(2
3
)

(2
3
)

(3
)

1
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
1

3
4
1

1
7
7

2
2
1

4
4

4
2
7

4
2
7

8
6

2
5

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

I.
W

ill
ia

m
s
o
n

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
8
1
 F

ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

2
9

2
,2

3
8

1
,1

0
0

1
,0

9
7

(3
)

2
,2

3
8

2
,2

3
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

0
2
)

(1
0
2
)

0
0

0
(1

0
2
)

(1
0
2
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

2
7

2
,1

3
6

1
,1

0
0

1
,0

9
7

(3
)

2
,1

3
6

2
,1

3
6

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

L
e
a
h
 D

ra
k
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
8
2
 R

e
a
b

le
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

4
1

2
,3

3
2

1
,1

7
5

1
,1

7
5

0
2
,3

3
2

2
,3

3
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
6
)

(1
2
6
)

0
0

0
(1

2
6
)

(1
2
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

1
5

2
,2

0
6

1
,1

7
5

1
,1

7
5

0
2
,2

0
6

2
,2

0
6

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 O

a
te

s

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
8
3
 L

o
n

g
e
r 

T
e
rm

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 -
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

8
5

2
,3

8
5

1
,1

9
0

1
,1

7
9

(1
1
)

2
,3

5
7

2
,3

6
4

(2
1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

8
5

2
,3

8
5

1
,1

9
0

1
,1

7
9

(1
1
)

2
,3

5
7

2
,3

6
4

(2
1
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

A
.T

y
re

r

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 c

o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 b
u
d
g

e
t.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
In

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2

5
6
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 t

e
a
m

.

P
a
g

e
 5

 o
f 

3
2

Page 241



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

A
8
4
 L

o
n

g
e
r 

T
e
rm

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 -
 O

T
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
3
3

9
3
3

3
9
0

3
8
8

(2
)

9
5
4

9
2
7

(6
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
3
3

9
3
3

3
9
0

3
8
8

(2
)

9
5
4

9
2
7

(6
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
 S

q
u
ir
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,4

8
3

2
2
,3

2
5

8
,7

8
1

8
,9

0
5

1
2
4

2
1
,9

7
8

2
2
,7

0
7

3
8
2

5
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,2
6
3
)

(1
,2

6
3
)

(4
1
)

(1
4
3
)

(1
0
2
)

(1
,5

6
5
)

(1
,5

7
1
)

(3
0
8
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
,2

2
0

2
1
,0

6
2

8
,7

4
0

8
,7

6
2

2
2

2
0
,4

1
3

2
1
,1

3
6

7
4

0
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
K

.M
a
rk

s

A
6
6
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
7

5
8
7

2
4
0

2
3
1

(9
)

5
8
7

5
6
2

(2
5
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
8
7

5
8
7

2
4
0

2
3
1

(9
)

5
8
7

5
6
2

(2
5
)

(4
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

E
.H

u
s
s
e
in

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
7
1
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

0
0

1
,5

5
0

7
0
0

6
4
3

(5
7
)

1
,4

2
3

1
,3

9
7

(1
5
3
)

(1
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(7

6
4
)

(7
6
4
)

(1
5
)

(1
5
)

0
(6

8
7
)

(6
6
1
)

1
0
3

(1
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
3
6

7
8
6

6
8
5

6
2
8

(5
7
)

7
3
6

7
3
6

(5
0
)

(6
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

E
.H

u
s
s
e
in

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

 M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

A
9
0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
/C

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

5
7

3
,8

5
7

1
,9

3
7

1
,9

3
7

0
3
,8

5
7

3
,8

5
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,8

5
7

3
,8

5
7

1
,9

3
7

1
,9

3
7

0
3
,8

5
7

3
,8

5
7

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

E
.H

u
s
s
e
in

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

 

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

la
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
:

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,9

4
4

5
,9

9
4

2
,8

7
7

2
,8

1
1

(6
6
)

5
,8

6
7

5
,8

1
6

(1
7
8
)

(1
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(7

6
4
)

(7
6
4
)

(1
5
)

(1
5
)

0
(6

8
7
)

(6
6
1
)

1
0
3

(1
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,1

8
0

5
,2

3
0

2
,8

6
2

2
,7

9
6

(6
6
)

5
,1

8
0

5
,1

5
5

(7
5
)

(1
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
E

.H
u

s
s
e
in

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
2
,9

0
6

1
1
5
,3

1
2

4
8
,8

5
4

4
9
,1

6
2

3
0
8

1
1
5
,3

0
8

1
1
7
,7

5
6

2
,4

4
4

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,6

8
2
)

(1
5
,0

4
7
)

(6
,3

7
3
)

(6
,6

8
2
)

(3
0
9
)

(1
7
,3

7
5
)

(1
7
,4

9
1
)

(2
,4

4
4
)

1
6

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
8
,2

2
4

1
0
0
,2

6
5

4
2
,4

8
1

4
2
,4

8
0

(1
)

9
7
,9

3
4

1
0
0
,2

6
5

0
0

D
ir

e
c
to

r:

1
6

1
9

3

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

O
th

e
r

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

P
a
g

e
 6

 o
f 

3
2

Page 242



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

1
1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

5
8

2
,8

4
8

1
,4

2
5

1
,5

8
7

1
6
2

2
,8

4
8

2
,8

4
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,6
2
7
)

(2
,6

2
7
)

(1
,3

1
4
)

(1
,3

0
7
)

7
(2

,6
2
7
)

(2
,6

2
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

2
2
1

1
1
1

2
8
0

1
6
9

2
2
1

2
2
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

5
8

2
,8

4
8

1
,4

2
5

1
,5

8
7

1
6
2

2
,8

4
8

2
,8

4
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,6
2
7
)

(2
,6

2
7
)

(1
,3

1
4
)

(1
,3

0
7
)

7
(2

,6
2
7
)

(2
,6

2
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1

2
2
1

1
1
1

2
8
0

1
6
9

2
2
1

2
2
1

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
T

a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

0
4

1
,5

6
4

7
8
2

8
1
1

2
9

1
,5

6
4

1
,5

6
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

(3
5
)

(3
5
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

0
4

1
,5

6
4

7
8
2

7
7
6

(6
)

1
,5

6
4

1
,5

6
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6
5

6
6
8

3
3
4

2
7
5

(5
9
)

5
7
6

6
6
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

)
(9

)
(4

)
(1

7
)

(1
3
)

(9
)

(9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
5
6

6
5
9

3
3
0

2
5
8

(7
2
)

5
6
7

6
5
9

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
6
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

6
9

2
,2

3
2

1
,1

1
6

1
,0

8
6

(3
0
)

2
,1

4
0

2
,2

3
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

)
(9

)
(4

)
(5

2
)

(4
8
)

(9
)

(9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

6
0

2
,2

2
3

1
,1

1
2

1
,0

3
4

(7
8
)

2
,1

3
1

2
,2

2
3

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
L

o
u

is
e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,3

3
6

3
,3

1
1

1
,6

5
6

1
,7

0
3

4
7

3
,3

1
1

3
,3

1
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,5
1
9
)

(3
,5

1
9
)

(1
,7

6
0
)

(1
,8

0
7
)

(4
7
)

(3
,5

1
9
)

(3
,5

1
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
8
3
)

(2
0
8
)

(1
0
4
)

(1
0
4
)

0
(2

0
8
)

(2
0
8
)

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
u
e
 H

a
y
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
0
8

6
9
3

3
4
7

3
0
7

(4
0
)

6
9
3

6
9
3

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

(1
)

(1
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
0
8

6
9
3

3
4
7

3
0
6

(4
1
)

6
9
3

6
9
3

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
u
e
 H

a
y
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0

2
8

1
4

5
5

4
1

2
8

2
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

2
8

1
4

5
5

4
1

2
8

2
8

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
u
e
 H

a
y
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
4

7
1
4

3
5
7

3
7
2

1
5

7
1
4

7
1
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(6
2
3
)

(3
1
2
)

(3
2
7
)

(1
5
)

(6
2
3
)

(6
2
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4

9
1

4
5

4
5

0
9
1

9
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
u
e
 H

a
y
e
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
1
9

5
1
6

2
5
8

2
1
4

(4
4
)

5
1
6

5
1
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

0
9
)

(4
0
9
)

(2
0
5
)

(1
8
4
)

2
1

(4
0
9
)

(4
0
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1
0

1
0
7

5
3

3
0

(2
3
)

1
0
7

1
0
7

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 G
a
lp

in

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,6

8
7

5
,2

6
2

2
,6

3
2

2
,6

5
1

1
9

5
,2

6
2

5
,2

6
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,9
2
8
)

(4
,5

5
1
)

(2
,2

7
7
)

(2
,3

1
9
)

(4
2
)

(4
,5

5
1
)

(4
,5

5
1
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
5
9

7
1
1

3
5
5

3
3
2

(2
3
)

7
1
1

7
1
1

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
Is

a
b

e
ll
a
 F

re
e
m

a
n

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

G
A

L
, 
E

L
E

C
T

O
R

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 &

 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

C
8
2
  
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
e
a
m

C
8
4
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 &

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts

C
5
8
  
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

C
6
0
  
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 E

le
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 &
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

C
5
2
  
L

e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
1
6
  
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

C
5
4
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 E
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s

C
1
4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
 w

it
h
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
u
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 w

it
h
in

 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
d
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

<
2
%

 G
re

e
n

2
%

 -
 5

%
 A

m
b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
3
2

Page 243



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
1
4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
 w

it
h
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
u
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 w

it
h
in

 

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
7
4

7
5
8

3
7
9

4
0
1

2
2

7
5
8

7
5
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

7
9
)

(4
7
9
)

(2
4
0
)

(2
8
1
)

(4
1
)

(4
7
9
)

(4
7
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
9
5

2
7
9

1
3
9

1
2
0

(1
9
)

2
7
9

2
7
9

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
S

 W
il
li
a
m

s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

0
9

2
,9

5
9

1
,3

4
1

1
,3

5
8

1
7

2
,6

0
2

2
,9

5
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

)
(7

)
(4

)
(2

)
2

(7
)

(7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,6

0
2

2
,9

5
2

1
,3

3
7

1
,3

5
6

1
9

2
,5

9
5

2
,9

5
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
S

 W
il
li
a
m

s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
6
1

8
6
1

4
3
1

4
3
0

(1
)

8
6
1

8
6
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
6
1

8
6
1

4
3
1

4
3
0

(1
)

8
6
1

8
6
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
S

 W
il
li
a
m

s
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

4
4

4
,5

7
8

2
,1

5
1

2
,1

8
9

3
8

4
,2

2
1

4
,5

7
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

8
6
)

(4
8
6
)

(2
4
4
)

(2
8
3
)

(3
9
)

(4
8
6
)

(4
8
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,7

5
8

4
,0

9
2

1
,9

0
7

1
,9

0
6

(1
)

3
,7

3
5

4
,0

9
2

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
J
o

h
n

S
 W

il
li
a
m

s
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

0
1

2
,2

0
0

1
,0

9
8

1
,0

5
9

(3
9
)

2
,2

0
0

2
,2

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

0
1

2
,2

0
0

1
,0

9
8

1
,0

5
9

(3
9
)

2
,2

0
0

2
,2

0
0

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r:

Is
a
b

e
ll
a
 F

re
e
m

a
n

4
4
9

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

0
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
4
/0

7
/2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
,8

5
9

1
7
,1

2
0

8
,4

2
3

8
,5

7
3

1
5
0

1
6
,6

7
1

1
7
,1

2
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,0
5
0
)

(7
,6

7
3
)

(3
,8

3
9
)

(3
,9

6
1
)

(1
2
2
)

(7
,6

7
3
)

(7
,6

7
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,8

0
9

9
,4

4
7

4
,5

8
4

4
,6

1
2

2
8

8
,9

9
8

9
,4

4
7

0
0

D
ir

e
c
to

r:
Is

a
b

e
ll
a
 F

re
e
m

a
n

0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 &

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
R

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
8
0
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

C
6
2
  
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
7
8
  
D

e
m

o
 R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 &
 M

g
t 

C
5
6
  
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
ir

th
s
, 
D

e
a
th

s
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
3
2

Page 244



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

6

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,9

6
8

4
,9

6
8

2
,4

8
4

1
,6

3
2

(8
5
2
)

4
,9

6
8

4
,9

6
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

0
3
)

(1
0
3
)

(5
1
)

(3
8
)

1
3

(1
0
3
)

(1
0
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,8

6
5

4
,8

6
5

2
,4

3
3

1
,5

9
4

(8
3
9
)

4
,8

6
5

4
,8

6
5

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
0
,7

4
1

1
5
8
,3

2
9

7
9
,1

6
4

2
7
,7

6
6

(5
1
,3

9
8
)

1
5
8
,3

2
9

1
5
8
,3

2
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,8
4
1
)

(1
2
,4

2
9
)

(6
,2

1
4
)

(5
4
8
)

5
,6

6
6

(1
2
,4

2
9
)

(1
2
,4

2
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
5
,9

0
0

1
4
5
,9

0
0

7
2
,9

5
0

2
7
,2

1
8

(4
5
,7

3
2
)

1
4
5
,9

0
0

1
4
5
,9

0
0

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
3
,1

6
1

1
4
3
,5

2
7

7
1
,7

6
4

3
2
,0

5
5

(3
9
,7

0
9
)

1
4
3
,5

2
7

1
4
3
,5

2
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

7
,7

2
9
)

(3
8
,0

9
5
)

(1
9
,0

4
8
)

(9
5
6
)

1
8
,0

9
2

(3
8
,0

9
5
)

(3
8
,0

9
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
5
,4

3
2

1
0
5
,4

3
2

5
2
,7

1
6

3
1
,0

9
9

(2
1
,6

1
7
)

1
0
5
,4

3
2

1
0
5
,4

3
2

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
,9

7
2

1
4
,1

2
0

7
,0

6
0

2
,2

1
6

(4
,8

4
4
)

1
4
,1

2
0

1
4
,1

2
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

1
1
)

(1
,0

5
9
)

(5
2
9
)

(4
8
)

4
8
1

(1
,0

5
9
)

(1
,0

5
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,0

6
1

1
3
,0

6
1

6
,5

3
1

2
,1

6
8

(4
,3

6
3
)

1
3
,0

6
1

1
3
,0

6
1

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 D
S

G
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 D
S

G
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 D

S
G

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(D
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t)
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 
3
2

Page 245



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(D
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t)
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,7

7
3

3
,7

7
3

1
,8

8
7

1
,9

1
3

2
6

3
,7

6
6

3
,7

6
6

(7
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(8

9
7
)

(8
9
7
)

(4
4
9
)

(2
1
4
)

2
3
5

(9
0
9
)

(9
0
9
)

(1
2
)

1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,8

7
6

2
,8

7
6

1
,4

3
8

1
,6

9
9

2
6
1

2
,8

5
7

2
,8

5
7

(1
9
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
iz

 V
ic

k
e
ri

e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,9

2
4

5
,1

1
8

2
,5

5
9

2
,1

4
5

(4
1
4
)

5
,1

1
7

5
,1

6
1

4
3

1

In
c
o
m

e
(7

2
7
)

(7
2
7
)

(3
6
3
)

(4
3
)

3
2
0

(7
2
7
)

(7
7
0
)

(4
3
)

6

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,1

9
7

4
,3

9
1

2
,1

9
6

2
,1

0
2

(9
4
)

4
,3

9
0

4
,3

9
1

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
 W

a
tk

in
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

H
1
0
  
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
m

't
 M

 &
 A

 D
S

G
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
8

9
0
8

4
5
4

9
0
7

4
5
3

9
0
8

9
0
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0
8

9
0
8

4
5
4

9
0
7

4
5
3

9
0
8

9
0
8

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

5
3

3
,8

5
3

1
,9

2
6

2
,7

3
7

8
1
1

3
,6

7
2

3
,6

7
2

(1
8
1
)

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,8

5
3

3
,8

5
3

1
,9

2
6

2
,7

3
7

8
1
1

3
,6

7
2

3
,6

7
2

(1
8
1
)

(5
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
o
n
ic

a
 F

o
rt

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,5

8
7

8
,5

8
7

4
,2

9
4

1
,9

8
9

(2
,3

0
5
)

8
,3

8
6

8
,3

8
5

(2
0
2
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,3
1
6
)

(2
,3

1
6
)

(1
,1

5
8
)

1
,0

0
4

2
,1

6
2

(2
,1

0
2
)

(2
,1

0
2
)

2
1
4

(9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
,2

7
1

6
,2

7
1

3
,1

3
6

2
,9

9
3

(1
4
3
)

6
,2

8
4

6
,2

8
3

1
2

(1
2
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 C
a
rr

o
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8
8

1
8
8

9
4

1
8
8

9
4

1
8
8

1
8
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8
8

1
8
8

9
4

1
8
8

9
4

1
8
8

1
8
8

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 C
a
rr

o
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

T
e
rr

y
 B

ry
a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
9
2

1
,0

1
6

5
0
8

4
2
8

(8
0
)

9
9
7

9
9
8

(1
8
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
2
)

(1
5
2
)

(7
6
)

(4
3
0
)

(3
5
4
)

(1
5
2
)

(1
5
2
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
4
0

8
6
4

4
3
2

(2
)

(4
3
4
)

8
4
5

8
4
6

(1
8
)

(2
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n

n
e
 C

a
n

n
in

g

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
3
,1

2
5

2
3
,4

4
3

1
1
,7

2
2

1
0
,3

0
7

(1
,4

1
5
)

2
3
,0

3
4

2
3
,0

7
8

(3
6
5
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,0
9
2
)

(4
,0

9
2
)

(2
,0

4
6
)

3
1
7

2
,3

6
3

(3
,8

9
0
)

(3
,9

3
3
)

1
5
9

(4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9
,0

3
3

1
9
,3

5
1

9
,6

7
6

1
0
,6

2
4

9
4
8

1
9
,1

4
4

1
9
,1

4
5

(2
0
6
)

(1
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
L
o
w

H
7
8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 E
x
c
l 
D

S
G

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 &

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

H
1
8
  
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 P
s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

S
G

H
2
7
  
1
4
-1

9
 Y

e
a
rs

 D
S

G

H
1
6
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 N
e
e
d

s
 D

S
G

G
2
9
  
P

u
p

il
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
U

n
it

H
1
1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

S
G

3
 a

n
d
 4

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

G
1
7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 F

o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

S
G

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
3
2

Page 246



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(D
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t)
E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
8
9

3
1
9

1
5
9

1
3
9

(2
0
)

3
1
9

3
1
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8
9

3
1
9

1
5
9

1
3
9

(2
0
)

3
1
9

3
1
9

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 H
o
u
g
h

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
5

5
5

2
8

5
5

2
7

5
5

5
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

5
5

2
8

5
5

2
7

5
5

5
5

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
4
4

3
7
4

1
8
7

1
9
4

7
3
7
4

3
7
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4
4

3
7
4

1
8
7

1
9
4

7
3
7
4

3
7
4

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
L
o
w

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

3
7

1
,0

3
7

5
1
9

8
3
6

3
1
7

1
,0

3
7

1
,0

3
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(7
4
)

(5
4
6
)

(5
4
6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

3
7

1
,0

3
7

5
1
9

8
3
6

3
1
7

9
6
3

4
9
1

(5
4
6
)

(5
3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rk

 K
e
e
b
le

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,2

3
2

1
,2

3
2

6
1
6

1
,0

1
9

4
0
3

1
,2

3
2

1
,2

3
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

3
2

1
,2

3
2

6
1
6

1
,0

1
9

4
0
3

1
,2

3
2

1
,2

3
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

6
9

2
,2

6
9

1
,1

3
5

1
,8

5
5

7
2
0

2
,2

6
9

2
,2

6
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

(7
4
)

(5
4
6
)

(5
4
6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

6
9

2
,2

6
9

1
,1

3
5

1
,8

5
5

7
2
0

2
,1

9
5

1
,7

2
3

(5
4
6
)

(2
4
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
H

ig
h

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

9
0
,9

0
5
)

(2
9
1
,2

5
3
)

(1
4
5
,6

2
7
)

0
1
4
5
,6

2
7

(2
9
0
,9

7
1
)

(2
9
0
,5

0
1
)

7
5
2

(0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
9
0
,9

0
5
)

(2
9
1
,2

5
3
)

(1
4
5
,6

2
7
)

0
1
4
5
,6

2
7

(2
9
0
,9

7
1
)

(2
9
0
,5

0
1
)

7
5
2

(0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

Is
o

b
e
l 
C

a
tt

e
rm

o
le

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
8
,5

8
0

3
4
7
,0

3
0

1
7
3
,5

1
6

7
6
,0

2
5

(9
7
,4

9
1
)

3
4
6
,6

2
1

3
4
6
,6

6
5

(3
6
5
)

(0
)

(D
S

G
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

1
8
,5

8
0
)

(3
4
7
,0

3
0
)

(1
7
3
,5

1
6
)

(1
,2

7
3
)

1
7
2
,2

4
3

(3
4
6
,6

2
1
)

(3
4
6
,6

6
5
)

3
6
5

(0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
7
4
,7

5
2

7
4
,7

5
2

0
0

0
0

D
ir

e
c
to

r:

4
4

2
2

0
(2

2
)

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

H
8
3
  
C

S
F

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

S
G

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 (
H

6
8
)

N
e
t 
fo

re
c
a
s
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
7
5
2
k
 w

il
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

d
ra

w
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 p

la
n
n
e
d
.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E

H
7
9
  
C

S
F

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

g
m

t 
D

S
G

C
a
te

ri
n
g
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 o

f 
£
5
4
6
k
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t.

H
5
5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

D
S

G

H
6
2
  
A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 &

 W
e
lf

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
3
2

Page 247



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
6

4
6

2
3

0
(2

3
)

4
6

4
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6

4
6

2
3

0
(2

3
)

4
6

4
6

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,9

7
5

4
,9

7
5

2
,4

8
8

0
(2

,4
8
8
)

4
,9

7
5

4
,9

7
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,9

7
5

4
,9

7
5

2
,4

8
8

0
(2

,4
8
8
)

4
,9

7
5

4
,9

7
5

0
0

0
K

a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,7

6
7

6
,7

6
7

3
,3

8
3

1
6
0

(3
,2

2
3
)

6
,7

6
7

6
,7

6
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
,7

6
7

6
,7

6
7

3
,3

8
3

1
6
0

(3
,2

2
3
)

6
,7

6
7

6
,7

6
7

0
0

0
K

a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

1
5

1
,0

1
5

5
0
8

0
(5

0
8
)

1
,0

1
5

1
,0

1
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

1
5

1
,0

1
5

5
0
8

0
(5

0
8
)

1
,0

1
5

1
,0

1
5

0
0

0
K

a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
4

2
4
4

1
2
2

8
9

(3
3
)

2
4
4

2
4
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
0
)

(1
6
0
)

(8
0
)

(1
6
0
)

(8
0
)

(1
6
0
)

(1
6
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
4

8
4

4
2

(7
1
)

(1
1
3
)

8
4

8
4

0
0

0
A

n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

N
/A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

3
9

3
,8

2
9

1
,9

1
5

1
,2

0
1

(7
1
4
)

3
,7

0
4

3
,7

0
4

(1
2
5
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,4
5
4
)

(3
,4

4
4
)

(1
,7

2
2
)

(6
2
6
)

1
,0

9
6

(3
,2

8
0
)

(3
,2

8
0
)

1
6
4

(5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8
5

3
8
5

1
9
3

5
7
5

3
8
2

4
2
4

4
2
4

3
9

(8
)

0
M

o
n
ic

a
 F

o
rt

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,9

9
6

2
,9

8
9

1
,4

9
5

1
,1

8
4

(3
1
1
)

2
,9

4
8

2
,9

6
7

(2
2
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,5
7
3
)

(2
,5

6
6
)

(1
,2

8
3
)

(7
9
)

1
,2

0
4

(2
,5

8
3
)

(2
,5

7
6
)

(1
0
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
2
3

4
2
3

2
1
2

1
,1

0
5

8
9
3

3
6
5

3
9
1

(3
2
)

(0
)

0
M

o
n
ic

a
 F

o
rt

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

G
1
1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 G

F
T

h
is

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

G
1
2
  
L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 D

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s

T
h
is

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 G

F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 m
a
d
e
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 G

F

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

G
1
0
  
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

 &
 A

 G
F

M
o
s
t 
o
f 
g
ra

n
t 
a
lr

e
a
d
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 m
a
d
e
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 m
a
d
e
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
3
2

Page 248



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
,1

1
4

1
0
,9

8
7

5
,4

9
3

3
,9

1
0

(1
,5

8
3
)

1
0
,9

8
4

1
0
,9

8
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

0
,0

2
0
)

(9
,8

9
2
)

(4
,9

4
6
)

(3
6
)

4
,9

1
0

(9
,9

0
8
)

(9
,9

0
8
)

(1
6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

9
4

1
,0

9
5

5
4
7

3
,8

7
4

3
,3

2
7

1
,0

7
6

1
,0

7
9

(1
6
)

(1
)

0
M

o
h
a
m

m
e
d
 J

o
li
l

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
7
4

6
7
4

3
3
7

5
5
0

2
1
3

6
7
4

8
3
2

1
5
8

2
3

In
c
o
m

e
(4

7
6
)

(4
7
9
)

(2
3
9
)

(4
1
4
)

(1
7
5
)

(4
7
9
)

(6
6
4
)

(1
8
5
)

3
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9
8

1
9
5

9
8

1
3
6

3
8

1
9
5

1
6
8

(2
7
)

(1
4
)

3
2

M
o
n
ic

a
 F

o
rt

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,9

9
6

3
,9

2
8

1
,9

6
4

1
,5

2
4

(4
4
0
)

4
,0

3
3

3
,9

6
6

3
8

1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
5
)

(1
2
5
)

(6
2
)

(1
4
7
)

(8
5
)

(1
7
7
)

(1
7
7
)

(5
2
)

4
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,8

7
1

3
,8

0
3

1
,9

0
2

1
,3

7
7

(5
2
5
)

3
,8

5
6

3
,7

8
9

(1
4
)

(0
)

(0
)

D
a
v
id

 C
a
rr

o
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

8
5

1
,6

8
2

8
4
1

6
7
5

(1
6
6
)

1
,6

8
2

1
,6

8
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(8

5
4
)

(8
5
4
)

(4
2
7
)

(3
5
3
)

7
4

(8
4
6
)

(8
4
5
)

9
(1

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
1

8
2
8

4
1
4

3
2
2

(9
2
)

8
3
6

8
3
7

9
1

(0
)

D
a
v
id

 C
a
rr

o
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,0

2
9

1
,9

9
7

9
9
8

7
2
6

(2
7
2
)

2
,1

7
5

2
,1

7
5

1
7
8

9

In
c
o
m

e
(4

2
1
)

(3
9
8
)

(1
9
9
)

(1
4
1
)

5
8

(5
1
5
)

(5
7
5
)

(1
7
7
)

4
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

0
8

1
,5

9
9

7
9
9

5
8
5

(2
1
4
)

1
,6

6
0

1
,6

0
0

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
il
l 
M

c
G

in
le

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
2
8

3
1
9

1
6
0

1
0
8

(5
2
)

3
1
9

3
1
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

(2
5
)

(4
0
)

(1
5
)

(5
0
)

(5
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7
8

2
6
9

1
3
5

6
8

(6
7
)

2
6
9

2
6
9

0
0

0
H

a
n
ia

 F
ra

n
e
k

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a
rt

 o
f 
G

1
3

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
i 
W

a
rn

e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,9

2
5

2
,8

4
9

1
,4

2
5

6
1
7

(8
0
8
)

2
,8

4
9

2
,3

3
1

(5
1
8
)

(1
8
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,0
9
0
)

(1
,0

2
2
)

(5
1
1
)

(6
6
2
)

(1
5
1
)

(1
,0

2
2
)

(1
,0

2
2
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

3
5

1
,8

2
7

9
1
4

(4
5
)

(9
5
9
)

1
,8

2
7

1
,3

0
9

(5
1
8
)

(2
8
)

(1
)

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

G
1
6
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

e
e
d

s
 G

F
In

-y
e
a
r 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

tt
ri

b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 a

 l
a
g
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

G
1
8
  
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

 G
F

N
o
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
. 
L
a
s
t 
m

o
n
th

's
 f
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

G
1
9
  
P

a
re

n
ta

l 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 -
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

R
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 Y

P
C

£
6
0
k
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

H
o
li
d
a
y
 P

la
y
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 E
a
rl

y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
, 
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 D

M
T

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
.

G
2
2
  
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

w
a
rd

s

G
2
6
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

F
ir

s
t 
fu

ll
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
M

a
y
o
r'
s
 B

u
rs

a
ry

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 l
o
w

e
r 

e
li
g
ib

il
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 t
h
a
n
 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
. 
 F

ig
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 

£
0
.5

1
8
m

 i
s
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
if
 e

li
g
ib

il
it
y
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
fi
rs

t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

re
c
u
rs

.

G
2
0
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 &

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

G
2
1
  
O

n
e
 O

'C
lo

c
k
 C

lu
b

s

G
1
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

T
h
is

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

G
1
4
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
3
2

Page 249



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

p
a
rt

 o
f 
G

2
6

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

6
2

1
,5

6
2

7
8
1

5
8
1

(2
0
0
)

1
,7

1
2

1
,7

0
2

1
4
0

9

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,4
1
9
)

(1
,4

1
9
)

(7
1
0
)

(2
1
)

6
8
9

(1
,5

6
9
)

(1
,5

6
0
)

(1
4
1
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
3

1
4
3

7
1

5
6
0

4
8
9

1
4
3

1
4
2

(1
)

(1
)

(1
)

K
a
re

n
 B

ro
c
k
 /
 S

h
a
b
b
ir

 A
h
m

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

C
e
a
s
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
e
a
s
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
e
a
s
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,2

8
1

1
,2

8
1

6
4
0

5
3
0

(1
1
0
)

1
,3

6
3

1
,3

6
3

8
2

6

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
2
2
)

(1
,1

2
2
)

(5
6
1
)

(2
4
5
)

3
1
6

(1
,1

8
6
)

(1
,1

8
6
)

(6
4
)

6

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
5
9

1
5
9

7
9

2
8
5

2
0
6

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
8

1
1

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
te

v
e
 G

ro
c
o
tt

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
4
2

4
4
1

2
2
1

1
5
5

(6
6
)

4
0
7

4
0
6

(3
5
)

(8
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

8
2
)

(2
8
2
)

(1
4
1
)

(2
0
3
)

(6
2
)

(2
4
7
)

(2
4
7
)

3
5

(1
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
0

1
5
9

8
0

(4
8
)

(1
2
8
)

1
6
0

1
5
9

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
o
rr

a
in

e
 H

a
c
h
o
u

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

L
iz

 V
ic

k
e
ri

e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

H
1
7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e

G
3
3
  
E

-L
e
a
rn

in
g

G
3
4
  
E

x
c
e
ll
e
n

c
e
 I
n

 C
it

ie
s

H
4
0
  
C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 -

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

R
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 Y

P
C

T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
a
t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

G
4
1
  
H

e
a
lt

h
y
 L

iv
e
s
 -

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

R
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 Y

P
C

M
o
s
t 
o
f 
g
ra

n
t 
a
lr

e
a
d
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

G
2
7
  
1
4
 t

o
 1

9
 Y

e
a
r 

G
F

G
3
0
  
A

rt
s
 &

 M
u

s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e

P
la

n
n
e
d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
1
5
0
k
 b

e
in

g
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 E

a
rl

y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
, 

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 D

M
T

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
.

G
3
5
  
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 &
 T

ra
in

in
g

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
3
2

Page 250



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

6
0

1
,1

2
7

5
6
4

3
0
8

(2
5
6
)

9
1
3

9
1
6

(2
1
1
)

(1
9
)

In
c
o
m

e

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

6
0

1
,1

2
7

5
6
4

3
0
8

(2
5
6
)

9
1
3

9
1
6

(2
1
1
)

(1
9
)

0
T

e
rr

y
 B

ry
a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
4
,1

7
5

3
3
,9

0
9

1
6
,9

5
5

1
2
,1

5
8

(4
,7

9
7
)

3
4
,0

0
8

3
3
,5

9
4

(3
1
5
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

2
,0

4
6
)

(2
1
,8

1
3
)

(1
0
,9

0
7
)

(3
,1

2
7
)

7
,7

8
0

(2
2
,0

2
2
)

(2
2
,2

5
0
)

(4
3
7
)

2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,1

2
9

1
2
,0

9
6

6
,0

4
8

9
,0

3
1

2
,9

8
3

1
1
,9

8
6

1
1
,3

4
4

(7
5
2
)

(6
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
A

n
n

e
 C

a
n

n
in

g

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
9

2
8
7

1
4
4

2
0
3

5
9

3
3
1

3
3
1

4
4

1
5

In
c
o
m

e
(1

1
8
)

(5
9
)

(1
)

5
8

(1
1
8
)

(1
1
8
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
9

1
6
9

8
5

2
0
2

1
1
7

2
1
3

2
1
3

4
4

2
6

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
te

v
e
 L

id
d
ic

o
tt

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

3
4

2
,6

2
7

1
,3

1
4

1
,0

5
4

(2
6
0
)

2
,6

0
1

2
,6

0
1

(2
6
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,6

3
4

2
,6

2
7

1
,3

1
4

1
,0

0
4

(3
1
0
)

2
,6

0
1

2
,6

0
1

(2
6
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
n
 R

o
a
c
h

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
2
6

8
2
5

4
1
2

3
9
3

(1
9
)

8
2
6

8
2
6

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
2
6

8
2
5

4
1
2

3
9
3

(1
9
)

8
2
6

8
2
6

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

H
il
a
ry

 B
u
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

5
6

1
,8

4
5

9
2
3

7
4
8

(1
7
5
)

1
,7

9
4

1
,7

9
4

(5
1
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

5
6

1
,8

4
5

9
2
3

7
4
8

(1
7
5
)

1
,7

9
4

1
,7

9
4

(5
1
)

(3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

H
il
a
ry

 B
u
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

0
6

3
,1

0
2

1
,5

5
1

1
,1

7
7

(3
7
4
)

2
,9

7
4

2
,9

7
4

(1
2
8
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

6
)

(6
6
)

(3
3
)

(9
6
)

(6
3
)

(8
6
)

(8
6
)

(2
0
)

3
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

4
0

3
,0

3
6

1
,5

1
8

1
,0

8
1

(4
3
7
)

2
,8

8
8

2
,8

8
8

(1
4
8
)

(5
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

H
il
a
ry

 B
u
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
if
 a

ll
 s

ta
ff
 w

e
re

 i
n
 p

o
s
t.
 T

h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 o

v
e
r 

s
p
e
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
e
w

e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

. 
 A

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
is

 p
la

n
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
C

M
B

M
.

G
7
8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 E
x
c
ls

 G
F

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
la

c
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 l
o
w

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
, 
s
o
 f
a
r,

  
b
e
e
n
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 i
n
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 
d
e
m

a
n
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 m

a
y
 f
in

d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

re
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

w
il
l 
o
n
ly

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
s
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 r
is

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 I
t 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 p

re
d
ic

t 
w

h
a
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
.

G
4
9
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
&

A

G
5
0
  
C

h
il
d

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 &
 R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

N
o
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d

G
5
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 F

a
m

il
y
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n

t

G
5
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 M

&
A

G
5
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

M
o
s
t 
o
f 
g
ra

n
t 
a
lr

e
a
d
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
3
2

Page 251



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
,0

0
3

1
4
,8

2
3

7
,4

1
1

6
,0

1
4

(1
,3

9
7
)

1
4
,5

6
2

1
4
,7

1
2

(1
1
1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

1
4
)

(2
1
4
)

(1
0
7
)

(8
0
)

2
7

(2
1
4
)

(2
1
4
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
,7

8
9

1
4
,6

0
9

7
,3

0
4

5
,9

3
4

(1
,3

7
0
)

1
4
,3

4
8

1
4
,4

9
8

(1
1
1
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

H
il
a
ry

 B
u
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

3
2

2
,3

1
8

1
,1

5
9

9
6
9

(1
9
0
)

2
,3

2
8

2
,3

2
9

1
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

3
2

2
,3

1
8

1
,1

5
9

9
6
9

(1
9
0
)

2
,3

2
8

2
,3

2
9

1
1

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
e
n
n
y
 B

o
y
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,5

9
6

2
,5

8
7

1
,2

9
3

1
,0

3
4

(2
5
9
)

2
,5

8
1

2
,5

6
6

(2
1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
9
)

(1
2
9
)

(6
4
)

(3
)

6
1

(1
0
8
)

(4
7
)

8
2

(6
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

6
7

2
,4

5
8

1
,2

2
9

1
,0

3
1

(1
9
8
)

2
,4

7
3

2
,5

1
9

6
1

2
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
h
a
h
id

 T
il
ly

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,4

0
9

5
,5

1
9

2
,7

6
0

2
,0

4
2

(7
1
8
)

5
,4

5
7

5
,6

0
5

8
6

2

In
c
o
m

e
(2

3
6
)

(1
7
1
)

(8
5
)

(3
0
)

5
5

(1
4
2
)

(2
5
7
)

(8
6
)

5
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,1

7
3

5
,3

4
8

2
,6

7
5

2
,0

1
2

(6
6
3
)

5
,3

1
5

5
,3

4
8

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

P
a
u
l 
M

c
G

e
e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,6

9
3

4
,6

8
9

2
,3

4
5

2
,5

8
3

2
3
8

4
,7

7
1

4
,7

7
1

8
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(9

6
4
)

(9
6
4
)

(4
8
2
)

(1
6
7
)

3
1
5

(9
6
4
)

(9
6
4
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,7

2
9

3
,7

2
5

1
,8

6
3

2
,4

1
6

5
5
3

3
,8

0
7

3
,8

0
7

8
2

2
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
h
a
li
d
a
 K

h
a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
4
0

4
3
4

2
1
7

2
0
9

(8
)

4
7
0

4
7
0

3
6

8

In
c
o
m

e
(2

2
)

(2
2
)

(1
1
)

0
1
1

(2
2
)

(2
2
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1
8

4
1
2

2
0
6

2
0
9

3
4
4
8

4
4
8

3
6

9
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

P
a
u
l 
M

c
G

e
e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

1
3

2
,0

1
0

1
,0

0
5

8
8
0

(1
2
5
)

2
,2

4
5

2
,2

4
5

2
3
5

1
2

In
c
o
m

e
(7

1
7
)

(7
1
7
)

(3
5
9
)

(3
6
)

3
2
3

(9
5
2
)

(9
5
2
)

(2
3
5
)

3
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

9
6

1
,2

9
3

6
4
6

8
4
4

1
9
8

1
,2

9
3

1
,2

9
3

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
tu

a
rt

 J
o
h
n
s
o
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

8
1

1
,4

2
0

7
1
0

3
5
0

(3
6
0
)

1
,5

2
9

1
,3

6
8

(5
2
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
)

(3
4
)

(1
7
)

0
1
7

0
0

3
4

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

4
7

1
,3

8
6

6
9
3

3
5
0

(3
4
3
)

1
,5

2
9

1
,3

6
8

(1
8
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

B
il
l 
W

il
li
a
m

s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

N
/A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

1
6

2
,1

1
1

1
,0

5
6

8
4
2

(2
1
4
)

2
,1

2
7

2
,1

2
7

1
6

1

In
c
o
m

e
(8

4
5
)

(8
4
5
)

(4
2
3
)

(5
0
2
)

(7
9
)

(8
6
0
)

(8
6
0
)

(1
5
)

2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

7
1

1
,2

6
6

6
3
3

3
4
0

(2
9
3
)

1
,2

6
7

1
,2

6
7

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 H
o
u
g
h

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

G
6
2
  
A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 &

 W
e
lf

a
re

 S
e
rv

 G
F

P
re

m
is

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
s
ts

 n
o
t 
p
o
s
te

d
; 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
ts

 p
lu

s
 D

S
G

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

o
s
te

d
 i
n
 f
u
ll
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

ro
fi
le

d

G
5
9
  
E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 T
e
a
m

G
6
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
2
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 (

to
ta

l 
£
2
5
2
,5

2
5
) 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
a
 £

5
0
5
,0

5
0
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
to

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
; 

th
e
 £

5
0
5
,0

5
0
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
is

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

G
6
0
  
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

R
E

D
 

F
R

O
M

 Y
P

C

G
ra

n
t 
n
o
t 
b
ro

u
g
h
t 
in

 u
n
ti
l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

a
rt

 c
o
u
n
te

re
d
 b

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

n
o
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

G
5
7
  
F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

G
5
8
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 D

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 /
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 d

a
te

, 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
a
c
to

re
d
 

in
to

 h
is

/h
e
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t.

G
5
5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

G
F

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

G
5
6
  
L

e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
t 
R

e
n
ta

ls
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

T
h
e
 £

1
1
1
k
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 +

£
1
4
9
k
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
in

c
e
 C

M
B

M
0
5
. 
 T

h
is

 

is
 a

 h
ig

h
ly

 d
e
m

a
n
d
-l

e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
e
n
 n

e
w

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
u
ri

n
g
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
.

G
5
4
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
3
2

Page 252



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,4

9
6

5
,5

1
3

2
,7

5
6

2
,4

2
8

(3
2
8
)

6
,5

3
0

6
,5

6
0

1
,0

4
7

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,0
8
3
)

(1
,0

7
8
)

(5
3
9
)

(4
0
0
)

1
3
9

(2
,1

7
8
)

(2
,1

7
8
)

(1
,1

0
0
)

1
0
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

1
3

4
,4

3
5

2
,2

1
7

2
,0

2
8

(1
8
9
)

4
,3

5
2

4
,3

8
2

(5
3
)

(1
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
o
k
s
u
d
a
 U

d
d
in

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
0
5

5
4
2

2
7
1

1
9
2

(7
9
)

5
4
4

5
4
4

2
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
7
)

(3
4
7
)

(1
7
3
)

0
1
7
3

(3
4
7
)

(3
4
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
5
8

1
9
5

9
8

1
9
2

9
4

1
9
7

1
9
7

2
1

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
d
re

w
 C

ro
s
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
,8

7
5

5
0
,6

5
3

2
5
,3

2
7

2
1
,1

1
8

(4
,2

0
9
)

5
1
,6

7
0

5
1
,8

2
5

1
,1

7
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,6
5
7
)

(4
,7

0
4
)

(2
,3

5
2
)

(1
,3

6
4
)

9
8
8

(5
,9

9
1
)

(6
,0

4
4
)

(1
,3

4
0
)

2
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6
,2

1
8

4
5
,9

4
9

2
2
,9

7
5

1
9
,7

5
4

(3
,2

2
1
)

4
5
,6

7
9

4
5
,7

8
1

(1
6
8
)

(0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
S

te
v
e
 L

id
d

ic
o

tt
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
9

2
6
9

1
3
5

1
8
6

5
1

2
2
3

2
2
3

(4
6
)

(1
7
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6
9

2
6
9

1
3
5

1
8
6

5
1

2
2
3

2
2
3

(4
6
)

(1
7
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
7
.0

9
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
3

1
3
4

6
7

5
7

(1
0
)

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
6

1
2

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
3

1
3
4

6
7

5
7

(1
0
)

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
6

1
2

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
th

o
n
y
 W

a
lt
e
rs

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
1
8

8
1
7

4
0
8

2
7
6

(1
3
2
)

7
7
2

7
7
2

(4
5
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

6
)

(2
6
)

(1
3
)

(6
)

7
(1

2
)

(1
2
)

1
4

(5
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
9
2

7
9
1

3
9
5

2
7
0

(1
2
5
)

7
6
0

7
6
0

(3
1
)

(4
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
a
y
la

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
0
5

6
0
4

3
0
2

1
1
5

(1
8
7
)

6
0
4

6
0
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
0
5

6
0
4

3
0
2

1
1
5

(1
8
7
)

6
0
4

6
0
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
a
s
ta

 M
ia

h

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

9
5

1
,8

2
4

9
1
2

6
3
5

(2
7
7
)

1
,7

5
0

1
,7

5
0

(7
4
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

6
)

(2
6
)

(1
3
)

(6
)

7
(1

2
)

(1
2
)

1
4

(5
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,7

6
9

1
,7

9
8

8
9
9

6
2
9

(2
7
0
)

1
,7

3
8

1
,7

3
8

(6
0
)

(3
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
Is

o
b

e
l 
C

a
tt

e
rm

o
le

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
6

2
4
0

1
2
0

1
1
5

(5
)

2
4
0

2
4
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

7
)

(4
7
)

(2
4
)

(2
8
)

(4
)

(4
7
)

(4
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9
9

1
9
3

9
6

8
7

(9
)

1
9
3

1
9
3

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
8
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

2
7

1
,8

3
7

9
1
8

7
3
1

(1
8
7
)

1
,9

2
4

1
,8

3
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,2
5
7
)

(1
,2

5
7
)

(6
2
8
)

(2
5
)

6
0
3

(1
,2

5
7
)

(1
,2

5
7
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
7
0

5
8
0

2
9
0

7
0
6

4
1
6

6
6
7

5
8
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
a
re

n
 B

a
d
g
e
ry

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

G
7
9
  
C

S
F

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
G

F

G
6
7
  
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
n
g
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
a
t 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

G
7
4
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
S

p
e
n
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 f
o
r 

T
h
ir

d
 P

a
rt

y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
te

rm
; 
fi
rs

t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 a

t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
A

u
tu

m
n
 T

e
rm

 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

G
6
5
  
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

G
7
1
  
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
o

li
c
y

P
re

m
is

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
t 
p
o
s
te

d
; 
re

c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

In
te

rp
re

te
rs

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 p

o
s
te

d
 a

t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r

G
7
5
  
IT

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E

G
3
7
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 M
&

A
 -

 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

R
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 Y

P
C

H
5
7
  
F

a
m

il
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
3
2

Page 253



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 T
u
ll
y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
9
1

2
9
0

1
4
5

1
1
9

(2
6
)

3
0
0

3
0
0

1
0

3

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
(1

0
)

(1
0
)

(1
0
)

(1
0
)

(1
0
)

#
D

IV
/0

!

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
9
1

2
9
0

1
4
5

1
0
9

(3
6
)

2
9
0

2
9
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

Iq
b
a
l 
V

a
z
a

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
5

1
7
4

8
7

6
5

(2
2
)

1
5
9

1
5
9

(1
5
)

(9
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
5

1
7
4

8
7

6
5

(2
2
)

1
5
9

1
5
9

(1
5
)

(9
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
 M

it
c
h
e
ll

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
5
.0

8
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
5
8

3
5
6

1
7
8

1
4
6

(3
2
)

3
5
6

3
5
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
5
8

3
5
6

1
7
8

1
4
6

(3
2
)

3
5
6

3
5
6

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

C
h
ri

s
 C

a
n
ty

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

N
/A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,5

5
3

6
,5

5
3

3
,2

7
6

1
7
4

(3
,1

0
2
)

6
,5

3
4

6
,5

2
4

(2
9
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

2
)

(3
2
)

(1
6
)

0
1
6

(3
2
)

(3
2
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
,5

2
1

6
,5

2
1

3
,2

6
0

1
7
4

(3
,0

8
6
)

6
,5

0
2

6
,4

9
2

(2
9
)

(0
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

P
a
t 
W

a
ts

o
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
4
9

9
4
1

4
7
1

4
3
0

(4
1
)

9
7
4

9
8
2

4
1

4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
3
)

(1
8
3
)

(9
1
)

(9
1
)

0
(2

1
6
)

(2
2
5
)

(4
2
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
6
6

7
5
8

3
8
0

3
3
9

(4
1
)

7
5
8

7
5
7

(1
)

(0
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 T
u
ll
y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

1
0

1
,9

4
0

9
7
0

6
9
0

(2
8
0
)

1
,9

4
0

1
,9

4
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

5
0
)

(3
8
0
)

(1
9
0
)

0
1
9
0

(3
8
0
)

(3
8
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

6
0

1
,5

6
0

7
8
0

6
9
0

(9
0
)

1
,5

6
0

1
,5

6
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rk

 K
e
e
b
le

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
8
5

6
8
5

3
4
3

2
3
8

(1
0
5
)

6
9
9

7
1
0

2
5

4

In
c
o
m

e
(5

9
4
)

(5
9
4
)

(2
9
7
)

(4
0
8
)

(1
1
1
)

(5
5
1
)

(5
5
1
)

4
3

(7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1

9
1

4
6

(1
7
0
)

(2
1
6
)

1
4
8

1
5
9

6
8

7
5

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

C
la

re
 G

o
o
d
b
o
d
y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

G
8
3
  
C

S
F

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 G

F

G
8
6
  
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
 C

e
n

tr
e

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

L
A

s
 a

n
d
 D

e
s
k
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 p

a
id

 i
n
 f
u
ll
 d

u
ri

n
g
 M

a
y
; 
la

g
 i
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 

a
s
s
e
t 
re

n
ta

ls
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

G
8
1
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 D
e
v
 &

 T
e
c
h

 S
e
rv

ic
e

G
8
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
F

in
a
n

c
e

T
h
is

 v
o
te

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
fl
e
c
te

d
 l
a
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r.

G
7
2
  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

G
8
0
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

G
6
8
  
M

a
jo

r 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g

G
7
0
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
s

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
3
2

Page 254



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

5

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
,9

9
6

1
3
,9

9
6

6
,9

9
8

5
,8

0
3

(1
,1

9
5
)

1
3
,3

1
9

1
4
,3

9
6

4
0
0

3

In
c
o
m

e
(1

3
,9

9
6
)

(1
3
,9

9
6
)

(6
,9

9
8
)

(4
,6

8
6
)

2
,3

1
2

(1
3
,3

1
9
)

(1
4
,3

9
6
)

(4
0
0
)

3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
1
,1

1
7

1
,1

1
7

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
H

a
le

s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

(3
4
)

(1
2
0
)

(6
0
)

5
,5

6
0

5
,6

2
0

2
7
0

2
9
5

4
1
5

(3
4
6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

9
)

(2
1
1
)

(1
0
6
)

0
1
0
6

(1
7
2
)

(1
7
2
)

3
9

(1
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(7
3
)

(3
3
1
)

(1
6
6
)

5
,5

6
0

5
,7

2
6

9
8

1
2
3

4
5
4

(1
3
7
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
a
v
id

 T
u
ll
y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
4
0

7
4
0

3
7
0

3
5
4

(1
6
)

7
4
0

7
4
2

2
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

4
0
)

(7
4
0
)

(3
7
0
)

(1
8
6
)

1
8
4

(7
5
5
)

(7
5
7
)

(1
7
)

2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
1
6
8

1
6
8

(1
5
)

(1
5
)

(1
5
)

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

N
e
il
 B

a
rt

le
tt

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,6

9
6

2
7
,6

3
2

1
3
,8

1
6

1
4
,4

2
5

6
0
9

2
7
,4

5
5

2
8
,4

8
1

8
4
9

3

In
c
o
m

e
(1

7
,1

3
8
)

(1
7
,4

4
0
)

(8
,7

2
0
)

(5
,4

3
4
)

3
,2

8
6

(1
6
,7

3
9
)

(1
7
,8

2
7
)

(3
8
7
)

2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
,5

5
8

1
0
,1

9
2

5
,0

9
6

8
,9

9
1

3
,8

9
5

1
0
,7

1
6

1
0
,6

5
4

4
6
2

5
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
K

a
te

 B
in

g
h

a
m

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
,5

9
4

1
7
,5

9
4

8
,7

9
7

8
,6

8
2

(1
1
5
)

1
7
,4

4
7

1
7
,4

5
7

(1
3
7
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

7
,5

9
4
)

(1
7
,5

9
4
)

(8
,7

9
7
)

(3
,7

8
7
)

5
,0

1
0

(1
7
,4

4
7
)

(1
7
,4

5
6
)

1
3
8

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
4
,8

9
5

4
,8

9
5

0
1

1
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

V
a
ri

o
u
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

V
a
ri

o
u
s

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

1
9
.1

0
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
h
a
li
d
a
 K

h
a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

2
0
.0

6
.2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
,5

9
4

1
7
,5

9
4

8
,7

9
7

8
,6

8
2

(1
1
5
)

1
7
,4

4
7

1
7
,4

5
7

(1
3
7
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

7
,5

9
4
)

(1
7
,5

9
4
)

(8
,7

9
7
)

(3
,7

8
7
)

5
,0

1
0

(1
7
,4

4
7
)

(1
7
,4

5
6
)

1
3
8

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
4
,8

9
5

4
,8

9
5

0
1

1
#
D

IV
/0

!
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
S

te
v
e
 L

id
d

ic
o

tt

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4
4
,9

3
8

1
4
4
,4

1
5

7
2
,2

0
8

5
7
,1

7
6

(1
5
,0

3
2
)

1
4
5
,1

3
2

1
4
5
,9

0
9

1
,4

9
4

1

In
c
o
m

e
(6

1
,4

6
0
)

(6
1
,5

7
7
)

(3
0
,7

8
9
)

(1
3
,7

1
9
)

1
7
,0

7
0

(6
2
,2

1
1
)

(6
3
,5

8
9
)

(2
,0

1
2
)

3

8
3
,4

7
8

8
2
,8

3
8

4
1
,4

1
9

4
3
,4

5
7

2
,0

3
8

8
2
,9

2
1

8
2
,3

2
0

(5
1
8
)

(1
)

D
ir

e
c
to

r:
Is

o
b

e
l 
C

a
tt

e
rm

o
le

2
2
2

2
2
2

1
1
1

4
3

(6
8
)

2
2
2

2
2
2

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

  
H

O
L

D
IN

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S

T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r'
s
 B

u
rs

a
ry

, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

's
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
b
a
la

n
c
in

g
.

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

G
9
1
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts

G
9
5
  
C

C
N

 P
o

o
le

d
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

T
h
e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
li
e
f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 t
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
(c

c
 8

9
1
0
4
);

 8
 

p
o
s
ts

 d
e
le

te
d
 w

e
f 
3
1
 M

a
y
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
 £

3
1
k
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 H

8
2
.

H
8
7
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 &
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 
b
u
lk

 o
f 
fe

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 

e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

la
im

e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 2

n
d
 a

n
d
 3

rd
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
g
 i
n
 

in
c
o
m

e
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

G
8
7
  
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
8
2
  
H

o
ld

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

ft
e
r 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
, 
s
o
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 a

n
 i
n
-y

e
a
r 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

F
o
re

c
a
s
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 £

3
1
k
 f
o
r 

h
o
ld

in
g
 a

/c
 d

e
fi
c
it
s
, 
£
2
1
0
k
 f
o
r 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 o

ff
s
e
t 
o
f 
£
7
9
k
 f
o
r 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 d

a
te

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 w

a
it
in

g
 f
o
r 

re
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
.

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
3
2

Page 255



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,6

1
7

3
,8

9
0

1
,9

6
1

1
,8

3
6

(1
2
5
)

3
,8

9
0

3
,8

9
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
1
7
)

(3
,6

1
5
)

(1
,8

0
7
)

(1
,7

5
8
)

4
9

(3
,6

1
5
)

(3
,6

1
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
2
7
5

1
5
4

7
8

(7
6
)

2
7
5

2
7
5

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

R
o
b
in

 B
e
a
tt
ie

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
2
5

2
6
5

2
5
1

1
7
5

(7
6
)

2
6
5

2
6
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(4
0
)

(4
0
)

(4
5
)

(5
)

(4
0
)

(4
0
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
2
5

2
2
5

2
1
1

1
3
0

(8
1
)

2
2
5

2
2
5

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

R
o
b
in

 B
e
a
tt
ie

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 T

o
ta

l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

4
2

4
,1

5
5

2
,2

1
2

2
,0

1
1

(2
0
1
)

4
,1

5
5

4
,1

5
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
1
7
)

(3
,6

5
5
)

(1
,8

4
7
)

(1
,8

0
3
)

4
4

(3
,6

5
5
)

(3
,6

5
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
2
5

5
0
0

3
6
5

2
0
8

(1
5
7
)

5
0
0

5
0
0

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

R
o

b
in

 B
e
a
tt

ie

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

 
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
1
9

7
1
8

3
5
9

3
3
8

(2
1
)

7
1
8

7
1
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

2
8
)

(7
1
8
)

(3
5
)

0
3
5

(7
1
8
)

(7
1
8
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(9
)

0
3
2
4

3
3
8

1
4

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
,1

3
4

1
1
,3

0
6

3
,3

5
0

2
,8

6
8

(4
8
2
)

1
1
,3

0
6

1
1
,3

0
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,6
0
6
)

(4
,6

1
6
)

(1
,3

3
9
)

(1
,0

1
7
)

3
2
2

(4
,6

1
6
)

(4
,6

1
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
,5

2
8

6
,6

9
0

2
,0

1
1

1
,8

5
1

(1
6
0
)

6
,6

9
0

6
,6

9
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
C

o
o
p
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
,6

3
3

3
4
,5

4
6

1
2
,1

2
5

1
2
,4

8
7

3
6
2

3
3
,2

4
6

3
4
,5

4
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,1
0
3
)

(7
,1

0
3
)

(1
,8

8
7
)

(1
,2

5
5
)

6
3
2

(7
,1

0
3
)

(7
,1

0
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
4
,5

3
0

2
7
,4

4
3

1
0
,2

3
8

1
1
,2

3
2

9
9
4

2
6
,1

4
3

2
7
,4

4
3

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
im

o
n
 B

a
x
te

r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,9

6
8

8
,5

6
4

4
,0

9
6

4
,0

5
5

(4
1
)

8
,5

6
4

8
,5

6
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

(1
1
)

(1
1
)

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,9

6
8

8
,5

6
4

4
,0

9
6

4
,0

4
4

(5
2
)

8
,5

6
4

8
,5

6
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
 C

h
il
to

n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,8

5
6

7
,7

2
8

3
,6

1
7

3
,6

9
8

8
1

7
,7

2
8

7
,7

2
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,8
5
6
)

(7
,7

2
8
)

(7
,6

5
4
)

(7
,5

4
7
)

1
0
7

(7
,7

2
8
)

(7
,7

2
8
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

(4
,0

3
7
)

(3
,8

4
9
)

1
8
8

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
o
h
n
 C

h
il
to

n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9
,3

1
0

6
2
,8

6
2

2
3
,5

4
7

2
3
,4

4
6

(1
0
1
)

6
1
,5

6
2

6
2
,8

6
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
,2

9
3
)

(2
0
,1

6
5
)

(1
0
,9

1
5
)

(9
,8

3
0
)

1
,0

8
5

(2
0
,1

6
5
)

(2
0
,1

6
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
9
,0

1
7

4
2
,6

9
7

1
2
,6

3
2

1
3
,6

1
6

9
8
4

4
1
,3

9
7

4
2
,6

9
7

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

<
2
%

 G
re

e
n

2
%

 -
 5

%
 A

m
b
e
r

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
0
1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

E
0
2
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s

E
1
2
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 l
a
rg

e
 v

a
lu

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

E
1
0
 P

u
b

li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 M
&

A
 

E
1
5
 C

le
a
n

 &
 G

re
e
n

E
2
3
 C

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s

E
2
4
 P

a
rk

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
-

im
b
u
rs

e
d
 f
ro

m
 L

O
C

O
G

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
£
4
5
8
k
 o

n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
o
n
-s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
fr

o
m

 e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 s

e
t 
a
s
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
.

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 r

a
is

in
g
 h

ig
h
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 T
o

ta
l

2
0
 o

f 
3
2

Page 256



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
0
1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
1

1
7
1

8
5

7
2

(1
3
)

1
7
1

1
7
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
5
)

(1
5
5
)

(7
8
)

(3
9
)

3
9

(1
5
5
)

(1
5
5
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(4
)

1
6

7
3
3

2
6

1
6

1
6

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

2
5

2
,5

8
8

5
2
0

4
3
0

(9
0
)

2
,5

8
8

2
,5

8
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

2
1
)

(3
9
3
)

(1
2
7
)

(1
3
8
)

(1
1
)

(3
9
3
)

(3
9
3
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

0
4

2
,1

9
5

3
9
3

2
9
2

(1
0
1
)

2
,1

9
5

2
,1

9
5

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

E
m

il
y
 F

ie
ra

n
-R

e
e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

3
4

2
,3

3
5

1
,1

4
4

1
,2

0
3

5
9

2
,3

3
6

2
,3

3
5

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

9
6
)

(1
7
6
)

(7
5
)

(1
1
8
)

(4
3
)

(1
7
6
)

(1
7
6
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

3
8

2
,1

5
9

1
,0

6
9

1
,0

8
5

1
6

2
,1

6
0

2
,1

5
9

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

G
a
v
in

 D
o
o
le

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,7

3
2

5
,7

0
4

2
,6

3
5

2
,4

0
9

(2
2
6
)

5
,7

0
4

5
,7

0
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,1
6
1
)

(4
,1

6
1
)

(2
,7

9
6
)

(3
,1

0
9
)

(3
1
3
)

(4
,1

6
1
)

(4
,1

6
1
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

7
1

1
,5

4
3

(1
6
1
)

(7
0
0
)

(5
3
9
)

1
,5

4
3

1
,5

4
3

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

R
a
c
h
a
e
l 
S

a
d
e
g
h

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,3

3
7

4
,6

3
5

2
,4

9
9

2
,3

6
1

(1
3
8
)

4
,6

3
5

4
,6

3
5

0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,3
4
5
)

(1
,6

7
4
)

(1
,0

1
9
)

(1
,1

2
3
)

(1
0
4
)

(1
,6

7
4
)

(1
,6

7
4
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

9
2

2
,9

6
1

1
,4

8
0

1
,2

3
8

(2
4
2
)

2
,9

6
1

2
,9

6
1

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

C
o
ll
in

 P
e
rr

in
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

2
1

4
,2

0
3

1
,9

6
8

1
,9

9
5

2
7

4
,2

0
3

4
,2

0
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

2
2
)

(9
8
6
)

(3
5
9
)

(3
6
9
)

(1
0
)

(9
8
6
)

(9
8
6
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,2

9
9

3
,2

1
7

1
,6

0
9

1
,6

2
6

1
7

3
,2

1
7

3
,2

1
7

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

A
n
d
re

w
 W

e
a
v
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
8
,8

3
9

4
,4

2
0

3
,3

0
7

(1
,1

1
3
)

8
,9

4
7

8
,8

3
9

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(3
,2

9
6
)

(1
,6

4
8
)

(2
7
8
)

1
,3

7
0

(3
,4

0
4
)

(3
,2

9
6
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
5
,5

4
3

2
,7

7
2

3
,0

2
9

2
5
7

5
,5

4
3

5
,5

4
3

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

D
in

a
r 

H
o
s
s
a
in

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
,3

0
0

2
8
,4

7
5

1
3
,2

7
1

1
1
,7

7
7

(1
,4

9
4
)

2
8
,5

8
4

2
8
,4

7
5

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,1
0
0
)

(1
0
,8

4
1
)

(6
,1

0
2
)

(5
,1

7
4
)

9
2
8

(1
0
,9

4
9
)

(1
0
,8

4
1
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,2

0
0

1
7
,6

3
4

7
,1

6
9

6
,6

0
3

(5
6
6
)

1
7
,6

3
5

1
7
,6

3
4

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
4

1
2
9

6
4

1
0
5

4
1

1
2
9

1
2
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

3
4
)

(1
2
9
)

(6
4
)

(2
7
)

3
7

(1
2
9
)

(1
2
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
7
8

7
8

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,4

0
1

8
,1

6
7

3
,6

5
9

3
,7

2
7

6
8

8
,1

6
7

8
,1

6
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,2
3
3
)

(1
,2

3
3
)

(6
0
4
)

(3
2
2
)

2
8
2

(1
,2

3
3
)

(1
,2

3
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,1

6
8

6
,9

3
4

3
,0

5
5

3
,4

0
5

3
5
0

6
,9

3
4

6
,9

3
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
u
d
it
h
 S

t 
J
o
h
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
4
0
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

E
4
1
 I
d

e
a
 S

to
re

s

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

E
8
0
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

E
8
1
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
D

V
 &

 H
C

In
 y

e
a
r 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

E
8
6
  
E

n
v
 H

e
a
lt

h
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
8
7
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

In
 y

e
a
r 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

E
8
5
  
E

n
v
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
 y

e
a
r 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

E
8
3
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
&

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 T

o
ta

l

E
8
4
 D

ru
g

s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a
m

2
1
 o

f 
3
2

Page 257



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
0
1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

9
2

4
,0

4
4

1
,4

1
0

1
,2

4
5

(1
6
5
)

4
,0

4
4

4
,0

4
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

3
8
)

(3
7
9
)

(6
4
)

1
2
1

1
8
5

(3
7
9
)

(3
7
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,5

5
4

3
,6

6
5

1
,3

4
6

1
,3

6
6

2
0

3
,6

6
5

3
,6

6
5

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

L
is

a
 P

o
tt
in

g
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

H
ig

h
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

5
3

3
,2

5
3

1
,5

5
1

1
,6

9
6

1
4
5

3
,2

5
3

3
,2

5
3

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

2
1
)

(2
2
1
)

(1
0
4
)

(1
3
3
)

(2
9
)

(2
2
1
)

(2
2
1
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

3
2

3
,0

3
2

1
,4

4
7

1
,5

6
3

1
1
6

3
,0

3
2

3
,0

3
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
R

o
w

a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

6
1

2
,3

6
8

1
,3

3
4

1
,3

8
2

4
8

2
,3

6
8

2
,3

6
8

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

8
4
)

(9
8
4
)

(5
8
9
)

(1
,0

1
7
)

(4
2
8
)

(9
8
4
)

(9
8
4
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

7
7

1
,3

8
4

7
4
5

3
6
5

(3
8
0
)

1
,3

8
4

1
,3

8
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

S
te

v
e
 M

u
rr

a
y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
6
3

7
5
9

3
6
3

3
5
1

(1
2
)

7
5
9

7
5
9

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

6
3
)

(7
6
3
)

(3
8
2
)

(3
7
1
)

1
1

(7
6
3
)

(7
6
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(4

)
(1

9
)

(2
0
)

(1
)

(4
)

(4
)

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
R

o
w

a
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,2

1
9

5
,3

1
7

2
,1

6
6

1
,9

6
3

(2
0
3
)

5
,3

1
7

5
,3

1
7

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,5
5
3
)

(3
,5

5
3
)

(1
1
9
)

(9
8
)

2
1

(3
,5

5
3
)

(3
,5

5
3
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

6
6

1
,7

6
4

2
,0

4
7

1
,8

6
5

(1
8
2
)

1
,7

6
4

1
,7

6
4

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
u
d
it
h
 S

t 
J
o
h
n

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
1
,0

9
3

5
4
6

4
2
3

(1
2
3
)

1
,0

9
2

1
,0

9
3

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

(3
0
6
)

(1
5
3
)

(2
3
5
)

(8
2
)

(3
0
6
)

(3
0
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
7
8
7

3
9
3

1
8
8

(2
0
5
)

7
8
6

7
8
7

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

J
a
m

a
l 
U

d
d
in

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
3
,8

2
3

2
5
,1

3
0

1
1
,0

9
3

1
0
,8

9
2

(2
0
1
)

2
5
,1

2
9

2
5
,1

3
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,2
2
6
)

(7
,5

6
8
)

(2
,0

7
9
)

(2
,0

8
2
)

(3
)

(7
,5

6
8
)

(7
,5

6
8
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
,5

9
7

1
7
,5

6
2

9
,0

1
4

8
,8

1
0

(2
0
4
)

1
7
,5

6
1

1
7
,5

6
2

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
H

e
a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi

e
ld

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
0
4

4
0
4

2
0
2

1
1
4

(8
8
)

4
0
4

4
0
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

(9
)

(9
)

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
0
4

4
0
4

2
0
2

1
0
5

(9
7
)

4
0
4

4
0
4

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a
in

S
e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 T
o

ta
l

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m
D

a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
2
2

9
2
2

5
1
8

7
8
9

2
7
1

1
,4

2
2

1
,4

2
2

5
0
0

5
4

In
c
o
m

e
(9

2
2
)

(9
2
2
)

(3
8
4
)

(7
8
6
)

(4
0
2
)

(1
,4

2
2
)

(1
,4

2
2
)

(5
0
0
)

5
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

1
3
4

3
(1

3
1
)

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
C

o
o
p
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,9

3
7

4
,9

3
7

2
,4

2
9

2
,1

4
7

(2
8
2
)

5
,1

3
7

5
,1

3
7

2
0
0

4

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,9
3
7
)

(4
,9

3
7
)

(2
,1

0
1
)

(2
,0

4
4
)

5
7

(5
,1

3
7
)

(5
,1

3
7
)

(2
0
0
)

4
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

3
2
8

1
0
3

(2
2
5
)

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
C

o
o
p
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
5
6

4
5
6

2
2
8

1
9
7

(3
1
)

4
5
6

4
5
6

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
6
)

(4
5
6
)

(1
9
4
)

(1
5
9
)

3
5

(4
5
6
)

(4
5
6
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

3
4

3
8

4
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

M
a
rg

a
re

t 
C

o
o
p
e
r

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

L
o
w

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

o
ta

l

E
4
5
 M

il
e
 E

n
d

 P
a
rk

E
4
7
 L

if
e
lo

n
g

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
£
1
1
5
k
 o

n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
 C

C
T

V
 i
n
 

V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
rk

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
fo

r 
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 s

e
t 
a
s
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
.

E
3
1
 P

a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
. 
O

u
t-

tu
rn

 

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

E
7
1
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

E
3
0
 F

le
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
V

a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

E
4
3
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
s

E
4
8
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

E
4
2
 S

p
o

rt
s
 &

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
 

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
/b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

fi
li
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

O
u
t-

tu
rn

 v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

E
3
2
 D

S
O

 V
e
h

ic
le

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

E
4
4
 A

rt
s
 &

 E
v
e
n

ts

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
/p

ro
fi
li
n
g
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e

2
2
 o

f 
3
2

Page 258



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
0
1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
t 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

1
4

2
,3

1
4

1
,1

5
7

1
,0

4
6

(1
1
1
)

2
,3

1
4

2
,3

1
4

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,3
1
4
)

(2
,3

1
4
)

(1
,1

5
7
)

(1
,3

1
2
)

(1
5
5
)

(2
,3

1
4
)

(2
,3

1
4
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
(2

6
6
)

(2
6
6
)

0
0

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

G
a
v
in

 D
o
o
le

y

B
u
d
g
e
t 
R

is
k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

D
a
te

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
:

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

4
4
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
5
,3

0
8

1
2
9
,6

5
5

5
4
,6

5
7

5
2
,4

1
9

(2
,2

3
8
)

1
2
9
,1

6
3

1
3
0
,3

5
5

7
0
0

1

In
c
o
m

e
(4

6
,8

6
5
)

(5
0
,8

5
8
)

(2
4
,7

7
9
)

(2
3
,1

9
9
)

1
,5

8
0

(5
1
,6

6
6
)

(5
1
,5

5
8
)

(7
0
0
)

1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
8
,4

4
3

7
8
,7

9
7

2
9
,8

7
8

2
9
,2

2
0

(6
5
8
)

7
7
,4

9
7

7
8
,7

9
7

0
0

D
ir

e
c
to

r:
S

te
p

h
e
n

 H
a
ls

e
y

4
2
1
,2

5
5

3
3
8
,6

1
6

(8
2
,6

3
9
)

3
2
0

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

E
8
2
 S

tr
e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
V

a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 p

ro
fi
li
n
g
 o

f 
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 r

a
te

s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
p
p
li
e
d

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im

in
g
 o

f 
ra

is
in

g
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

2
3
 o

f 
3
2

Page 259



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

P
e
ri

o
d

6

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 

A
m

b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
7
4

5
3
1

2
6
6

3
0
5

4
0

5
3
1

5
3
1

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
7
)

(3
9
8
)

(1
9
9
)

(7
5
)

1
2
4

(3
9
8
)

(3
9
8
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
2
7

1
3
3

6
7

2
3
0

1
6
4

1
3
3

1
3
3

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

4
8

1
,8

3
8

9
1
9

8
2
2

(9
7
)

1
,7

6
4

1
,8

3
8

0
0

4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,9
6
7
)

(1
,9

6
7
)

(9
8
4
)

(9
0
2
)

8
2

(2
,1

1
7
)

(1
,9

6
7
)

0
0

(7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
1
9
)

(1
2
9
)

(6
5
)

(8
0
)

(1
6
)

(3
5
3
)

(1
2
9
)

0
0

(6
3
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

6
2

5
3
1

3
0
4

(2
2
7
)

9
9
0

1
,0

6
2

0
0

7

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,0
0
0
)

(1
,0

7
3
)

(5
3
7
)

(3
0
8
)

2
2
9

(9
9
0
)

(1
,0

7
3
)

0
0

8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

1
)

(6
)

(4
)

2
0

(1
1
)

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
5

8
6
9

4
3
5

2
3
1

(2
0
4
)

8
2
6

8
6
9

0
0

5

In
c
o
m

e
(2

8
7
)

(8
1
7
)

(4
0
9
)

(2
9
4
)

1
1
5

(8
1
7
)

(8
1
7
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
8

5
2

2
6

(6
3
)

(8
9
)

9
5
2

0
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
1
7
9

1
7
9

4
2

0
0

0
(1

0
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

(6
9
)

(6
9
)

(4
2
)

0
0

0
(1

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
1
1
0

1
1
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

9
5

2
,0

7
7

1
,0

3
9

6
6
7

(3
7
2
)

1
,7

9
5

2
,0

7
7

0
0

1
6

In
c
o
m

e
(9

0
)

(3
6
6
)

(1
8
3
)

0
1
8
3

(9
0
)

(3
6
6
)

0
0

3
0
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,7

0
5

1
,7

1
1

8
5
6

6
6
7

(1
8
9
)

1
,7

0
5

1
,7

1
1

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
1

2
6
1

1
3
1

1
3
2

2
2
6
1

2
6
1

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

8
)

(4
8
)

(2
4
)

0
2
4

(4
8
)

(4
8
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
3

2
1
3

1
0
7

1
3
2

2
6

2
1
3

2
1
3

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
9
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(4

3
0
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,4

7
5

6
,6

3
8

3
,3

1
9

2
,6

4
0

(6
7
9
)

6
,2

0
9

6
,6

3
8

0
0

7

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,1
6
9
)

(4
,6

6
9
)

(2
,3

3
5
)

(1
,6

4
8
)

6
8
7

(4
,5

0
2
)

(4
,6

7
0
)

(1
)

0
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

0
6

1
,9

6
9

9
8
5

9
9
2

8
1
,7

0
7

1
,9

6
8

(1
)

(0
)

1
5

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
O

w
e
n

 W
h

a
ll

e
y

J
4
6
 C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
, 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

J
4
4
  

A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

J
4
5
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 &
 I

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

O
n
e
 o

ff
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 -
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 s

1
0
6

K
9
9
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t
U

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

.

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
s
: 

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 -
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

e
ry

 c
lo

s
e
ly

, 
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

J
4
7
 P

B
C

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

K
9
8
 L

o
c
a
l 

L
a
n

d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
b
u
d
g

e
t 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 J
4
4

A
n
it
ic

p
a
te

d
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fe

e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 ,

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

J
0
4
 B

C
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

J
0
6
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
is

io
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 

to
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

P
a
g

e
 2

4
 o

f 
3
2

Page 260



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

J
0
4
 B

C
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5

2
5

1
3

6
4

5
2

1
1
0

2
5

0
0

(7
7
)

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

(1
0
0
)

0
0

0
(1

0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

2
5

1
3

6
4

5
2

1
0

2
5

0
0

1
5
0

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

5
8

2
,1

5
8

1
,0

7
9

1
,2

4
8

1
6
9

2
,1

5
8

2
,1

5
8

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(5

5
9
)

(5
5
9
)

(2
8
0
)

(1
7
3
)

1
0
7

(5
5
9
)

(5
5
9
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

9
9

1
,5

9
9

8
0
0

1
,0

7
5

2
7
6

1
,5

9
9

1
,5

9
9

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

8
3

2
,1

8
3

1
,0

9
2

1
,3

1
2

2
2
1

2
,2

6
8

2
,1

8
3

0
0

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

5
9
)

(5
5
9
)

(2
8
0
)

(1
7
3
)

1
0
7

(6
5
9
)

(5
5
9
)

0
0

(1
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

2
4

1
,6

2
4

8
1
2

1
,1

3
9

3
2
7

1
,6

0
9

1
,6

2
4

0
0

1
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

:
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,4

2
5

1
,8

5
5

9
2
8

2
,8

8
6

1
,9

5
9

1
,4

7
2

1
,8

5
5

0
0

2
6

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
)

(2
0
)

(1
0
)

(3
7
)

(2
7
)

(2
0
)

(2
0
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

0
5

1
,8

3
5

9
1
8

2
,8

4
9

1
,9

3
2

1
,4

5
2

1
,8

3
5

0
0

2
6

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

2
4

1
,6

9
2

8
4
6

7
5
0

(9
6
)

1
,7

5
0

1
,6

9
2

0
0

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e

(6
4
3
)

(6
4
3
)

(3
2
2
)

(1
3
5
)

1
8
7

(7
1
1
)

(6
4
3
)

0
0

(1
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

8
1

1
,0

4
9

5
2
5

6
1
5

9
1

1
,0

3
9

1
,0

4
9

0
0

1
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
7
2

6
7
2

3
3
6

1
4
8

(1
8
8
)

6
0
0

6
7
2

0
0

1
2

In
c
o
m

e
(8

7
)

(8
7
)

(4
4
)

(9
)

3
5

(4
9
)

(8
7
)

0
0

7
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
8
5

5
8
5

2
9
3

1
3
9

(1
5
4
)

5
5
1

5
8
5

0
0

6
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,5

2
8

7
,5

0
5

3
,7

5
3

3
,7

0
7

(4
6
)

7
,5

8
0

7
,5

0
5

0
0

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,7
3
6
)

(1
,7

3
7
)

(8
6
9
)

(7
0
3
)

1
6
6

(1
,8

0
6
)

(1
,7

3
7
)

0
0

(4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,7

9
2

5
,7

6
8

2
,8

8
4

3
,0

0
4

1
2
0

5
,7

7
4

5
,7

6
8

0
0

(0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

  
J
1
4
  

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-a

llo
c
a
te

d

R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 H

R
A

 

  
J
2
0
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y

F
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 N

e
w

 H
o
m

e
 B

o
n
u
s
 £

4
.3

m
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
to

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

to
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

J
0
8
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 

F
u

n
d

in
g

O
c
e
a
n
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

- 
c
o
s
ts

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 r

e
: 

O
c
e
a
n
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

J
1
2
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

R
e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 -
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 H

R
A

 a
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 d

ra
w

d
o
w

n
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
p
e
n
d
, 

R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
fo

r 
o
n
e
 o

ff
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

  
J
1
6
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

u
ild

in
g

s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 d

ra
w

d
o
w

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 w

o
rk

s
 

  
J
1
8
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
P

ro
je

c
t 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 l
e
g

a
c
y
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
d

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

P
a
g

e
 2

5
 o

f 
3
2

Page 261



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

J
0
4
 B

C
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
6
8

3
6
8

1
8
4

2
9
2

1
0
8

4
6
0

3
6
8

0
0

(2
0
)

In
c
o
m

e

(4
2
0
)

(4
2
0
)

(2
1
0
)

(1
4
)

1
9
6

(4
5
9
)

(4
2
0
)

0
0

(8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(5
2
)

(5
2
)

(2
6
)

2
7
8

3
0
4

1
(5

2
)

0
0

(5
,3

0
0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

2
8

2
,2

1
9

1
,1

1
0

9
8
9

(1
2
1
)

2
,3

3
4

2
,2

1
9

0
0

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
4
5
)

(1
,1

4
5
)

(5
7
3
)

(1
2
7
)

4
4
6

(1
,2

6
3
)

(1
,1

4
5
)

0
0

(9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
8
3

1
,0

7
4

5
3
7

8
6
2

3
2
5

1
,0

7
1

1
,0

7
4

0
0

0
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

1
0

2
,5

6
6

1
,2

8
3

9
3
8

(3
4
5
)

2
,6

1
0

2
,5

6
6

0
0

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,4
8
0
)

(1
,4

8
0
)

(7
4
0
)

(5
5
2
)

1
8
8

(1
,4

8
0
)

(1
,4

8
0
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

3
0

1
,0

8
6

5
4
3

3
8
6

(1
5
7
)

1
,1

3
0

1
,0

8
6

0
0

(4
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

C
o
lin

 C
o
rm

a
c
k

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

5
5

1
,1

5
5

5
7
8

3
9
4

(1
8
4
)

1
,3

1
0

1
,1

5
5

0
0

(1
2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(9

4
0
)

(9
4
0
)

(4
7
0
)

(4
7
0
)

0
(1

,0
9
4
)

(9
4
0
)

0
0

(1
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
5

2
1
5

1
0
8

(7
6
)

(1
8
4
)

2
1
6

2
1
5

0
0

(0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e
d
iu

m

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
0
,1

3
6

2
0
,0

3
3

1
0
,0

1
7

8
,5

1
7

(1
,5

0
0
)

2
0
,3

5
0

2
0
,0

3
3

0
0

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
,2

8
9
)

(1
8
,2

8
9
)

(9
,1

4
5
)

(9
,4

2
2
)

(2
7
8
)

(1
8
,6

0
0
)

(1
8
,2

8
9
)

0
0

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

4
7

1
,7

4
4

8
7
2

(9
0
5
)

(1
,7

7
7
)

1
,7

5
0

1
,7

4
4

0
0

(0
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o
w

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
7
1

2
8
3

1
4
2

1
1
1

(3
1
)

3
0
0

2
8
3

0
0

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
9
)

(4
5
9
)

(2
3
0
)

(1
6
2
)

6
8

(3
0
8
)

(4
5
9
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(8
8
)

(1
7
6
)

(8
8
)

(5
1
)

3
7

(8
)

(1
7
6
)

0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
,2

7
4

3
1
,2

7
4

1
5
,6

3
7

1
2
,7

6
2

(2
,8

7
5
)

3
1
,5

5
3

3
1
,2

7
4

0
0

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

0
,1

2
1
)

(3
0
,1

2
1
)

(1
5
,0

6
1
)

(1
2
,7

8
8
)

2
,2

7
3

(3
0
,4

0
0
)

(3
0
,1

2
1
)

0
0

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

5
3

1
,1

5
3

5
7
7

(2
6
)

(6
0
3
)

1
,1

5
3

1
,1

5
3

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
.C

o
rm

a
c
k

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
8
,0

4
9

7
8
,4

4
3

3
9
,2

2
2

3
5
,4

4
6

(3
,7

7
6
)

7
8
,7

9
6

7
8
,4

4
3

0
0

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

0
,0

6
8
)

(6
0
,5

6
9
)

(3
0
,2

8
5
)

(2
6
,2

4
0
)

4
,0

4
5

(6
1
,3

5
1
)

(6
0
,5

6
9
)

(1
)

0
(1

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
,9

8
1

1
7
,8

7
4

8
,9

3
7

9
,2

0
6

2
6
9

1
7
,4

4
5

1
7
,8

7
4

(1
)

(0
)

2
D

ir
e
c
to

r:
J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

  
J
3
4
 D

e
p

o
ts

J
4
0
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
B

u
d

g
e
t 

R
is

k
: 

 P
re

s
s
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ri
s
e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 B

a
d
 D

e
b
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 l
o
w

e
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

re
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 t

h
a
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 b
u
d
g

e
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 a

ri
s
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

W
P

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 ‘
A

u
to

m
a
te

d
 T

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 t

o
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 S
y
s
te

m
’ 
(A

T
L
A

S
 I

I)
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 c

lie
n
t 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 i
n
 r

e
a
l 
ti
m

e
.

  
J
3
2
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 w

ill
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
d
 ,

 e
.g

.,
 

re
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 N

N
D

R
 &

 e
n
e
rg

y
, 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

  
J
2
4
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

re
la

te
d
 c

o
s
ts

 -
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
, 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

  
J
2
6
 L

e
tt

in
g

s
D

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 

  
J
3
0
 B

S
F

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 -
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 B

S
F

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
- 

th
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 

  
J
2
2
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
B

u
d

g
e
t 

R
is

k
s
: 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 

p
o
rt

fo
lio

 –
 t

h
e
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

to
 e

x
p
lo

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
ro

je
c
t 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
.

P
a
g

e
 2

6
 o

f 
3
2

Page 262



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 

to
 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s
 &

 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

J
0
4
 B

C
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

 T
O

/F
R

O
M

 O
T

H
E

R
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

8
2

2
,3

9
3

1
,1

9
7

8
7
0

(3
2
7
)

2
,5

1
6

2
,3

9
3

0
0

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

(2
5
)

(2
0
)

5
0

(5
0
)

0
0

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

3
2

2
,3

4
3

1
,1

7
2

8
5
0

(3
2
2
)

2
,5

1
6

2
,3

4
3

0
0

(7
)

V
o
te

 B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r:

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
0
,3

3
1

8
0
,8

3
6

4
0
,4

1
8

3
6
,3

1
6

(4
,1

0
2
)

8
1
,3

1
2

8
0
,8

3
6

0
0

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

0
,1

1
8
)

(6
0
,6

1
9
)

(3
0
,3

1
0
)

(2
6
,2

6
0
)

4
,0

5
0

(6
1
,3

5
1
)

(6
0
,6

1
9
)

0
0

(1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
,2

1
3

2
0
,2

1
7

1
0
,1

0
9

1
0
,0

5
6

(5
3
)

1
9
,9

6
1

2
0
,2

1
7

0
0

1
D

ir
e
c
to

r:
A

m
a
n

 D
a
lv

i

3
9
5
,7

6
7

3
4
5
,6

6
7

(5
0
,1

0
0
)

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 

R
E

N
E

W
A

L

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
s
: 

T
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

re
c
a
s
t 

ri
s
k
s
 

o
f 

£
2
4
8
k
.

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

��
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�

��
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
�
��
��
	
�
�
	
�
�
��
	
�
��
	
��
��

J
4
8
  

T
h

ir
d

 S
e
c
to

r 
T

e
a
m

 -
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 

C
E

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
s
: 

T
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

th
a
t 

w
a
s
 i
n
h
e
ri
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

2
0
0
k
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

P
a
g

e
 2

7
 o

f 
3
2

Page 263



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

1
1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 

D
a

te

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 

D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

8
1

4
8

0
5

4
0

3
4

4
4

4
1

8
0

5
8

0
5

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(8
1

7
)

(8
1

7
)

(4
0

9
)

(4
7

6
)

(6
7

)
(8

1
7

)
(8

1
7

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
)

(1
2

)
(6

)
(3

2
)

(2
6

)
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
M

in
e

s
h
 J

a
n
i

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

5
7

5
5

7
5

2
8

8
2

7
0

(1
8

)
5

7
5

5
7

5
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(5
7

5
)

(5
7

5
)

(2
8

8
)

(2
7

0
)

1
8

(5
7

5
)

(5
7

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
M

in
e

s
h
 J

a
n
i

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
,3

8
9

1
,3

8
0

6
9

1
7

1
4

2
3

1
,3

8
0

1
,3

8
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,3

9
2

)
(1

,3
9

2
)

(6
9

7
)

(7
4

6
)

(4
9

)
(1

,3
9

2
)

(1
,3

9
2

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
)

(1
2

)
(6

)
(3

2
)

(2
6

)
(1

2
)

(1
2

)
0

0
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

:
M

in
e

s
h

 J
a

n
i

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

3
8

,0
5

0
3

7
,9

6
0

1
8

,9
8

0
1

6
,7

9
5

(2
,1

8
5

)
3

7
,9

6
0

3
7

,9
6

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
5

,7
0

5
)

(3
5

,7
0

5
)

(1
7

,8
5

3
)

(1
5

,6
6

7
)

2
,1

8
6

(3
5

,7
0

5
)

(3
5

,7
0

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

4
5

2
,2

5
5

1
,1

2
7

1
,1

2
8

1
2

,2
5

5
2

,2
5

5
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
R

o
g
e

r 
J
o

n
e

s

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

M
e

d
iu

m

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

9
1

0
9

0
4

4
5

2
4

6
2

1
0

9
0

4
9

0
4

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(9
1

0
)

(9
1

0
)

(4
5

5
)

(4
6

5
)

(1
0

)
(9

1
0

)
(9

1
0

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(6

)
(3

)
(3

)
0

(6
)

(6
)

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
R

o
g
e

r 
J
o

n
e

s

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

3
9

8
3

8
0

1
9

0
2

8
1

9
1

3
8

0
3

8
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
9

8
)

(3
9

8
)

(1
9

9
)

(2
8

3
)

(8
4

)
(3

9
8

)
(3

9
8

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

8
)

(9
)

(2
)

7
(1

8
)

(1
8

)
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
R

o
g
e

r 
J
o

n
e

s

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

7
,4

8
7

1
1

,2
0

3
5

,6
0

2
7

,4
8

8
1

,8
8

6
1

1
,2

0
3

1
1

,2
0

3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
,9

0
6

)
(7

,5
9

9
)

(3
,8

0
0

)
(5

,6
8

6
)

(1
,8

8
6

)
(7

,5
9

9
)

(7
,5

9
9

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
8

1
3

,6
0

4
1

,8
0

2
1

,8
0

2
0

3
,6

0
4

3
,6

0
4

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
M

a
n
jit

 S
o

ro
y
a

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

5
,3

3
9

5
,2

5
3

2
,6

2
7

2
,5

8
8

(3
9

)
5

,2
5

3
5

,2
5

3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,3

0
5

)
(2

,2
7

2
)

(1
,1

3
6

)
(1

,0
9

8
)

3
8

(2
,2

7
2

)
(2

,2
7

2
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

3
4

2
,9

8
1

1
,4

9
1

1
,4

9
0

(1
)

2
,9

8
1

2
,9

8
1

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
C

la
ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n
d

s

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

M
e

d
iu

m

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
4

9
,9

2
4

2
4

9
,9

2
4

1
2

4
,9

6
2

1
3

3
,7

8
0

8
,8

1
8

2
5

0
,9

2
4

2
5

0
,9

2
4

1
,0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
4

9
,4

2
9

)
(2

4
9

,4
2

9
)

(1
2

4
,7

1
5

)
(1

3
3

,0
3

3
)

(8
,3

1
8

)
(2

4
9

,4
2

9
)

(2
4

9
,4

2
9

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9

5
4

9
5

2
4

7
7

4
7

5
0

0
1

,4
9

5
1

,4
9

5
1

,0
0

0
2

0
2

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

te
v
e

 H
ill

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

M
e

d
iu

m

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

7
,2

5
1

7
,1

5
1

3
,5

7
6

4
,0

2
6

4
5

0
7

,1
5

1
7

,1
5

1
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
,2

1
6

)
(6

,2
1

6
)

(3
,1

0
8

)
(3

,5
5

9
)

(4
5

1
)

(6
,2

1
6

)
(6

,2
1

6
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

3
5

9
3

5
4

6
8

4
6

7
(1

)
9

3
5

9
3

5
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

te
v
e

 H
ill

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

R
3

4
  
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
T

h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
to

 d
a

te
 v

e
rs

u
s
 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
c
c
ru

a
ls

 a
n
d

 a
u
d

it
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
e

x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d

 a
t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n
d

.

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

R
4

0
  
R

is
k

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
U

D
IT

 &
 R

IS
K

R
3

6
  
C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 &
 N

N
D

R

R
4

2
  
D

e
b

to
rs

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e

R
4

4
  
C

a
s

h
ie

rs

R
4

8
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

B
u
d

g
e

t 
to

 d
a

te
 v

e
rs

u
s
 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

e
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 t
o

 b
e

  
in

c
u
rr

e
d

 a
s
 t
h
e

 I
C

T
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 

a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 r

e
p
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 A

g
ili

s
y
s
 t
h
a

t 
w

ill
 n

e
t 
th

is
 e

x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 d
o

w
n
.

R
5

0
  
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

A
c

c
e

s
s

T
h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
to

 d
a

te
 v

e
rs

u
s
 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
c
c
ru

a
ls

 a
n
d

 S
L

A
 

in
c
o

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

R
5

4
  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 n

e
t 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 o
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e

fi
ts

 -
 £

1
M

 -
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e

fi
ts

 s
u
b
s
id

y
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

s
u
b
s
id

y
 g

ra
n
t 
in

c
o

m
e

.

R
5

8
  
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

d
m

in

P
a

g
e

 2
8

 o
f 

3
2

Page 264



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 

D
a

te

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 

D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
3

4
  
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
T

h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
to

 d
a

te
 v

e
rs

u
s
 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
c
c
ru

a
ls

 a
n
d

 a
u
d

it
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

4
7

8
4

7
8

2
3

9
2

1
8

(2
1

)
4

7
8

4
7

8
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
7

8
)

(4
7

8
)

(2
3

9
)

(2
1

3
)

2
6

(4
7

8
)

(4
7

8
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
5

5
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

te
v
e

 B
u
rr

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0
5

4
0

2
7

0
2

3
1

(3
9

)
5

4
0

5
4

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
5

4
0

2
7

0
2

3
1

(3
9

)
5

4
0

5
4

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
M

a
n
jit

 S
o

ro
y
a

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

3
0

9
,8

3
7

3
1

3
,7

9
3

1
5

6
,8

9
8

1
6

5
,8

6
9

8
,9

7
1

3
1

4
,7

9
3

3
1

4
,7

9
3

1
,0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
0

2
,3

4
7

)
(3

0
3

,0
0

7
)

(1
5

1
,5

0
5

)
(1

6
0

,0
0

4
)

(8
,4

9
9

)
(3

0
3

,0
0

7
)

(3
0

3
,0

0
7

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,4

9
0

1
0

,7
8

6
5

,3
9

3
5

,8
6

5
4

7
2

1
1

,7
8

6
1

1
,7

8
6

1
,0

0
0

9
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

:
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
,0

8
1

1
,2

7
4

6
3

7
6

5
0

1
3

9
8

4
1

,2
7

4
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,0

8
1

)
(1

,0
8

1
)

(5
4

1
)

(5
5

3
)

(1
2

)
(1

,0
8

1
)

(1
,0

8
1

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
1

9
3

9
6

9
7

1
(9

7
)

1
9

3
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
H

u
g
h
 S

ta
rk

e
y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

4
4

6
4

4
6

2
2

3
2

0
7

(1
6

)
4

4
6

4
4

6
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
4

5
)

(4
4

5
)

(2
2

3
)

(2
2

6
)

(3
)

(4
4

5
)

(4
4

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1

0
(1

9
)

(1
9

)
1

1
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
H

u
g
h
 S

ta
rk

e
y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
6

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
,5

2
7

1
,7

2
0

8
6

0
8

5
7

(3
)

1
,4

3
0

1
,7

2
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

2
6

)
(1

,5
2

6
)

(7
6

4
)

(7
7

9
)

(1
5

)
(1

,5
2

6
)

(1
,5

2
6

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1

9
4

9
6

7
8

(1
8

)
(9

6
)

1
9

4
0

0
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

:
H

u
g

h
 S

h
a

rk
e

y

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
,4

3
1

2
,4

1
2

1
,2

0
6

1
,2

0
6

0
2

,4
1

2
2

,4
1

2
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,4

4
6

)
(2

,4
4

6
)

(1
,2

2
3

)
(1

,2
2

3
)

0
(2

,4
4

6
)

(2
,4

4
6

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
5

)
(3

4
)

(1
7

)
(1

7
)

0
(3

4
)

(3
4

)
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
A

la
n
 F

in
c
h

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
8

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
5

5
2

5
5

1
2

8
1

2
8

0
2

5
5

2
5

5
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

5
2

5
5

1
2

8
1

2
8

0
2

5
5

2
5

5
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
A

la
n
 F

in
c
h

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
8

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0
5

8
3

2
9

2
1

0
4

(1
8

8
)

5
8

3
5

8
3

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
(5

8
3

)
(2

9
2

)
(1

4
6

)
1

4
6

(5
8

3
)

(5
8

3
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
(4

2
)

(4
2

)
0

0
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
P

a
u
l 
T

h
o

ro
g
o

o
d

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
7

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
,6

8
6

3
,2

5
0

1
,6

2
6

1
,4

3
8

(1
8

8
)

3
,2

5
0

3
,2

5
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,4

4
6

)
(3

,0
2

9
)

(1
,5

1
5

)
(1

,3
6

9
)

1
4

6
(3

,0
2

9
)

(3
,0

2
9

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
4

0
2

2
1

1
1

1
6

9
(4

2
)

2
2

1
2

2
1

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
:

A
la

n
 f

in
c

h

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

9
6

5
4

9
2

2
4

6
2

,2
2

0
1

,9
7

4
4

9
2

4
9

2
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
(1

,9
7

4
)

(1
,9

7
4

)
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
6

5
4

9
2

2
4

6
2

4
6

0
4

9
2

4
9

2
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
E

k
b
a

l 
H

u
s
s
a

in

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
0

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

9
6

5
4

9
2

2
4

6
2

,2
2

0
1

,9
7

4
4

9
2

4
9

2
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
(1

,9
7

4
)

(1
,9

7
4

)
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
6

5
4

9
2

2
4

6
2

4
6

0
4

9
2

4
9

2
0

0
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

a
d

:
E

k
b

a
l 
H

u
s

s
a

in

R
6

0
  
R

e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s

R
7

0
  
IC

T
 C

li
e

n
t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 I
C

T

R
3

8
  
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t

R
4

6
  
P

a
y

m
e

n
ts

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

R
3

2
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a

n
c

e

R
8

2
  
N

o
n

-D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 C

o
s

ts

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
 &

 N
D

C

R
6

2
  
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

R
7

8
  
R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
J

D
E

P
a

g
e

 2
9

 o
f 

3
2

Page 265



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 

D
a

te

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 

D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
3

4
  
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
T

h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
to

 d
a

te
 v

e
rs

u
s
 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 a
c
c
ru

a
ls

 a
n
d

 a
u
d

it
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

9
6

7
1

,0
0

0
5

0
0

4
6

7
(3

3
)

1
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(9
6

8
)

(9
6

8
)

(4
8

4
)

(4
8

4
)

0
(9

6
8

)
(9

6
8

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
)

3
2

1
6

(1
7

)
(3

3
)

(1
)

3
2

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

im
o

n
 K

ilb
e

y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
,7

2
1

1
,6

7
1

8
3

6
9

3
0

9
4

1
,6

7
1

1
,6

7
1

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,7

2
3

)
(1

,4
8

9
)

(7
4

5
)

(8
0

7
)

(6
2

)
(1

,7
2

3
)

(1
,4

8
9

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
)

1
8

2
9

1
1

2
3

3
2

(2
)

1
8

2
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

im
o

n
 K

ilb
e

y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

4
,6

7
8

4
,5

7
3

2
,2

8
7

2
,4

6
1

1
7

4
4

,5
7

3
4

,5
7

3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,6

7
2

)
(4

,7
1

6
)

(2
,3

5
8

)
(2

,4
9

4
)

(1
3

6
)

(4
,6

7
2

)
(4

,7
1

6
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
(1

4
3

)
(7

1
)

(3
3

)
3

8
(9

)
(1

4
3

)
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

im
o

n
 K

ilb
e

y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
,2

6
1

1
,5

0
0

7
5

0
9

5
6

2
0

6
1

,5
0

0
1

,5
0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,2

7
4

)
(1

,0
8

2
)

(5
4

1
)

(8
1

0
)

(2
6

9
)

(1
,2

7
4

)
(1

,0
8

2
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
3

)
4

1
8

2
0

9
1

4
6

(6
3

)
2

2
6

4
1

8
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
S

im
o

n
 K

ilb
e

y

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

1
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

8
,6

2
8

8
,7

4
4

4
,3

7
3

4
,8

1
4

4
4

1
8

,7
4

4
8

,7
4

4
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(8
,6

3
7

)
(8

,2
5

5
)

(4
,1

2
8

)
(4

,5
9

5
)

(4
6

7
)

(8
,6

3
7

)
(8

,2
5

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(9
)

4
8

9
2

4
5

2
1

9
(2

6
)

4
0

6
4

8
9

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
:

S
im

o
n

 K
il
b

e
y

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

6
8

1
6

0
5

3
0

3
3

0
3

0
6

0
5

6
0

5
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
1

6
)

(6
1

6
)

(3
0

8
)

(3
0

8
)

0
(6

1
6

)
(6

1
6

)
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
5

(1
1

)
(5

)
(5

)
0

(1
1

)
(1

1
)

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

r:
J
u
n
u
 B

e
g
u
m

B
u
d

g
e

t 
R

is
k
:

L
o

w

D
a

te
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
la

s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
:

2
0

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

3
2

5
,7

1
3

3
2

9
,9

8
5

1
6

4
,9

9
7

1
7

6
,2

1
5

1
1

,2
1

8
3

3
0

,6
9

4
3

3
0

,9
8

5
1

,0
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
1

6
,9

6
4

 
-3

1
7

,8
2

5
 

-1
5

8
,9

1
7

 
(1

6
9

,7
7

5
)

(1
0

,8
5

8
)

(3
1

8
,2

0
7

)
(3

1
7

,8
2

5
)

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,7

4
9

1
2

,1
6

0
6

,0
8

0
6

,4
4

0
3

6
0

1
2

,4
8

7
1

3
,1

6
0

1
,0

0
0

8
D

ir
e

c
to

r:
C

h
ri

s
 N

a
y

lo
r

0
0

(0
)

1
0

2

R
9

0
  
H

R
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

R
9

2
  
H

R
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
c

y
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 d

u
e

 t
o

 o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
  
re

c
h
a

rg
e

s
 t
o

 A
d

u
lt
s
 f

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

e
x
p
e

n
s
e

s
.

R
9

4
  
H

R
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

R
9

6
  
P

A
S

 S
c

h
e

m
e

s
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s

ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
te

n
a

n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
)

R
8

0
  
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e

P
a

g
e

 3
0

 o
f 

3
2

Page 266



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a
te

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 

D
a
te

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

3
3
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
,8

5
5

1
2
,2

9
2

6
,1

4
6

1
0
,2

7
7

4
,1

3
1

1
4
,8

6
7

1
2
,2

9
2

0
0

In
c
o
m

e

(2
,3

9
5
)

(2
,3

9
5
)

(1
,1

9
7
)

(2
,7

0
7
)

(1
,5

1
0
)

(2
,3

9
5
)

(2
,3

9
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,4

6
0

9
,8

9
7

4
,9

4
9

7
,5

7
0

2
,6

2
1

1
2
,4

7
2

9
,8

9
7

0
0

(1
5
,4

6
1
)

(2
1
,3

5
5
)

(2
1
,0

7
8
)

0
2
1
,0

7
8

(2
0
,4

2
6
)

(2
1
,3

5
5
)

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
,0

0
1
)

(1
1
,4

5
8
)

(1
6
,1

2
9
)

7
,5

7
0

2
3
,6

9
8

(7
,9

5
4
)

(1
1
,4

5
8
)

0
0

D
ir

e
c
to

r:
C

 N
a
y
lo

r

0
0

0

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 B
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 l
in

e
 i
te

m
s

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
s
ts

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
te

n
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

)

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 m
it

ig
a
ti

n
g

 a
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

L
a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

P
a
g
e
 3

1
 o

f 
3
2

Page 267



AHWB 98,056 25,472 25,457 -15 98,056 0

CHE 8,898 2,966 2,956 -10 8,898 0

CSF 89,270 29,757 32,444 2,687 89,270 0

CLC 70,494 19,924 16,918 -3,006 70,494 0

D&R 19,957 6,652 5,473 -1,179 19,957 0

RES 11,787 3,929 3,840 -89 11,787 0

CORP -6,196 4,157 3,744 -413 -6,196 0

292,266 92,857 90,832 -2,025 292,266 0

2,025

Page 268



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 M

O
N

T
H

L
Y

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 -
 S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 

D
a

te

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 

D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 &
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

In
c
o

m
e

(6
6

,6
9

6
)

(6
6

,6
9

6
)

(3
3

,3
4

8
)

(3
2

,0
1

0
)

1
,3

3
8

(6
6

,3
0

8
)

(6
6

,3
5

5
)

3
4

1
0

0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(6
6

,6
9

6
)

(6
6

,6
9

6
)

(3
3

,3
4

8
)

(3
2

,0
1

0
)

1
,3

3
8

(6
6

,3
0

8
)

(6
6

,3
5

5
)

3
4

1
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r:
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 H
o

m
e

s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o

w

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

,8
6

1
)

(1
6

,8
6

1
)

(1
3

,4
8

0
)

(1
3

,5
5

9
)

(7
9

)
(1

7
,2

8
1

)
(1

7
,2

8
1

)
(4

2
0

)
(0

)
0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

,8
6

1
)

(1
6

,8
6

1
)

(1
3

,4
8

0
)

(1
3

,5
5

9
)

(7
9

)
(1

7
,2

8
1

)
(1

7
,2

8
1

)
(4

2
0

)
(0

)
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

In
c
o

m
e

(1
9

0
)

(1
9

0
)

0
0

0
(1

9
0

)
(1

9
0

)
0

0
0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
9

0
)

(1
9

0
)

0
0

0
(1

9
0

)
(1

9
0

)
0

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

 
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o

w

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

6
)

(1
6

6
)

0
0

0
(1

1
5

)
(1

1
5

)
5

1
(3

1
)

0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

6
)

(1
6

6
)

0
0

0
(1

1
5

)
(1

1
5

)
5

1
(3

1
)

0
V

o
te

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r:
 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o

w

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(8
3

,9
1

3
)

(8
3

,9
1

3
)

(4
6

,8
2

8
)

(4
5

,5
6

9
)

1
,2

5
9

(8
3

,8
9

4
)

(8
3

,9
4

1
)

(2
8

)
(0

)
0

N
e

t 
In

c
o

m
e

(8
3

,9
1

3
)

(8
3

,9
1

3
)

(4
6

,8
2

8
)

(4
5

,5
6

9
)

1
,2

5
9

(8
3

,8
9

4
)

(8
3

,9
4

1
)

(2
8

)
(0

)
0

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,4

1
0

2
1

,4
1

0
1

0
,6

1
7

1
1

,6
5

3
1

,0
3

6
2

1
,4

1
7

2
1

,5
6

7
1

5
7

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1

,4
1

0
2

1
,4

1
0

1
0

,6
1

7
1

1
,6

5
3

1
,0

3
6

2
1

,4
1

7
2

1
,5

6
7

1
5

7
0

0
V

o
te

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r:
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 H
o

m
e

s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

5
,2

1
5

2
5

,2
1

5
1

0
,6

9
7

1
1

,6
5

3
9

5
6

2
4

,0
0

7
2

3
,9

2
2

(1
,2

9
2

)
(4

)
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

,2
1

5
2

5
,2

1
5

1
0

,6
9

7
1

1
,6

5
3

9
5

6
2

4
,0

0
7

2
3

,9
2

2
(1

,2
9

2
)

(4
)

0
V

o
te

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r:
 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

L
o

w

0
%

0
%

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

  
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e

T
e

n
a

n
t 

&
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

T
h

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

c
tu

a
li
s
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a

li
s
e

d
; 

le
a

s
e

s
h

o
ld

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 o

ri
g

in
a

ll
y
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

0
%

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

-3
1
%

  
T

O
T

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

D
w

e
ll

in
g

 &
 N

o
n

 D
w

e
ll

in
g

 R
e

n
ts

R
IS

K
: 

O
v
e

r 
6

0
0

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 B

u
y
 a

p
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 

  
T

H
H

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 

re
n

ta
l 
in

c
o

m
e

 w
il
l 
b

e
 £

0
.3

8
m

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

R
IS

K
: 

If
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 B

u
y
 a

p
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 s
a

le
 s

ta
g

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

0
%

2
%

 t
o
 5

%
 A

m
b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

<
2
%

 G
re

e
n

2
%

 -
 5

%
 A

m
b
e
r

>
5
%

 R
e
d

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

RAG Status

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e

 R
e

c
e

iv
e

d
0
%

  
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 &

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 a
ri

s
e

s
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

th
a

t 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fe

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 a
t 

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
to

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

w
il
l 
b

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

. 
 A

n
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

h
e

a
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
e

n
a

b
le

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 t

o
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
n

 g
ra

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 -
 

th
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

a
p

it
a

l 

-4
%

Page 269



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

D
a

te

A
c

tu
a

l 
to

 

D
a

te

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 

D
a

te

P
re

v
io

u
s

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

L
a

te
s

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

(P
re

v
io

u
s

 &
 

L
a

te
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

(H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t)

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s

RAG Status

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 L

a
te

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

7
,1

0
9

1
7

,1
0

9
7

,1
3

3
6

,0
4

8
(1

,0
8

6
)

1
6

,7
8

6
1

6
,6

9
0

(4
1

9
)

(2
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

,1
0

9
1

7
,1

0
9

7
,1

3
3

6
,0

4
8

(1
,0

8
6

)
1

6
,7

8
6

1
6

,6
9

0
(4

1
9

)
(2

)
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

M
e

d
iu

m

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

0
0

9
0

0
0

0
0

9
0

0
9

0
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0

0
9

0
0

0
0

0
9

0
0

9
0

0
0

0
0

V
o

te
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r:

 
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
: 

M
e

d
iu

m

C
a

p
it

a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

0
,7

7
1

2
0

,7
7

1
0

0
0

2
2

,1
9

5
2

2
,1

9
5

1
,4

2
4

6
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0

,7
7

1
2

0
,7

7
1

0
0

0
2

2
,1

9
5

2
2

,1
9

5
1

,4
2

4
6

0
V

o
te

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r:
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
is

k
:

H
ig

h

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

5
,4

0
5

8
5

,4
0

5
2

8
,4

4
7

2
9

,3
5

4
9

0
6

8
5

,3
0

5
8

5
,2

7
4

(1
3

1
)

(0
)

0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
5

,4
0

5
8

5
,4

0
5

2
8

,4
4

7
2

9
,3

5
4

9
0

6
8

5
,3

0
5

8
5

,2
7

4
(1

3
1

)
(0

)
0

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

9
2

1
,4

9
2

(1
8

,3
8

1
)

(1
6

,2
1

5
)

2
,1

6
5

1
,4

1
0

1
,3

3
3

(1
5

9
)

(0
)

0
 

 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,4

9
2

)
(1

,4
9

2
)

0
0

0
(1

,7
5

8
)

(1
,7

5
8

)
(2

6
6

)
1

8
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
,4

9
2

)
(1

,4
9

2
)

0
0

0
(1

,7
5

8
)

(1
,7

5
8

)
(2

6
6

)
1

8
0

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(0
)

(0
)

(1
8

,3
8

1
)

(1
6

,2
1

5
)

2
,1

6
5

(3
4

8
)

(4
2

5
)

(4
2

5
)

1
8

0
D

ir
e

c
to

r:
A

m
a

n
 D

a
lv

i
T

O
T

A
L

 F
O

R
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T

1
8
%

  
T

O
T

A
L

 N
E

T

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 

n
o

n
-d

w
e

ll
in

g
s
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 o

ri
g

in
a

ll
y
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
a

s
 s

e
t 

in
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
. 

 T
h

is
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

w
il
l 
b

e
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 b

y
 a

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 (
b

e
lo

w
).

  
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

to
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
o

u
tl
a

y
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
, 

a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 '
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 &

 

T
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 w
il
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 n
o

n
-d

w
e

ll
in

g
s
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
e

 (
s
e

e
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 C

h
a

rg
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

).

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
R

e
n

t 
R

a
te

s
 &

 T
a

x
e

s

0
%

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 f
ro

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

a
d

 &
 D

o
u

b
tf

u
l 

D
e

b
ts

R
IS

K
: 

T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

tr
a

n
c
h

e
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t'
s
 W

e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s
 i
s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
t,

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 n

o
n

-d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 

0
%

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

6
%

  
T

O
T

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

It
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
w

il
l 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 b
y
 £

0
.4

m
 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
a

s
 s

e
t 

it
 w

a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

th
a

t 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 g

a
s
 &

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 p

ri
c
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

2
0

%
 a

n
d

 4
0

%
, 

w
h

e
re

a
s
 i
n

 f
a

c
t 

b
u

lk
 g

a
s
 p

ri
c
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 w
il
l 
b

e
 

o
n

ly
 1

3
%

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

, 
a

n
d

 b
u

lk
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 w

il
l 
b

e
 2

%
 

lo
w

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
il
l 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

.

Page 270



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

�
�
��

�
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	


�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	


�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�


�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
 

�
 
��
!

"
�
#
�
��
�

	


�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
	

$
%

&
$
�'
�&

%
�$

(
)

*
�+
�(
,
)

-�
+
�	
,
&
,
*

�
�'
�-

.
/

.
/

.
/

.
/

.
/

.
/

�
.
/

.
/

.
/

.
/

.
/

$
�
�0
�
��
�
1�

��
�
�
0�
��
�
�
�(
�
/
�0
��
�

�
�
2
3!
�
!

 
4
34
�
5

�
2
35
�
!

6
35
�
�

�
2
3�
6
4

'�
3 
�
2

!
�
�

�
5
32
6
!

�
�
3�
�
!

 
4
36
4
�

�
�
2
3�
5
6

'�
3�
�
5

$
�
/
/


�
��
��
�1
�7
�
��
0�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�$


0�


��

2
�
3 
2
6

 
�
3�
�
�

�
�
35
 
6

�
35
6
�

�
�
35
!
5

�
3�
�
4

�
�
�

 
3!
�
�

�
3�
�
�

!
3!
�
�

2
�
3 
5
6

�
3�
�
�

%
�
�
�
0�
�
/
�
�
��
8
��
�
�
�
#
�
0

�
!
3�
6
!

2
32
 
�

�
�
3�
�
4

�
3�
�
5

�
�
3�
�
6

�
3�
�
�

2
�

2
35
�
!

�
35
�
�

5
3 
�
!

�
!
3�
6
!

�
3�
�
�

	


�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
0�
�9
�
��
��
�
�(


�

��

�
�
!
36
4
�

�
4
�
35
�
!

2
!
3�
 
 

�
2
34
4
5

2
!
3�
 
 

�
3�
�
�

 
�
�

!
�
34
2
�

�
�
34
!
6

2
2
34
�
�

�
�
!
36
4
�

�
3�
�
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
$
�
��
9�
&
:�
�

��
�
�
;�

�
3�
�
2

�
3�
�
6

�
3�
�
6

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
6

�
3�
�
�

�
�

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
2

�
3�
�
�

�
�


0�
�1
�*
�
�
0�
�
��
�
�
�<

�
00
=
�
��
�

�
36
 
�

�
3�
!
6

�
3 
�
�

�
3�
�
!

�
3�
 
�

'�
3�
2
�

�
�

�
3�
6
�

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
6
�

�
36
 
�

�
3�
�
�

*
�
�

�
 
!
3�
�
6

�
�
3�
5
4

2
2
3 
�
�

�
�
3!
5
 

!
�
3�
 
�

'�
 
3�
4
�

�
�
�

2
4
35
�
5

5
2
3!
4
�

�
 
2
3�
4
5

�
 
!
3�
�
6

�
3�
�
�

$
�
��
�
��
��
�)
(
��
��
�
��
��
�
�9
�
��
��
�
�
/
�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
0�
�
/
�
�
�

�
�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

�
�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

'�
�
3�
�
�

�
�

�
�
3�
�
�

�
�
3�
�
�

�
�
3�
�
�

�
3�
�
�

'�
�
3�
�
�

	

�

�
�

��
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�

��

�


��
�
��

�


�

�

�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��


�

�
�
�
��

�
�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�

C
a
p

it
a
l 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 Q
2

�
��
��

�
�

�

�
�

��

�

��
�
�

�

��
�
�
�

 �
��

�
�

�

��
�
�
!�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�

Page 271



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 2
0
1
2
-1

3

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a
m

il
ie

s

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 &

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

 1
1

.7
6

4
 0

.2
7

8
 1

.1
2

6
 0

.5
1

3
 1

.0
4

8
- 

0
.0

7
8

4
6

%
 1

0
.3

6
0

 1
1

.7
5

8
- 

0
.0

0
6

B
is

h
o

p
 C

h
a

ll
o

n
e

r 
- 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 

 0
.6

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.6
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.6

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
S

u
p

p
li
e

r 
to

 r
a

is
e

 I
n

v
o

ic
e

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.6

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

B
is

h
o

p
's

 S
q

u
a

re
 0

.3
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
0

0
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r3

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

/E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 7

8
.6

7
4

 2
5

.9
5

1
 1

3
.1

9
1

 7
.9

1
1

 1
2

.8
6

7
- 

0
.3

2
4

6
0

%
 3

9
.5

3
0

 7
8

.5
1

8
- 

0
.1

5
6

S
u

re
 S

ta
rt

 3
.7

3
1

 3
.7

0
5

 0
.0

2
6

 0
.0

1
8

 0
.0

2
0

- 
0

.0
0

6
6

8
%

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 -

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 3

.7
2

5
- 

0
.0

0
6

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 1
3

.3
3

9
 1

2
.7

4
7

 0
.5

9
2

 0
.1

9
9

 0
.5

7
3

- 
0

.0
1

9
3

4
%

P
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 -

 d
e

fe
c
t/

fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g

re
e

d
-

  
  

  
  

  
 1

3
.3

6
5

 0
.0

2
6

L
u

k
in

 S
t 

- 
L

a
n

d
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 f
ro

m
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

R
a

il
 0

.7
6

8
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.7

6
8

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.7
6

8
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

li
n

k
e

d
 t

o
 B

is
h

o
p

 C
h

a
ll
o

n
e

r 
p

ro
je

c
t

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.7

6
8

-
  

  
  

  

O
s
m

a
n

i 
- 

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

 4
.5

6
6

 4
.5

5
9

 0
.0

0
7

 0
.0

2
2

 0
.0

2
2

 0
.0

1
5

3
2

8
%

£
1

5
k
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

u
n

te
r 

o
v
e

r 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
g

ra
n

t 
fr

o
m

 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
-

  
  

  
  

  
 4

.5
8

1
 0

.0
1

5
In

c
o

m
e

 r
e

c
'd

 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t

R
C

C
O

 0
.0

6
1

 0
.0

5
1

 0
.0

1
0

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
1

0
- 

0
.0

0
0

0
%

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 -

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

6
1

- 
0

.0
0

0
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
t 

o
n

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re

S
h

o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s

 0
.2

1
3

 0
.1

8
0

 0
.0

3
4

 0
.0

3
4

 0
.0

3
4

 0
.0

0
0

1
0

0
%

F
in

a
l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

1
1

/1
2

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
1

4
 0

.0
0

1

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

 B
M

X
 M

il
e

 E
n

d
 )

 0
.6

0
1

 0
.5

4
9

 0
.0

5
2

 0
.0

0
5

 0
.0

4
7

- 
0

.0
0

5
9

%
P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r3

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.6

0
1

 0
.0

0
0

£
1

0
k
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
fi
n

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t

IC
T

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A

O
th

e
r

 1
.8

8
7

 1
.8

8
7

- 
0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

0
0

0
%

-
  

  
  

  
  

 1
.8

8
7

 0
.0

0
0

C
S

F
 T

O
T

A
L

 1
1

6
.5

0
5

 4
9

.9
0

7
 1

6
.7

0
5

 8
.7

0
1

 1
6

.2
8

9
- 

0
.4

1
6

5
2

%
4

9
.8

9
0

  
  

 
1

1
6

.3
7

8
  

0
.1

2
7

- 
  

 

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

Page 272



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

L
o

c
a
li

ti
e
s
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

T
fL

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

c
y
c
li
n

g
 a

n
d

 

w
a

lk
in

g
 1

4
.1

1
5

 8
.4

1
9

 3
.5

3
8

 0
.8

6
2

 3
.5

3
4

- 
0

.0
0

4
2

4
%

 W
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
ta

k
in

g
 

in
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 e

m
b

a
rg

o
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 

 2
.1

5
7

 1
4

.1
1

1
- 

0
.0

0
5

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
a

lm
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 0
.9

4
3

 0
.9

3
3

 0
.0

1
0

 0
.0

4
5

 0
.0

0
9

- 
0

.0
0

0
4

6
9

%
M

is
c
o

d
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.9
4

2
- 

0
.0

0
1

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 3

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
.0

0
0

 0
.4

6
9

 1
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
4

7
%

 2
.0

0
0

 3
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 3

.2
5

2
 1

.3
7

3
 0

.9
0

1
 0

.2
1

7
 0

.9
0

0
- 

0
.0

0
0

2
4

%

 W
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
ta

k
in

g
 

in
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 e

m
b

a
rg

o
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 

 0
.9

7
8

 3
.2

5
2

- 
0

.0
0

0

O
P

T
E

M
S

 0
.7

9
5

 0
.0

6
0

 0
.7

3
5

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.7
4

5
 0

.0
1

0
0

%
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 R

in
g

w
a

y
 J

a
c
o

b
s
, 

o
rd

e
rs

 i
s
s
u

e
d

, 
n

o
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 y

e
t 

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.8

0
5

 0
.0

1
0

H
a

c
k
n

e
y
 w

ic
k
 &

 F
is

h
 I

s
la

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 0
.2

5
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
5

0
 0

.0
4

5
 0

.2
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

1
8

%

 W
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

w
o

rk
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
ta

k
in

g
 

in
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 e

m
b

a
rg

o
 o

n
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.2

5
0

-
  

  
  

  

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 T
o

ta
l

 2
2

.3
5

5
 1

0
.7

8
6

 6
.4

3
3

 1
.6

3
7

 6
.4

3
9

 0
.0

0
6

2
5

%
 5

.1
3

5
 2

2
.3

6
0

 0
.0

0
5

P
a

rk
s

M
il
lw

a
ll
 P

a
rk

/I
s
la

n
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

 0
.2

0
6

 0
.2

0
1

 0
.0

0
5

 0
.0

0
2

 0
.0

0
5

 0
.0

0
1

3
2

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
0

7
 0

.0
0

1

P
o

p
la

r 
P

a
rk

 0
.2

0
0

 0
.1

5
7

 0
.0

4
4

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
4

4
 0

.0
0

1
0

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
0

1
 0

.0
0

1

S
c
h

o
o

lh
o

u
s
e

 L
a

n
e

 M
u

lt
i 
U

s
e

 B
a

ll
 G

a
m

e
s
 

A
re

a
 0

.1
0

0
 0

.0
9

3
 0

.0
0

7
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

0
7

 0
.0

0
0

0
%

S
c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
0

0
 0

.0
0

0

B
e

th
n

a
l 
G

re
e

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 0
.4

7
8

 0
.4

4
8

 0
.0

3
0

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
3

0
 0

.0
0

1
0

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.4
7

9
 0

.0
0

1

V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
rk

 M
a

s
te

r 
p

la
n

 1
0

.2
9

8
 8

.9
1

6
 1

.3
8

2
 0

.5
9

1
 1

.3
8

2
-

  
  

  
  

4
3

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 1

0
.2

9
8

 0
.0

0
0

V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
rk

 -
 C

h
a

n
g

in
g

 B
lo

c
k
 E

x
te

n
s
io

n
 

&
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 0

.3
2

5
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.3

2
5

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
2

5
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

F
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 P
ID

 t
o

 b
e

 w
ri

tt
e

n
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
2

5
-

  
  

  
  

C
o

tt
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

 L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 0
.0

9
7

 0
.0

9
7

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

N
/A

C
o

m
p

le
te

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

9
7

 0
.0

0
0

P
e

n
n

y
fi
e

ld
s

 0
.0

4
6

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
4

6
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

4
6

- 
0

.0
0

0
0

%
N

e
w

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

W
o

rk
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
4

6
- 

0
.0

0
0

P
a

rk
s
 T

o
ta

l
 1

1
.7

5
0

 9
.9

1
3

 1
.8

3
8

 0
.5

9
3

 1
.8

4
0

 0
.0

0
2

3
2

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 1

1
.7

5
3

 0
.0

0
3

Page 273



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

p
ro

je
c

ts
-

  
  

  
  

B
ra

d
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 0
.2

4
5

 0
.2

4
3

 0
.0

0
2

- 
0

.0
0

3
 0

.0
0

2
- 

0
.0

0
0

-1
4

0
%

A
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
4

5
- 

0
.0

0
0

T
e

n
n

is
 c

o
u

rt
s

 0
.1

1
6

 0
.0

8
9

 0
.0

2
6

 0
.0

1
4

 0
.0

2
7

 0
.0

0
0

5
5

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
1

6
- 

0
.0

0
0

M
il
e

 E
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 -

 S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 0
.1

9
9

 0
.1

9
8

 0
.0

0
2

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
0

2
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

S
c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
9

9
 0

.0
0

0

B
a

rt
le

tt
 P

a
rk

 0
.0

3
5

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
3

5
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

3
5

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
 M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 T
fL

 s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

3
5

-
  

  
  

  

M
il
e

 E
n

d
 S

ta
d

iu
m

 T
ra

c
k
 r

e
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 0

.2
4

4
 0

.1
7

3
 0

.0
7

2
 0

.0
6

6
 0

.0
7

2
 0

.0
0

0
9

2
%

S
c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
4

4
 0

.0
0

0

P
u

b
li
c
 A

rt
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 0
.2

5
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
5

0
 0

.0
0

7
 0

.2
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

3
%

S
c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

M
il
e

 E
n

d
 P

a
rk

 C
a

p
it
a

l
 0

.1
2

1
 0

.1
1

4
 0

.0
0

7
 0

.0
2

0
 0

.0
0

7
-

  
  

  
  

2
8

1
%

R
e

v
is

e
d

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

2
1

 0
.0

0
0

B
a

n
c
ro

ft
 L

ib
ra

ry
 0

.1
4

5
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

4
5

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
4

5
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

F
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 P
ID

 t
o

 b
e

 w
ri

tt
e

n
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
4

5
-

  
  

  
  

B
a

n
c
ro

ft
 L

ib
ra

ry
 P

h
a

s
e

 2
b

 0
.5

0
0

 0
.0

3
1

 0
.4

6
9

 0
.0

3
1

 0
.4

6
9

- 
0

.0
0

0
7

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.5
0

0
 0

.0
0

0

W
a

tn
e

y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

Id
e

a
s
 S

to
re

 4
.1

5
1

 1
.3

8
6

 2
.7

6
6

 1
.1

3
0

 2
.7

6
5

- 
0

.0
0

0
4

1
%

-
  

  
  

  
  

 4
.1

5
1

- 
0

.0
0

0

C
u

lt
u

re
 -

 L
P

P
 0

.2
5

5
 0

.2
4

6
 0

.0
0

8
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

0
9

 0
.0

0
0

0
%

J
o

in
tl
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 P
h

a
s
e

 2
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
5

5
- 

0
.0

0
0

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 -
 L

P
P

 1
8

.0
6

7
 1

7
.9

7
3

 0
.0

9
5

 0
.0

4
5

 0
.0

9
5

 0
.0

0
0

4
8

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 1

8
.0

6
8

 0
.0

0
0

C
a

b
le

 S
tr

e
e

t 
M

u
ra

l
 0

.0
5

8
 0

.0
5

8
 0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

- 
0

.0
0

0
0

%
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
5

8
- 

0
.0

0
0

C
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

o
b

il
e

 P
u

b
li
c
 A

rt
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

N
/A

C
o

m
p

le
te

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  

K
o

b
i 
N

a
z
ru

l
 0

.0
5

4
 0

.0
5

4
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
5

4
 0

.0
0

0

P
o

p
la

r 
B

a
th

s
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

N
/A

C
o

m
p

le
te

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  

B
a

n
g

la
to

w
n

 A
rt

 T
ra

il
 &

 A
rc

h
e

s
 0

.0
1

6
 0

.0
1

6
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
F

in
a

l 
p

h
a

s
e

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

.
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
1

6
- 

0
.0

0
0

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 M
a

jo
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

ta
l

 2
4

.4
5

6
 2

0
.5

8
0

 3
.8

7
7

 1
.3

1
0

 3
.8

7
7

- 
0

.0
0

0
3

4
%

-
  

  
  

  
  

 2
4

.4
5

7
 0

.0
0

1

Page 274



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

O
th

e
r

C
C

T
V

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t

 0
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
0

0
 0

.2
4

1
 0

.3
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

8
0

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

G
e

n
e

ra
to

rs
 @

 M
u

lb
e

rr
y
 P

la
c
e

 &
 

A
n

c
h

o
ra

g
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 0
.2

5
0

 0
.2

3
9

 0
.0

1
1

 0
.0

0
2

 0
.0

1
1

 0
.0

0
0

1
4

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

s
 p

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
5

0
 0

.0
0

0

L
it
te

r 
B

in
s

 0
.1

5
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

5
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
 B

in
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 o
rd

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
, 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n

v
o

ic
e

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

E
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 0

.2
8

0
 0

.0
1

7
 0

.0
6

3
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

6
3

- 
0

.0
0

0
0

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 0

.2
0

0
 0

.2
8

0
 0

.0
0

0

S
t 

J
o

h
n

s
 P

a
rk

 0
.1

1
0

 0
.1

1
0

- 
0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

0
0

0
%

C
o

m
p

le
te

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

1
0

 0
.0

0
0

C
C

T
V

 N
o

d
e

 M
o

v
e

 
 0

.1
8

2
 0

.1
8

2
- 

0
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
8

2
 0

.0
0

0

H
ig

h
 V

is
ib

il
it
y

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

O
ly

m
p

ic
 P

a
rk

 0
.1

3
6

 0
.1

3
6

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

N
/A

C
o

m
p

le
te

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

3
6

-
  

  
  

  

T
o

b
y
 C

lu
b

 H
u

b
 0

.0
4

7
 0

.0
4

7
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
4

7
- 

0
.0

0
0

L
e

a
m

o
u

th
 D

e
p

o
t 

S
a

lt
 B

a
rn

 
 0

.1
6

0
 0

.1
6

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
C

o
m

p
le

te
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
6

0
 0

.0
0

0

C
o

n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a

n
d

 s
u

rv
e

y
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s

 0
.2

9
1

 0
.0

5
0

 0
.0

7
7

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
7

7
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
S

c
h

e
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 0

.1
6

5
 0

.2
9

2
 0

.0
0

0

O
th

e
r 

T
o

ta
l

 1
.9

0
7

 0
.9

4
2

 0
.6

0
0

 0
.2

4
3

 0
.6

0
1

 0
.0

0
1

4
1

%
 0

.3
6

5
 1

.9
0

8
 0

.0
0

1

C
L

C
 T

O
T

A
L

 6
0

.4
6

8
 4

2
.2

2
1

 1
2

.7
4

8
 3

.7
8

2
 1

2
.7

5
7

 0
.0

0
9

3
0

%
 5

.5
0

0
 6

0
.4

7
8

 0
.0

1
0

Page 275



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l

M
il
le

n
n

iu
m

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r

 0
.4

9
1

 0
.0

0
7

 0
.3

8
4

 0
.0

0
4

 0
.3

8
4

-
  

  
  

  
1

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

b
y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.
 0

.1
0

0
 0

.4
9

1
-

  
  

  
  

B
is

h
o

p
s
 S

q
u

a
re

 0
.2

6
4

 0
.1

1
4

 0
.1

5
0

- 
0

.0
1

6
 0

.1
5

0
-

  
  

  
  

-1
1

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

b
y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
6

4
-

  
  

  
  

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 &

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 0

.2
0

8
 0

.0
6

1
 0

.1
4

7
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

4
7

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

b
y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.2
0

8
-

  
  

  
  

W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
C

e
n

tr
e

 0
.0

6
7

 0
.0

6
2

 0
.0

0
5

 0
.0

0
3

 0
.0

0
5

-
  

  
  

  
4

7
%

F
in

a
l 
p

h
a

s
e

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

6
7

-
  

  
  

  

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
t

 7
.0

8
0

 0
.8

5
0

 3
.2

3
0

-
  

  
  

  
 3

.2
3

0
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 o
n

 t
h

is
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

o
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
t.

 C
le

m
e

n
ts

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l.
 F

o
r 

th
e

 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 o

f 
th

is
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
s
 

a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

u
tu

re
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

a
n

y
 c

a
b

in
e

t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

.

 3
.0

0
0

 7
.0

8
0

- 
0

.0
0

0

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

e
a

s
u

re
s

 5
.6

7
5

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

.9
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

 2
.9

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

 2
.7

7
5

 5
.6

7
5

-
  

  
  

  

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

2
0

1
2

 9
.1

3
3

 3
.7

0
1

 5
.3

3
2

 0
.8

1
1

 5
.3

3
2

-
  

  
  

  
1

5
%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.
 0

.1
0

0
 9

.1
3

3
-

  
  

  
  

D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
il
it
ie

s
 G

ra
n

t
 3

.4
4

0
 0

.9
9

1
 0

.9
8

9
 0

.4
3

4
 0

.9
8

9
-

  
  

  
  

4
4

%
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 1
.4

6
0

 3
.4

4
0

-
  

  
  

  

P
ri

v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t

 1
.3

0
0

 0
.7

8
5

 0
.5

1
5

 0
.1

0
1

 0
.5

1
5

-
  

  
  

  
2

0
%

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 o
n

 t
h

is
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 

th
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
 a

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

P
ri

v
a

te
 S

e
c
to

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
ts

. 
F

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 

o
f 

th
is

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
s
 a

s
s
u

m
e

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
n

y
 c

a
b

in
e

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 1
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

G
e

n
e

s
is

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 0

.3
6

3
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.3

6
3

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.3
6

3
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 G

ra
n

t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
to

 G
e

m
in

i 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

il
l 
b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 p

a
id

 

in
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 p

a
id

 i
n

 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 H
C

A
 g

ra
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.3

6
3

-
  

  
  

  

In
s
ta

ll
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

u
to

m
a

ti
c
 E

n
e

rg
y
 M

e
te

rs
 0

.2
0

0
 0

.0
5

1
 0

.1
4

9
 0

.0
0

0
 0

.1
4

9
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.2

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

F
a

c
il
it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(D

D
A

)
 0

.0
7

4
 0

.0
2

1
 0

.0
5

3
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

5
3

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

7
4

-
  

  
  

  

N
e

w
 E

n
e

rg
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 0
.1

9
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
9

0
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

9
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
n

e
rg

y
 a

u
d

it
s
 o

f 
k
e

y
 b

u
il
d

in
g

s
 w

il
l 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 

e
n

e
rg

y
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 .

  
S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

y
b

a
c
k
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
. 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

in
c
u

rr
e

d
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

9
0

-
  

  
  

  

B
ro

m
le

y
 b

y
 B

o
w

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 -

 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 3
.5

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

.5
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

 3
.5

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 3
.5

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

W
e

ll
in

g
to

n
 W

a
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
e

n
tr

e
 -

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 

1
0

6
 3

.2
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 3
.2

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
 3

.2
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

A
w

a
it
in

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
, 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 f

u
ll
y
 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.
-

  
  

  
  

  
 3

.2
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

D
&

R
 T

O
T

A
L

 3
5

.1
8

5
 6

.6
4

2
 2

1
.1

0
9

 1
.3

3
7

 2
1

.1
0

8
-

  
  

  
  

6
%

 7
.4

3
5

 3
5

.1
8

5
- 

0
.0

0
0

Page 276



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re

B
S

F
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 B
u

il
d

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s

 3
0

0
.9

7
8

 1
8

4
.3

8
9

 6
0

.4
1

6
 2

6
.2

5
7

 6
0

.4
1

6
-

  
  

  
  

4
3

%
 5

6
.1

7
4

 3
0

0
.9

7
8

- 
0

.0
0

0

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

y
e

a
rs

, 
th

e
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
n

d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 o

r 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 y
e

a
rs

 a
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

T
h

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

fo
r 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

b
u

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 i
n

te
rc

h
a

n
g

e
a

b
le

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

o
ti
o

n
a

l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

IC
T

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

 2
1

.0
0

1
 8

.0
4

6
 3

.3
0

8
 0

.4
2

3
 3

.3
0

8
-

  
  

  
  

1
3

%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

 9
.6

4
7

 2
1

.0
0

1
 0

.0
0

0

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

y
e

a
rs

, 
th

e
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
n

d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 o

r 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 y
e

a
rs

 a
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

T
h

e
 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

fo
r 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

b
u

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 i
n

te
rc

h
a

n
g

e
a

b
le

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
if
e

 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

o
ti
o

n
a

l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

W
a

v
e

 5
 B

S
F

 (
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 L
P

P
)

 3
.9

1
1

 1
.2

9
0

 1
.5

2
0

 0
.3

1
6

 1
.5

2
0

-
  

  
  

  
2

1
%

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
v
e

ra
ll
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

y
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
.

 1
.1

0
0

 3
.9

1
1

 0
.0

0
0

B
S

F
 T

o
ta

l
 3

2
5

.8
9

0
 1

9
3

.7
2

5
 6

5
.2

4
4

 2
6

.9
9

7
 6

5
.2

4
4

-
  

  
  

  
4

1
%

 6
6

.9
2

1
 3

2
5

.8
9

0
 0

.0
0

0

Page 277



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 B

a
c
k
lo

g
 4

2
.0

2
1

 1
4

.2
2

7
 2

7
.7

9
4

 8
.0

0
6

 1
7

.1
5

3
- 

1
0

.6
4

1
2

9
%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

m
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

o
f 

th
e

 G
L

A
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 (

£
1

1
 m

il
li
o

n
 i
n

 

to
ta

l 
fo

r 
2

0
1

2
-2

0
1

3
).

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 m

e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 w

il
l 
b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 

in
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
, 

w
it
h

 a
 r

e
a

li
s
ti
c
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

£
1

7
.1

5
3

 m
il
li
o

n
. 

A
p

a
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 G
L

A
 g

ra
n

t 

e
le

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ti
m

e
 l
im

it
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n

to
 l
a

te
r 

y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 w

il
l 

b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

-1
4

.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 4
2

.0
2

1
- 

0
.0

0
0

H
o

u
s
in

g
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 2
5

.7
9

7
 8

.2
2

0
 1

7
.5

7
8

 1
.0

1
3

 1
4

.1
2

7
- 

3
.4

5
1

6
%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 S

p
e

n
d

 f
lu

c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
.

-
  

  
  

  
  

 2
5

.7
9

8
 0

.0
0

1

O
c
e

a
n

 N
e

w
 D

e
a

l 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 1

9
.0

0
6

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

2
.8

1
9

 4
.0

9
4

 1
2

.8
1

9
 0

.0
0

0
3

2
%

 6
.1

8
7

 1
9

.0
0

6
 0

.0
0

0

N
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
R

e
s
id

u
a

l 
D

e
c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 C

a
p

it
a

l 

P
ro

fi
li
n

g
 -

 I
n

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

 1
0

7
.4

7
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
 1

0
7

.4
7

0
 1

0
7

.4
7

0
-

  
  

  
  

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 -
 N

o
n

 D
e

c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 3
1

.7
2

6
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
.6

7
3

-
  

  
  

  
 1

.6
7

3
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 

w
o

rk
s
 i
f 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

.
 3

0
.0

5
3

 3
1

.7
2

6
-

  
  

  
  

C
o

u
n

c
il
 H

o
u

s
e

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 4
.5

6
8

 4
.0

1
2

 0
.5

5
6

- 
0

.4
6

6
 0

.5
5

6
-

  
  

  
  

-8
4

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 4

.5
6

8
- 

0
.0

0
0

B
la

c
k
w

a
ll
 R

e
a

c
h

 1
4

.4
2

0
 5

.8
2

1
 6

.0
1

2
 0

.9
2

7
 6

.0
1

2
 0

.0
0

0
1

5
%

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 S

p
e

n
d

 f
lu

c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

F
u

tu
re

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 s
p

e
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
p

e
n

d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 l
in

e
 a

s
 a

n
d

 

w
h

e
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 l
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
b

u
y
b

a
c
k
s
 a

re
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

 2
.5

8
7

 1
4

.4
2

0
- 

0
.0

0
0

H
R

A
 T

o
ta

l
 2

4
5

.0
0

8
 3

2
.2

7
9

 6
6

.4
3

2
 1

3
.5

7
4

 5
2

.3
4

0
- 

1
4

.0
9

2
2

0
%

 1
4

6
.2

9
7

 2
4

5
.0

0
8

 0
.0

0
0

Page 278



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

F
Y

 T
o

ta
l

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

R
e

vi
s
e

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 
1

2
/1

3

S
p

e
n

d
 t
o

 

Q
2

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

%
  

S
p

e
n

t 
Q

2
R

E
A

S
O

N
S

 F
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
B

u
d

g
e

t
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
V

a
ri
a

n
c
e

R
E

A
S

O
N

S
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

S

A
B

C
D

E
C

 -
 E

D
 /
C

H
 =

 F
+

G
I 
=

 B
+

E
+

H
A

 -
 I

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

£
m

£
m

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs
In

 Y
e

a
r 

- 
1

2
/1

3

K
e

y
: 

 s
p

e
n

d
 =

le
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 4

5
%

 -
 "
��
�
�
�

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 4
5

%
 &

 1
0

0
%

 -
 G

re
e

n

s
p

e
n

d
 =

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
0

%
 -

 R
e

d

A
ll
 Y

e
a

rs

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
's

 &
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

IC
T

 -
 S

o
ft

w
a

re
 L

ic
e

n
c
e

s
 0

.8
6

2
 0

.8
6

2
- 

0
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.8
6

2
 0

.0
0

0

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
/B

a
c
k
u

p
 

E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 0

.2
2

0
 0

.0
9

2
 0

.1
2

8
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

2
8

 0
.0

0
0

0
%

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

o
n

ly
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
re

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 w
a

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 G

C
S

X
 a

n
d

 P
C

 D
S

I 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 o

v
e

r 

c
o

m
in

g
 m

o
n

th
s
, 

fu
n

d
s
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 f

o
r 

C
C

N
s
/c

h
a

rg
e

s
 w

e
 g

e
t 

fr
o

m
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
fo

r 
re

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
, 

G
C

S
X

 P
C

 D
S

I 
c
o

m
p

li
a

n
c
e

 w
o

rk

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.2

2
0

 0
.0

0
0

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 1

.1
5

4
 1

.1
5

4
- 

0
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 1

.1
5

4
 0

.0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

H
IE

F
 E

X
E

C
/R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 2
.2

3
6

 2
.1

0
8

 0
.1

2
8

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
2

8
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 2

.2
3

6
 0

.0
0

0

A
d

u
lt

s
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g

M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 0
.1

3
7

 0
.0

8
0

 0
.0

5
7

 0
.0

0
5

 0
.0

5
7

 0
.0

0
0

9
%

 O
rd

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d

 f
ro

m
 s

to
c
k
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 d

a
ta

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
3

7
 0

.0
0

0

S
a

fe
ty

 w
o

rk
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
N

/A
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
 H

o
m

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 0

.0
2

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

2
0

-
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
2

0
-

  
  

  
  

0
%

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

d
. 

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
2

0
-

  
  

  
  

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

- 
S

y
s
te

m
/t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 0

.0
7

8
 0

.0
7

8
- 

0
.0

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
0

0
0

%
-

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
7

8
 0

.0
0

0

T
e

le
 C

a
re

/T
e

le
h

e
a

lt
h

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

 0
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.1
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

0
0

-
  

  
  

  
0

%

 A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

T
e

le
c
a

re
/T

e
le

h
e

a
lt
h

 

d
e

v
ic

e
s
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 f
in

a
li
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

h
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 

d
e

la
y
 i
n

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 o
rd

e
r 

it
e

m
s
. 

 W
e

 

h
a

v
e

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 p

la
c
in

g
 o

rd
e

rs
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 £
1

0
0

 k
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

in
 2

0
1

2
/2

0
1

3
. 

  

 0
.2

0
0

 0
.3

0
0

-
  

  
  

  

R
o

n
a

ld
 S

tr
e

e
t 

R
o

o
f 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

 0
.0

6
5

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
 0

.0
6

5
-

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

6
5

-
  

  
  

  
0

%

 D
e

la
y
s
 o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

  
S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
w

o
rk

s
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 

p
la

c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 R
o

o
f 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

. 
 D

a
te

s
 s

ti
ll
 u

n
k
n

o
w

n
. 

-
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.0

6
5

-
  

  
  

  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it
y
 H

u
b

s
 0

.2
4

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 0
.1

6
0

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
- 

0
.1

6
0

0
%

 0
.0

8
0

 0
.2

4
0

-
  

  
  

  

A
H

W
B

 T
O

T
A

L
 0

.8
4

0
 0

.1
5

8
 0

.4
0

2
 0

.0
0

5
 0

.2
4

2
- 

0
.1

6
0

1
%

 0
.2

8
0

 0
.8

4
0

 0
.0

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
F

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

u
n

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

 3
0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

- 
1

0
.0

0
0

0
%

 2
0

.0
0

0
-

  
  

  
  

  
- 

3
0

.0
0

0

T
o

ta
l

 8
1

6
.1

3
2

 3
2

7
.0

4
1

 1
9

2
.7

6
7

 5
4

.3
9

6
 1

6
8

.1
0

8
- 

2
4

.6
5

8
2

8
%

 2
9

6
.3

2
3

 7
8

6
.0

1
5

- 
3

0
.1

1
7

Page 279



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
h

a
t 

fu
ll

y
 

re
fl

e
c

ts
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i

t 
s

e
rv

e
s

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a

u
n

c
h

 a
n

d
 p

o
p

u
la

te
 t

a
le

n
t 

p
o

o
ls

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 t
a

le
n

t 
p

o
o

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

s
: 

• 
g

e
n

d
e

r,
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 B
M

E

• 
q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 P
e

o
p

le
 B

o
a

rd
 

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

4
7

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 N

V
Q

 l
e

v
e

l 
2

 a
n

d
 3

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

G
o

in
g

 o
u

t 
fo

r 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
1

0
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
v
e

n
e

 a
 F

a
ir

n
e

s
s

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
la

u
n

c
h

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
a

ir
n

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 5
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

, 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 w

ill
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
.

F
a

ir
n

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
2

5
%

T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 o
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
a

c
k

li
n

g
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ty
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

W
o

rk
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
s
ix

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 

P
la

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 

b
a

c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 o
u

r 
s
ix

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
s

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
5

0
%

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 b

y
 e

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

.

H
o

ld
 r

e
v
ie

w
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 l
a

u
n

c
h

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 f
u

tu
re

 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
y

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
. 

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ix

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 p

u
b

lic
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 

F
a

ir
n

e
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

c
o

p
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 e

x
p

lic
it
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 

o
n

 5
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 

s
u

b
m

it
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r.

  
 

O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.1
: 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 

P
a

g
e

 1

Page 281



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a

k
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
a

s
s

e
ts

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
9

0
%

T
h

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 s
ix

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

c
la

re
d

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
h

e
ir

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
n

 

m
a

rk
e

t.
  

T
h

e
s
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 w

e
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

v
ie

w
 A

H
&

W
 a

s
s
e

ts
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

ta
k
e

n
 o

n
 b

o
a

rd
. 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

-l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

S
e

rv
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

 o
n

 A
n

c
h

o
ra

g
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 l
e

a
s
e

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

P
re

s
e

n
t 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

p
o

t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

W
a

tt
s
 G

ro
v
e

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
8

0
%

T
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

B
o

a
rd

 w
it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

  
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 D

e
p

o
t 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
e

fo
re

 

a
n

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t.
  

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 a
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
1

2
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
re

a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
C

T
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

h
a

t 

im
p

ro
v
e

s
 I

C
T

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
re

d
u

c
e

s
 b

a
c

k
 o

ff
ic

e
 

c
o

s
ts

, 
p

ro
te

c
ts

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
s

p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i

n
 I

C
T

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

te
s

 2
5

0
 n

e
w

 j
o

b
s

 f
o

r 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

a
n

d
 S

im
o

n
 K

ilb
e

y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

5
%

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 c
re

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 d
e

ta
ile

d
. 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
o

n
th

ly
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 m

o
n

it
o

rs
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
lis

t 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 j
o

b
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
F

in
a

l 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 (
M

a
y
o

r'
s
 P

a
n

e
l)

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

fi
rs

t 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 O

&
S

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
e

w
 V

D
I 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 V

D
I 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

t 
a

ll 
a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

IT
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

W
o

rk
in

g

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

M
o

re
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 V
D

I 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 L
e

g
a

c
y
 S

ig
n

if
y
 

to
k
e

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
1

5
0

 u
s
e

rs
 t

ill
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

.

O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.2
: 

W
o

rk
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
 O

n
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

P
a

g
e

 2

Page 282



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
S

m
a

rt
e

r 
W

o
rk

in
g

 P
o

lic
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

• 
T

ra
in

in
g

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

• 
M

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 b
ri

e
fi
n

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
1

0
0

%

7
5

%

T
ra

in
in

g
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 m
o

v
e

s
 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 n
e

w
 I

C
T

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

IC
T

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
S

ta
ff

 t
u

p
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
to

 A
g

ili
s
y
s
 a

n
d

 A
g

ili
s
y
s
 a

re
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 I
C

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 b
e

in
g

 n
o

v
a

te
d

 t
o

 A
g

ili
s
y
s
.

D
a

ta
 C

e
n

tr
e

 m
o

v
e

d
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
a

ta
 c

e
n

tr
e

 m
o

v
e

 i
s
 a

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 s

ta
g

e
. 

O
C

T
 u

p
d

a
te

 p
la

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 f

o
r 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

m
o

v
e

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
la

c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 

w
it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
1

2
 f

o
r 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

w
a

s
 s

h
if
te

d
 t

o
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 

m
e

t.
 O

v
e

ra
ll 

2
5

0
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 o

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 

O
C

T
 u

p
d

a
te

 f
ir

s
t 

1
2

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 j
o

in
t 

a
d

v
e

rt
. 

 S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 

tr
a

in
in

g
  

/ 
s
k
ill

s
 d

a
y
.

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
–

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

ra
n

d
e

d
 –

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 

o
p

e
n

e
d

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 f

ir
s
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 d

a
y
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

£
2

.5
m

 w
it
h

 n
o

 

u
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
N

o
 m

a
jo

r 
o

u
ta

g
e

s
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
D

a
ta

 c
e

n
tr

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
h

il
s

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

b
a

c
k

-o
ff

ic
e

 c
o

s
ts

 b
y
 u

s
in

g
 n

e
w

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 8
8

%
 t

o
 9

2
%

 f
o

r 
J
u

ly
 t

o
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

lo
c
a

te
 C

h
e

v
io

t 
H

o
u

s
e

 O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

 t
o

 

W
a

tn
e

y
 M

a
rk

e
t

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
v
e

rd
u

e
2

5
%

B
u

ild
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
, 

IS
W

M
 d

u
e

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 C

L
C

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
 a

t 
W

a
tn

e
y
 

M
a

rk
e

t.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
s
h

if
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 w
e

b
 

a
n

d
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 u

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
p

re
fe

r 

th
e

m
:

• 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
[w

it
h

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
r]

• 
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

y
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 s

e
lf
-s

e
rv

e
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 N

o
v
 1

2

P
a

g
e

 3

Page 283



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

L
a

u
n

c
h

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 n
e

w
 A

c
h

ie
v
e

 (
o

n
lin

e
) 

fo
rm

s
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

 F
o

rm
s
 t

a
k
e

 U
p

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 f
ra

u
d

 d
e

te
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 

d
e

te
rr

e
n

c
e

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
9

0
%

IC
T

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g

re
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
it
h

 D
W

P
 o

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
a

u
d

 

p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

W
P

.

5
0

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
 5

0
%

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 2

6
 t

o
 d

a
te

 (
1

9
/1

0
/1

2
).

 

M
a

rk
e

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 R
S

L
s

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
 

 R
a

is
e

d
 a

t 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
  

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 t

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 l
o

c
a

li
s

e
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

w
it

h
 M

a
y
o

r’
s

 A
s

s
e

m
b

li
e

s
, 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

F
o

ru
m

s

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
1

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
e

rm
s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

m
b

lie
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
(J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
)

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

N
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

. 
(J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
)

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 m
o

n
th

. 
It

 w
a

s
 f

e
lt
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
 t

h
e

 

la
u

n
c
h

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
. 

(J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

)

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
1

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

iv
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

th
e

 M
a

y
o

r’
s

 s
o

c
ia

l 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ra
c

ti
c

e
s

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

A
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
le

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 M

a
y
o

r'
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
iv

in
g

 W
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

. 
 W

o
rk

 s
ti
ll 

o
n

 

g
o

in
g

 t
o

 m
a

p
 l
o

c
a

l 
in

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
 n

e
w

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 

im
m

in
e

n
tl
y
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
iv

in
g

 W
a

g
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

a
n

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

T
o

llg
a

te
 p

ro
c
e

s
s

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

 L
L

W
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

fo
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
s
 a

 p
a

rt
 o

f 

T
G

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

P
a

g
e

 4

Page 284



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

F
a

ir
 T

ra
d

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
a

te
ri

n
g

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 j
u

ic
e

 w
e

 s
e

rv
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
s
 F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

o
r 

s
o

m
e

 t
im

e
. 

 W
e

 

h
a

v
e

 t
o

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 f
o

o
d

 m
ile

s
 v

e
rs

u
s
 F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

 i
n

 a
ll 

c
a

te
ri

n
g

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 m

a
d

e
. 

  
 C

o
n

fe
c
ti
o

n
e

ry
, 

te
a

 a
n

d
 c

o
ff

e
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
s
 F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

. 
A

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
u

p
p

ly
 f

a
ir

 t
ra

d
e

 b
a

n
a

n
a

s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 f

o
r 

it
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 u
s
in

g
 s

e
a

s
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

lo
c
a

l 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

, 
it
 s

c
o

re
d

 5
 f

ro
m

 6
.5

 i
n

 G
o

o
d

 F
o

o
d

 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

G
L

A
. 

F
a

ir
 T

ra
d

e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 b
ra

n
d

 n
a

m
e

. 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

: 
m

a
p

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
 t

o
 

b
e

 c
re

a
te

d

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

5
%

W
o

rk
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
 C

a
p

a
c
it
y
 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
.

6
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
o

n
e

.

N
e

w
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

g
re

e
d

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

D
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

a
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 1

4
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

v
e

ri
fi
e

d
 a

t 
6

 T
o

llg
a

te
s

H
u

g
h

 S
h

a
rk

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
h

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
T

G
s
. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 

s
ta

ff
 s

ic
k

n
e

s
s

 a
b

s
e

n
c

e

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

O
n

 g
o

in
g

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

a
ll 

o
n

 t
ra

c
k
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 A
b

s
e

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
a

n
e

l 
(D

A
M

P
s
) 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 m

o
n

th
ly

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
’s

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
. 

(A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
)

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
ll 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 P
a

n
e

ls
 a

re
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 l
o

c
a

lly
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

b
s
e

n
c
e

.

O
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

, 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 r
e

v
ie

w
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 

a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 H
R

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 b

e
g

in
 t

a
k
in

g
 f

o
rm

a
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 

p
o

lic
y
. 

(A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
)

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

L
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
b

s
e

n
c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
a

n
e

l 
(C

A
M

P
) 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
’s

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
. 

(J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
)

S
im

o
n

 K
ilb

e
y
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

C
A

M
P

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 f
a

ili
n

g
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
b

s
e

n
c
e

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 c

a
s
e

s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
.

P
a

g
e

 5

Page 285



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
c

re
a

s
e

 a
v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 f
a

m
il

y
 s

iz
e

d
 

h
o

u
s

in
g

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

t 
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 t

h
a

t 
e

a
c
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
  

a
 p

o
lic

y
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

q
u

a
n

tu
m

 o
f 

fa
m

ily
 s

iz
e

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

is
 v

ia
b

le
 a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
x
c
e

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 n
e

w
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

s
ta

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 

h
o

u
s
in

g

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

T
h

e
 T

o
llg

a
te

 2
 R

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
o

p
e

 

to
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 b
y
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

.

E
n

s
u

re
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

llo
c
a

te
 

m
a

x
im

u
m

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
 s

it
e

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 E
L

H
P

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 

a
t 

a
 s

e
n

io
r 

le
v
e

l.
  

O
ff

ic
e

rs
  

h
a

v
e

 o
ff

e
re

d
 u

p
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
 

fa
ir

e
r 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 R

e
g

is
te

re
d

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 H
C

A
 

b
id

s
 m

e
e

t 
n

e
w

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 r

e
n

t 
le

v
e

ls

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

R
e

g
u

la
r 

lia
is

o
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 R
P

s
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

n
ta

l 

le
v
e

ls
. 

A
s
 y

e
t 

th
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

 A
R

 h
o

m
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
s
o

m
e

 R
P

s
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 G

L
A

, 
w

is
h

 t
o

 c
o

n
v
e

rt
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 v
o

id
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

n
e

w
 A

R
. 

R
e

n
t 

le
v
e

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 L

e
tt

in
g

s
 T

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 T

e
a

m
. 

T
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
to

c
k
 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

li
v
e

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
t 

R
o

b
in

 H
o

o
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

 

a
n

d
 O

c
e

a
n

 E
s

ta
te

 

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
5

5
%

O
c
e

a
n

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
8

1
9

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

d
a

te
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

/ 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
w

o
rk

s
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
. 

 T
h

e
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

d
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fi
rs

t 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

R
o

b
in

 H
o

o
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s
 /

 B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e

a
c
h

 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
. 

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 f
o

r 
R

o
b

in
 H

o
o

d
 

G
a

rd
e

n
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

Q
1

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 l
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
O

c
e

a
n

 f
ir

s
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

m
e

s
 –

 9
4

 u
n

it
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

D
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r'
s
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
le

tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 h
a

n
d

o
v
e

r 
o

f 
O

c
e

a
n

 f
ir

s
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
8

0
%

E
a

s
t 

T
h

a
m

e
s
 a

d
v
is

e
 h

a
n

d
o

v
e

r 
is

 n
o

w
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

.

P
h

a
s
e

 1
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
R

o
b

in
 

H
o

o
d

 G
a

rd
e

n
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

5
%

A
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

d
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 o
f 

a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 s
lip

p
e

d
 t

o
 O

c
to

b
e

r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ju

d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

n
c
e

 o
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

D
e

la
y
 a

ls
o

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
n

o
w

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r.

 

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 o
f 

P
h

a
s
e

 1
 a

t 
R

o
b

in
 H

o
o

d
 G

a
rd

e
n

s
 –

 

c
8

2
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

re
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

d
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
0

%
S

ta
rt

 o
n

 S
it
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

Q
1

 1
3

/1
4

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 s

lip
p

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
/ 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

d
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

A
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.1
: 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s

in
g

P
a

g
e

 6

Page 286



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

d
u

c
e

 h
o

m
e

le
s

s
n

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 

o
p

ti
o

n
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

&
 C

o
lin

 C
o

rm
a

c
k

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

5
%

W
h

ile
 a

ll 
m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

a
ll 

in
 Q

3
, 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 s

o
 f

a
r 

is
 g

o
o

d
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

ir
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a

u
n

c
h

 p
ilo

t 
S

o
c
ia

l 
L

e
tt

in
g

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

&
 C

o
lin

 C
o

rm
a

c
k

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
9

0
%

P
la

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 r

e
a

d
y
 t

o
 l
a

u
n

c
h

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 l
e

g
a

l 
s
ig

n
 o

ff
. 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

&
 C

o
lin

 C
o

rm
a

c
k

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

5
%

D
ra

ft
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 O
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

&
 C

o
lin

 C
o

rm
a

c
k

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

O
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0

1
3

–
1

7
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

o
u

n
c

il
 h

o
m

e
s

 t
h

a
t 

fa
ll

 

b
e

lo
w

 a
 d

e
c

e
n

t 
s

ta
n

d
a

rd

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

T
h

e
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 9
0

%
 d

e
c
e

n
c
y
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 D

H
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
e

 D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
to

rs
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

 t
o

 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 D

e
c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

5
%

M
a

y
o

ra
l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

d
o

p
t 

m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
fo

r 
y
e

a
r 

2
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

to
 A

p
o

llo
 b

u
ild

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 o
f 

O
J
E

U
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

 D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 

w
o

rk
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

2
8

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

IT
T

 o
f 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

, 
v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

a
n

d
 m

a
jo

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 M

a
y
o

r 
in

 m
id

-N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

1
4

5
7

 h
o

m
e

s
 m

a
d

e
 d

e
c
e

n
t

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

8
0

2
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 d
e

c
e

n
t 

in
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

 2
7

1
 h

o
m

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 d
e

c
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 1
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 1

8
8

 i
n

 Q
2

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.2
: 

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

in
g

P
a

g
e

 7

Page 287



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

h
a

rg
e

 ‘
a

c
tu

a
l’ 

b
ill

s
 d

is
p

a
tc

h
e

d
J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

c
tu

a
ls

 s
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 i
te

m
is

e
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

e
e

v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 S
tr

u
th

e
rs

 A
u

d
it
.

A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 

(t
ra

n
s
fe

r)
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
9

0
%

R
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

s
o

lid
a

te
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

lo
w

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
2

0
 o

u
t 

o
f 

5
4

 t
a

s
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 

s
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
1

0
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

in
im

u
m

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

fi
n

e
m

e
n

t,
 p

ri
o

r 

to
 s

ig
n

-o
ff

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 f

u
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
ra

ft
 F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

E
n

e
rg

y
 C

o
-o

p
 s

ig
n

-u
p

 o
n

 g
o

in
g

, 
O

D
A

 

R
e

N
e

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
R

e
N

e
w

 2
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 E

n
e

rg
y
 C

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

D
ra

ft
 f

u
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
ig

n
 o

ff
 /

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
to

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
.

L
a

u
n

c
h

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
e

rg
y
 C

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

In
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
m

p
a

n
ie

s
 t

o
 s

e
t 

u
p

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 

fu
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

.

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 5

0
0

 

h
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 N

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

 

W
a

rd
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 R
e

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t

J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

1
,0

0
0

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 v

is
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

h
e

re
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 h

a
v
e

 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
.

M
o

n
it
o

r 
fu

e
l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
J
a

c
k
ie

 O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 r

e
n

e
w

 t
h

e
 U

N
O

 h
o

m
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.3
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c

 r
e

a
lm

P
a

g
e

 8

Page 288



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

r 
p

u
b

li
c

 

re
a

lm

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

P
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

r 
a

re
 o

n
-t

ra
c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

a
y
b

a
c
k

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 l
a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d

 u
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

a
s
e

 f
o

r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 e
a

c
h

 p
a

ir
e

d
 L

A
P

 l
o

c
a

lit
y

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 

a
g

re
e

d
 s

e
t 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

te
c

t 
o

u
r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
lis

e
 t

h
e

 W
a

s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l
J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
4

0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
a

te
 p

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
fo

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
's

 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 o

n
ly

 b
e

c
a

m
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
1

.

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
r 

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t.

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 S
ta

ff
 T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

M
in

o
r 

d
e

la
y
 i
n

 f
in

a
lis

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 n
o

w
 b

e
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

M
T

 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

In
te

g
ra

te
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
h

a
n

d
-h

e
ld

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

to
 f

ro
n

t 
lin

e
 c

le
a

n
e

r,
 g

re
e

n
e

r,
 s

a
fe

r 
s
ta

ff

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
1

0
%

T
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
IT

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

h
a

s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

e
e

x
a

m
in

e
 t

h
e

 

s
c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

 W
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 A
g

ili
s
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

D
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 R

e
: 

F
it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 h
ig

h
 e

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
) 

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
4

0
%

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 f

o
r 

in
v
e

s
t 

to
 s

a
v
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

r 
p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c

e
s

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 £

1
0

 m
ill

io
n

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
V

ic
to

ri
a

 

P
a

rk

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 m

o
d

e
rn

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

y
e

la
w

s
H

e
a

th
e

r 
B

o
n

fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

8
%

U
p

d
a

te
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
u

t 
a

w
a

it
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
.

P
a

g
e

 9

Page 289



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

h
a

s
e

 1
 o

f 
B

a
rt

le
tt

 

P
a

rk
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 o
n

-s
it
e

 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

2
8

/0
2

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

D
ra

ft
 M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n

 h
a

s
 g

o
n

e
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h

 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 f
in

a
l 
M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
. 

P
re

p
a

ra
to

ry
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 w

o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 m
a

in
 w

o
rk

s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

fo
r 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

.

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

T
h

a
m

e
s
 T

id
e

w
a

y
 T

u
n

n
e

l 
p

ro
je

c
t

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

m
it
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 T
T

T
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

s
e

n
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

m
id

-2
0

1
2

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 l

o
c

a
li

s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
S

h
a

z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lit
y
 h

u
b

s
 f

o
r 

4
 p

a
ir

e
d

 

L
A

P
 a

re
a

s

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
1

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
e

liv
e

r 
4

 l
o

c
a

lis
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
s

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

p
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
S

h
a

z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

E
ig

h
t 

n
e

w
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

re
e

d
S

h
a

z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 I
d

e
a

 S
to

re
 W

a
tn

e
y
 M

a
rk

e
t 

a
n

d
 O

n
e

 S
to

p
 

S
h

o
p

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

B
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
im

e
. 

 E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 b

y
 M

a
y
 

2
0

1
3

.

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 P
h

a
s
e

 2
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 T
o

w
e

r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 L

o
c
a

l 
H

is
to

ry
 L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 A
rc

h
iv

e
s
 (

B
a

n
c
ro

ft
 

R
o

a
d

)

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
2

0
%

L
if
t 

w
o

rk
s
 o

n
 s

it
e

, 
ro

o
f 

w
o

rk
s
 o

u
t 

to
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 t
im

e
 a

ft
e

r 
fi
rs

t 
te

n
d

e
r 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 u

n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 

o
r 

s
c
o

p
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 

2
0

1
3

.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

e
th

n
a

l 
G

re
e

n
 

T
u

b
e

 D
is

a
s
te

r 
M

e
m

o
ri

a
l:
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 r

e
le

a
s
e

 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

u
ild

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.4
: 

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s

P
a

g
e

 1
0

Page 290



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

M
a

n
a

g
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 

to
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

F
is

h
 I

s
la

n
d

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 o
n

 1
9

th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

P
u

b
lic

 i
n

to
 M

a
n

a
g

in
g

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
P

D
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
6

 w
e

e
k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 m

o
d

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 o

n
 1

s
t 

O
c
to

b
e

r.
 A

d
o

p
te

d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 e

a
rl

y
 

in
 n

e
w

 y
e

a
r.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 –

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 f
o

ru
m

s
 

a
n

d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
re

a
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

M
in

o
r 

d
e

la
y
 t

o
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 a
s
 C

M
T

 h
a

v
e

 a
s
k
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

D
C

L
G

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 i
n

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
.

A
g

re
e

 n
e

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 M
a

y
o

ra
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

rp
o

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 F
is

h
 I

s
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 

B
ro

m
le

y
-b

y
-B

o
w

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

L
D

C
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 (
d

e
a

lin
g

 

w
it
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
s
u

e
s
).

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
a

n
d

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 L

L
D

C
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
, 

a
lo

n
g

 

w
it
h

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a

s
e

s
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 

M
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 o

f 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

is
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 e

n
g

a
g

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

n
 p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

it
e

s
 i
n

 F
is

h
 I

s
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 L
L

D
C

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
B

ro
m

le
y
 B

y
 B

o
w

. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 I
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y
 (

C
IL

)

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
7

5
%

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
IL

. 
D

e
la

y
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

re
 l
e

n
g

th
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 

m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

th
a

n
 w

a
s
 f

ir
s
t 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 

fo
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

IL

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
o

rk
s

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

E
IP

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

O
w

e
n

 W
h

a
lle

y
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
5

0
%

T
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 l
o

n
g

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h

e
 E

iP
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
O

c
to

b
e

r 

2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r,

 m
o

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

ls
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 F

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

n
y
 E

iP
. 

T
h

is
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 u
s
 i
n

 a
n

y
 w

a
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

C
IL

 b
e

fo
re

 

th
e

 l
o

n
g

s
to

p
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
 o

f 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

c
a

l 
s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

liv
e

r 
p

h
a

s
e

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 £

3
 m

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.5
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 l
in

k
s

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti

v
e

ly

P
a

g
e

 1
1

Page 291



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
4

0
%

1
2

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 r

e
s
u

rf
a

c
e

d
J
a

m
ie

 B
la

k
e

 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
it

ig
a

te
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 l

o
c

a
l 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 a

n
d

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

th
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s

 R
o

u
te

 n
e

tw
o

rk

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 

R
o

b
in

 B
e

a
tt

ie
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 

Im
p

a
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 

R
o

b
in

 B
e

a
tt

ie
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

4
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

e
s
p

o
k
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

ra
v
e

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 

R
o

b
in

 B
e

a
tt

ie
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
m

e
s
 t

im
e

 B
O

C
C

 a
n

d
 B

E
C

C
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 

R
o

b
in

 B
e

a
tt

ie
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

O
ly

m
p

ic
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
V

ic
to

ri
a

 P
a

rk
 L

iv
e

 S
it
e

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 t
o

rc
h

 r
o

u
te

 a
n

d
 t

o
rc

h
 e

v
e

n
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.6
: 

D
e

li
v
e

r 
a

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t,

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s P
a

g
e

 1
2

Page 292



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

li
v
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 

ra
is

e
 l

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 i

n
 a

ll
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
.

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

In
 2

0
1

2
, 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

(7
8

+
 

p
o

in
ts

 i
n

 E
Y

F
S

P
 a

n
d

 6
+

 p
o

in
ts

 i
n

 b
o

th
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l,
 S

o
c
ia

l 
&

 E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 &
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
) 

is
 5

4
.7

%
  

(p
le

a
s
e

 

n
o

te
 2

0
1

2
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 a
n

 e
a

rl
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 f
ro

m
 N

C
E

R
).

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

4
.8

%
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 1

4
.7

%
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
8

. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
a

t 
1

5
%

 p
o

in
ts

, 
a

lb
e

it
 f

ro
m

 a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 p

o
in

t 
- 

 f
ro

m
 4

9
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

 t
o

 6
4

%
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
x
p

a
n

d
 f

re
e

 e
a

rl
y
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 t

w
o

-y
e

a
r-

o
ld

s

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

6
%

W
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 4
7

3
 e

lig
ib

le
 2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 M
P

V
I 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 (

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 

w
it
h

 3
5

0
 i
n

 J
u

ly
).

 T
h

e
s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 f

lu
c
tu

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 t
e

rm
ly

 b
a

s
is

 a
s
 

tw
o

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 

g
ra

n
t.

 D
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

is
 g

o
in

g
 i
n

to
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 n

e
w

 p
la

c
e

s
 o

f 
q

u
a

lit
y
, 

w
e

 a
re

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 D
fE

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

1
3

0
0

 e
lig

ib
le

 t
w

o
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 2

4
0

0
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

is
 f

ig
u

re
 w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 t

w
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
E

a
rl

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

te
 t

h
e

 

p
a

c
e

 a
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 c
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

to
 m

e
ri

t 
ta

k
in

g
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
la

c
e

s
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

in
 p

la
c
e

, 
b

u
t 

w
e

 w
ill

 s
tr

u
g

g
le

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 D

fE
 f

ig
u

re
s
. 

T
h

e
 D

e
p

u
ty

 

P
ri

m
e

 M
in

is
te

r 
h

a
s
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 £
1

0
0

 m
ill

io
n

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 L
A

s
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

la
c
e

s
 w

it
h

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 
B

u
t 

w
e

 d
o

 

n
o

t 
k
n

o
w

 a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e

 h
o

w
 m

u
c
h

 m
o

n
e

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

2
0

%
 o

f 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 

th
e

 E
Y

F
S

, 
u

s
in

g
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 a

 g
a

te
w

a
y
 

to
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 1

0
0

%
 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

2
0

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

p
p

e
n

s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 E
Y

F
S

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
, 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 o

f 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 1

0
0

%
 

E
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

E
Y

F
S

P
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

5
%

 

T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
: 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
’ 
R

o
le

 i
n

 P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 P

a
re

n
ta

l 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
- 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
’ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

P
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

 S
E

N
D

 –
 O

S
F

T
E

D
 &

 P
a

re
n

t 
V

ie
w

 B
ri

e
fi
n

g
. 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 P

a
re

n
t 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 P

F
S

S
 S

L
A

’s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h

e
 P

a
re

n
t 

&
 C

a
re

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 2

4
th
 O

c
to

b
e

r.
 A

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

D
V

D
  

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
re

n
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 2
.1

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
s

p
ir

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t

P
a

g
e

 1
3

Page 293



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 n
e

w
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 r

o
le

 i
n

 b
ro

k
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
8

0
%

T
h

e
 P

a
re

n
t 

&
 F

a
m

ily
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
lic

y
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n

e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 D

M
T

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

r 
T

H
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

E
n

s
u

re
 n

e
w

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
ta

k
e

-u
p

: 
5

0
%

 o
f 

g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 n

e
w

ly
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

2
5

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 g

o
v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s
 s

in
c
e

 1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
2

, 
1

2
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 h

a
v
e

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
h

is
 t

e
rm

. 
T

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

n
e

w
ly

 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 h
e

ld
 i
n

 

th
e

 s
p

ri
n

g
 t

e
rm

 2
0

1
3

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a

in
ta

in
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s

 w
it

h
 a

ll
 

e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 f

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 

s
c

h
o

o
ls

.

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

L
A

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 b

o
u

g
h

t 
b

a
c
k
 b

y
 m

o
s
t 

lo
c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

6
7

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 1

 a
c
a

d
e

m
y
).

 A
ll 

o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

. 
T

h
o

s
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

re
c
e

iv
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
.

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

y
 d

e
m

a
n

d
. 

V
is

it
s
 t

o
 F

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
M

il
e

s
to

n
e

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
D

e
a

d
li

n
e

S
ta

tu
s

%
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 

F
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 A
c
a

d
e

m
ie

s

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 b
e

fo
re

 i
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

n
th

.

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 

a
ll 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
 s

ta
g

e
s

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
ll 

th
e

 a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

2
0

%
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

ia
n

 –
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 0

.1
%

. 
W

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 

b
e

lo
w

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

A
ll 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
S

1
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

 h
a

v
e

 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

a
rd

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 

g
a

in
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
L

e
v
e

l 
2

b
+

 i
n

 a
ll 

s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
c
s
 a

t 
L

e
v
e

l 
3

.

A
ll 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

K
S

2
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

a
rd

. 
W

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

L
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 

c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

t 
8

2
%

 a
n

d
 i
n

 b
o

th
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
. 

W
e

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
u

b
je

c
ts

 a
t 

L
e

v
e

l 
5

+
A

c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 p
o

s
t-

1
6

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e

r 

fr
o

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
e

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

o
f 

fo
u

r 
n

e
w

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

s
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
S

P
W

T
S

 6
th

 F
o

rm
 i
s
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
T

h
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

6
th

 F
o

rm
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 a
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 

re
s
u

lt
s
, 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
E

v
e

ry
 6

th
 F

o
rm

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 v

is
it
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 

P
a

g
e

 1
4

Page 294



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 o
ff

e
r 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u

te
s

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

-g
o

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
a

re
e

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 m

o
v
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

a
n

d
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

M
a

p
p

in
g

 o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 

v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 L

3
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u

te
s
 p

o
s
t 

1
8

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

tu
m

n
/S

p
ri

n
g

 t
e

rm
 w

o
rk

.

M
o

n
it
o

r 
A

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 p

o
in

t 
s
c
o

re
s
 b

y
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 

a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
T

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 v

e
ri

fi
e

d
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 A

im
 H

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
A

n
n

e
 C

a
n

n
in

g
 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
n

 A
im

 H
ig

h
e

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 4
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
a

d
v
is

e
rs

. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 1

:1
 t

u
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

L
e

v
e

l 
3

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 U
E

L
 a

n
d

 Q
M

U
L

 u
n

iv
e

rs
it
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

s
 

in
 N

o
v
 2

0
1

2
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

a
 g

o
o

d
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
o

ff
e

rs

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
n

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 t

a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ri

e
fe

d
. 

A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 a

s
 a

 

v
ia

b
le

 o
p

ti
o

n
 p

o
s
t 

1
6

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
w

it
h

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
, 

a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
ta

k
e

 u
p

. 
P

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l,
 m

a
s
te

r 
c
la

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

tu
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
a

tt
a

in
in

g
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

h
a

s
e

 2
 o

f 
lit

e
ra

c
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

S
u

m
m

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

ta
rt

in
g

. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 M

a
y
o

r’
s

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 A
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 M
E

A
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

w
a

y
. 

T
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 i
s
 o

p
e

n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
, 

a
ft

e
r 

w
h

ic
h

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

M
E

A
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 

m
in

o
r 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

P
la

c
e

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 M
E

A
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 p
u

b
lic

it
y

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

 M
E

A
 f

o
rm

 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

H
 w

e
b

s
it
e

. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

w
a

y
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

A
s
s
e

s
s
 e

n
ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

y
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 t

h
e

 M
E

A
 

P
o

lic
y

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

T
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

in
d

o
w

 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 M

E
A

 i
s
 o

p
e

n
 u

n
ti
l 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 b

o
th

 o
n

lin
e

 a
n

d
 b

y
 p

a
p

e
r.

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 d

a
te

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
a

ft
e

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 t
e

rm
ly

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

n
ti
tl
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 

a
w

a
rd

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 t
e

rm
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

E
A

 P
o

lic
y
. 

M
a

k
e

 f
ir

s
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
A

la
n

 F
in

c
h

 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
1

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
E

A
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 a

 t
e

rm
ly

 b
a

s
is

, 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 

re
c
o

rd
 f

o
r 

th
a

t 
te

rm
, 

a
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 e
n

ti
tl
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
rd

 w
ill

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
ir

 f
ir

s
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

.

P
a

g
e

 1
5

Page 295



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

u
rs

a
ry

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 

e
n

a
b

le
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

E
A

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

u
rs

a
ry

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
F

u
tu

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 d
u

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 y
o

u
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

n
e

w
 P

A
Y

P
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

Y
o

u
n

g
 M

a
y
o

r 
a

n
d

 Y
o

u
th

 C
o

u
n

c
il

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

liv
e

r 
s
u

m
m

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

c
e

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
c

h
o

o
l 

p
la

c
e

s

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

5
%

G
L

A
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 b

u
t 

fe
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 a

re
 

s
ti
ll 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

ill
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 P

u
p

il 
P

la
c
e

 G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 

w
o

rk
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

y
e

a
r 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

v
ie

w
 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
g

ro
w

th
 

o
f 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

C
a

b
in

e
t.

 R
e

v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
s
s
e

ts
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
.

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
 

(C
S

F
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

W
h

ile
 G

L
A

 l
a

te
s
t 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 (

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
) 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 C

a
b

in
e

t 

R
e

p
o

rt
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
llo

w
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
e

d
iu

m
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
ie

s
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 L

B
T

H
 s

it
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
y
e

t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 

a
n

d
 a

n
y
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 p

la
c
e

s

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
8

5
%

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
P

u
p

il 
P

la
c
e

 G
ro

w
th

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

to
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 –
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

t 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

u
p

il 
P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
e

d
iu

m
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 p

u
p

il 
g

ro
w

th
 t

o
 2

0
2

0

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(C
S

F
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

5
%

B
o

w
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

-2
0

. 
 T

h
e

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
it
e

s
 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

is
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

u
p

il 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

ju
s
t 

s
h

o
rt

, 

m
e

d
iu

m
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
G

L
A

 l
a

te
s
t 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 (

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
) 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

, 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

a
n

d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 
T

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

re
v
ie

w
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

.

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 D
&

R
 o

n
 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 

w
h

e
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

C
IL

 a
n

d
 

s
. 

1
0

6
, 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

K
a

te
 B

in
g

h
a

m
 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

A
w

a
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 o
f 

th
e

 W
e

s
tf

e
rr

y
 P

ri
n

tw
o

rk
s
 

a
n

d
 N

e
w

s
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
it
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 w

it
h

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.2
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

P
a

g
e

 1
6

Page 296



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 

m
a

x
im

is
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

 g
o

in
g

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 j
o

in
e

d
 u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

: 
jo

b
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
, 

T
H

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
, 

g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

Q
2

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
c
o

p
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 c
ro

s
s
-b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

S
c
o

p
in

g
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 H

o
s
t 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 h

a
v
e

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

 t
h

re
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
O

n
 g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 o

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

ru
s
s
le

r 
H

a
ll 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b

 b
u

ild
in

g
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 f

o
rm

a
lis

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

te
e

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 

fo
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

8
%

P
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

fi
t 

o
u

t 
o

f 
s
p

a
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 o

f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
lly

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

F
o

rm
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

a
ta

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
0

%
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 b
y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 b

y
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
, 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 e
v
e

ry
 s

ix
 m

o
n

th
s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 j
o

b
 e

n
tr

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
a

ta
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i

n
to

 j
o

b
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 L

D
A

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

G
L

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

 

in
a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
P

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

d
is

ta
n

c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
to

 e
n

g
a

g
e

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

ff
e

r 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
im

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 W
o

rk
in

g
 S

ta
rt

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
o

s
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
s
t 

fr
o

m
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
c
lie

n
ts

 a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 S

k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 a

n
d

 o
b

ta
in

 a
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ils
t 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ri

ly
 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

S
e

c
u

re
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 -
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 W

e
s
tf

ie
ld

, 
2

0
1

2
, 

C
ro

s
s
ra

il,
 a

n
d

 W
o

o
d

 

W
h

a
rf

 -
o

n
to

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

 g
o

in
g

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 W

e
s
tf

ie
ld

 r
e

ta
il 

tu
rn

o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 

v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

ro
s
s
ra

il.
 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 b

o
ls

te
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
s
k
 a

t 

S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 a

n
d

 j
o

b
s
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 c

o
m

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

s
 n

e
w

 S
P

D
 t

a
k
e

s
 

a
ff

e
c
t.

E
v
a

lu
a

te
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 j
o

b
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
g

ili
s
y
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
is

 o
n

 g
o

in
g

 -
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 1

2
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

o
p

e
n

 d
a

y
s
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 w
in

n
in

g
 b

id
d

e
r 

fo
r 

T
H

 H
o

m
e

s
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

g
ili

s
y
s
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s
 D

e
c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a

m
e

s
 

ti
m

e
 j

o
b

s
 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 1
7

Page 297



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
-

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
V

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

o
s
t 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 L

O
C

O
G

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
s
tr

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

O
n

 g
o

in
g

 m
a

tc
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
L

o
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 a
c
ti
v
e

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
d

a
y
. 

1
0

0
0

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 G

a
m

e
s
 j
o

b
 o

ff
e

rs
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

G
a

m
e

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
2

8
5

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

o
rk

e
d

 f
o

r 
L

O
C

O
G

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

1
,8

0
1

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
jo

b
 o

ff
e

rs
 m

a
d

e
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 f

u
ll 

jo
b

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 H
o

s
t 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 a

n
d

 L
O

C
O

G
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r'
s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
1

0
0

0
 j
o

b
s
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 G
a

m
e

s
 i
s
 m

e
t.

 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

t 
ri

s
k

 o
f 

n
o

t 

b
e

in
g

 i
n

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

a
ft

e
r 

Y
e

a
r 

1
1

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 r
e

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

1
1

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 c

a
re

e
rs

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

, 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 p

la
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
ft

e
rc

a
re

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

‘a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
’ 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
; 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
 a

re
 g

iv
e

n
 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

ft
e

rc
a

re
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 

th
e

m
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 N

E
E

T
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 S

1
3

9
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

te
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
e

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
ll 

S
1

3
9

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
le

a
v
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

is
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
if

e
lo

n
g

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

S
O

L
H

e
a

th
e

r 
B

o
n

fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

h
ri

s
 

H
o

lm
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
,5

0
0

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 

fo
r 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 N
e

w
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 

s
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

h
ri

s
 

H
o

lm
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 I

d
e

a
 S

to
re

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 o
ff

e
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
ff

e
r 

m
e

e
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

h
ri

s
 

H
o

lm
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

Im
p

ro
v
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 E

S
O

L
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

b
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 u

p
ta

k
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 E

S
O

L
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

h
ri

s
 

H
o

lm
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

E
S

O
L

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 C

h
ri

s
 

H
o

lm
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 3
rd

 s
e

c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

T
H

 C
o

lle
g

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
E

S
O

L
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 M

a
y
o

r’
s

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 B

o
a

rd
 

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

O
n

 g
o

in
g

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

M
a

y
o

r'
s
 B

o
a

rd
 f

o
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 1
8

Page 298



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 B
o

a
rd

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
b

o
th

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 B
o

a
rd

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

0
%

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 n
a

m
e

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

a
l 

in
v
it
a

ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ta
ti
o

n
 f

a
c
to

re
d

 i
n

to
 n

e
w

 D
iv

is
io

n
 

F
ir

s
t 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
0

%
A

w
a

it
in

g
 f

ir
s
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

id
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 r
a

is
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

  
A

 k
e

y
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
 M

o
n

e
y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 M
o

n
th

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

e
v
e

n
t 

to
o

k
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 3
rd

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 i
s
 i
n

 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

H
ig

h
 p

ro
fi
le

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

E
n

d
 L

if
e

, 
w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

m
e

d
ia

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 W

e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 P

le
d

g
e

 w
a

s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 a
n

d
 w

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 u

p
 b

y
 

c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

E
n

d
 L

if
e

 a
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
o

n
e

y
 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 M

o
n

th
 (

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r)

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 v
id

e
o

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
 s

to
p

 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 p

o
s
te

rs
. 

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

le
a

fl
e

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

v
e

n
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
.

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
 l
e

tt
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
n

t 
to

 a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 C
a

p
 a

n
d

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

v
is

it
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
n

 g
o

in
g

. 
 T

h
e

 v
is

it
s
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
o

rs
t 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
. 

  

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 b

ri
e

fe
d

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 

d
is

s
e

m
in

a
te

d

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

 w
e

b
 p

a
g

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

-

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

fr
o

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

D
e

liv
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

o
a

d
 s

h
o

w
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 a
t 

4
-6

 v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
9

5
%

T
h

e
s
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

 a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

M
o

n
e

y
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 M
o

n
th

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

g
a

g
e

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

 c
o

-

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
) 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

T
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 F

o
ru

m
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 a
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 o
n

 w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
, 

th
e

 c
h

a
ir

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 

o
n

-g
o

in
g

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
it
h

 T
o

w
e

r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 F

o
ru

m

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
) 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 R

S
L

s
, 

L
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 F

o
ru

m
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
) 

a
n

d
 J

a
c
k
ie

 

O
d

u
n

o
y
e

 (
D

&
R

)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

S
L

s
, 

o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 T

a
s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.3
: 

M
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
w

e
lf

a
re

 r
e

fo
rm

 o
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 1
9

Page 299



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 c
o

u
n

c
il

 

ta
x

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

p
o

li
c

y

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 f

u
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

ft
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
e

w
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

p
o

lic
y
 a

g
re

e
d

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

P
o

lic
y
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
n

d
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 L

e
g

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l

S
y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

lis
e

d
C

la
ir

e
 S

y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

IC
T

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

r 
A

p
ri

l 

2
0

1
3

. 

E
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
F

u
n

d
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 t
o

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts

C
la

ir
e

 S
y
m

o
n

d
s
 

(R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
F

u
n

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

te
a

m
, 

n
o

w
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
te

e
r 

fr
o

m
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

n
 d

e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

w
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
o

c
ia

l 
fu

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 o

ff
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
s

ta
b

li
s

h
 a

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 F

o
ru

m
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 s
e

t
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
F

o
rm

a
t 

fo
r 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 f

o
ru

m
 e

v
e

n
t

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

 p
ro

s
p

e
c
tu

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
v
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

.

H
o

ld
 f

o
ru

m
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 n
e

x
t 

s
te

p
s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

0
%

E
v
e

n
t 

ti
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

ls
o

 d
e

p
e

n
d

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
is

h
e

s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 e
v
e

n
t 

ti
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 s

lip
p

a
g

e
 t

o
 

N
e

w
 Y

e
a

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

G
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
G

L
A

 b
id

 

u
n

d
e

r 
S

u
p

e
r-

C
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 C

it
ie

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
Q

2
 S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

g
a

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 b

u
ild

 

re
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
; 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
  

s
o

u
g

h
t 

o
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
w

e
b

-b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
C

h
ri

s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
.

E
v
a

lu
a

te
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
M

E
s

C
h

ri
s
 H

o
lm

e
 

(D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

%
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 w
ill

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

fa
c
ili

ty
.

A
 P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.4
: 

F
o

s
te

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip
 

P
a

g
e

 2
0

Page 300



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

T
H

E
O

s
) 

to
 

p
ro

a
c

ti
v
e

ly
 t

a
c

k
le

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 A

S
B

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
H

E
O

s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 i
n

 4
 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 

lo
c
a

lis
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
ra

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 M
a

rk
e

t 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 ‘

V
io

le
n

c
e

 A
g

a
in

s
t 

W
o

m
e

n
 &

 G
ir

ls
’ 

(V
A

W
G

) 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 V
A

W
G

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 

s
ta

rt
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 e

.g
. 

w
it
h

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 F

e
m

a
le

 G
e

n
it
a

l 

M
u

ti
la

ti
o

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
. 

 T
h

e
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 V
A

W
G

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
d

y
 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 F
o

ru
m

 i
n

to
 a

 

V
A

W
G

 F
o

ru
m

 e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s
in

g
 a

ll 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
a

b
u

s
e

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

w
o

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 g
ir

ls

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

5
%

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

V
 f

o
ru

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 a
ll 

e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s
s
in

g
 f

o
ru

m
 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 a
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 V

A
W

G
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

s
t 

in
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

F
a

c
ili

ta
te

 a
 V

A
W

G
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

a
y
 t

o
 f

o
rg

e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 V

A
W

G
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
0

%

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 V

A
W

G
 w

o
rk

e
r 

w
h

o
m

 w
e

 h
o

p
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

 p
o

s
t 

b
y
 1

s
t 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 V

A
W

G
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

 k
e

y
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
n

 V
A

W
G

 

is
s
u

e
s
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

-t
e

n
d

e
r/

te
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 o

f 
a

 r
e

n
e

w
e

d
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 V

io
le

n
t 

A
d

v
is

o
r 

(I
D

V
A

) 
&

 V
ic

ti
m

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
4

0
%

T
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
lis

e
 J

o
b

 D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

a
d

v
e

rt
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 o

f 
3

 I
D

V
A

s
 a

n
d

 2
 

n
e

w
 p

o
s
ts

, 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

ri
m

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri

m
e

 

a
n

d
 h

a
te

 c
ri

m
e

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

C
o

n
fi
rm

 a
 b

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 d

u
ty

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

0
%

T
h

is
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 p
e

ri
o

d
 b

u
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 3

0
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 C

o
h

e
s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 3
.1

: 
F

o
c

u
s

 o
n

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 a

n
ti

 s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

P
a

g
e

 2
1

Page 301



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

N
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

fo
r 

3
 I

D
V

A
 p

o
s
ts

 f
u

lly
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

0
%

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
c
o

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

-e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 h

a
s
 m

e
a

n
t 

a
 d

e
la

y
 i
n

 r
e

-t
e

n
d

e
ri

n
g

. 
 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
s
 3

1
s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

.

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

2
 n

e
w

 v
ic

ti
m

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 f

u
lly

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

0
%

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
o

u
r 

D
ru

g
s

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

W
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
),

 a
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 b

y
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 d
a

te
. 

 T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

a
s
 

la
u

n
c
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

d
e

s
ig

n
 o

u
r 

d
ru

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
v
e

rd
u

e
2

5
%

R
e

-d
e

s
ig

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
u

ll 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

  
R

e
-t

e
n

d
e

r 
o

f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
.

D
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 d

e
a

le
r 

a
 d

a
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 –
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

3
6

5
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

rr
e

s
te

d
 o

n
 s

u
s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
d

ru
g

 d
e

a
lin

g

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
y
 y

e
a

r 

e
n

d
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 d

is
a

g
g

re
g

a
te

d
 P

I 
fo

r 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

d
ru

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

re
d

e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

b
y
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 u
s
e

rs

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

E
Q

IA
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

-d
e

s
ig

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
s
p

e
n

d
e

d
 b

u
t 

th
is

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

r 
o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 N
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
d

a
ta

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 

J
o

in
t 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 d
ru

g
 y

o
u

th
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 n

ig
h

t 
ti

m
e

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
 C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

P
o

lic
y
 

(S
a

tu
ra

ti
o

n
 P

o
lic

y
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

B
ri

c
k
 L

a
n

e
 a

re
a

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
it

h
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
d

e
li

v
e

r 
th

e
  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
1

0
%

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 

n
e

x
t 

h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 C
S

P
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

's
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 j
u

s
t 

b
e

g
a

n
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

. 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

S
P

 w
ill

 

p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 t
o

 C
S

P
 o

n
 2

4
th

 O
c
to

b
e

r.
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
a

fe
ty

 P
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
e

d
 o

f 
b

y
 C

S
P

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 2
2

Page 302



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 n
e

w
 P

o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 A
S

B

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

0
%

T
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 M

e
m

o
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 t
e

a
m

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

 s
ta

rt
 d

a
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 t
e

a
m

 i
s
 1

s
t 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
 T

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
ill

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 A

S
B

, 
d

ru
g

s
, 

g
a

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
is

h
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 1
 P

S
 a

n
d

 8
 C

o
n

s
ta

b
le

s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
9

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
le

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

p
p

lie
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 M

P
S

 B
O

G
O

F
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 T
H

 P
o

lic
e

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 1

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
S

 f
o

r 
s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

s
s
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
c
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

a
n

d
 o

f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 I

n
s
p

e
c
to

r.
  

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
C

L
C

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
fo

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.

C
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 A

S
B

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
4

0
%

C
S

P
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 G

ro
u

p
 m

e
t 

o
n

 4
th

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
to

 a
g

re
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
  

b
e

h
in

d
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 d
u

e
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
's

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 

J
u

n
e

 -
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

liv
e

ry
. 

N
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

S
P

 o
n

 1
1

th
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
0

%

E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
la

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

. 
D

e
a

d
lin

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

 o
f 

3
1

s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

 a
g

re
e

d
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
0

%
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 

M
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
o

u
r 

C
C

T
V

 P
o

li
c

y
A

n
d

y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
9

5
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 A
 d

ra
ft

 n
e

w
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

D
M

T
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
lis

e
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 p
o

lic
y

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
fu

n
d

e
d

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

In
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 &
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 A

N
P

R
 C

C
T

V
 

le
g

a
c
y

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

3
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

1
2

 M
e

la
H

e
a

th
e

r 
B

o
n

fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

fo
r 

s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
rt

ie
s

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

P
la

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 g

o
ld

e
n

 J
u

b
ile

e
 B

ig
 

L
u

n
c
h

 e
v
e

n
t,

 B
e

a
c
o

n
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 R
iv

e
r 

P
a

g
e

a
n

t

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 C

o
h

e
s

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.3
: 

F
o

s
te

r 
g

re
a

te
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s

io
n

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 C

o
h

e
s

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.2
: 

 R
e

d
u

c
e

 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

P
a

g
e

 2
3

Page 303



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 

w
h

ic
h

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

iv
e

rs
e

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g

 ‘
O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
8

3
%

T
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 1

2
0

 e
v
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 a
u

d
ie

n
c
e

 o
f 

1
0

0
 p

lu
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 o

r 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 9

9
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 

o
f 

Is
la

m
o

p
h

o
b

ia
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 

to
 i

t 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

A
c
ti
o

n
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

e
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
c
ti
o

n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 o

n
 f

a
r 

ri
g

h
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
w

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 h

e
ld

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e

 f
a

r 
ri

g
h

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
1

0
-1

2
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
a

it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

y
o

u
th

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 d

ra
w

in
g

 o
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

in
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

P
a

g
e

 2
4

Page 304



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

li
v
e

r 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
P

re
v
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

O
n

 T
ra

c
k

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
id

s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

 b
id

 w
a

s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 o

n
 1

4
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r,

 a
n

d
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

 

O
ff

ic
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

  

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
L

o
u

is
e

 R
u

s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
N

/A
T

h
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 

b
id

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

c
o

h
e

s
io

n
 w

o
rk

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

T
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r'
s
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 

n
in

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
u

n
d

e
d

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a

u
n

c
h

 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r’
s
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

.

H
o

ld
 a

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 d

is
s
e

m
in

a
te

 t
h

e
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
T

h
e

 e
v
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
o

 S
a

fe
 

a
n

d
 C

o
h

e
s
iv

e
 C

P
D

G
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

5
%

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 

C
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 C

P
D

G
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

M
o

n
it
o

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 o

n
 ‘
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

a
y
 t

h
a

t 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 g

e
t 

o
n

 w
e

ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r’

 b
y
 e

th
n

ic
it
y
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
d

e
r

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

g
a

g
e

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 p

e
ri

o
d

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

S
h

a
z
ia

 H
u

s
s
a

in
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
N

H
S

 r
e

fo
rm

s
 a

re
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 l

o
c

a
ll

y

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

T
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
, 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
 f

o
rm

a
l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
is

 b
e

in
g

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 f
o

r 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
  

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

b
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
.

A
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 4
.1

: 
R

e
d

u
c

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e

a
lt

h
y
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
s

P
a

g
e

 2
5

Page 305



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
H

S
 c

lu
s
te

r 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

p
u

b
lic

 

h
e

a
lt
h

 w
it
h

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 P

la
n

 w
a

s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 g
re

e
n

 R
A

G
 r

a
ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 N
H

S
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

. 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

N
H

S
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 e
x
e

rc
is

e
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 t

e
a

m
s

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

5
%

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 S
ta

ff
 s

id
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
ta

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 h

a
p

p
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

w
a

y
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
. 

L
B

T
H

 J
o

in
t 

T
ra

d
e

 U
n

io
n

 F
o

rm
 w

a
s
 b

ri
e

fe
d

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

ri
e

fe
d

 a
g

a
in

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

a
p

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 s

ig
n

 o
ff

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
n

 g
o

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 f

o
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 A
 l
is

t 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 1

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

.

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 W
a

tc
h

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
c

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
D

e
b

o
ra

h
 C

o
h

e
n

 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

J
o

in
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

c
o

p
e

 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

J
o

in
t 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

c
o

p
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
u

p
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
.

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
) 

a
n

d
 

L
o

u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e

ll 

(C
E

's
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

P
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 v
is

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
l 
to

 t
h

e
 H

W
B

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 S

m
o

k
e

 F
re

e
 A

w
a

rd
s

A
n

d
y
 B

a
m

b
e

r 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

1
8

 a
w

a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

0
. 

 O
n

e
 a

w
a

rd
 c

e
re

m
o

n
y
 h

a
s
 

ta
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

iv
e

s
A

n
n

e
 C

a
n

n
in

g
 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e

c
ru

it
 a

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 w
o

rk
e

r 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a

re
 

le
a

v
e

rs
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
A

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 w
o

rk
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

P
a

g
e

 2
6

Page 306



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

tu
s
: 

8
9

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 s
ta

tu
s

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

8
9

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 o
r 

a
re

 r
e

n
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

T
h

e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 G
L

A
 a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ilo

t 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 

fo
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 L

o
n

d
o

n
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 

e
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

• 
L

u
n

c
h

ti
m

e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

it
h

 5
0

 s
c
h

o
o

ls

• 
P

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
p

a
c
k
e

d
 l
u

n
c
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

it
h

 2
0

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 2
0

 p
a

re
n

ts

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
4

0
%

L
u

n
c
h

ti
m

e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

: 
6

6
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 1
6

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
 P

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
p

a
c
k
e

d
 l
u

n
c
h

: 
4

0
 p

u
p

ils
, 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

ff
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
ra

in
e

d
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
p

a
c
k
e

d
 l
u

n
c
h

 f
ro

m
 6

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

if
e

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

in
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 e

it
h

e
r 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
o

r 
o

b
e

s
e

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 1

5
 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
O

v
e

r 
5

0
0

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 1
5

0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
.

D
e

liv
e

r 
a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
S

R
E

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

b
o

th
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 a

n
d

 

w
it
h

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
.

• 
T

w
o

 c
e

n
tr

a
lly

 l
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 a

ll 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
ta

ff
 

• 
5

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 L

iv
e

s
 T

e
a

m
 w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 2
 d

a
y
s
 

o
f 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
S

R
E

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 S
R

E
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

t 
5

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

IN
S

E
T

.

E
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 

n
u

rs
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

in
 a

ll 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls

A
n

n
e

 C
a

n
n

in
g

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

S
c
h

o
o

l 
n

u
rs

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

C
T

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 

B
a

rt
s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
v
e

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 l

e
is

u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

 a
n

d
 

p
la

y
in

g
 p

it
c

h
e

s

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
) 

a
n

d
 A

n
n

 

S
u

tc
lif

fe
 (

D
&

R
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
s
 t

o
 S

t.
 G

e
o

rg
e

’s
 

P
o

o
l

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

D
e

liv
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 M
ile

 E
n

d
 S

ta
d

iu
m

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
rk

 c
ri

c
k
e

t 
p

it
c
h

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 c
ri

c
k
e

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 

o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

H
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

n
fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
g

re
e

d
 i
n

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

0
6

 f
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 b

id
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 w

id
e

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
y
 n

e
e

d
s
.

Im
p

ro
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
V

ic
to

ri
a

 P
a

rk
H

e
a

th
e

r 
B

o
n

fi
e

ld
 

(C
L

C
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t
3

0
%

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

.

P
o

p
la

r 
B

a
th

s
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

–
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

in
it
ia

l 
s
e

le
c
ti
o

n

A
n

n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

O
J
E

U
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

. 
 C

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

re
tu

rn
s
 t

o
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l 
in

v
it
a

ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 o
n

 1
9

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r.

  
A

n
 

in
it
ia

l 
s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 e

a
rl

y
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

  

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

fi
n

a
l 
s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
A

n
n

 S
u

tc
lif

fe
 

(D
&

R
)

3
0

/1
1

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

5
%

D
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 a

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

e
n

te
re

d
 i
n

to
 u

n
ti
l 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

, 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l.
 

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.2
: 

 E
n

a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl

y

P
a

g
e

 2
7

Page 307



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

0
%

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
tr

a
n

d
s
 a

re
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

u
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
to

 

p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
rs

 J
o

u
rn

e
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
 n

e
w

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 p
ro

je
c
t 

lin
k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 V

ir
tu

a
l 
W

a
rd

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

0
%

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 w
it
h

 o
n

e
 n

u
rs

e
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
t 

th
e

 C
a

re
rs

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 a
t 

O
ld

 M
o

n
ta

g
u

e
 S

tr
e

e
t.

 T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
lin

k
e

d
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 V

ir
tu

a
l 
W

a
rd

.

C
a

re
rs

’ 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 

g
iv

e
 c

a
re

rs
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 c

h
o

o
s
e

 

to
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
5

%

N
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

a
re

rs
 P

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e

t,
 c

a
re

rs
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 

ta
k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
rs

 J
o

u
rn

e
y

E
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
le

is
u

re
 p

a
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 

o
th

e
r 

c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
5

0
%

F
u

n
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 C
a

re
rs

 C
e

n
tr

e

E
n

s
u

re
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 p

la
n

s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
2

0
%

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

re
rs

 J
o

u
rn

e
y
 P

ro
je

c
t,

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 b

y
 e

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
 

th
e

 p
ri

n
c

ip
le

s
 o

f 
c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
4

0
%

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

b
u

t 
a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

e
n

d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
s
. 

 C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 M
a

rc
h

 3
1

 2
0

1
3

 

d
e

a
d

lin
e

s
. 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 ‘
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
jo

u
rn

e
y
’ 

w
it
h

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

e
ir

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s
 a

 c
a

s
h

 b
u

d
g

e
t

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

F
o

rm
a

l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
J
o

u
rn

e
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 &

 c
lo

s
e

d
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 h
a

v
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 P

S
M

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 ‘
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
jo

u
rn

e
y
’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
4

0
%

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 P

ro
je

c
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
c
u

re
d

. 
A

ll 
w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

. 

E
v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ilo

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
7

0
%

T
h

e
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 

(i
n

 t
a

n
d

e
m

 w
it
h

 P
P

R
E

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 o

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

).
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 

3
1

/1
0

/1
2

.
A

g
re

e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
h

o
ic

e
 i
n

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
4

0
%

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a

m
 o

f 
J
S

M
T

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 o

n
 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
, 

b
u

t 
th

is
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 3

1
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
, 

a
n

d
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

y
 1

 m
o

n
th

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
h

a
s
e

s
.

L
a

u
n

c
h

 t
h

e
 e

-m
a

rk
e

tp
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

in
te

rn
e

t

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

5
%

L
e

v
e

l 
T

h
re

e
 Q

u
o

ta
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
g

in
 o

n
c
e

 i
n

p
u

t 
in

to
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 

IT
 i
s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
. 

 W
e

 a
re

 a
im

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

 o
f 

la
te

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
to

 p
o

s
t 

th
e

 a
d

v
e

rt
.

P
a

g
e

 2
8

Page 308



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

M
o

n
it
o

r 
u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 

T
e

le
c
a

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
s
h

 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 b
y
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
3

0
%

E
q

u
a

lit
y
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a

ll 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 

th
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
T

e
le

c
a

re
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 I
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
a

lit
y
.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p

ro
v
e

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 A

c
c

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
K

a
th

a
ri

n
e

 M
a

rk
s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
9

0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 a

re
 e

it
h

e
r 

c
lo

s
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

r 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

m
o

d
e

l 
in

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 f

u
lly

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

.

L
a

u
n

c
h

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 T
e

le
c
a

re
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
it
h

 

m
e

d
iu

m
 o

r 
h

ig
h

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
8

0
%

N
e

w
 A

s
s
is

ti
v
e

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
S

u
e

 S
ta

rk
e

y
 H

o
u

s
e

 -
 n

e
w

 e
x
tr

a
 

c
a

re
 s

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
o

r 
le

a
rn

in
g

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

O
p

e
n

e
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

p
t 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 o

n
 1

9
th

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
.

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
S

h
ip

to
n

 H
o

u
s
e

 -
 e

x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 

fa
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

a
n

d
 D

e
b

o
ra

h
 

C
o

h
e

n
 (

A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

O
p

e
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t.

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s

 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c

a
re

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

T
h

e
 d

a
te

 h
a

s
 s

lip
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 v

ir
tu

a
l 

w
a

rd
 a

n
d

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

 J
S

N
A

 a
n

d
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e

t 
u

p
 t

h
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 

W
e

llb
e

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
6

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
5

0
%

D
a

te
 h

a
s
 s

lip
p

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 N
H

S
 p

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 b

e
fo

re
 

y
e

a
r'
s
 e

n
d

. 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 j
o

in
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%
W

o
rk

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
u

b
 g

ro
u

p
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 v

ir
tu

a
l 
w

a
rd

 t
o

 b
e

 r
o

lle
d

 o
u

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

w
h

o
le

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n

R
e

fr
e

s
h

 J
S

N
A

 a
n

d
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

D
e

b
o

ra
h

 C
o

h
e

n
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
7

0
%

O
n

 t
ra

c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.4
: 

 K
e

e
p

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
il

d
re

n
, 

a
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s

 s
a

fe
r,

 m
in

im
is

in
g

 h
a

rm
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
le

c
t

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.3
: 

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

x
c

e
ll

e
n

t 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

a
re

P
a

g
e

 2
9

Page 309



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 P

L
A

N
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

D
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
s

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
5

0
%

S
e

v
e

ra
l 
s
tr

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 
b

u
t 

m
a

n
y
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e

 

ta
k
e

n
 o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r.

  

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/1
2

/2
0

1
2

O
v
e

rd
u

e
2

0
%

T
h

is
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
e

d
 o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
A

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 

th
e

 p
la

n
.

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
n

 i
n

te
r-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
s
e

v
e

re
 s

e
lf
-

n
e

g
le

c
t

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

(A
H

W
)

3
0

/0
9

/2
0

1
2

D
e

la
y
e

d
5

0
%

B
a

s
ic

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 t

e
a

m
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 -
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 g

o
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

S
A

B
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
, 

a
g

a
in

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 l
e

d
 o

n
 b

y
 

th
e

 i
n

c
o

m
in

g
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r.

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 S
C

R
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
te

a
m

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 

s
e

lf
 n

e
g

le
c
t 

c
a

s
e

s
. 

D
e

fi
n

e
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt
s
 

B
o

a
rd

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

D
e

la
y
e

d
2

0
%

T
h

e
 S

A
B

 c
h

a
ir

 w
ill

 i
n

p
u

t 
in

to
 t

h
e

 H
W

B
G

; 
a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 

s
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
te

m
 f

o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

. 
T

h
e

 i
n

c
o

m
in

g
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 

ta
k
e

 a
 v

ie
w

 a
s
 t

o
 w

h
a

t 
ro

le
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
la

y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
W

B
G

.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

A
d

u
lt
s
 B

o
a

rd

K
a

th
a

ri
n

e
 M

a
rk

s
 

(A
H

W
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1

0
0

%

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 s

e
t 

u
p

 f
o

r 
re

-e
n

e
rg

is
e

d
 S

u
b

 g
ro

u
p

s
; 

th
e

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

h
a

s
 m

e
t 

c
a

re
r 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 S
A

B
's

 w
o

rk
 

A
c

ti
v
it

y
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 

C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
fa

m
il

ie
s

 u
s

in
g

 

o
u

r 
F

a
m

il
y
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 M
o

d
e

l 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

S
te

v
e

 L
id

d
ic

o
tt

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

W
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 F
W

M
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

.

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ily
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 M

o
d

e
l 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 M

u
lt
i-

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 H
u

b
 (

M
A

S
H

),
 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 N
H

S

S
te

v
e

 L
id

d
ic

o
tt

 

(C
S

F
)

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
3

O
n

 T
a

rg
e

t
6

0
%

A
n

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

u
p

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 M

A
S

H
; 

P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 

N
H

S
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 a

re
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u

p
. 

T
h

e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
in

g
 M

A
S

H
 m

o
d

e
ls

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

L
A

s
, 

s
c
o

p
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

m
o

d
e

l 
a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 l
o

g
is

ti
c
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

-l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
.

P
a

g
e

 3
0

Page 310



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

9
2

9
2

8
9

R
E

D

�

6
.5

6
.5

7
.1

7
R

E
D

�

5
0

5
0

4
6

R
E

D

�

T
h
is

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

d
a
ta

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
d
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
7
.1

7
 d

a
y
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 0

.6
7
 d

a
y
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
.5

 d
a
y
s
. 

S
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

.0
3
 o

f 
a
 d

a
y
 t

o
 3

.5
3
 a

n
d
 

lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

.0
2
 o

f 
a
 d

a
y
 t

o
 3

.6
7
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 h

a
s
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
a
n
e
l 
(C

A
M

P
) 

a
n
d
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
a
n
e
ls

 w
ill

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
tl
y
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 r

e
tu

rn
s
. 

S
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 a
n
d
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
re

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 H

R
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
.

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

L
P

0
7

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 

w
o

m
e

n
 (

%
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 H
R

 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

o
 

R
e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 (

W
F

T
R

C
) 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 l
im

it
e
d
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

t 
th

is
 l
e
v
e
l.

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 h

o
p
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 N

a
v
ig

a
te

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

th
e
 n

e
w

 c
a
re

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 

w
ill

 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,

 5
4
%

 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
o
o
l 
w

e
re

 w
o
m

e
n
. 

O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 f

ig
u
re

 (
J
u
ly

-S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r)

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

d
ro

p
 f

ro
m

 9
0
%

 t
o
 8

9
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

is
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t,

 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 f

ro
m

 8
8
%

 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 9

2
%

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 d

ri
v
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 o

n
 c

a
ll 

h
a
n
d
lin

g
 s

o
ft

 s
k
ill

s
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
rs

.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 

lo
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k

n
e

s
s

 a
b

s
e

n
c

e
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 (

n
r)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

F
T

E
 s

ta
ff

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

8
4

8
5

8
6

8
7

8
8

8
9

9
0

9
1

9
2

9
3

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n

S
e
p

D
e

c
M

a
r

�
�
��
�
�
�
�	


��
�
��
	�

�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�

�


��
�

�
	
��
�

�
	
��
�

�
	
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�



�
��
�

4
3

4
4

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

4
9

5
0

5
1

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

	�
�	
��
�
��
	�
�	
��

�
�
	�
�	
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
�	
�
��
	�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

	
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

0123456789

1
0

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
� 
��

��
��
	�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��

	!
�
�	
�
�
!
��
��

�

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

P
a
g

e
 1

Page 311



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

3
0

3
0

2
4

A
M

B
E

R

�

5
.5

5
.5

4
.1

0
A

M
B

E
R

�
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
L

P
0

7
 o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

ta
ff

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 

a
 d

is
a

b
il

it
y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 

in
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
) 

(%
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 

 G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 u

n
d
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

w
it
h
in

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

t 

th
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
p
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 N

a
v
ig

a
te

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 

h
e
lp

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

L
P

0
7

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 

fr
o

m
 a

n
 e

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 (
%

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 b
u
t 

fi
g

u
re

s
 c

a
n
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 w

it
h
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
re

a
ti
n
g

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 N

a
v
ig

a
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

6
1
.2

9
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

N
a
v
ig

a
te

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

ta
le

n
t 

p
o
o
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 P

O
3
 –

 P
O

6
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 

m
o
re

 s
e
n
io

r 
ro

le
s
, 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 u

s
in

g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
, 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 u

p
o
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
	

�
�
��

�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

	�
�	
��
�
��
	�
�	
��

�
�
	�
�	
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
��
	�
��

�
	�
�
	�
��

�
��
	�

��
�
��
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
��
	

�
��
�

�
��
�

0123456

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

	�
�	
��
�
��
	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�	
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�

	�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�

P
a
g

e
 2

Page 312



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

8
1
7

4
0
8
.5

2
8
8

R
E

D

�

2
2
5

2
2
5

5
1

R
E

D

�

1
2
0
0

5
0
0

7
3
6

G
R

E
E

N

�
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

e
d

 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 r

e
h

o
u

s
e

d
, 

le
ts

 t
o

 

o
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

e
d

 h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

le
ts

 t
o
 

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

C
H

R
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

la
c
k
in

g
 o

n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 (
g

ro
s
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 r

e
n
t)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

il
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 (

g
ro

s
s
 f

ig
u

re
s
 

o
n

ly
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(a
 c

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
-

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

. 
 F

a
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 3

 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

C
lo

s
e
ly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
, 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
n
 t

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 r
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
to

 1
3
/1

4
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 t

h
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
. 

 A
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t,

 w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
 t

im
e
. 

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 

o
v
e
r 

7
0
0
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
, 

it
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
 t

o
p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

.

2
8
8
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 j
u
s
t 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
0
0
. 

 

W
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

ri
g

in
a
lly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 i
n
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 

b
e
in

g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 (

d
o
u
b
le

 o
th

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

u
b
 r

e
g

io
n
),

 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
fo

re
c
a
s
t 

is
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 p

ro
fi
le

d
. 

  
D

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 2
,0

2
3
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
, 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
, 

w
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
 t

o
p
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
is

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 M

a
y
o
r’

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
,0

0
0
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 w

it
h
 R

e
g

is
te

re
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t,

 w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

o
n
 t

im
e
.

7
3
6
 l
e
ts

 w
e
re

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 f
a
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

0

5
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n
e

S
e
p
t

D
e

c
M

a
r

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�

��
�
	#
�
��

��
$



�



�

�
�
�

�
�
	

	
�
�

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n
e

S
e
p
t

D
e

c
M

a
r

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
��

��
�
�	
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�	
��
�	
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	#
�
��

��
$



�
�

�
�
	

�


�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

	
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
	
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
��
	�
�
	�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�	

P
a
g

e
 3

Page 313



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

6
1
.5

1
.8

G
R

E
E

N

�

2
2

3
.9

A
M

B
E

R

�

4
4

6
.9

A
M

B
E

R

�

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

w
h
o
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
(s

),
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
:

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
. 

  
  

  
  

  
 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

1
1

L
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 

li
tt

e
r 

(%
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

1
0

T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

E
x
tr

a
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 t

o
 c

le
a
n
 u

p
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll.

 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
ta

il 
in

 '
o
th

e
r 

'h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
' 
a
n
d
 '
h
ig

h
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
' 
la

n
d
 u

s
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

o
 V

e
o
lia

 a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
. 

T
h
is

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 J

u
n
e
 (

Q
1
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

fo
r 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 D
u
e
 t

o
 a

 d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t

im
e
 l
a
g

, 
th

e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

e
a
rl
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

  

T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t.

 L
e
tt

e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 r
e
m

a
in

 v
e
ry

 l
o
w

. 
L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
 c

u
lm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

tr
a
n
c
h
e
 

s
c
o
re

 f
o
r 

lit
te

r.
 L

it
te

r 
is

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 u

s
u
a
l 
in

 a
re

a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
  

'h
ig

h
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
' 
a
n
d
 '
o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
'.
 T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

o
 V

e
o
lia

 a
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
.

L
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 

d
e

tr
it

u
s

 (
%

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

�
��

�
��

	

�
�

���	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%�
!
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
&
	'
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	(
��
��
�
�

	
��

�
��

�

�
�

���	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%�
!
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
&
	'
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	(
)
�
��
��
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��

���	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

*
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�

�
��
�
�

P
a
g

e
 4

Page 314



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

6
6

5
.9

G
R

E
E

N

�

2
2

0
.7

G
R

E
E

N

�

2
9

2
9

2
6
.8

2
R

E
D

�

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 

g
ra

ff
it

i 
(%

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a
d
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
, 

e
x
tr

a
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
ts

p
o
t 

a
re

a
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 t

o
 

c
le

a
r 

u
p
 d

e
fa

c
e
m

e
n
t.

 T
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 B
e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

, 
B

o
w

 W
e
s
t,

 M
ile

 E
n
d
 E

a
s
t,

 

M
ill

w
a
ll,

 &
 S

h
a
d
w

e
ll.

 W
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
S

h
a
d
w

e
ll,

 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

w
a
rd

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

g
ra

ff
it
i.

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 -

 

fl
y
-p

o
s

ti
n

g
 (

%
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 L
e
a
d
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
, 

e
x
tr

a
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 h

o
ts

p
o
t 

a
re

a
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
. 

T
a
rg

e
t 

w
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 B
e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

, 

B
o
w

 W
e
s
t,

 M
ile

 E
n
d
 E

a
s
t,

 M
ill

w
a
ll,

 &
 S

h
a
d
w

e
ll.

 W
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

, 
th

e
 

o
th

e
r 

w
a
rd

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g

.

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 

w
a

s
te

 s
e

n
t 

fo
r 

re
u

s
e

, 

re
c

y
c

li
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

T
h
is

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 J

u
n
e
 (

Q
1
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 d
u
e
 t

o
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 m
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 

b
io

lo
g

ic
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 

(M
B

T
) 

o
u
tl
e
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 2

3
%

. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 n

e
w

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

a
s
te

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
is

tu
re

 l
o
s
s
, 

e
n
e
rg

y
 f

ro
m

 w
a
s
te

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
 f

ro
m

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 W

a
s
te

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 V

e
o
lia

 t
o
 g

e
t 

th
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

v
ia

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 



��

	

�

�
�

�


�
�

�



�
�

�



�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%�
!
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
&
	'
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	(
+
��
��
��
�	

�
��

�

�

�

�����
	���

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%�
!
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
&
	'
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	(
,
��
(!
�
��
��
�
	

�
	
��

�
	
��

�
�
�

�

�
�
��

�
	
�


�



�


�
�
	

�
	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

	�
�	
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�	
��
�
��

-	
��
��

��
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
!
�
��
��
�

P
a
g

e
 5

Page 315



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

7
0
0

7
0
0

6
3
7
.9

R
E

D

�

6
1

6
1

6
1
.2

G
R

E
E

N

�

7
8

7
8

8
2

G
R

E
E

N

�

P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
A

-L
e
v
e
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 s

c
o
re

 p
e
r 

le
a
rn

e
r 

is
 6

3
7
.9

 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
),

 d
o
w

n
 4

.5
 p

o
in

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

th
e
  

lo
w

e
r 

b
a
n
d
w

id
th

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
4
2
.4

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
7
1
7
.7

, 
b
u
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
3
1
.2

. 
F

in
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 (

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
) 

is
 6

1
.2

%
, 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 

ta
rg

e
t,

 t
h
o
u
g

h
  

a
 s

lig
h
t 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 f

ig
u
re

. 
F

in
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
  

in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
it
 i
s
 n

o
rm

a
l 
to

 s
e
e
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f

o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g

lis
h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 (

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
) 

is
 8

2
%

. 
T

h
is

 e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
8
0
%

. 
F

in
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
.

�   

A
 L

e
v
e

l 
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o

re
 

p
e

r 
s
tu

d
e

n
t 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 

C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 

a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 

M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

	
�
�
��

	
�
�
��

	
�
�

	
�
�



�
�

	
�
�

	
�
�

	
�
�

	
	
�

	
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

%�
!
��


��
�
	

	�
�
�

�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
(


	�
�
�

�	


�

��
��

	�
�
��
��
	�
��

��
	!
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
	

"�
�
�
�	
*
�
�
��
��

	
�
��

	
�
��



�
��

�


��

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



�

	
�

�
�



��

��

�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
.
	�
�	
�
�
��
	

/
(
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
�
�	
+
�
�
'
	�
�	
�
0
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
	'
�
�
��
��

	�
�
�
	

1
�
��

�

�
�

�
	

�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



��

��

�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
��

�
�	2

	�
�	
�
�
�

�
	��

	�
�
��

	'
�
�
��
��

	�
�
�
	1

�
��

�	
�
�	
3
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	4

P
a
g

e
 6

Page 316



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

4
7

5
5

5
5

G
R

E
E

N

�

4
.5

4
.5

1
3
.5

R
E

D
N

/A

7
.3

7
.3

7
.6

A
M

B
E

R

�
O

v
e

ra
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 -

 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

 (
w

o
rk

in
g

 

a
g

e
) 

(%
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

G
a
p
 -

 L
o
w

e
r

T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 a

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
. 

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 m
o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
n
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

a
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
r 

P
o
s
t-

1
6
 c

o
u
rs

e
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r.

 U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

n
o
w

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 a
ll 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
a
in

 

a
ft

e
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t 

g
e
t 

d
e
ta

ils
 f

ro
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 t

h
is

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
t 

th
e
ir
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 b

e
fo

re
 i
t 

c
a
n
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
ir
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
. 

W
h
ils

t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lla

te
d
, 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 

u
n
k
n
o
w

n
, 

 p
u
tt

in
g

 u
p
 t

h
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 N

E
E

T
 f

ig
u
re

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 E

a
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

h
e
re

, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
N

e
w

h
a
m

 h
a
d
 a

 N
E

E
T

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

6
%

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 b

u
t 

1
8
.2

%
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

g
e
t 

a
 t

ru
e
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 N

E
E

T
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 a

ll 
fo

llo
w

 u
p
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

1
6

 t
o

 1
9

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 (

N
E

E
T

) 
(%

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

D
a
ta

 e
n
d
in

g
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 (
6
0
.5

%
) 

h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

is
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 i
s
 

6
8
.1

%
. 

T
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 0

.1
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t,
 b

u
t 

s
ti
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
.

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

7
8

 

p
o

in
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
, 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 

a
n

d
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 %

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

5
5
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
  

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g

e
, 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

F
in

a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3

�
��

�
��



��



�	

	
��

�
�
�






��

	

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

5
6
(5
7
	�
�
�
�	
�
��
�	
�
�
�
	�
��
	�
�
�	
��
	�
�
�
��

��
�
�
-	
�
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
	#
�
'
'
"
$

�
�


�
�	

�
��

�
��

�
�	

02468

1
0

1
2

2
0
0
9
/1

02
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n

S
e
p

D
e

c
M

a
r

+
�
!
	�
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	8
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�

��
��

	�
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
	#
�
�
��
��
�
	

�
��

$

�
�
��

�
	

�
�
��

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



�

	
�

�
�



��

��

�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
�
�	
��
�
��
	�
7
	!
�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
	'
�
��
�
	9
�
�
��
	,
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	

P
a
g

e
 7

Page 317



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

2
2

2
.1

A
M

B
E

R

�
J

S
A

 C
la

im
a

n
t 

R
a

te
 (

g
a

p
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 r

a
te

 (
w

o
rk

in
g

 

a
g

e
) 

(%
) 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

G
a
p
 -

 L
o
w

e
r

T
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 m

e
t 

it
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 s
tr

e
tc

h
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

0
.2

p
p
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
t 

ra
te

 f
ro

m
 6

.0
%

 t
o
 6

.2
%

, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
4
.1

%
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
fo

re
c
a
s
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 u

s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

B
u
d
g

e
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 (
O

B
R

) 
o
n
 t

h
e
 E

n
g

la
n
d
 r

a
te

 s
u
g

g
e
s
ti
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

c
la

im
a
n
t 

c
o
u
n
t 

w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

2
0
1
2
, 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 

b
y
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g

 o
n
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
ils

t 
m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t.

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

2
0
0
9
/1

02
0
1
0
/1

12
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n

S
e
p

D
e

c
M

a
r

+
�
!
	�
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	8
�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�

��
��

	:
�
�
	�
�
�
��

��
	

��
�
�
�
�
��

	#
:�


$	

��
�
��

�
�
�	
��
��
	

P
a
g

e
 8

Page 318



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

5
.2

2
.6

2
.9

R
E

D

�

1
5
.9

8
.0

6
.8

G
R

E
E

N

�

B
o
ro

u
g

h
/M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 P

o
lic

e
 a

re
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g

 k
n
o
w

n
 r

o
b
b
e
rs

, 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
a
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a
rd

 o
n
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 g

a
n
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

e
n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

la
s
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

.

S
a
fe

 a
n

d
 C

o
h

e
s
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

R
a

te
 o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

ro
b

b
e

ry
 

in
c

id
e

n
ts

 1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 

o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

/t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 

1
,0

0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

R
a

te
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 

in
c

id
e

n
ts

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg

la
ry

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

/t
o
ta

l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
,0

0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
	

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�



��

0123456

2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

p
r

M
a

y
J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e

b
2
0
1
2
/1

3

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
!
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��

�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	#
!
�
�	
5
-�
�
�
	!
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
$

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��



�
��
	



��
�

	
��
�

�
	
��

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

p
r

M
a

y
J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e

b
2
0
1
2
/1

3

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	#
!
�
�	
5
-�
�
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�$

P
a
g

e
 9

Page 319



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

1
2

6
6
.0

3
A

M
B

E
R

�

8
.4

4
.2

4
.9

1
R

E
D

�
R

a
te

 o
f 

v
io

le
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 i

n
ju

ry
 

c
ri

m
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg

la
ry

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

/t
o
ta

l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
,0

0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

R
a

te
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
 

in
c

id
e

n
ts

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg

la
ry

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

/t
o
ta

l 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
,0

0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

T
h
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

o
lic

e
 a

re
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 

re
g

u
la

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 m

o
to

rc
y
c
le

 t
h
e
ft

 a
n
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 

th
a
t 

e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
.

P
o
lic

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 s
u
g

g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

ri
s
in

g
 b

u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

g
e
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 c

ri
m

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
ju

ry
 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 v
io

le
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 

in
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 i
n
ju

ri
e
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
D

V
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 

is
 a

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

in
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
, 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 

th
e
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
th

is
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

v
io

le
n
c
e
. 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

a
rr

e
s
t 

ra
te

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

M
e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 P

o
lic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

D
V

 a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 u

n
it
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 D
V

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
, 

is
 m

o
v
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it
h
 a

 V
io

le
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

W
o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 G

ir
ls

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
la

n
, 

h
a
s
 p

a
id

 f
o
r 

e
x
tr

a
 p

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 o

n
 a

 S
a
tu

ra
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
 t

o
 l
im

it
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lic

e
n
s
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 

h
ig

h
 c

ri
m

e
 /

 A
S

B
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 l
ik

e
 m

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
, 

h
a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

D
ri
n
k
in

g
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
a
rg

e
t 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
ri
n
k
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

ri
m

e
 o

r 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

  
 

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��



�
��
�



��
�

	
��
�

�
�

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

p
r

M
a

y
J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e

b
2
0
1
2
/1

3

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	
�
�
��

�	
�

�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	#
!
�
�	
5
-�
�
�
	!
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
$

�
��
�

�
�	
�

�
��
�

�
��
	

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��

0123456789

1
0

2
0
1
1
/1

2
A

p
r

M
a

y
J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e

b
2
0
1
2
/1

3

�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�	

��
��
�
��

	�
��
�
	�
�
;�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	#
!
�
�	
5
-�
�
�
	!
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
$

P
a
g

e
 1

0

Page 320



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

2
6
8
6

5
0
0

8
1
4

G
R

E
E

N

�

3
4
.5

8
.6

3
6
.7

R
E

D

�

6
8
.6

4
8
.6

4
7
.1

A
M

B
E

R

�

C
a

re
rs

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 c
a

re
r’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
re

rs
 

w
h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

r 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

 y
e
a
r 

w
h
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

T
h
is

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 J

u
n
e
 (

Q
1
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t.

 A
H

W
B

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
ill

 s
e
e
k
 

to
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
o
n
c
e
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
rs

u
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

.

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

S
to

p
p

in
g

 s
m

o
k

in
g

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fo
u
r-

w
e
e
k
 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

N
H

S
 S

to
p
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 .

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

T
h
is

 o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 J

u
n
e
 (

Q
1
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 f
a
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
t.

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
ll 

o
n
 t

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

.

	
��

	
��

�
�
��

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n

S
e
p

D
e

c
2
0
1
2
/1

3

C
a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 c

a
re

r’
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

�
�
�

�


�
	

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�



�
�

�
�
�
�

�


�
�

�
�
�
�

�


�
�

�
�
�
�

�


�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

P
a
g

e
 1

1

Page 321



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 -
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



��





�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
��


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
!	
�
"
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	


�	
!�
�
�
�
#
�
��

�
�
	
"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	"
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

	"
�
��
�
�

R
E

D

�
S

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 c

li
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

S
e

lf
 

D
ir

e
c

te
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%
 (

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 D
ir
e
c
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

(a
n
d
/o

r 
a
n
 I
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t)

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

to
 3

1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

8
 o

r 
o
v
e
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

6
8
.6

4
8
.6

4
7
.1

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 i
s
 4

7
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
8
.6

%
. 

 I
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 (
3
9
.8

%
) 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
 

s
tr

o
n
g

 u
p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 7

.3
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

o
n
c
e
 w

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

w
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

’ 
fi
g

u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

p
e
n
d
in

g
.

3
9
.8

4
7
.1

3
9
.7

3
0

1
0
.7

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
J
u
n

S
e
p

D
e

c
2
0
1
2
/1

3

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 w
h

o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf

-d
ir

e
c
te

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 d
ir

e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts

P
a
g

e
 1

2

Page 322



 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
5th December 2012 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
CAB 57/123 
 

Agenda 
Item: 12.1 

Report of:  
Corporate Director Resources 
 
Originating officer(s) Oladapo Shonola 
Chief Financial Strategy Officer; Lisa Stone 
Finance Officer 
 

Title: 
 
Exercise of Corporate Directors’ Discretions 
  

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1. This report sets out the exercise of Corporate Directors’ discretions under Financial 
Regulation B8 which stipulates that such actions be the subject of a noting report to 
Cabinet if they involve expenditure between £0.100 million and £0.250 million. 

 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Note the exercise of Corporate Directors’ discretions as set out in Appendix 1. 

 
 
3. REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
 
3.1 Financial Regulations requires that regular reports be submitted to 

Council/Committee setting out financial decisions taken under Financial 
Regulation B8. 

 
3.2 The regular reporting of Corporate Director’s Discretions should assist in ensuring 

that Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions. 
 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The Council is bound by its Financial Regulations (which have been approved by 

Council) to report to Council/Committee setting out financial decisions taken under 
Financial Regulation B8. 

 
 

Agenda Item 12.1

Page 323



 

4.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to be a 
good reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such reason, 
having regard to the need to ensure that Members are kept informed about 
decisions made under the delegated authority threshold and to ensure that these 
activities are in accordance with Financial Regulations. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1  Regulation B8 sets out the Cabinet Reporting Thresholds for specific financial 
transactions. 

 
 
6. FINANCIAL REGULATION B8  
 

6.1 Financial Regulation B8 sets out the reporting thresholds for the following financial 
transactions: - 

Virements 

Capital Estimates 

Waiving Competition Requirements for Contracts and Orders (Subject to EU 

threshold)  

Capital Overspends 

Settlement Of Uninsured Claims 

 

6.2 Under Financial Regulation B8, if the transaction involves a sum between £0.100 
million and £0.250 million it can be authorised by the Corporate Director under the 
scheme of delegation but must also be the subject of a noting report to the next 
available Cabinet. 

6.3   Appendix 1 sets out the exercises of Corporate Directors’ discretions, under the 
stipulations in 4.2 above, that have taken place since the previous Cabinet 

 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 The comments of the Director of Resources have been incorporated into the report and 

Appendix. 
 
 

Page 324



 

8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL 
SERVICES) 

 

8.1. The report sets out the individual exercises of Directors’ Discretions as required by 
Financial Regulations. 

 
8.2 The legal implications of each of the individual decisions would have been 

provided as part of the decision making process. These will be recorded on the 
“Record of Corporate Directors’ Actions” maintained by Directorates 

 
8.3 The procedure for recording and reporting Corporate Director’s Actions has 

recently been revised and strengthened.  All proposed actions where the value 
exceeds £100,000 are now required to be agreed with the Mayor prior to officer’s 
sign off and approval. The revised procedure came into effect in December 2011.   

 
 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

9.1 This report is concerned with the notification of officers’ discretions under Standing 
Orders and has no direct One Tower Hamlets implications. To the extent that there 
are One Tower Hamlets Considerations arising from the individual actions, these 
would have been addressed in the records of each action. 

 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1   There are no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implications arising from     

this report. 
 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

11.1  The risks associated with each of the Corporate Directors’ discretions as set out in 
Appendix 1 would have been identified and evaluated as an integral part of the 
process, which lead to the decision. 

 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications arising from this report. 
 
 
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  

  
13.1  The works referred to in the report will be procured in line with established 

practices, taking account of best value.  

Page 325



 

 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Exercise of Corporate Directors’ Discretions under Financial 
Regulation B8 

 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

Record of Corporate Directors actions Stephen Adams, Finance and Resources 
Manager, Communities, Localities and 
Culture 
Ext. 5212 

 
 
 

Page 326



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

: 
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
s

 u
n

d
e

r 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 B
8

 
 

  
  

  
  

  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
A

m
o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
D

is
c
re

ti
o

n
 

J
u

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 N

a
m

e
 

a
n

d
 A

d
d

re
s
s
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
) 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

C
L

C
 (

R
e

f:
 1

2
 

2
2

) 
£

1
1
7

,4
1
7

 
A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
a

p
it

a
l 

e
s

ti
m

a
te

 f
o

r 
B

u
s
 S

to
p

 
W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
is

 
in

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
ti
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 o
f 

£
1
0
0

k
. 

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
0

6
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
B

u
s
 S

to
p
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

J
 B

 R
in

e
y
 L

td
 

4
5

5
 W

ic
k
 L

a
n

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 E
3

 2
T

B
 

E
lis

e
 B

o
o

n
, 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 &

 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 (

X
6

8
3

2
) 

 

Page 327



Page 328

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	6.1 Tenancy Strategy
	6.1b Tower_Hamlets_Tenancy Strategy_final_Draft_12_12_05
	6.1c App2 - GLA_response
	6.1d App3 - Tenancy_strategy_consultation_Report
	6.1e App4 - Tenancy Strategy_EQIA

	6.2 Olympic Impact Planning Review
	6.3 Saturation Policy - Brick Lane
	6.3b Draft Report Saturation Brick Lane 15 10 12rb
	6.3c App2 - Equality Checklist Saturation Policy

	7.1 Establishing a Local Health Watch
	8.1 Reviewing the impact of the Children's Centres restructure - report of the scrutiny working group
	9.1 Food Law Enforcement Plan 2012/13
	9.1b App1 FSA Service Plan 2012-13
	9.1c Equality Checklist Food Law Enforcement vrb

	10.2 Strategic Performance, General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 2012/13 Q2
	10.2b App1 - Control Budget
	10.2c App2 - CMBM Month 6 GF
	10.2d App3 - CMBM Month 6 HRA
	10.2e App4 Capital Q2
	10.2f App5 - Mid Year 2012-13 Strategic Plan Monitoring
	10.2g App6 - Q2 2012-13 Strategic Measures Monitoring

	12.1 Exercise of Corporate Directors' Discretions
	12.1b App1 - Corporate Director Discretions


